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Job # 30509 
 

☐ Subcommittee 

☐ Conference Committee 

 

Committee Clerk: Rose Laning/Marne Johnson/Florence Mayer 

 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

A BILL for an Act to provide an appropriation for defraying the expenses of the insurance 

commissioner 
 

Minutes:                                                 Testimony Attached # 1 - 10 

 
Legislative Council: Alex Cronquist  
OMB: Larry Martin  
 
Chairman Holmberg: Called to order the hearing on SB 2022.    
Tomorrow at 1:30PM – budget forecasting with Joint Appropriations. Sub-committee on 
insurance:  Senator Oehlke, Senator Erbele, and Senator Grabinger. 
 
Jon Godfread, Commissioner, North Dakota Insurance Department: 
Testimony Attached # 1 - Senate Bill No. 2010 and department overview 
Testimony Attached # 2 – Proposed Amendments to Senate Bill No. 2010 
Testimony Attached # 3 – North Dakota Premium Tax Distribution to Fire Departments and 
the Difference from Actual Collection and NDFA Payment. 
 
(3:00) Reading from attachment 1 – starting page 2. 
 
(9:30) These proposed changes have been vetted with every stake holder we could think of, 
and discussed with our staff. Reading from attachment 1, page 4, which are the proposed 
changes – 
  
1) Moving the Petroleum Tank Release Compensation Fund to the Department of 

Environmental Quality (DEQ)  
2) Moving the Boiler and Pressure Vessel Inspectors to DEQ  
 
(16:21) Chairman Holmberg: This is one of the things the subcommittee needs to be aware. 
The DEQ is HB 1024, what you have given us is a policy decision.     
Are you sharing this particular issue with the House Appropriation?  
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Mr. Godfread: Yes. We’ll talk to everyone who will listen to us.  
 
3) (Attachment #1, page 5) Moving administration of the Fire and Tornado and State 

Bonding Fund to the North Dakota Insurance Reserve Fund. 
 
(21:15) Brennan Quintus, CEO, North Dakota Insurance Reserve Fund (NDIRF): 
Testimony Attached # 4. 
 
(23:47) Senator Grabinger: Can you briefly tell the difference between what you offer and 
what the Tornado Fund offers? 
 
Brennan Quintus – Currently the Fire and Tornado Fund offers property coverage; building 
and contents coverage. They offer it to state agencies along with political subdivisions. The 
NDIRF offers liability coverage which would include your standard general liability coverage, 
along with professional coverage; directors and officer’s coverage. We offer automobile 
coverage; and equipment coverage, but only to political subdivisions 
 
Senator Grabinger: So you’re offering the same thing that the Tornado and Fire Fund 
already offers. 
 
Mr. Quintus:  No, we don’t offer the property coverage. We are precluded in the Century 
Code from offering those types. The amendment that would allow us to contract with the 
Insurance Department is included in there. 
 
Chairman Holmberg: For those following green sheet, the last page shows the governor’s 
recommendation.  Going back to the 2nd page of the green sheets, section 6,7,8 – it tells the 
subcommittee that if we want to do that, you have to add that as an amendment to the bill. 
But the language for that bill is in the green sheets.  
 
(26:10) Senator Mathern: What would be the rationale for contracting vs. direct transfer? 
 
 
Mr. Godfread:  The Fire and Tornado Fund and State Bonding Fund are constitutional funds. 
We’re not able to turn the control of the funds over to a private entity.  We’d be a final 
signatory on it, but contract with NDIRF for all the administrative function.  We’d ultimately 
sign the checks.  We treat NDIRF like another insurance related entity, we audit them. 
Outside of the constitutional language, we can’t turn complete control of those funds over to 
a non-government entity.  
 
 
Senator Mathern: Why not put it in constitution?  You evidently decided not to, why? 
 
 
Mr. Godfread:  We’re working with what we can do here. I wouldn’t be opposed to putting 
that question onto the ballot.  We’re going through the legislative process.   
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(28:35) Blake Crosby, Executive Director, ND League of Cities: (No written testimony.)  I 
am a board member of the North Dakota Insurance Reserve Fund. The idea of having the 
state fire and tornado being admin by the NDIRF was brought up at the annual conference 
last September, the members were very receptive and concerns had to do with levels of 
service.  The state reserve and NDIRF have a lot of customers in common, when compared 
they wanted the NDIRF to handle the services. I would ask the subcommittee to understand 
that our city members are in favor of it.  
 
(29:41) Terry Traynor, Executive Director, ND Association of Counties: (No written 
testimony.)  I too am a board member of the NDIRF.  Our county auditors are the ones who 
deal with coverage on bother levels now and they’ve said it would make things a lot easier.   
 
(30:00) Steve Becker, Executive Director of Professional Insurance Agents: We support 
the change. Right now our agents meet with these counties and cities; we can talk about 
everything but property.  In order to do the best job possible, we need to know the whole 
picture. This will allow our agents to bring it into one package.   
 
(31:14) Dana Schaar Jahner, Executive Director, ND Recreation & Parks Association: 
Written testimony submitted - attached # 5 
 
(31:38) Senator Dever: This government self-insurance pool – they would have control of 
the insurance, but the control of the funds stays with the commissioner. Is that correct? 
 
Mr. Godfread: Yes.  It would be a contract for services.  The governing body of those fire, 
tornado, bonding funds. We’re not able to remove authority to a non-governmental entity. We 
worked this through with the risk team/officers.  The language satisfies the constitution and 
also achieves the goal.  
 
Senator Dever: They will function as an insurance company.  If there is a disaster. If it’s not 
covered, then the liability falls on the state.  
 
Mr. Godfread: Yes, as the owner of the fund. Fund balance statutory floor is at $12M, we 
are at over $22M. Reinsurance that kicks in for any event over a million dollars.  If we had an 
event that wouldn’t be covered, I’d hate to see what that is. (34:06)  
 
4) (Attachment #1 page 6) 100% Funding for Fire Districts  

 
(39:00) Jason Catrambone, Fire Chief for the City of Williston: Testimony Attached # 6. 
 
Bruce Schreiner, Fire Chief for the City of Garrison: Written testimony submitted # 7. 

     
    Joel Boespflug, Fire Chief for the City of Bismarck: Written testimony submitted # 8. 

 
(42:48) Senator Robinson: Many smaller rural areas running out of people and we are 
unable to retain those we have. Larger communities are asked to assume responsibility. Do 
you have anything with you or where are we with those issues?  
 
Mr. Catrambone:  We can get something for you.  
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Senator Robinson: There are horror stories of people calling the fire dept. and no one shows 
up, or having a truck quit on the way to the fire. We can’t tolerate that. 
 
(44:35) Senator Grabinger: How many of our volunteer fire departments are using this 
funding for Workforce Safety. With the WS, are we moving ahead, are we able to help with 
those on the scene? 
 
Mr. Catrambone:  Yes, we will try to put something together on that. 
 
(45:37) Shawn Weltikol, Fire Chief of the Devils Lake Rural Fire Department: Testimony 
Attached # 9.  
 
(47:32) Robert Knuth, Training Director, North Dakota Firefighter’s Association: 
Testimony Attached # 10. 
  
(50:55) Mr. Knuth: explained the FEMA SAFER Grant – 4-year grant, in one year we had 
250 new volunteers. Over the next few approx. 400-500 new fire fighters state wide.  We can 
get the exact up to date figures that have been reported for that grant.   
 
(52:18) Senator Robinson: It’s an area that we are still challenged with recruitment and 
retention?  
 
Mr. Knuth:  Yes, that is one of the major issues face the North Dakota Fire Department. 
 
(52:56) Darren Schimke, President of Professional Firefighters of North Dakota 
(PFFND): (No written testimony) Totally support this proposed change.  
 
(53:30) Blake Crosby, Exec. Dir. League of Cities: (No written testimony.)  I stand in favor 
of this bill and amendments. No cities should have to have bake sales to support their own 
safety and fire departments. Fire enforcement is critical for everybody. 
 
(54:51) Mr. Godfread – (continuing.)  
We’re one tragedy aware from solving this problem.  
 
Chairman Holmberg: With what is in the budget currently, the general fund is receiving 
about $3M funds annually ($6M biennially). 
 
(57:09) Senator Poolman: Were these dollars not allocated or given to other agencies with 
similar missions? Or did we just dump these into the general fund?  
 
Chairman Holmberg: General fund.  
 
Mr. Catrambone: Finishing with ‘Conclusion’- Attachment #1 page 7. 
 
(59:12) Chairman Holmberg: Did the Governor’s budget had your agency fully funded with 
the 4 and 2?  
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Mr. Godfread: We had a hard time deciphering that.  Take into account the 4 and 2, didn’t 
follow the executive budget.  
 
Chairman Holmberg: The subcommittee can look at that.  Anyone from the public have 
anything to say? 
 
Closed the hearing on SB 2010. 
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Appropriations Committee 
Harvest Room, State Capitol 

SB 2010 
1/22/2019 

Job # 31232 
 

☐ Subcommittee 

☐ Conference Committee 

 

      Committee Clerk: Rose Laning / Marne Johnson 

 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
A bill to provide an appropriation for defraying the expenses of the insurance commissioner; 
relating to North Dakota reserve fund use of producers; relating to the state fire and tornado 
fund, the state bonding fund, fees chargeable by the insurance commissioner, the salary of 
the insurance commissioner, insurance rebates, and government self-insurance pools; to 
provide for a legislative management study; to provide a statement of legislative intent; to 
provide for a report; to provide a continuing appropriation; to provide for a penalty; and to 
declare an emergency. 
 

Minutes:                                                 No Attachments  

 
Legislative Council: Alex Cronquist  
OMB: Larry Martin  

The Senate Appropriations Committee met to discuss the agency bills and others that have 
been presented thus far and wanted to get input from the whole committee on what should 
be the focus of each sub-committee.  
 
Chairman Holmberg said that we’re not going thru salaries at this time.  
 
SB 2001 – Governor (sub-committee: Hogue, Lee, Mathern) 

 The 10% movement of moving money between line items.   Have a standard response 
for them. 

 Discuss the governor’s salary - this reduces salary just short of $200,000 & what 
happens to the rest of it. They took their 5% cut.  (Language needs to be revisited) 

 Council said by putting it in a line item, then it couldn’t get spent in other areas. 

 Transfer language - limited it to 10% before going to emergency commission 
 
 
SB 2002 – Secretary of State (sub-committee: Hogue, Oehlke, Grabinger) 

 Voting equipment – replacing voting machines (matching requirement by state) 

 Emergency clause should be there.  

 10% line item transfers 
 



Senate Appropriations Committee  
SB 2010 
1/22/19 
Page 2  
   

 
SB 2003 – Attorney General (sub-committee: Sorvaag, Bekkedahl, Mathern) 

 Litigation authority 

 Amount of money for Litigation 

 Joining in with other states suing the federal government 

 New line in OMB to tap into litigation pool 

 Human trafficking grants added to AG bill 
 
 
SB 2004 – State Auditor (sub-committee:  Oehlke, Dever, Mathern) 

 Looking at number of FTE requests 

 FTEs between University system and Auditor’s office 

 ITD FTEs. 
 
 
SB 2005 – State Treasurer (sub-committee: Bekkedahl, Dever, Robinson) 

 Investments of the Veterans Post War Trust Fund (low interest) 

 Treasurer’s salary 
 
   
SB 2006 – Tax Commissioner (sub-committee: Wanzek, Bekkedahl, Mathern) 

 Discovery of compliance of businesses with no physical sales tax.   

 Concern about staffing – many retirees and loss of senior staff.   

 Authority for line item transfers between the Homestead Tax Credit and Disabled 
Veteran’s Credit programs. 

 Litigation funds – or funds in litigation pool.  
 
 
SB 2007 – Labor & Human Rights (sub-committee: Poolman, Sorvaag, Robinson) 

 Salary of Commissioner as she will be in charge of Dept of Labor and Human Rights as 
well as the Dept. of Commerce.  

 
 
SB 2008 – Public Service Commissioner (sub-committee: Lee, Wanzek, Grabinger) 

 Wanting additional staff for indemnity issues 

 Additional staff 

 $100,000 increase in budget 
 

JOB # 31232 - 
 
SB 2009 – Agriculture Commissioner (sub-committee: Wanzek, Erbele, Grabinger) 

 Want to move APUC and Trade Office to his office. 

 2 less FTEs 

 Ag bio-science program – an appropriation bill.  Should it be added to the budget or let 
it a stand-alone bill.   

 
SB 2010 – Insurance Commissioner (sub-committee: Oehlke, Erbele, Grabinger) 
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 Moving the Fire & Tornado fund over to the ND Insurance Reserve Fund 

 Boiler inspection program 

 Fire Departments & Sheriff’s tax on insurance   
 

 
SB 2011 – Securities Commission (sub-committee: Krebsbach) 

 Money for a FINTECH position 

 Section 3 appropriation of any income from federal funds (14:17) 
 
Larry Martin: Like the transfer language, we added a lot of the language to spend 
additional federal or other funds to the cabinet agencies.  Again, some of them receive 
money from outside sources, so we wanted them to have the ability to pay out.  Job 
Service has similar language currently because they do get additional federal money so 
they have to be able to spend it out.  We added that language to all the cabinet bills.   
   
 
SB 2012 – Human Services (sub-committee: Dever, Erbele, Mathern) 

 Provider rates.  Governor 1-1.  They want 3-3-3. 

 Medicaid – reauthorization of the expansion.  Do we reimburse? 

 Behavioral Health 

 State Hospital – support the move from New England for the women?  Justification for 
the state hospital – a study? 

 Policy and how its structured – for whole department.  $182M 

 Nursing Homes  

 Study the 36 Critical Access Hospitals - Commercial rates vs. traditional rates 

 Study resolution of medical care in the future for the state 

 1915(i) needs support.  

 Commercial vs. traditional rates 
 

 
 
 
SB 2013 – Public Instruction; Library, Blind & Deaf (sub-committee: Holmberg, Poolman, 
Robinson) 

 Will have some meetings but need to wait for Education Committee to complete policy.  
Governor’s school information is confusing.    

 1 FTE reinstated.  

 Adult education.  

 FTEs at school at Devils’ Lake 

 Governor moved pre-school money from Commerce to DPI (where is the money?)  

 Transportation grants  
 
 
 
SB 2014 – Protection & Advocacy (sub-committee: Sorvaag, Krebsbach, Grabinger) 

 Adding of one employee  

 Additional operating expenses 
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 Transferring guardianship programs to P & A.     
 
 
 
SB 2015 – Office of Management & Budget (sub-committee: Holmberg, Bekkedahl, 
Robinson) 

 Transferring money –  $1B of oil revenue to general funds.  
If we put $1B in and oil prices go down and we have less money in the general fund, 
we might have a risk with allotments. 
Do we want to expose ourselves more in the general fund by putting $1B in the general 
fund from direct oil revenue?   

 Fees or dues for several organizations. Last session we reduced dues by 10%.  

 WICHE (Western Interstate Commission for Higher Ed) dues were in OMB and 
Commission was placed under Higher Ed.  Did the $15,000 get transferred?  

 
 
 
 
SB 2016 – Office of Adjutant General (sub-committee: Hogue, Holmberg, Grabinger) 

 Land Acquisition - Proposed 6,000 acres of land in south Camp Grafton.  Want to ask 
the adjutant, you have $15M set aside to acquire 6000 continuous acres and will not 
exercise the power of eminent domain.  How much will they pay an acre?  
How did they come up with $15M? 

 $15M set aside to gain land - long term leases.  Be wary of setting precedent for 
cost/acre. 

 Locals are not on board?  
 
 

 
 
SB 2017 – Game & Fish (sub-committee: Oehlke, Wanzek, Grabinger) 

 Section 5 on green sheet – additional amounts appropriated to Game & Fish Dept. 
There is appropriated additional income from the feds from other funds to that agency.  
Would the federal funds go to their agency first?   

 If they’re receiving monies from federal, they can spend them out.  

 Section 6 - Require them to hang onto $15M unless we have a budget section meeting 
and have an exception for some emergency.  They have to invest it and its not making 
money where its being invested.  They’d like it to be invested by the state investment 
board.  

 Sportsman’s clubs – raise the fishing licenses; boat tax/gas tax. 
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Appropriations Committee 
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Job # 31315 
 

☒ Subcommittee 

☐ Conference Committee 

 

      Committee Clerk Signature   Rose Laning / Florence Mayer 

 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

A BILL for an Act to provide an appropriation for defraying the expenses of the insurance 

commissioner. 
 

Minutes:                                                  

 
Legislative Council: Alex Cronquist  
OMB: Larry Martin  
 
Chairman Oehlke: Called the committee to order on SB 2010. Committee members Senator 
Erbele and Senator Grabinger were also present.  
 
Senator Oehlke: How are things going with Environmental Quality? 
 
Jon Godfread, Commissioner, North Dakota Insurance Department: 
Meeting with them this afternoon. We’re meeting with Dave Glatt. The Petro Tank is even in 
the budget on the house side. The boiler inspectors are what we’ll talk about today. Hopeful 
to bring that to you next time we meet.  
 
Senator Oehlke: The state fire and tornado fund effort is moving along?  
 
Jon Godfread:  Yes, the last real hurdle is the approval. Unless there’s something we’ve 
missed, I’ve only received positive feedback. The cities, the parks, the schools, counties all 
presented at the budget meeting. As long as you all feel it’s an appropriate move.   
 
Senator Oehlke: One of the other things with your department, are you happy with the world 
wide web program?   
 
Jon Godfread: We still have IT in house. Some of our programs are very specific to 
insurance licensure and registration. In the past, we’ve had an IT person to help manage 
those state based systems.  The other IT function we run wouldn’t be able to be turned over 
to the state – on the licensure side.  I don’t believe we’re impacted like that.  
 
Senator Oehlke: The money from Microsoft, that’s relative to that program? The governor’s 
office added $24,000 for money for…? 
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Jon Godfread: That’s part of the movement to the new Office365, we’re fine with that.  
 
Senator Oehlke: Those two systems are totally separate? That was confirmed. 
We want to discuss fire districts and dollars for them. The amendment included dividing that 
up, 94.5% to fire department and districts. 5.5% to the firefighter’s association. How did that 
shake out last time? 
 
Jon Godfread: The agreement between fire fighters and fire association has been that exact 
number. Whatever was appropriated in past was split. The firefighter’s associations support 
all the training and rest going to fire districts.   
 
Senator Oehlke: The numbers I see in the budget, would but $15M towards the fire 
departments and $951,000 to firefighters Association? That was confirmed. 
Is that the entire budget of the firefighter’s association?  
 
Robert Knuth, Training Director, North Dakota Firefighter’s Association: The fire 
fighter’s association budget is primarily what we receive through the state. We do apply for 
federal and local grants, for specific types of training or equipment. Outside of those grants, 
this is the entire budget. 
 
Senator Oehlke: Do the departments get a fee charged to them for being a member? 
 
Robert Knuth: $100 per department, that gets all the training. Also includes certifications for 
firefighter 1 or 2, whatever level they’re looking for. We do charge a nominal registration fee. 
This past December we had a rescue school in Minot. It’s primarily automobile extraction, 
heavy rescue, trench rescue. We charged $50 a student for that, which didn’t come close to 
the full cost.   
 
Senator Oehlke: That was per student in addition to what the department was charged? 
That was confirmed. 
So the 951,000 you’d get from the state goes for salaries, operations, etc.? Other then the 
trainings.  
That was confirmed. 
 
(7:49) Senator Grabinger: When we first heard about the state fire check, we talked about 
making sure all volunteer firefighters are covered by Work Force Safety. They told us they 
were already covered. Do you have number of how many are covered by them? Self-
employed farmers are not paying in, but would be covered with health. Do you have those 
numbers? 
 
Robert Knuth: I do not, we don’t keep those records. 
 
Senator Grabinger: As a former fire fighter myself, not having that coverage for 16 years, I 
think we need to look at a way to see that all firefighters are covered. It’s hard enough to 
have volunteer firefighters. The requirements to pass are more and more taxing. In that 
sense, we should do that.  
He agreed.  
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Senator Oehlke: It’s a large workload for your department. It’s not easy for workforce safety 
either. 
 

Robert Knuth: Seems to be a complicated solution to an outwardly simple problem. The 
business we have with WSI is hard. Who is going to pay for it? And how do you determine 
rates for all volunteer firefighters.   
 

Senator Oehlke: Right, they might be employed in hazardous situations. Others are self-
employed. I don’t know that we’d be able to convince the legislature that the Agriculture 
industry and independent contractors to do that. We could recommend it. But they don’t 
understand the risk. You could do a nice program on that and explain the problem and how 
to solve it. Until those entities want to buy the coverage, it’s going to be a problem.  
 
(12:25) Joel Bloespflug, North Dakota Fire Chief’s Association: We had 5 years of an 
effort to try to get benefits for the volunteer fire fighters. Headed out of Devils Lake. They did 
a good job. Circled back to ensuring fire departments know what WSI does cover. If I 
understand Chief Moe, that coverage would be similar to MDU person. They have used 
money, sometimes premium tax money, to help fund that gap insurance.   
 

Senator Grabinger: That’s exactly what they do in Jamestown. Using some of the premium 
tax money to pay their insurance.  
 

Joel Bloespflug: We have a fire chief’s conference in February with 150 fire chiefs. That is 
a great platform for this issue.  
 

Senator Oehlke: I was curious about the bonding fund. Is there a dollar amount that is in the 
bonding fund? You can employ assistance or contract for the services using money for the 
reserve fund of the state bonding fund. What would be the reserve of the state bonding fund? 
 

Jon Godfread: State bonding fund reserve is $358,240. The minimum requirement is $2M.   
 

Senator Oehlke: What might you be using that money for? 
 

Jon Godfread: Offset the operations of the Special funds division, which houses the 
operations of the fire and tornado fund and the state bonding fund. We can’t use those dollars 
for the salary side, so it’s been used to help offset that division.  
 

(16:00) Senator Oehlke: Can it be used for the working agreement with you and the 
insurance reserve fund? 
 

Jon Godfread: No, we would need that affirmative language to be able to contract for 
service. 
 

Senator Oehlke: Is that some of the money used for Tank Fund? 
 



Senate Appropriations Committee  
SB 2010 Insurance Dept. sub-committee 
January 23, 2019 
Page 4  
   

Jon Godfread: That’s separate fund. The Petroleum Tank Fund is at about $5.5M, it’s a $6M 
minimum. They’re sitting on a $400,000 deficit. When that happens the fees go up until the 
reserve is met.  
 
Senator Oehlke: We haven’t brought up wages and salaries. We haven’t agreed or even 
voted on that yet.  
 
Jon Godfread: There’s a lot of moving parts, we understand that. We’ve been working on 
this idea since mid-May.   
 
Senator Grabinger: The cutting back of the FTEs, where do you want to go with that? What 
would you like best?  
 
Jon Godfread: The amendment we submitted cuts 5 from the division. There’s 8 total. We’re 
down 5. Three would be eliminated through the DEQ move. Down 8 if you add the boilers in 
as a transferred to the EQ. We’re asking 3 back of the original 8.  
 
Senator Oehlke: Have you heard any more discussion on the shares for the fire departments 
and the association?  
 
Jon Godfread: We’ve had discussions in the House. They are aware of what we’re asking 
for. If our consumers are being double hit if not triple, they’re paying for it on their premiums, 
then property taxes and then donating during a benefit. There’s a portion of those dollars 
getting swept into the general fund. There’s no solid reason to why the money was swept 
over into the general fund. Our consumers are paying for it, then through the appropriations 
committee a portion is getting carved out. Without knowing to the consumers. But we’re 
working with fire chiefs and ISO rating. Sitting down and how do we address the Class IX fire 
station in our state. If you move some that’s a significant savings in home owners premium.  
We can use these dollars. If I can reduce my homeowners by 30%, everyone should be 
happy. I think we’ve got a much better idea of the fight.   
 
Senator Oehlke: Occasionally someone will say “do I pay tax on this premium?”, well yeah 
you do. “What’s that for?”, you tell them the firemen and they are fine with it. When they know 
it’s going to the people that fight fires. 
 
Jon Godfread:  I’m also a consumer and it’s frustrating for me to see that. Only a portion of 
what I pay is actually going to the firemen. We’re afraid of what they’ll do with it. That’s a 
tough argument. There is not a lack of a need. We’re trying to recruit our firemen, if you do’t 
have functioning equipment, it’s hard to get people. 
 
Senator Oehlke: We’ll be interested to see what you find out from DEQ and have another 
meeting after that.  
 
Closed the subcommittee on SB 2010. 
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Job #32369 (18:17) 
 

☒ Subcommittee 

☐ Conference Committee 

 

      Committee Clerk: Rose Laning/ Meghan Pegel 

 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 
A BILL for an Act to provide an appropriation for defraying the expenses of the insurance 
commissioner. 

Minutes:                                                 1 Attachment 

 
Legislative Council: Alex Cronquist  
OMB: Larry Martin  
 
Senator Oehlke called the sub-committee to order on SB 2010. Senator Erbele and 
Senator Grabinger are also present. 
 
Alex Cronquist handed out the Base Level Funding Changes (see attachment #1) 
 
Senator Oehlke: Last time we met, you were still working on an agreement with the quality 
control on boiler inspectors. Please update us.  
 
Jeff Ubben, Deputy Commissioner, North Dakota State Insurance Dept. 
 
Ubben: We’ve talked with the DEQ and they’ve agreed to take on the boiler inspectors. The 
amendments for the FTE and expenses have been offered to the House Appropriations 
subcommittee that is hearing the DEQ budget bill. The governor’s office also supports the 
transfer of the boiler inspectors to the DEQ. That issue has been resolved by the executive 
agencies that are affected.  
 
Senator Oehlke: Please speak about the insurance reserve fund. 
 
Ubben: We’ve been working with the NDRIF on a potential move of the state bonding fund 
and state fire and tornado fund since last spring; it’s been about a 9-month process and we’ve 
been in close contact to try to iron out any bumps along the road that could come from this 
transfer. We both feel we’re in a good place to have this transfer to NDRIF effective with the 
new biennium and have all of the changes and resources necessary to proceed so long as 
the original amendments we offered are adopted. The amendments would allow us to work 
with NDRIF to manage those two funds and it would also address the boiler inspectors 
moving to DEQ and the Petro tank program moving to DEQ as well. It’s my understanding 
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that the long sheet doesn’t have any of the amendments that we’ve proposed present in it to 
this time (see attachment #1) 
 
Senator Oehlke: The first one under section 2, the amendment that you proposed shows 
5.5% going to the Firefighters Association. If I add up the two numbers that are in section 2 
there and take it times 5.5%, it doesn’t come out to $951,000. It comes out to $828,000. I 
want to make sure we’re talking about 5.5% of the tax. 
 
Cronquist: The sections under the executive budget recommendation are the governor’s 
recommendations. 
 
Martin: I believe if you add those two numbers together and then take 5% of that total, that’s 
where you’d come up with the amount for the association; it still works out to the same 
percentages as it has in the past. 
 
Senator Oehlke: Total comes to $15,064,086 times 5.5 is $828,524. 
 
Martin: That number came in the insurance department’s request initially. We funded it back 
to the base level to where it is currently, so I’m assuming those are the current numbers. 
Those are the numbers in the current bill, so we funded it as it is currently. We kept those 
same numbers in the language. 
 
Senator Oehlke: Is it 5.5% in current code? 
 
Kadrmas: Correct. 
 
Rob Knuth, ND Firefighters Association: 
 
Knuth: I believe the issue is the 961 if it were 100% funded.  
 
Senator Grabinger: We’re taking the 5% out of the 100% funding, but the numbers here are 
not 100%. 
 
Senator Oehlke: When we do the amendment, please make sure it’s the 5.5%. 
 
Cronquist: If your intent is to accept the insurance department’s proposed amendment, the 
numbers will come out other than the percentages and it will be a continuing appropriation. 
You won’t specifically see any total amounts on the bill anymore. 
 
Senator Grabinger: Do you have the 100% number of that fund? 
 
(9:15) Cronquist: It appears it’s about $18.8M. 
 
Senator Oehlke: It’s going to be off the other way then, but that’s okay. As long as we have 
the correct percentages in the amendment, we’ll be in good shape. We have the unsatisfied 
judgement fund covered under section 4. Do we need to make any change to that? 
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Ubben: No, we think that one’s fine. I do have one question regarding the back of the long 
sheet. It talks about how section 3 would fund from the fire and tornado fund to admin 
expenses to pay boiler inspection program expenses. I think that would be removed if the 
insurance department’s proposed amendments are accepted. Now that we have agreement 
from the DEQ to take the boiler inspection program, hopefully that can move forward.  
 
Senator Oehlke: The main question we had was concern relative to those agreements with 
other parties to provide those services. It appears that if we do that amendment, the only 
other things that would need to be addressed are what are already addressed in the long 
sheet relative to salaries, the 2 and the 3% and the line item retirement contribution increase 
would not carry over. It may be there eventually, but at this point appropriations have not 
agreed to that item. We have agreed to the 2 and 3 and the health insurance. Your 
amendment should cover everything else.  
 
Senator Grabinger: If we move the boiler inspection program over, do we need to 
somewhere put in these expenses to cover that? Will we do that in a different bill or here? 
 
Ubben: I proposed that amendment to the House Appropriations committee as part of the 
amendment to the DEQ budget. They have that amendment sitting before them, but have 
not acted on it. However, I have not received any negative feedback from the House about 
taking that money from our budget and putting that into the DEQ budget.  
 
Senator Grabinger: I’ll leave it to the chair if we should include something or not. 
 
Senator Oehlke: If that doesn’t work out for some reason, we can deal with it in conference 
committee. can work it out in conference committee. 
 
Cronquist: Your desire is to go with their amendment except for the health and the salary 
adjustments? 
 
Senator Oehlke: Correct. 
 
Senator Grabinger: and we’re removing section three on the back. 
 
Cronquist: In the base budget bill, there’s a section for the bonding fund and a section for 
the fire and tornado fund. We will remove both of those as part of the amendments as they 
won’t have any specific appropriation coming from those anymore. 
 
Ubben: That should take care of it.  
 
Senator Grabinger: moved the amendments as proposed and discussed 
Senator Erbele: seconded 
 
Senator Oehlke: The bill moves forward with the amendment proposed by the insurance 
department and also including the changes on the base payroll, salary and health insurance; 
not to include anything for the retirement contribution increase. 
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Cronquist: House Appropriation has requested an amendment for HB 1024, the DEQ 
budget, to put in boiler inspection language. Do you want it in this bill as well so it’s in both 
or leave it over there? 
 
Ubben: That language is contained in the amendment that the committee has before it in the 
SB 2010 amendments that I proposed in January. We’ve also presented it to the House 
Appropriations for HB 1024. They have the same language before it for the boilers. It would 
be in both bills to my understanding. 
 
Senator Oehlke: Would you recommend it be in both?  
 
Cronquist: Ultimately it only needs to be in once; however, it depends on your faith in what 
the House Appropriations is going to do with it. 
 
Senator Oehlke: Let’s include it.  
 
A Roll Call Vote was Taken: 3 yeas, 0 nays, 0 absent. Amendments are adopted. 



2019 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES 

Appropriations Committee 
Harvest Room, State Capitol 

SB 2010 
2/12/2019 
SB 32575 

 

☐ Subcommittee 

☐ Conference Committee 

 

      Committee Clerk:   Rose Laning  

 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

A BILL for an Act to provide an appropriation for defraying the expenses of the insurance 

commissioner. 

 

Minutes:                                                 Amendment 19.0223.01001 

 
Legislative Council: Brady Larson  
OMB:  Stephanie Gullickson  
 
 
Senator Oehlke: moved amendment 19.0223.01001. 
Senator Krebsbach: Seconded the motion.  
Voice vote carried.  
 
Senator Oehlke: explained the amendment.  
 
Senator Oehlke: Moved Do Pass as Amended on SB 2010. 
Senator Grabinger: Seconded the motion.  
 

A Roll Call Vote was taken:   Yes:__14__   No:__0__   Absent:__0___.  
  
 
Motion carried.  
 
Senator Oehlke will carry the bill.  
 
 
 



19.0223.01001 
Title.02000 
Fiscal No. 1 

Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for 
Senator Oehlke 

February 11, 2019 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO SENATE BILL NO. 2010 

Page 1, line 2, remove "and to provide an appropriation for the distribution of funds from the 
insurance" 

Page 1, line 3, replace "tax distribution fund" with "to create and enact chapter 23.1-16 and 
section 26.1-22-03.1 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to boiler inspections 
and North Dakota reserve fund use of producers; to amend and reenact sections 
18-04-04, 18-04-04.1, and 18-04-05, subsection 2 of section 26.1-01-07, section 
26.1-01-09, subsection 1 of section 26.1-03-17, and sections 26.1-21-03, 26.1-21-17, 
26.1-22-03, and 26.1-23.1-01 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the state 
fire and tornado fund, the state bonding fund, fees chargeable by the insurance 
commissioner, the salary of the insurance commissioner, and government self
insurance pools; to repeal chapter 26.1-22.1 of the North Dakota Century Code, 
relating to boiler inspections; to provide a penalty; to provide a continuing 
appropriation; and to provide a contingent effective date" 

Page 1, replace lines 10 through 15 with: 
II 

Salaries and wages 
Operating expenses 
Total special funds 

Base Level 
$8,549,567 

2,179,777 
$10,729,344 

46.00 

Adjustments or 
Enhancements 

($415,092) 
(613,102) 

($1,028,194) 
(5.00) 

Appropriation 
$8,134,475 

1,566,675 
$9,701,150 

41.00" Full-time equivalent positions 

Page 1, remove lines 16 through 22 

Page 2, remove lines 1 through 6 

Page 2, replace lines 10 through 13 with: 

"SECTION 3. AMENDMENT. Section 18-04-04 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

18-04-04. Insurance companies to report fire, allied lines, homeowner's 
multiple peril, farmowner's multiple peril, crop hail. and commercial multiple peril 
insurance premium collections - Form furnished by insurance commissioner. 

The insurance commissioner, WReRat the time the commissioner forwards to an 
insurance company Wflieflthat is issuing policies for fire, allied lines, homeowner's 
multiple peril, farmowner's multiple peril, crop hail, and commercial multiple peril 
insurance in this state the form to be used in submitting its the company's annual 
statement, shall forward a form containing the names of all cities and all rural fire 
protection districts or rural fire departments entitled to benefits under the provisions of 
this chapter. Every insurance company issuing policies for fire, allied lines, 
homeowner's multiple peril, farmowner's multiple peril, crop hail, and commercial 
multiple peril insurance within this state shall complete S\::feflthe form by showing 
thereon the amount of all premiums received by ttthe company upon such policies 
issued on property within the corporate limits of each city shown on S\::feflthe form and 
on property within the boundaries of each rural fire protection district shown on S\::feflthe 
form or property within the boundaries of each rural fire department as certified by the 
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state fire marshal during the year ending on the preceding thirty-first day of December 
and shall file the sameform as a part of itsthe company's annual statement. 

SECTION 4. AMENDMENT. Section 18-04-04.1 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

18-04-04.1. Insurance tax distribution fund. 

The insurance tax distribution fund is a special fund in the state treasury. The 
portion of revenue provided in section 26.1-03-17 must be deposited in the fund for 
disbursement as provided in this chapter and chapter 23-46, subjeot to legislative 
appropriation. 

SECTION 5. AMENDMENT. Section 18-04-05 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

18-04-05. Amount due cities, rural fire protection districts, or rural fire 
departments - Transfer to firefighters death benefit fund - Disbursement to North 
Dakota firefighter's association - Payments by insurance commissioner: 
Continuing appropriation. 

1. The insurance commissioner shall disburse funds in the insurance tax 
distribution fund as provided under this section. 

2. The insurance commissioner shall transfer an amount of up to fifty 
thousand dollars per biennium, as may be necessary, to the firefighters 
death benefit fund for distribution under chapter 18-05.1. 

3. The insurance commissioner shall compute and disburse funds to the 
North Dakota firefighter's association for uses authorized under chapter 
18-03, subject to legislative appropriations. 

4. The insurance commissioner shall compute and disburse the amounts due 
to the certified city fire departments, certified rural fire departments, or 
certified fire protection districts entitled to benefits under this chapter on or 
before December first of each year. The insurance commissioner shall 
allocate one half of the biennial legislative appropriation for distribution 
under this subseotion, to eaoh eligible city not 'Nithin a oertified fire 
proteotion district, each oertified rural fire protection district organized 
under this title, and each rural fire department oertified by the state fire 
marshal, and pay the amount allocated in Deoember of each year. The 
allocation must be made in proportion to the amount of insurance company 
premiums received by insurance companies pursuant to section 
26.1-03-17 for policies for fire, allied lines, homeowner's multiple peril, 
farmo·Nner's multiple peril, commercial multiple peril, and crop hail 
insurancethe lines of insurance identified under section 18-04-04 on 
property within the city of a certified city fire department, § certified rural 
fire protection district, or area served by tfle§ certified rural fire department 
to the total of those premiums for those policies in the state. 

§.,. Annually, the insurance commissioner shall determine the amount of 
insurance premium taxes collected from the insurance lines identified in 
section 18-04-04. Of this amount, annually the commissioner shall 
disburse five and one-half percent to the North Dakota firefiqhter's 
association and ninety-four and one-half percent to certified city fire 
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departments, certified rural fire departments, and certified fire protection 
districts. Moneys authorized for disbursement under this section are 
appropriated from the insurance tax distribution fund to the insurance 
commissioner on a continuing basis for the purpose of this section. 

SECTION 6. Chapter 23.1-16 of the North Dakota Century Code is created and 
enacted as follows: 

23.1-16-01. Definitions. 

As used in this chapter, unless the context otherwise requires: 

.1. "Boiler" means a closed vessel in which water is heated, steam is 
generated, steam is superheated, or any combination thereof, under 
pressure or vacuum for use externally to the boiler by the direct application 
of heat from the combustion of fuels, or from electricity or nuclear energy. 
The term includes fired units for vaporizing liquids other than water when 
these units are separate from processing systems and are complete within 
themselves. 

2. "Department" means the department of environmental quality. 

23.1-16-02. Chief boiler inspector, deputy inspectors - Appointment -
Jurisdiction. 

The department shall employ a chief boiler inspector and deputy inspectors. 
The chief boiler inspector has jurisdiction over all boilers in this state except as 
otherwise provided. 

23.1-16-03. Qualifications of chief boiler inspector - Deputy inspectors . 

.1. An individual is not eligible to the office of chief boiler inspector unless that 
individual: 

a. Has had at the time of the appointment at least five years' experience 
in the construction, inspection, operation, maintenance, or repair of 
high-pressure boilers and pressure vessels as a mechanical engineer, 
boilermaker, steam operating engineer, or boiler inspector. An 
applicant possessing a mechanical engineering degree from an 
accredited school may substitute that degree for two years of the five 
years' experience, at the discretion of the department. 

Q.,. Holds a commission issued by the national board of boiler and 
pressure vessel inspectors or obtains the commission within one year 
after the date of appointment by the department. 

c. Is not directly or indirectly interested in the manufacture or sale of 
boilers or steam machinery or articles used in the construction or 
maintenance of engines or boilers. 

2. The department shall establish qualifications for a deputy inspector which 
are not inconsistent with the requirements of the position. 

23.1-16-04. Powers and duties of chief boiler inspector . 

.1. The chief boiler inspector shall: 
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a. Keep a complete record of the type, dimensions, maximum allowable 
working pressure, age, condition, location, and date of the 
last-recorded internal and external inspection of boilers to which this 
chapter applies. 

b. Cooperate and assist in loss prevention programs sponsored by the 
department. 

2. The chief boiler inspector may delegate powers and duties to any deputy 
inspector or special inspector. 

23.1-16-05. General requirement. 

Every boiler in this state must be constructed, installed, and maintained 
according to rules adopted to implement this chapter. 

23.1-16-06. Exempt boilers - Inspection of exempt boilers. 

This chapter does not apply to: 

.1. Any boiler subject to federal inspection or under federal control. 

2. Any boiler located on a farm and used solely for agricultural purposes. 

3. Any heating boiler located in a private residence or in an apartment house 
of less than six family units. 

4. Any hot water supply boiler not exceeding the following limitations: 

a. Input of two hundred thousand British thermal units per hour . 

.Q,. Pressure of one hundred sixty pounds per square inch (1103.16 
kilopascals] gauge. 

c. Temperature of two hundred fifty degrees Fahrenheit (121.11 degrees 
Celsius]. 

5. Any portable steam cleaner commonly used in a garage. 

6. Any boiler of a miniature model locomotive, boat, tractor, or stationary 
engine design constructed as a hobby, not for commercial use, having an 
inside diameter not exceeding ten inches (25.4 centimeters] and a grate 
area not exceeding one and one-half square feet (1393.54 square 
centimeters] and which is properly equipped with a safety valve, water 
level indicator, and pressure gauge. 

7. Any electric boiler used as an integral part of an espresso coffee machine, 
provided that the boiler does not exceed one and one-half cubic feet (.0566 
cubic meter] in water capacity, does not exceed fifty pounds per square 
inch (344.74 kilopascals] pressure, and is constructed, approved, or 
certified to the American society of mechanical engineers code or to other 
national or international standards. 
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23.1-16-07. Inspection of boilers . 

.L The chief boiler inspector shall inspect each boiler used or proposed to be 
used within this state. The inspection must be thorough as to the 
construction, installation, condition, and operation as provided by the rules 
adopted to implement this chapter. An exempt boiler may be inspected by 
the chief boiler inspector when the owner, the owner's agent, or the user of 
the boiler makes written request for inspection to the department. 

2. Each boiler of one hundred thousand pounds [45359.24 kilograms] per 
hour or more capacity, used or proposed to be used within this state, which 
has internal continuous water treatment under the direct supervision of a 
graduate engineer or chemist, or one having equivalent experience in the 
treatment of boiler water when the water treatment is for the purpose of 
controlling and limiting serious corrosion and other deteriorating factors, 
and with respect to which boiler the chief boiler inspector has determined 
the owner or user has complied with the prescribed recordkeeping 
requirements, must be inspected at least once every thirty-six months 
internally while not under pressure, and at least once every twelve months 
externally while under pressure. If a hydrostatic test is necessary to 
determine the safety of a boiler, the test must be conducted by the owner 
or user of the equipment under the supervision of the chief boiler inspector. 
The owner or user of a boiler of one hundred thousand pounds [45359.24 
kilograms] per hour or more capacity desiring to qualify for thirty-six-month 
internal inspection intervals shall keep available for examination by the 
chief boiler inspector accurate records showing the date and actual time 
the boiler is out of service and the reason or reasons therefor, and the 
results of the chemical and physical analysis of the boiler water, whether 
from laboratory analysis of samples taken at regular intervals of not more 
than forty-eight hours or from continuous online analysers, which will 
adequately show the condition of the water and any other elements or 
characteristics of the water capable of producing corrosion or other 
deterioration of the boiler or its parts. If an inspection discloses deficiencies 
in equipment or in operating procedures, inspections may be required once 
every twelve months. 

23.1-16-08. Special inspector . 

.L Upon written request of an employer, the department may appoint as a 
special inspector an inspector in the employ of: 

a. An insurance company authorized to insure boilers in this state 
against loss from explosion: 

b. A company qualified by the national board of boiler and pressure 
vessel inspectors as an accredited owner/user inspection 
organization: or 

c. A company qualified by the national board of boiler and pressure 
vessel inspectors as an accredited authorized inspection agency. 

2. An individual may not be appointed as a special inspector unless that 
individual has passed the examination prescribed by the national board of 
boiler and pressure vessel inspectors. 
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3. An inspection performed by a special inspector must be performed in 
accordance with this chapter and a complete report of the inspection must 
be filed with the department in the time, manner, and form as prescribed by 
the department. 

4. If a complete report is not filed by the special inspector's employer with the 
department within ninety days from the certificate due date, the chief boiler 
inspector may make the required inspection, unless an extension of time is 
granted by the chief boiler inspector. The special inspector's employer 
must pay the inspection fees as required by section 23.1-16-09 for a 
special inspection. 

5. The chief boiler inspector may inspect any boiler to which a special 
inspection applies. 

6. The department may, for cause, suspend or revoke the appointment of any 
special inspector. 

23.1-16-09. Inspection and certificate fees. 

1. Upon completion of inspection, the owner or user of a boiler shall pay to 
the department fees or a combination of inspection and certificate fees. 
The department shall determine the inspection fees. Certificate fees are 
determined by section 23.1-16-10. The department shall determine and 
annually may adjust a fee scale for the internal inspections of power 
boilers, internal inspections of low-pressure heating boilers, external 
inspections of all boilers, and inspection of boilers used exclusively for 
exhibition purposes. 

2. Not more than two hundred dollars may be charged or collected for any 
one inspection of a boiler, except for special inspections made upon 
request. All other inspections made by the chief boiler inspectoc including 
shop inspections and reviews and special inspections when requested by 
the owner or user of a boiler, must be charged at a rate not to exceed five 
hundred dollars per day or three hundred dollars per half day of four hours 
or less, plus payment for mileage, meals, and hotel expenses as allowed 
by sections 44-08-04 and 54-06-09, except that the mileage rate for a 
state-owned vehicle will be the actual amount incurred by the department. 

� The annual fee for the issuance of a reciprocal commission card for a 
special inspector is forty dollars and the annual fee for the issuance of a 
welder-qualified card is twenty dollars. 

4. The fee for taking an examination for a hobby boiler operating license is 
twenty-five dollars and the fee for a hobby boiler operating license is 
twenty-five dollars. 

5. A hobby boiler operating license issued under this section is valid for six 
years. 

23.1-16-10. Certificate of inspection - Certificate to be posted. 

The department shall issue a certificate of inspection for each boiler inspected 
upon receipt of an inspection report certifying that the boiler is in a safe condition to be 
operated. The department shall charge a fee of twenty dollars per year for each year 
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that a certificate is valid. or part of a year thereof. for each certificate of inspection 
issued as the result of inspections authorized under sections 23.1-16-07 and 
23.1-16-08. The fees are the liability of the owner or user and must be paid in 
accordance with rules adopted by the department. A certificate may not be issued for 
any boiler not in a safe condition to be operated or for a boiler for which the inspection 
and certificate fees have not been paid in full. A certificate is not valid for a period of 
more than thirty-six months for power boilers described in subsection 2 of section 
23.1-16-07. and no more than twelve months for other power boilers. twelve months for 
steam traction engines. and thirty-six months for low-pressure boilers except that a 
two-month grace period may be extended for any certificate. Upon written request from 
a special inspector. the chief boiler inspector may issue a short-term certificate. Each 
certificate of inspection must be posted conspicuously under glass in the boiler room or 
adjacent to the boiler inspected. 

23.1-16-11. Certificate of inspection required - Penalty. 

A person may not operate a boiler in this state without a valid certificate of 
inspection. A violation of this section is a class A misdemeanor on the part of the owner. 
user. or operator of the boiler. 

23.1-16-12. Manufacturer's data report. 

The boiler manufacturer shall provide the department with a manufacturer's 
data report. When signed by an authorized inspector. this data sheet together with the 
stamp on the boiler is the record denoting the boiler has been constructed in 
accordance with the rules adopted to implement this chapter. 

23.1-16-13. Disposition of funds. 

All funds collected and received under this chapter must be paid to the state 
treasurer and deposited in the state fire and tornado fund to be used to defray the 
costs of boiler inspections. 

23.1-16-14. Rules - Penalty for violation - Hearing . 

.1. The department shall adopt rules for the safe and proper installation. use. 
operation. and inspection of boilers and pressure vessels subject to this 
chapter. 

2. The department shall adopt rules for the licensing of operators of hobby 
boilers used during parades. exhibitions. and threshing shows where the 
public is invited. 

3. A fee must be charged for an operating license. for a license renewal. and 
for an examination conducted to determine minimum competence. 
Individuals operating hobby boilers within this state as of July 1. 2007. are 
considered acceptable for a license without additional training or 
examination. An individual who is not a resident of this state and who holds 
a boiler operator license or credential in another state or Canadian 
province is exempt from licensure as a hobby boiler operator in this state. 

4. The department may not issue a certificate of inspection to any owner or 
user of a boiler who fails or refuses to comply with the rules. The 
department shall revoke any certificate presently in force upon evidence 
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that the owner or user of the boiler is failing or refusing to comply with the 
rules. 

5. Any owner or user of a boiler may request a hearing before the department 
within fifteen days from service of an order refusing or revoking a 
certificate of inspection. It is the burden of the owner or user to show cause 
why the certificate of inspection should not be refused or revoked. If no 
hearing is requested within the required period, the order of the 
department becomes final and is not subject to further proceedings. 

SECTION 7. AMENDMENT. Subsection 2 of section 26.1-01-07 of the North 
Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

2. Nonprofit health service corporations and health maintenance 
organizations are subject to the same fees as any other insurance 
company. County mutual insurance companies and benevolent societies 
are liable only for the fees mentioned in subdivisions b, f, g, and kh of 
subsection 1. 

SECTION 8. AMENDMENT. Section 26.1-01-09 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

26.1-01-09. Salary of commissioner. 

The annual salary of the commissioner is one hundred t·No thousand six 
hundred eighty nine dollars through June 30, 2016one hundred seven thousand eight 
hundred eighty-five dollars through June 30, 2020, and one hundred fr1e thousand 
se·1en hundred seventyone hundred eleven thousand one hundred twenty-two dollars 
thereafter. 

SECTION 9. AMENDMENT. Subsection 1 of section 26.1-03-17 of the North 
Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

1. Before issuing the annual certificate required by law, the commissioner 
shall collect from every stock and mutual insurance company, nonprofit 
health service corporation, health maintenance organization, and prepaid 
legal service organization, except fraternal benefit and benevolent 
societies, doing business in this state, a tax on the gross amount of 
premiums, assessments, membership fees, subscriber fees, policy fees, 
service fees collected by any third-party administrator providing 
administrative services to a group that is self-insured for health care 
benefits, and finance and service charges received in this state during the 
preceding calendar year, at the rate of two percent with respect to life 
insurance, one and three-fourths percent with respect to accident and 
health insurance, and one and three-fourths percent with respect to all 
other lines of insurance. This tax does not apply to considerations for 
annuities. The total tax is payable on or before March first following the 
year for which the tax is assessable. If the due date falls on a Saturday or 
legal holiday, the tax is payable on the next succeeding business day. 
Collections from this tax must be deposited in the insurance tax distribution 
fund under section 18-04-04.1 but not in an amount exceeding the amount 
computed under section 18-04-05 and one-half of the biennial amount 
appropriated for distribution under section 18 04 06 and chapter 23-46 in 
any fiscal year. Collections from this tax exceeding the sum of the amount 
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deposited in the insurance tax distribution fund must be deposited in the 
general fund in the state treasury. 

SECTION 10. AMENDMENT. Section 26.1-21-03 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

26.1-21-03. Commissioner may employ or contract for assistants : 
Continuing appropriation. 

The commissioner may employ assistants or contract for the services of 
assistants from the North Dakota insurance reserve fund as may be necessary to 
operate the state bonding fund. The salaries of all employees together •.vith all other 
expenditures for the operation of the fund must remain within the appropriations made 
by the legislative assembly for these purposes and must be paid by warrant check 
drawn on the state treasury prepared by the office of management and budget after the 
approval of expense vouchers by the office of the budgetMoneys in the reserve fund of 
the state bonding fund are appropriated to the commissioner on a continuing basis for 
the purpose of employing or contracting for services as provided under this section. 

SECTION 11. AMENDMENT. Section 26.1-21-17 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

26.1-21-17. Allowed liability claims payable from fund - Administrative 
expenses - Methods of payment. 

A claim allowed against the fund must be paid upon warrants drawn upon the 
state treasurer against the fund. The warrant must be prepared by the office of 
management and budget pursuant to the directions of the commissioner. Payments for 
administrative expenses of the state bonding fund must be made from the reserve fund 
of the state bonding fund or must be made within the limitations of legislative 
appropriations upon warrant-checks prepared by the office of management and budget 
after the approval of vouchers by the commissioner. 

SECTION 12. AMENDMENT. Section 26.1-22-03 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

26.1-22-03. Employment of assistants - Expenditures from fund : 
Continuing appropriation. 

To carry out this chapter, the commissioner may utilize any information on file in 
the state fire marshal's department and any of the employees of the commissioner and 
the commissioner may employ necessary assistants or contract for services of 
assistants from the North Dakota insurance reserve fund and may incur necessary 
expenses. All expenditures made for these purposes, other than services contracted 
and paid for by moneys from the fund and any necessary expenses paid from moneys 
from the reserve balance within the fund. must remain within the limits of legislative 
appropriations and must be paid out of the fund upon warrants prepared by the office of 
management and budget drawn upon the state treasurer after the approval of vouchers 
by the office of the budget. Moneys from the reserve balance within the fund are 
appropriated to the commissioner on a continuing basis for the purposes of this 
section. 

SECTION 13. Section 26.1-22-03.1 of the North Dakota Century Code is 
created and enacted as follows: 
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26.1-22-03.1. North Dakota insurance reserve fund - Producers -
Commission. 

The North Dakota insurance reserve fund may use the services of producers 
licensed under this title to assist policyholders .  Any commission paid to a producer 
under this section must be paid out of the premium income of the fund and must be 
assessed against the policyholders that benefit from the producer. 

SECTION 14. AMENDMENT. Section 26.1-23.1-01 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

26.1-23.1-01. Government self-insurance pools - Regulation - Reinsurance. 

1. Any two or more entities that have united to self-insure against their legal 
liability under chapter 32-12.1 or any state agency that unites with another 
state agency or political subdivision, or both, to self-insure against their 
legal liabilities are subject to the provisions of this chapter with the 
exception of a city and its park district established pursuant to chapter 
40-49. Government self-insurance pools may only provide coverage of the 
following types for pool members, their officers, employees, and agents: 

a. Casualty insurance, including general, public officials, and 
professional liability coverages. 

b. Automobile insurance, including motor vehicle liability insurance 
coverage, security for motor vehicles owned or operated as required 
by chapter 26.1-41, and protection against other liability and laws 
associated with the ownership of motor vehicles and automobile 
physical damage coverages. 

c. Property insurance, including inland marine coverage, money and 
securities coverage, and extra expense coverage. However, this 
subdivision does not authorize government self-insurance pools to 
write those types of insurance coverages offered by the state fire and 
tornado fund under the provisions of chapter 26. 1-22 as they existed 
on December 31, 1988, unless a government self-insurance pool 
enters a contract with the commissioner to provide services for the 
state fire and tornado fund under section 26.1-22-03. 

d. Other coverages authorized by the commissioner and necessary to a 
pool's membership. 

2. A government self-insurance pool may not expose itself to loss on any 
single risk or hazard in an amount exceeding ten percent of the amount of 
its admitted assets unless the pool obtains excess insurance or 
reinsurance with insurance companies approved for such business by the 
insurance commissioner. 

SECTION 15. REPEAL. Chapter 26.1-22.1 of the North Dakota Century Code 
is repealed. 

SECTION 16. CONTINGENT EFFECTIVE DATE. Sections 6 and 15 of this Act 
become effective on July 1, 2019, if the legislative council has received certification 
from the chief of the environmental health section of the state department of health that 
all authority, powers, and duties from the environmental health section of the state 
department of health have been transferred to the department of environmental quality. 
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If the certification is not received by July 1, 2019, sections 6 and 15 of this Act become 
effective on the date certification is received." 

Renumber accordingly 

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT: 

Senate B i l l  No. 201 0 - Insurance Department - Senate Action 

Salaries and wages 
Operating expenses 
Insurance tax payments 

Total all funds 
Less estimated income 
General fund 

FTE 

Base 
Budget 
$8,549,567 
2 , 1 79,777 

1 5,064,086 

$25,793,430 
25,793,430 

$0 

46.00 

Senate 
Changes 

($41 5,092) 
(613 , 1 02) 

1 1 5  064 086) 

($1 6,092,280) 
( 1 6,092,280 

$0 

(5.00 

Senate 
Version 

$8, 1 34,475 
1 ,566,675 

$9,70 1 , 1 50 
9,70 1 , 1 50 

$0 

41 .00 

Department 401 - I nsurance Department - Deta i l  of Senate Changes 

Adjusts Adds Funding 
Funding for for Salary and 
Base Payroll Benefit Adds FTE Transfers Fund 

Changes1 lncreases2 Positions1 Administration! 

Salaries and wages $165,007 $401 , 1 1 6  $382,502 ($610 ,352) 
Operating expenses 
Insurance tax payments 

Total all funds $1 65,007 $401 , 1 1 6  $382,502 ($6 10 ,352) 
Less estimated income 1 65,007 40 1 , 1 1 6  382,502 (6 1 0,352) 
General fund $0 $0 $0 $0 

FTE 0.00 0.00 2.00 (3.00) 

Adds Funding Adjusts 
for Microsoft Funding for 

Office 365 Fire District Total Senate 
Licensing1 Payments1 Changes 

Salaries and wages ($4 1 5,092) 
Operating expenses $24 , 153 (61 3 , 1 02) 
Insurance tax payments ($ 1 5,064,086) (1 5,064,086 

Total al l funds $24 , 153 ($1 5,064,086) ($ 1 6,092,280) 
Less estimated income 24 1 53 (15,064,086) ( 1 6,092,280) 
General fund $0 $0 $0 

FTE 0.00 0.00 (5.00) 

1 Funding is adjusted for base payrol l  changes. 

Transfers the Reduces 
Boiler Funding for 

Inspection Operating 
Program1 Expenses1 

($753,365) 
($637,255) 

($753,365) ($637,255) 
(753,365) (637,255) 

$0 $0 

(4.00) 0.00 

2 The fol lowing funding is added for 201 9-21 biennium salary adjustments of 2 percent on J uly 1 ,  20 1 9, and 
3 percent on Ju ly 1 ,  2020, and increases in health insurance premiums from $1 ,24 1 to $ 1 ,427 per month : 

Salary increase 
Health insurance increase 
Total 

Other Funds 
$21 8 , 1 70 

1 82,946 
$401 , 1 1 6  

3 The fol lowing FTE positions and related funding are added: 
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Consumer assistance outreach coord inator 
High risk pool and health care reform coordinator 
Total 

FTE 
1 .00 
1 .00 
2.00 

Other Funds 
$ 1 79, 7 1 1  
202,791 

$382.502 

4 Funding is reduced by $6 1 0. 352 and 3 FTE positions are removed to transfer admin istration of the state bonding 
fund and the state fi re and tornado fund to the North Dakota insurance reserve fund .  This amendment also provides 
continu ing appropriation authority from the state bonding fund and the state fi re and tornado fund  to pay 
contract expenses to the North Dakota insurance reserve fund .  

5 Funding is reduced by $753.365 and 4 FTE positions are removed to  transfer the boi ler inspection program to the 
Department of  Environmental Qual ity. 

6 Funding for operating expenses. including travel .  professional services.  and information technology expenses,  is  
reduced by $637 ,255. This amount includes operating reductions for the removal of the bo i ler  inspection program 
and admin istration of the state bonding fund ,  state fi re and tornado fund ,  and petro leum release compensation fund .  

7 Fund ing  of  $24 , 1 53 is added for M icrosoft Office 365 licensing expenses. 

8 Funding for payments to fire d istricts and the North Dakota Firefighter's Association i s  removed to reflect continu ing  
appropriation authority provided in th is  amendment. The Insurance Commissioner est imates $ 1 8 ,8 1 8 ,030 w i l l  be  
deposited in the  insurance tax d istribution fund pursuant to  th i s  amendment, o f  which $ 1 7 ,783,038 (94 .5  percent) wi l l  
be  d istributed to  fire d istricts and $ 1 ,034,992 (5.5 percent) w i l l  be d istributed to  the  North Dakota F i refighter's 
Association during the 201 9-2 1 bienn ium,  an increase of $3,753,944 from the base leve l .  This res ults in a genera l  
fund revenue reduction of  $3,753,944. 

Senate Bi l l  No. 201 O - Other Changes - Senate Action 

This amendment also: 
Removes the section identifying the appropriation from the insurance tax d istribution fund for payments to fire 
d istricts and the North Dakota Firefighter's Association .  
Adds sections to provide continuing appropriation authority from the insurance tax d istribut ion fund for 
payments to fire districts and the North Dakota Fi refighter"s Association . These sections also provide for the 
I nsurance Commissioner to calculate the amounts to be depos ited in  and d istributed from the insurance tax 
distribution fund for payments to fire d istricts and the North Dakota F irefighter"s Association .  
Removes sections identifying the amounts appropriated from the state bond ing fund ,  state fi re and tornado 
fund ,  and the petroleum release compensation fund.  
Adds sections to a l low the Insurance Commissioner to contract for the admin istration  of the state bonding fund 
and the state fire and tornado fund. 
Adds sections to provide  continuing appropriation authority from the state bonding fund and the state fire and 
tornado fund to the Insurance Commissioner to pay the contractual admin istration  costs for the funds .  
Adds sections to transfer  the boiler inspection program from the Insurance Commissioner to the Department of 
Environmental Qual ity. 
Adds a section to increase the Insurance Commissioner"s salary by 2 percent beg inn ing Ju ly 1 ,  201 9 ,  and 
3 percent beginn ing J uly 1 ,  2020. 
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Date : 2/7/20 1 9  
Ro l l  Ca l l  Vote #: 1 

2019 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES 

BILL/RESOLUTION NO. 2010 

Senate Appropriations Committee 

!XI Subcommittee 

Amendment LC# or Descri ption :  amendments proposed by the insurance department; 
changes on salary and health insurance 

Recommendation :  � Adopt Amendment 
D Do Pass D Do Not Pass 
D As Amended 

D Without Committee Recommendation 
D Rerefer to Appropriations 

D Place on Consent Calendar 
Other Act ions: D Reconsider 

Motion Made By Senator Grabinger 

Senators 
Chairman Oehlke 
Senator Erbele 

Total 

D 

Seconded By Senator Erbele 

Yes No Senators 
X Senator Grabinger 
X 

Yes No 
X 

(Yes) 3 No 0 ----------- ----------------

Absent O 

Floor Assignment 

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent: 

amendments proposed by the insurance department; changes on salary and health 
insurance 



Date :  J - / J - / CJ 
Rol l  Ca l l  Vote #: / --=-----

2019 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES 

BILL/RESOLUTION NO. d-.0 ( 0 
Senate Appropriations 

D Subcommittee 

Committee 

Amendment LC# or Description :  ___ ....,a/_9 .............. _0--=-cA_,,J"---=J"--'-, _D_/_0_0__./ _____ _ 
Recommendation :  � Adopt Amendment 

.,,. d Do Pass D Do Not Pass 
D As Amended 

D Without Committee Recommendation 
D Rerefer to Appropriations 

D Place on Consent Calendar 
Other Actions :  D Reconsider D 

Motion Made By Oe h I k e,., Seconded By 
-�-���-----

Senators Yes No Senators 
Senator Holmberg Senator Mathern 
Senator Krebsbach Senator Grabinger 
Senator Wanzek Senator Robinson 
Senator Erbele 
Senator Poelman 
Senator Bekkedahl 
Senator G. Lee 
Senator Dever 
Senator Sorvaag 
Senator Oehlke 
Senator Hogue 

(Yes) No 

Yes No 

Total 

Absent 

----------- ---------------

Floor Assignment 

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent: 



Date: J - JJ. - / C/ 
Rol l  Ca l l  Vote #: ;;J...-

2019 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES 

BILL/RESOLUTION NO. � O I 0 

Senate Appropriations 

D Subcommittee 

Amendment LC# or Descri ption :  

Committee 

-----------------------
Recommendation :  D Adopt Amendment fl Do Pass D Do Not Pass 

M As Amended 
D Place on Consent Calendar 

Other Actions :  D Reconsider 

D Without Committee Recommendation 
D Rerefer to Appropriations 

D 

Motion Made By 0-e b f Ke,_ Seconded By G ro._ b { 1=_j f. t 

Senators 
Senator Holmberg 
Senator Krebsbach 
Senator Wanzek 
Senator Erbele 
Senator Poolman 
Senator Bekkedahl 
Senator G. Lee 
Senator Dever 
Senator Sorvaaq 
Senator Oehlke 
Senator Hoque 

Yes 
(/ 
I,,/" 
1/ 
l,,/' 
;./ 
� I/ 

, / -
i /  - c---
i ,/' 

i ,,,,.-
� 

No Senators Yes No 
Senator Mathern j_,,-/ 
Senator Grabinqer � 
Senator Robinson I ./"" --

D Total 

Absent 

(Yes) / {  No -----�----- ---------------
0 

Floor Assignment 

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent: 
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REPORT OF STAN DING COMMITTEE 
SB 201 0 :  Appropriations Committee (Sen . Holmberg ,  Cha i rman)  recommends 

AMENDM ENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended , recommends DO PASS 
( 14 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AN D NOT VOTI NG) .  SB  20 1 0  was placed on the 
Sixth order on the calendar. 

Page 1 ,  l i ne 2 ,  remove "and to provide an appropriation for the d istribut ion of funds from the 
insurance" 

Page 1 ,  l i ne 3, rep lace "tax d istri bution fund" with "to create and enact chapter 23 . 1 - 1 6  and 
section 26 . 1 -22-03 . 1 of the North Dakota Centu ry Code, re lating  to boi ler i nspections 
and North Dakota reserve fund  use of producers ;  to amend and reenact sections 
1 8-04-04 , 1 8-04-04 . 1 ,  and 1 8-04-05, subsection 2 of section 26. 1 -0 1 -07 , section 
26 . 1 -0 1 -09 , subsection 1 of section 26 . 1 -03- 1 7 ,  and sections 26. 1 -2 1 -03 , 
26 . 1 -2 1 - 1 7 ,  26. 1 -22-03 ,  and 26. 1 -23 . 1 -0 1  of the North Dakota Century Code ,  
relating to the state fi re and tornado fund ,  the state bond ing fund ,  fees chargeable by 
the insurance commissioner, the sa lary of the insurance commissioner, and 
government self- insurance pools; to repeal chapter 26. 1 -22. 1 of the North Dakota 
Centu ry Code,  relating  to bo i ler inspections; to provide a penalty; to provide a 
conti nu ing  appropriation ;  and to provide a conti ngent effective date" 

Page 1 ,  replace l i nes 1 0  th rough 1 5  with : 

Salaries and wages 
Operating expenses 
Tota l special fu nds 
Fu l l -time equ ivalent positions 

Page 1 , remove l i nes 16 th rough 22 

Page 2 ,  remove l i nes 1 th rough 6 

Base Level 
$8 ,549 ,567 

2, 1 79,777 
$ 1 0 ,729 , 344 

46 .00 

Page 2 ,  replace l i nes 1 0  through 1 3  with : 

Adjustments or 
Enhancements 

($4 1 5 , 092) 
(6 1 3, 1 02) 

($ 1 ,028 , 1 94) 
(5 . 00 )  

Appropriation 
$8 , 1 34 ,475 

1 ,566,675 
$9 ,701 , 1 50 

4 1 . 00" 

"SECTION 3.  AMENDMENT. Section 1 8-04-04 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as fol lows: 

1 8-04-04. Insurance compan ies to report fire, a l l ied l ines ,  homeowner's 
multiple peri l ,  farmowner's mu ltiple peri l ,  crop ha i l, and commercia l  mu lt iple 
peri l insurance premium col lections - Form fu rnished by insurance 
commissioner. 

The insurance commissioner, wt=leRat the t ime the commissioner forwards to 
an insurance company whiGRthat is issu ing pol icies for fi re, a l l ied l ines ,  homeowner's 
mu ltip le peri l ,  farmowner's mu lti p le peri l ,  crop hail, and commercial mu ltip le peri l 
i nsurance in  th is state the form to be used i n  subm itti ng its the company's annua l  
statement, sha l l  forward a form conta in i ng  the names of  a l l  cit ies and a l l  rura l  fi re 
protection d istricts or ru ral fi re departments entit led to benefits u nder the provis ions 
of th is chapter. Every insurance company issu ing pol icies for fi re , a l l ied l i nes ,  
homeowner's mu lt ip le peri l ,  farmowner's mu lt ip le peri l ,  crop ha il, and commercial 
mu ltip le peri l i nsurance with i n  th is state shal l  complete SOORthe form by showing 
thereon the amount of  a l l  premiums received by +tthe company upon such pol icies 
issued on property with in  the corporate l im its of each city shown on SOORthe form 
and on property with in  the boundaries of each ru ra l  fi re protection d istrict shown on 
SOORthe form or property with i n  the boundaries of  each rural fi re department as 
certified by the state fi re marsha l  du ring the year end ing on the preced ing th i rty-fi rst 
day of December and shal l  fi le the sameform as a part of itsthe company's annua l  
statement. 
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SECTION 4. AMENDM ENT. Section 1 8-04-04 . 1  of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as fol lows: 

1 8-04-04.1 . Insurance tax d istribution fund .  

The insurance tax d istri bution fund is a special fund in  the  state treasu ry. The 
port ion of revenue  provided i n  section 26. 1 -03-1 7 must be deposited i n  the fund for 
d isbursement as provided in th is chapter and chapter 23-46,  subject to legislative 
appropriation. 

SECTION 5. AMENDMENT. Section 1 8-04-05 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as fo l lows: 

1 8-04-05.  Amount due cities, ru ral fi re protection d istricts , or  ru ra l  fi re 
departments - Transfer to fi refig hters death benefit fund  - Disbu rsement to 
North Dakota fi refighter's association - Payments by insurance commissioner : 
Continu ing appropriation. 

1 .  The insurance comm issioner sha l l  d isburse funds i n  the i nsurance tax 
d i stri bution fund as provided under th is section .  

2 .  The  insurance commissioner sha l l  transfer an amount o f  u p  to  fifty 
thousand dol lars per bienn i um ,  as may be necessary, to the fi refig hters 
death benefit fund for d istribut ion u nder chapter 1 8-05. 1 .  

3 .  The insurance commissioner sha l l  compute and d isburse funds to  the 
North Dakota firefighter's association for uses authorized u nder chapter 
1 8-03,  subject to legislati>t'e appropriations. 

4 .  The insurance commissioner sha l l  compute and d isburse the amounts 
due to the certified city fi re departments, certified rural fi re departments, 
or certified fi re protection d istricts entitled to benefits u nder this chapter 
on or before December fi rst of each year. The insurance commissioner 
shall allocate one half of the biennial legislative appropriation for 
distribution under this subsection, to each eligible city not within a 
certified fire protection district, each certified rural fire protection district 
organizwd under this title, and each rural fire department certified by the 
state fire marshal, and pay the amount allocated in December of each 
yeai=:- The a l location must be made i n  proport ion to the amount of 
i nsurance company premiums received by insurance com pan ies 
pursuant to section 26. 1 -03- 1 7 for policies for fire, allied lines, 
homeowner's rnultiple peril, farmowner's multiple peril, commeroial 
multiple peril, and crop hail insurancethe l i nes of i nsurance identified 
under  section 1 8-04-04 on property with in  the city of a certified city fi re 
department, § certified rural fi re protection d istrict, or area served by tAe§ 
certified ru ral  fire department to the tota l of those premiums for those 
pol ic ies in  the state . 

§.,. Annua l ly, the insurance commissioner sha l l  determ ine the amount of 
i nsurance prem ium taxes co l lected from the insurance l i nes identified in  
section 1 8-04-04 . Of th is amount, annua l ly the commissioner sha l l  
d isburse five and one-half percent to the North Dakota fi refighter's 
association and n inety-four  and one-half percent to certified city fi re 
departments, certified ru ral  fi re departments, and certified fi re protection 
d istricts . Moneys authorized for d isbursement u nder th is section are 
appropriated from the insurance tax d istribut ion fund to the insurance 
commissioner on a contin u ing bas is for the pu rpose of th is section .  

SECTION 6 .  Chapter 23 . 1 - 1 6  o f  t he  North Dakota Centu ry Code is  created 
and enacted as fo l lows : 
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As used in  th is chapter, un less the context otherwise requ i res: 

1. "Boi ler" means a closed vessel i n  which water is heated, steam is 
generated, steam is superheated, or any combination thereof, under 
pressure or vacuum for use externa l ly to the bo i ler by the d i rect 
appl ication of heat from the combustion of fue ls, or from electricity or 
nuclear energy. The term inc ludes fi red un its for vaporiz ing l iqu ids other 
than water when these un its are separate from processing systems and 
are complete with in  themselves. 

£. "Department" means the department of environmenta l  qual i ty. 

23.1 -1 6-02.  Ch ief boi ler inspector, deputy inspectors - Appointment -
Jurisdiction.  

The department sha l l  employ a ch ief boi ler i nspector and deputy i nspectors . 
The chief boi ler inspector has ju risd iction over a l l  bo i lers i n  th is state except as 
otherwise provided . 

23.1 -1 6-03.  Qual ifications of ch ief boiler inspector - Deputy inspectors.  

1. An ind ividua l  is not e l igible to the office of ch ief boi ler i nspector u n less 
that i nd ividua l :  

a .  Has had at the t ime of the appoi ntment at least five years' 
experience i n  the construction. i nspection, operation.  maintenance, 
or repair  of h igh-pressure bo i lers and pressure vesse ls as a 
mechan ical engineer, bo i lermaker, steam operating engineer, or 
bo i ler i nspector. An appl icant possess ing a mechan ica l  engineering 
degree from an accred ited school may substitute that degree for two 
years of the five years' experience, at the d iscretion of the 
department. 

Q,. Holds a commission issued by the national  board of boi ler and 
pressure vessel i nspectors or obta ins the comm ission with in  one 
year  after the date of appoi ntment by the department. 

c. Is not d i rectly or ind i rectly interested in the manufactu re or sale of 
boi lers or steam mach inery or articles used in the construction or 
maintenance of engines or boi lers. 

£. The department sha l l  establ ish qual ifications for a deputy i nspector wh ich 
are not inconsistent with the requ i rements of the posit ion .  

23.1 -1 6-04. Powers a n d  duties of ch ief boi ler inspector. 

1. The ch ief boi ler i nspector sha l l :  

a .  Keep a complete record of the type, d imensions. maximum a l lowable 
working pressu re, age, cond ition, location, and date of the 
last-recorded internal and external i nspection of boi lers to which th is 
chapter appl ies. 

Q,. Cooperate and assist in loss prevention programs sponsored by the 
department. 

2 .  The chief boi ler i nspector may delegate powers and duties to  any deputy 
inspector or special i nspector. 
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Every boi ler i n  this state must be constructed. instal led. and mainta ined 
accord ing to ru les adopted to implement th is chapter. 

23.1 -1 6-06. Exempt boi lers - Inspection of exempt boi lers .  

Th is  chapter does not apply to : 

1. Any boi ler subject to federa l  i nspection or under federa l  contro l .  

2.,_ Any boi ler located on a farm and used solely for agricu ltu ra l  purposes. 

� Any heat ing boi ler located i n  a private residence or i n  an apartment 
house of less than  six fam i ly un its. 

4. Any hot water supply boi ler not exceed ing the fol lowing l im itations :  

a .  I nput of two hundred thousand Brit ish thermal u n its per hour. 

!h Pressure of one hundred sixty pounds per square inch (1 1 03 . 1 6  
ki lopascalsj gauge . 

c. Temperature of two hundred fifty degrees Fahrenheit (1 2 1 . 1 1  
degrees Cels ius). 

� Any portable steam cleaner commonly used i n  a garage. 

� Any boi ler of a m in iatu re model locomotive. boat. tractor. or stationary 
engine design constructed as a hobby. not for commercia l  use. having an 
inside d iameter not exceed ing ten inches (25 .4  centimeters) and a grate 
area not exceed i ng one and one-half square feet (1 393 . 54 square 
centimeters) and which is properly equ ipped with a safety valve. water 
level ind icator. and pressure gauge. 

L. Any electric boi ler used as an integral part of an espresso coffee 
mach ine. provided that the boi ler does not exceed one and one-half 
cubic feet (. 0566 cubic meter) i n  water capacity. does not exceed fifty 
pounds per square inch (344. 74 ki lopascalsj pressure. and is 
constructed. approved. or certified to the American society of mechan ical 
engineers code or  to other national  or  international  standards .  

23.1 -1 6-07. Inspection of boilers .  

1. The ch ief boi ler i nspector sha l l  i nspect each boi ler used or proposed to 
be used with in th is state. The i nspection must be thorough as to the 
construction. insta l lation. cond ition. and operation as provided by the 
ru les adopted to implement th is chapter. An exempt boi ler may be 
inspected by the ch ief boi ler i nspector when the owner. the owner"s 
agent. or the user of the boi ler makes written request for i nspection  to the 
department. 

2.,_ Each boi ler of one hundred thousand pounds (45359.24 k i lograms) per 
hour or more capacity. used or proposed to be used with i n  th is state. 
which has interna l  conti nuous water treatment under the d i rect 
supervis ion of a graduate engineer or chemist. or one having equ iva lent 
experience in the treatment of bo i ler water when the water treatment is 
for the purpose of contro l l i ng and l im it ing serious corrosion and other 
deteriorating factors. and with respect to wh ich boi ler the ch ief boi ler 
inspector has determ ined the owner or user has compl ied with the 
prescribed recordkeeping requ irements. must be i nspected at least once 

( 1 ) DESK (3) COMMITTEE Page 4 s_stcomrep_28_009 



Com Standing Committee Report 
February 1 3 , 201 9  7 :42AM 

Modu le ID :  s_stcomrep_28_009 
Carrier: Oeh lke 

Insert LC : 1 9 .0223.01 001 Tit le: 02000 

every th irty-six months interna l ly wh i le not u nder pressure. and at least 
once every twelve months external ly wh i le under pressure .  If a 
hydrostatic test is necessary to determ ine the safety of a boi ler. the test 
must be conducted by the owner or user of the equ ipment u nder the 
supervision of the ch ief bo i ler inspector. The owner or user of a boiler of 
one hundred thousand pounds [45359 .24 ki lograms) per hour  or more 
capacity desi ring to qual ify for th i rty-six-month i nternal  i nspection 
intervals shal l  keep ava i lable for examination by the ch ief boi ler i nspector 
accurate records showing the date and actual  t ime the boi ler is out of 
service and the reason or reasons therefor. and the resu lts of the 
chem ical and physical analys is of the boi ler water. whether from 
laboratory analysis of samples taken at regular inte rva ls of not more than 
forty-eight hours or  from continuous on l ine ana lysers. which wi l l  
adequately show the  cond it ion of  the  water and any other e lements or 
characteristics of the water capable of producing corrosion or other 
deterioration of the boi ler or its parts . If an inspection d iscloses 
deficiencies in  equ ipment or in  operati ng procedu res. i nspections may be 
requ ired once every twelve months .  

23.1 -1 6-08. Special inspector . 

.L Upon written request of an employer. the department may appoint as a 
special inspector an inspector in the employ of: 

a .  An insurance company authorized to insure boi lers i n  th is state 
against loss from explosion; 

� A company qual ified by the national board of boi ler and pressure 
vessel inspectors as an accredited owner/user inspection 
organ ization; or 

c. A company qual ified by the national  board of boi ler and pressure 
vessel inspectors as an accredited authorized i nspection agency. 

2 .  An ind ividua l  may not be appointed as a special i nspector u n less that 
ind ividual  has passed the examination prescribed by the national  board 
of boi ler and pressu re vessel inspectors . 

-1_ An inspection performed by a special i nspector must be performed i n  
accordance with th is chapter and  a complete report of  the  inspection 
must be fi led with the department i n  the t ime. manner. and form as 
prescribed by the department. 

4. If a complete report is not fi led by the special i nspector's employer with 
the department with i n  n inety days from the certificate due  date. the ch ief 
boi ler inspector may make the requ i red i nspection. u n less an extension 
of t ime is granted by the ch ief boi ler inspector. The specia l  i nspector's 
employer must pay the inspection fees as requ i red by section 23 . 1 -1 6-09 
for a special i nspection .  

� The ch ief boi ler i nspector may inspect any boi ler to wh ich a special  
inspection appl ies. 

6 .  The department may. for cause. suspend or revoke the appointment of 
any special inspector. 

23.1 -1 6-09. Inspection and certificate fees . 

.L Upon completion  of inspection. the owner or user of a boi ler sha l l  pay to 
the department fees or a combination of i nspection and certificate fees. 
The department shal l determ ine the inspection fees. Certificate fees are 
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determ ined by section 23 . 1 - 1 6- 1 0 .  The department sha l l  determine and 
annual ly may adjust a fee scale for the i nterna l  i nspections of power 
boi lers, i nternal i nspections of low-pressure heating boi lers, external 
i nspections of al l  bo i lers, and i nspection of boi lers used exclus ively for 
exh ibit ion pu rposes. 

b Not more than two hundred dol lars may be charged or col lected for any 
one inspection of a boi ler, except for special i nspections made upon 
request. A l l  other i nspections made by the chief boi ler i nspector, inc lud ing 
shop inspections and reviews and special i nspections when requested by 
the owner or user of a boi ler, must be charged at a rate not to exceed five 
hundred dol lars per day or th ree hundred do l lars per half day of four  
hours or less, plus  payment for mi leage, meals, and hotel expenses as 
al lowed by sections 44-08-04 and 54-06-09, except that the m i leage rate 
for a state-owned vehicle wi l l  be the actua l  amount incu rred by the 
department. 

� The annua l  fee for the issuance of a reciproca l commission card for a 
special i nspector is forty dol lars and the annua l  fee for the issuance of a 
welder-qual ified card is twenty dol lars .  

4 .  The fee for taki ng an examination for a hobby boi ler operati ng l icense is 
twenty-five dol lars and the fee for a hobby boi ler operating l icense is 
twenty-five dol lars .  

§.,. A hobby boi ler operati ng l icense issued under th is section is val id for six 
years. 

23.1 -1 6-1 0 .  Certificate of inspection - Certificate to be posted . 

The department sha l l  issue a certificate of inspection for each bo i ler 
inspected upon receipt of an inspection report certify ing that the boi ler is i n  a safe 
cond it ion to be operated . The department shal l  charge a fee of twenty do l lars per 
year for each year that a certificate is va l id, or part of a year thereof, for each 
certificate of i nspection issued as the resu lt  of i nspections authorized u nder sections 
23 . 1 - 1 6-07 and 23 . 1 - 1 6-08. The fees are the l iab i l ity of the owner or user and must 
be pa id i n  accordance with rules adopted by the department. A certificate may not be 
issued for any boi ler not in a safe cond it ion to be operated or for a bo i ler for wh ich 
the inspection and certificate fees have not been paid in fu l l .  A certificate is not val id 
for a period of more than thi rty-six months for power boi lers described in 
subsection 2 of section 23 . 1 - 1 6-07, and no more than twelve months for other power 
boi lers, twelve months for steam traction engines, and th i rty-six months for 
low-pressure boi lers except that a two-month grace period may be extended for any 
certificate . Upon written request from a special inspector, the ch ief boi ler i nspector 
may issue a short-term certificate . Each certificate of i nspection must be posted 
conspicuously under glass in the boi ler room or adjacent to the boi ler i nspected . 

23 .1 -1 6-1 1 . Certificate of inspection required - Penalty. 

A person may not operate a boi ler i n  th is state without a val id certificate of 
inspection . A vio lation of th is section is a class A m isdemeanor on the part of the 
owner, user, or operator of the boi ler. 

23.1 -1 6-1 2 .  Manufacturer's data report. 

The boi ler manufacturer shal l  provide the department with a man ufactu rer's 
data report. When signed by an authorized inspector, th is data sheet together with 
the stamp on the boiler is the record denot ing the bo i ler has been constructed in 
accordance with the ru les adopted to implement th is chapter. 
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All funds col lected and received under th is chapter must be paid to the state 
treasurer and deposited in the state fi re and tornado fund to be used to defray the 
costs of boiler inspections. 

23.1 -1 6-1 4. Rules - Penalty for violation - Hearing . 

.1. The department sha l l  adopt ru les for the safe and proper i nstal lat ion, use, 
operation, and i nspection of boi lers and pressure vessels subject to th is 
chapter. 

2 .  The department sha l l  adopt ru les for t he  l icens ing o f  operators o f  hobby 
boi lers used duri ng parades, exh ib itions, and thresh ing shows where the 
publ ic is invited . 

1_ A fee must be charged for an operating l icense, for a l icense renewal. 
and for an exam ination conducted to determine m in imum competence .  
I nd iv iduals operating hobby boi lers with in  th is state as of  Ju ly 1 .  2007. 
are considered acceptable for a l icense without add itiona l  tra i n i ng or 
examination .  An i nd ivid ual who is not a resident of this state and who 
holds a boi ler operator l icense or credential in another state or  Canadian 
province is exempt from l icensure as a hobby boi ler operator i n  th is state. 

4 .  The department may not issue a certificate of i nspection to any owner or 
user of a boi ler who fa i ls or refuses to comply with the ru les. The 
department shal l revoke any certificate presently in force upon evidence 
that the owner or user of the boi ler is fa i l i ng or refus ing to comply with the 
ru les. 

§.,. Any owner or user of a boi ler may request a heari ng before the 
department with i n  fifteen days from service of an order refus ing or 
revoking a certificate of inspection .  I t  is the burden of the owner or user 
to show cause why the certificate of inspection shou ld not be refused or 
revoked . I f  no hearing is requested with i n  the requ i red period. the order 
of the department becomes fi nal  and is not subject to further 
proceed ings. 

SECTION 7.  AMENDMENT. Subsection 2 of section 26. 1 -0 1 -07 of the North 
Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as fol lows: 

2 .  Nonprofit health service corporations and health maintenance 
organ izations are subject to the same fees as any other insurance 
company. County mutual i nsurance companies and benevolent societies 
are l iable on ly for the fees mentioned in subd iv is ions b, f, g ,  and kb. of 
subsection 1 .  

SECTION 8.  AMENDMENT. Section 26. 1 -0 1 -09 of the North Dakota Centu ry 
Code is amended and reenacted as fo l lows: 

26.1 -01 -09 .  Salary of commissioner. 

The annual  salary of the commissioner is one hundred t>.•,o thousand siM 
hundred eighty nine dollars through June ao, 2016one hundred seven thousand 
eight hundred eighty-five dol lars th rough June 30, 2020, and one hundred five 
thousand se1,en hundred se1,entyone hundred eleven thousand one hundred 
twenty-two dol lars thereafter. 

SECTION 9. AMENDMENT. Subsection 1 of section 26. 1 -03- 1 7 of the North 
Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as fol lows : 
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1 .  Before issu ing the ann ual certificate requ ired by law, the commissioner 
shal l  col lect from every stock and mutual i nsurance company, nonprofit 
health service corporation ,  health maintenance organ ization ,  and prepaid 
legal service organ ization ,  except fraternal benefit and benevolent 
societies, doing bus iness in  th is state , a tax on the g ross amount of 
premiums,  assessments , membersh ip  fees, subscriber fees, pol icy fees, 
service fees col lected by any th i rd-party adm in istrator provid i ng 
admin istrative services to a g roup that is self- insured for health care 
benefits , and finance and service charges rece ived i n  th is state du ring 
the preced ing calendar year, at  the rate of two percent with respect to l i fe 
insurance, one and th ree-fourths percent with respect to accident and 
health insurance , and one and th ree-fourths percent with respect to a l l  
other l i nes of  insurance.  This tax does not  apply to considerations for 
annu it ies. The tota l tax is payable on or before March fi rst fo l lowing  the 
year for wh ich the tax is assessable .  I f  the due date fa l ls  on a Satu rday or 
legal ho l iday, the tax is payable on the next succeed ing  bus iness day. 
Col lections from this tax must be deposited in the i nsurance tax 
d istri bution fund under section 1 8-04-04 . 1 but not i n  an amount 
exceed ing the amount computed under section 1 8-04-05 and one-half of 
the b ienn ia l  amount appropriated for d istribut ion u nder sestion 18 04 05 
aA4 chapter 23-46 in any fiscal year. Col lections from th is tax exceed ing 
the sum of  the amount  deposited i n  the insurance tax d istri but ion fund 
must be deposited i n  the genera l  fund i n  the state treasury. 

SECTION 1 0. AMENDMENT. Section 26. 1 -2 1 -03 of the North Dakota 
Centu ry Code is amended and reenacted as fo l lows: 

26.1 -21 -03.  Commissioner may employ or contract for assistants : 
Continu ing appropriation. 

The commissioner may employ assistants or  contract for the services of 
ass istants from the North Dakota insurance reserve fund as may be necessary to 
operate the state bond ing fund .  The salaries of all employees together with all other 
expenditures for the operation of the fund must remain within the appropriations 
made by the legislative assembly for these purposes and must be paid by 
warrant shesk drawn on the state treasury prepared by the offise of management 
and budget after the approval of expense voushers by the offise of the 
�Moneys i n  the reserve fund  of the state bond ing fund are appropriated to the 
commissioner on a continu i ng basis for the purpose of employing or  contracting for 
services as provided under th is section . 

SECTION 1 1 .  AMENDMENT. Section 26 . 1 -2 1 - 1 7  of the North Dakota 
Centu ry Code is amended and reenacted as fo l lows: 

26.1 -21 -1 7 .  Al lowed l iab i l ity claims payable from fund - Admin istrative 
expenses - Methods of payment. 

A claim a l lowed aga inst the fund must be paid upon warrants d rawn upon the 
state treasurer against the fund .  The warrant must be prepared by the office of 
management and budget pursuant to the d i rections of the comm issioner. Payments 
for adm in istrative expenses of the state bond ing  fund must be made from the 
reserve fund of the state bond i ng fund or must be made with i n  the l im itations of 
leg is lative appropriations upon warrant-checks prepared by the office of 
management and budget after the approva l of vouchers by the commissioner. 

SECTION 1 2 . AMENDMENT. Section 26. 1 -22-03 of the North Dakota 
Centu ry Code is amended and reenacted as fo l lows: 
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26.1 -22-03. Employment of assistants - Expenditu res from fu nd : 
Continu ing appropriation. 

To carry out th is chapter, the commissioner may uti l ize any information on fi le 
in the state fi re marshal 's department and any of the employees of the comm issioner 
and the commissioner may employ necessary assistants or contract for services of 
assistants from the North Dakota insurance reserve fund and may incur necessary 
expenses. Al l  expend itures made for these purposes, other than serv ices contracted 
and paid for by moneys from the fund and any necessary expenses paid from 
moneys from the reserve ba lance with in  the fund,  must remain  with i n  the l im its of 
legis lative appropriations and must be paid out of the fund upon warrants prepared 
by the office of management and budget d rawn upon the state treasurer after the 
approval of vouchers by the office of the budget. Moneys from the reserve balance 
with in  the fund are appropriated to the commissioner on a conti nu i ng basis for the 
pu rposes of th is section .  

SECTION 1 3. Section 26. 1 -22-03 . 1  of  the North Dakota Centu ry Code is  
created and enacted as fo l lows : 

26.1 -22-03 .1 . North Dakota insurance reserve fund - P roducers -
Commission .  

The North Dakota insurance reserve fund may use the services of  producers 
l icensed under th is title to assist pol icyholders .  Any comm ission paid to a prod ucer 
under th is section must be paid out of the premium income of the fund  and must be 
assessed against the policyholders that benefit from the producer. 

SECTION 14. AMENDMENT. Section 26. 1 -23 . 1 -0 1  of the North Dakota 
Centu ry Code is amended and reenacted as fol lows: 

26.1 -23 .1 -01 . Government self-insurance pools - Regu lation -
Reinsurance. 

1 .  Any two or more entit ies that have un ited to self- insure against the i r  legal 
l iab i l ity under chapter 32-1 2 . 1 or any state agency that u n ites with 
another state agency or pol itical subd iv is ion ,  or both , to self-i nsure 
against their legal  l iab i l it ies are subject to the provis ions of th is chapter 
with the exception of a city and its park d istrict estab l ished pursuant to 
chapter 40-49 . Government self-i nsurance pools may on ly  provide 
coverage of the fol lowing types for pool members ,  their officers , 
employees , and agents: 

a. Casualty insurance, inc lud ing genera l ,  pub l ic  officia ls ,  and 
professional l iab i l ity coverages. 

b .  Automobi le i nsurance, includ ing motor veh icle l iab i l ity i nsurance 
coverage, security for motor veh icles owned or operated as requ i red 
by chapter 26. 1 -4 1 , and protection against other l iab i l ity and laws 
associated with the ownersh ip  of motor veh icles and automobi le 
physical  damage coverages. 

c .  Property insurance, includ ing in land marine coverage,  money and 
securities coverage ,  and extra expense coverage. However, th is 
subd ivis ion does not authorize government self- insurance pools to 
write those types of insurance coverages offered by the state fi re 
and tornado fund under the provis ions of chapter 26 .  1 -22 as they 
existed on December 3 1 , 1 988, un less a government self- insurance 
pool enters a contract with the commissioner to provide services for 
the state fire and tornado fund under section 26 . 1 -22-03 .  
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d .  Other coverages authorized by  the commissioner and  necessary to a 
pool 's membersh ip .  

2 .  A government self- insurance pool may not expose itse lf to loss on any 
s ing le risk or hazard i n  an amount exceed ing ten percent of the amount 
of i ts adm itted assets u n less the pool obta ins excess insurance or  
reinsurance with insurance companies approved for such bus iness by 
the insurance commissioner. 

SECTION 1 5. REPEAL. Chapter 26. 1 -22 . 1  of the North Dakota Century 
Code is repealed . 

SECTION 1 6 . CONTINGENT EFFECTIVE DATE. Sections 6 and 1 5  of th is 
Act become effective on Ju ly 1 ,  20 1 9 , if the leg is lative cou nci l  has received 
certification from the chief of the environmenta l  health section of the state 
department of health that a l l  authority, powers , and duties from the environmenta l  
health section of  the state department of  health have been transferred to  the 
department of environmenta l qua l ity. I f  the certification is not received by Ju l y  1 ,  
20 1 9 , sections 6 and 1 5  of th is Act become effective on the date certification is 
received . "  

Renumber accord i ng ly 

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT: 

Senate Bi l l  No. 201 0 - Insurance Department - Senate Action 

Salaries and wages 
Operating expenses 
Insurance tax payments 

Total all funds 
Less estimated income 
General fund 

FTE 

Base 
Budget 

$8,549,567 
2, 1 79,777 

15 064 086 

$25,793,430 
25 793 430 

$0 

46.00 

Senate 
Changes 

($4 1 5,092) 
(6 1 3 , 1 02) 

( 1 5  064 086) 

($ 1 6,092,280) 
(16 092 280) 

$0 

(5 .00) 

Senate 
Version 

$8, 1 34,475 
1 , 566,675 

$9,70 1 , 1 50 
9 701  1 50 

$0 

4 1 .00 

Department 401 - Insurance Department - Deta i l  of Senate Changes 
Adds 

Adjusts Funding for Transfers Transfers the Reduces 
Funding for Salary and Fund Boiler Funding for 
Base Payroll Benefit Adds FTE Administratio Inspection Operating 

Changes1 Increases1 Positions! nJ Program� Expenses1 

Salaries and wages $ 165,007 $40 1 , 1 1 6  $382,502 ($6 1 0,352) ($753,365) 
Operating expenses ($637,255) 
Insurance tax payments 

Total all funds $ 1 65,007 $40 1 , 1 1 6  $382,502 ($6 1 0,352) ($753,365) ($637,255) 
Less estimated income 165 007 401 1 16 382 502 (6 10,352) (753,365) (637,255) 
General fund $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

FTE 0 .00 0 .00 2.00 (3.00) (4 .00) 0.00 

Adds Funding for Adjusts Funding for 
Microsoft Office 365 Fire District 

Licensing1 Payments1 Total Senate Changes 
Salaries and wages ($4 1 5 ,092) 
Operating expenses $24, 1 53 (6 1 3 , I 02) 
Insurance tax payments ($ 1 5,064,086) ( 1 5  064 086) 

Total all funds $24, 1 53 ($ 1 5,064,086) ($16 ,092,280) 
Less estimated income 24 1 53 (l 5,064,086) ( 1 6  092 280) 
General fund $0 $0 $0 

FTE 0.00 0 .00 (5 .00) 
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1 Fund ing is adj usted for base payro l l  changes . 
2 The fo l lowing fund ing is added for 20 1 9-2 1  b ienn i um salary adjustments of 2 percent on 
Ju ly 1 ,  201 9 ,  and 3 percent on Ju ly 1 ,  2020, and i ncreases i n  health insurance prem iums 
from $ 1 ,24 1  to $ 1 ,427 per month : 

Salary increase 
Health insurance increase 
Total 

Other Funds 
$2 1 8, 1 70 

1 82 946 

$401 , 1 1 6  

3 The fol lowing FTE positions and re lated fund ing are added : 

Consumer assistance outreach coordinator 
High risk pool and health care reform coordinator 
Total 

FTE Other Funds 
1 .00 $ 1 79 ,71 1 

1 .00 202,79 1  

2 .00 $382, 502 

4 Fund ing is reduced by $6 1 0 , 352 and 3 FTE positions are removed to transfer 
admin istration of the state bonding fund and the state fi re and tornado fund to the North 
Dakota insurance reserve fund .  Th is amendment also provides conti nu i ng  appropriation 
authority from the state bond ing fund and the state fi re and tornado fund to pay 
contract expenses to the North Dakota insurance reserve fund .  
5 Fund i ng  is reduced by  $753, 365 and  4 FTE positions are removed to  transfer t he  boi ler 
inspection program to the Department of Environmenta l  Qua l ity. 
6 Fund ing for operat ing expenses, inc lud ing travel ,  professiona l  services,  and i nformation 
technology expenses, is reduced by $637 ,255 .  This amount i nc ludes operati ng  reductions 
for the removal of the boi ler inspection program and admin istration of the state bond ing fund ,  
state fi re and tornado fund ,  and petro leum release compensation fund .  
7 Fund ing  of  $24, 1 53 is added for M icrosoft Office 365 l icens ing expenses. 
8 Fund ing for payments to fi re d istricts and the North Dakota F i refighter's Association is 
removed to reflect conti nu i ng appropriation authority provided i n  th is amendment .  The 
I nsurance Commissioner estimates $ 1 8 , 8 1 8 , 030 wi l l  be deposited i n  the i nsurance tax 
d istri bution fund pursuant to th is amendment, of which $ 1 7 , 783 ,038 (94 . 5  percent) wi l l  be 
d istri buted to fi re d istricts and $ 1 ,034 , 992 (5 .5  percent) w i l l  be d istributed to the North 
Dakota F i refighter's Association during the 20 1 9-2 1 bienn i um ,  an increase of $3 ,753 ,944 
from the base leve l .  This resu lts in a genera l  fund revenue reduction of $3 ,753 , 944 . 

Senate Bi l l  No. 201 0  - Other Changes - Senate Action 

This amendment also: 
• Removes the section identify ing the appropriation from the insurance tax d istribution 

fund for payments to fi re d istricts and the North Dakota F i refig hter's Association .  
Adds sections to provide conti nu i ng  appropriation authority from the i nsurance tax 
d istri but ion fund for payments to fi re d istricts and the North Dakota F i refighter's 
Association .  These sections a lso provide for the I nsurance Commissioner to 
calcu late the amounts to be deposited in  and d istributed from the i nsurance tax 
d istribution fund for payments to fi re d istricts and the North Dakota F i refighter's 
Association .  
Removes sections identifying  the amounts appropriated from the state bond ing fund ,  
state fi re and tornado fund ,  and the petro leum release com pensation fund .  
Adds sections to al low the I nsurance Commissioner to  contract for the 
admin istration of the state bond ing fund and the state fi re and tornado fund . 
Adds sections to provide conti nu ing appropriation authority from the state bond ing 
fund and the state fi re and tornado fund to the I nsurance Commissioner to pay the 
contractual admin istration costs for the funds. 
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• Adds  sections to transfer the boi ler inspection program from the I nsurance 
Commissioner to the Department of Environmental Qual i ty. 

• Adds  a section to increase the I nsu rance Commissioner's salary by 2 percent 
beg inn i ng  J u ly 1 ,  20 1 9 , and 3 percent beg inn ing Ju l y  1 ,  2020.  
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
A BILL for an Act to provide an appropriation for defraying the expenses of the insurance 
commissioner; and to provide an appropriation for the distribution of funds from the insurance 
tax distribution fund. 
 

Minutes:                                                 Attachments A through H 

 
Chairman Vigesaa:  Opened the hearing on SB2010. 
 
Jon Godfread, Commissioner, ND Insurance Department:  See testimony attachment A. 
 
Chairman Vigesaa:  How prevalent is that in our state? 
 
Jon Godfread:  We see it ebb and flow. 
 
Representative Kempenich:  What is your unit cost? 
 
Jon Godfread:  I don’t have that separated out for our fraud unit.  I can get that to you. 
 
Representative Kempenich:  Are there different ways of doing this? 
 
Jon Godfread:  Right now we have two investigators that are law enforcement officers and 
they do the investigations.  From there our attorneys step in and prosecute those crimes. 
 
Jon Godfread continued with his testimony. 
 
Chairman Vigesaa:  Did that go through on our side the way you proposed it? 
 
Jon Godfread:  Yes. 
 
Jon Godfread continued with his testimony. 
 
Vice Chairman Brandenburg:  Do you have how the dollars flow; what you’re collecting and 
how it’s spent.  Do you have that figured out? 
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Jon Godfread:  Those dollars were moved to DEQ  $879,000.00 and we’re not seeking to 
change that at all.   
 
Representative Kempenich:  Is that the anhydrous part of that also? 
 
Jon Godfread:  The four employees in our department inspect about half the boilers for the 
state.  We do all the public boilers and a portion of the private ones. 
 
Jon Godfread continued with his testimony. 
 
Brennan Quintus, CEO, ND Insurance Reserve Fund:  See testimony attachment B. 
 
Representative Kempenich:  Do you have to follow the government accounting standards? 
 
Brennan Quintus:  I would have to look into the standards that we follow.  There are 
standards that we do follow in line with insurance industry. 
 
Terry Traynor, ND Association of Counties:  Testified in support of SB2010. 
 
Chairman Vigesaa:  How would this improve things for the counties? 
 
Terry Traynor:  It would be all one agent that would be providing this and would all be one 
place to go for claims.   
 
Blake Crosby, Executive Director, ND League of Cities:  See testimony attachment C. 
 
Representative Kempenich:  There are about 338 cities, do you know what they pay in for 
premiums? 
 
Blake Crosby:  Premiums are based on what you’re insuring.  Premiums can range from 
$200,000.00 to $300,000.00 down to a much lesser sum.  There really is no average as it all 
fits into a range and what type of coverage you want. 
 
Steve Becker, Executive Director, PIA of North Dakota:  Testified in support of SB2010. 
 
Representative Kempenich:  What do commissions average? 
 
Steve Becker:  Those commissions are negotiated with a carrier.  The average commission 
across all lines of business for our agents at this time is about 12% or 13%. 
 
Dana Schaar Jahner, Executive Director, ND Recreation and Park Association:  See 
testimony attachment D. 
 
Jon Godfread continued with his testimony. 
 
Representative Kempenich:  You aren’t going to get rid of everyone that’s watching this 
fund. 
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Jon Godfread:  We have a team of company examiners that look at insurance companies 
to make sure they’re operating appropriately. 
 
Chairman Vigesaa:  I don’t see that this was involved in the Senate side in any way? 
 
Jon Godfread:  This is in engrossed SB2010. 
 
Jon Godfread continued with his testimony. 
 
Chairman Vigesaa:  Is that an annual or biannual amount? 
 
Jon Godfread:  It’s a biannual amount. 
 
Jason Catrambone, Fire Chief, City of Williston:  See testimony attachment E. 
 
Chairman Vigesaa:  How has your department grown over the years? 
 
Jason Catrambone:  I’ve been there 5 years.  In 2014, we were 14 paid members and 30 
volunteers.  As of this year, we’re 78 paid and our call to service has increased about 1,900 
calls to 3,700 calls since 2014. 
 
Representative Kempenich:  I’ve been thinking of putting a study on how to look into this 
volunteer issue. 
 
Shawn Weltikol, Fire Chief, Devils Lake Rural Fire Department:  See testimony 
attachment F. 
 
Robert Knuth, Training Director, ND Firefighter’s Association:  See testimony 
attachment G. 
 
Representative Kempenich:  Have you looked into how to retain or how to get new people 
coming into this service?  
 
Robert Knuth:  Yes.  NDFA is currently in year 3 of a 4 year federal grant we received for 
recruitment and retention.  Since 2017, we have recruited approximately 1,300 new 
firefighters.  That number is based off of quarterly numbers.  Retention is going to be our next 
big issue that we’re going to have to face. 
 
Robert Knuth continued with his testimony. 
 
Chairman Vigesaa:  The success you had with the federal grant, what did you use those 
funds for to be successful in getting those 1,300 additional volunteers? 
 
Robert Knuth:  The first thing we decided to do was get out of the way and hire professionals 
to manage the grant for us.  As part of the grant package, we included additional dollars that 
we could assist the fire departments in their department level training. 
 
Robert Knuth continued with his testimony. 
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Chairman Vigesaa:  How much was the grant for? 
 
Robert Knuth:  It’s approximately $2.7 million over a 4 year period. 
 
Chairman Vigesaa:  Are there any more grants like that available? 
 
Robert Knuth:  There are competitive grants, every year we apply for them. 
 
Darren Schimke, President, ND Firefighters:  Testified in support of SB2010. 
 
Representative Kempenich:  How many paid districts are there? 
 
Darren Schimke:  There are thirteen districts. 
 
Chairman Vigesaa:  Last session we were coming off the allotments.  What is the 
percentage of funding in this biennium? 
 
Jon Godfread:  It’s around 70%. 
 
Chairman Vigesaa:  What’s projected to be the 100% level in the next biennium? 
 
Jon Godfread:  We’re projecting an additional $3.5 million. 
 
Chairman Vigesaa:  What would be the actual number? 
 
Jon Godfread:  It would go from about $17 million to about $20 million. 
 
Jon Godfread continued with his testimony. 
 
Chairman Vigesaa:  What would it take to go from a “9” to an “8”? 
 
Jon Godfread:  Sometimes that isn’t that significant.  It’s a matter of ensuring that they’re 
accurately reflecting everything that they already are doing. 
 
Jon Godfread continued with his testimony. 
 
Representative Kempenich:  I’m looking at your vacant FTE’s.  You filled one just 
recently; the other 2 you have open.  Are those combined?  You have $33,000.00 on that 
line. 
 
Jon Godfread:  The policy investigator is a retirement that just happened.  One of the other 
open spots is an underwriter for the fire and tornado fund; that was retired in July and we’ve 
left that open. 
 
Representative Kempenich:  That’s removed by the governor. 
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Jon Godfread:  Now we’re filling that investigator position.  We also had one other 
departure two weeks ago.  
 
Representative Kempenich:  Have you been doing some reclassifying? 
 
Jon Godfread:  We have been doing some reclassifications.  It has been difficult to hire 
some of the positions for the salary we’ve been offering. 
 
Representative Kempenich:  Can you provide a flow chart? 
 
Jon Godfread:  Yes. 
 
Alex Cronquist, Fiscal Analyst, ND Legislative Council:  That $33,600.00 represents 
the health insurance amount. 
 
Attachment H handed out but not discussed. 
 
Chairman Vigesaa:  Closed the hearing. 
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tax distribution fund. 
 

Minutes:                                                 Attachment A 

 
Chairman Vigesaa:  Opened the discussion on SB2010. 
 
Jon Godfread, Commissioner, ND Insurance Department:  See attachment A. 
 
Vice Chairman Brandenberg:  Are the boiler inspectors staying with the insurance 
commissioner or is it going to the health department? 
 
Jon Godfread:  They are going to DEQ.  The language that was included in the Senate 
amendment, still has the cost coming out of the fire and tornado fund.   
 
Vice Chairman Brandenburg:  The fees would take care of some of the cost but there’s 
some general fund expenses also. 
 
Jon Godfread:  I think you could change that by increasing the fees of that boiler inspection. 
 
Chairman Vigesaa:  Are those fees set in statute? 
 
Jon Godfread:  I think it’s in admin code. 
 
Jon Godfread continued with his testimony. 
 
Chairman Vigesaa:  When it’s a continuing appropriation, it doesn’t show up in your budget? 
 
Jon Godfread:  It does not. 
 
Chairman Vigesaa:  Previously, under the old way, it would have. 
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Jon Godfread:  By making it a continuing appropriation, it would take our $20 million budget 
down to $9 million budget.  These dollars were intended for fire protection.   
 
Jon Godfread continued with his testimony. 
 
Vice Chairman Brandenburg:  A few sessions ago it used to be 50% and it was increased. 
 
Jon Godfread:  There’s a significant spike when the oil money started coming in. 
 
Jon Godfread continued with his testimony. 
 
Vice Chairman Brandenburg:  If we did go to 100%, how much are we taking out of the 
general fund? 
 
Jon Godfread:  It’s about an additional $3 million.  It’s a tough number to pinpoint because 
it’s based on collections.  Collections continue to go up and down and it’s another good point 
to make it a continuing appropriation. 
 
Chairman Vigesaa:  We could adjust the percentage and leave it a continuing appropriation. 
 
Jon Godfread:  Yes. 
 
Representative Kempenich:  Are you going to report that in the future because there is not 
a continuing appropriation? 
 
Jon Godfread:  It would still be a discussion point within our budget of how the fund is doing. 
 
Chairman Vigesaa:  You mentioned that there might be a slight increase in premiums.  Other 
than they’re insured to the proper level, what other reason would there be for an increase? 
 
Jon Godfread:  Depending on how the NDIRF structure is there; because as an agent in the 
NDIRF you get a commission off of the certain accounts you service.  There may be some 
increased costs due to the commissions and due to that increased service level. 
 
Jon Godfread continued with his testimony. 
 
Representative Kempenich:  If you start to look at 50% to 100% increases to do this, we’re 
going to have to have a conversation about that. 
 
Jon Godfread:  At our worst case scenario we’re looking at about an 8% increase. 
 
Jon Godfread continued with his testimony. 
 
Representative Howe:  Can I get some background history of why that continuing 
appropriation was stopped in 1985?  When it was a continuing appropriation, was it always 
funded at 100% or did it fluctuate? 
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Jon Godfread:  From the research we’ve done, up until 1985 it was at the 100% pass through 
level.  In 1985 the state was in a different budgetary situation, I think it was one of those 
things that started and never stopped. 
 
Chairman Vigesaa:  We ran into the same thing last session when we had to look for 
savings. 
 
Jon Godfread continued with his testimony. 
 
Chairman Vigesaa:  What would move someone from a 9 to an 8, with regard to those ISO 
ratings? 
 
Jon Godfread:  In some cases it would be some pretty simple fixes. 
 
Jon Godfread continued with his testimony. 
 
Chairman Vigesaa:  They are required to list what they use the funds for?  Is that a process 
that’s ongoing? 
 
Jon Godfread:  That may be with the fire marshal, that’s not with us. 
 
Jon Godfread continued with the worksheet. 
 
Larry Martin, Budget Analyst, ND Office of Management and Budget:  Explained the 
worksheet. 
 
Chairman Vigesaa:  If you look at the Senate version that’s the way it should have come 
out? 
 
Larry Martin:  Correct. 
 
Jon Godfread continued with the worksheet. 
 
Chairman Vigesaa:  Would this fraud investigator be a new position or would this be an 
additional fraud investigator? 
 
Jon Godfread:  It would be an additional fraud investigator. 
 
Representative Kempenich:  Who pays the other 50%? 
 
Jon Godfread:  We would just allocate 50% to our direct fraud work.   
 
Representative Kempenich:  How many attorneys do you have? 
 
Jon Godfread:  We have four attorneys. 
 
Jon Godfread continued with the worksheet. 
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Chairman Vigesaa:  Closed the discussion. 
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A BILL for an Act to provide an appropriation for defraying the expenses of the insurance 
commissioner; and to provide an appropriation for the distribution of funds from the insurance 
tax distribution fund. 
 

Minutes:                                                 Attachments A through F 

 
Blake Crosby, Executive Director, ND League of Cities:  Made introductions. 
 
Brendan Quintas, CEO, ND Reserve Fund:  Testified in support of SB2010 
 
Chairman Vigesaa:  How does the funding for your department currently work? 
 
Brendan Quintas:  We are a nonprofit entity owned by its members.  We’re not affiliated 
with the state whatsoever; we’re a separate entity. 
 
Chairman Vigesaa:  How would the continuing appropriation work? 
 
Brendan Quintas:  What we would be looking at is negotiating a contract with the insurance 
department for service.  Through that contract we would be responsible for operating both 
funds; within that contract there would be a payment from the insurance department to the 
ND Reserve Fund for those services.  My understanding is it would be coming from the fire 
and tornado fund and the state bonding fund; rather than through an appropriation for the 
operation of the insurance department. 
 
Chairman Vigesaa:  If they entered a contract with you, how would that show up in your 
budget? 
 
Jon Godfread, Commissioner, ND Insurance Department:  It wouldn’t.  It would be a 
continuing appropriation coming out of the fire and tornado and the bonding fund.  We would 
then negotiate with NDIRF and the self-contained fund would be operating itself. 
 
Chairman Vigesaa:  Other than when you’re before an appropriations committee, is there 
any other time when people ask about what’s in those funds? 
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Jon Godfread:  We have to do reporting to legislative management and OMB on a consistent 
basis. If there’s a desire to put a reporting mechanism in there, we’re open to that. 
 
Chairman Vigesaa:  There are times when you do report those or are at least requested to 
report those? 
 
Jon Godfread:  Absolutely. 
 
Chairman Vigesaa:  Part of that report would indicate the contract and the funds used, so 
that the overall health of the fund remains visible? 
 
Jon Godfread:  Absolutely. 
 
Jon Godfread:  See testimony attachments A through C. 
 
Chairman Vigesaa:  What was the estimated cost of the FTE that was approved? 
 
Jon Godfread:  About $130,000.00. 
 
Jon Godfread:  See testimony attachments D, E and F. 
 
Chairman Vigesaa:  That just showed us the increase over what it was? 
 
Jon Godfread:  Yes, from the base budget to the new projected. 
 
Chairman Vigesaa:  Then what percentage of what’s expected to come in would leave us 
at the same level that we’re at today would be helpful. 
 
Jon Godfread:  I can get you that. 
 
Brendan Quintas:  Testified in support of attachment D. 
 
Chairman Vigesaa:  Have these amendments been addressed with any Senators that you 
are bringing these forward to us? 
 
Jon Godfread:  No.  The general fund piece has been brought to the Senate appropriations 
through the DEQ budget; they’re in discussions right now. 
 
Patrick Ward, ND Domestic Insurance Companies:  Testified in support of SB2010. 
 
Chairman Vigesaa:  If the committee was to take your suggestion and move the funding for 
the auditor position to salaries, would you have someone in your office that could handle 
those duties? 
 
Jon Godfread:  If you look at the organization chart, that square in yellow would be that 
person.  We would hire someone to be another investigator. 
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Chairman Vigesaa:  You would have funding in your budget already to pay for this individual.  
The extra funding that we allocate could be spread around. 
 
Jon Godfread:  Yes. 
 
Chairman Vigesaa:  Closed the discussion. 
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A BILL for an Act to provide an appropriation for defraying the expenses of the insurance 
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Minutes:                                                  

 
Chairman Vigesaa:  Opened the discussion on SB2010. 
 
Representative Beadle:  Explained the changes that are being proposed to the budget. 
 
Chairman Vigesaa:  With regard to the fire districts, leadership would like that to not be a 
continuing appropriation so we can look at it. 
 
Representative Bellew:  How much are fire districts getting this biennium compared to last 
biennium? 
 
Representative Beadle:  Right now it looks like we’re keeping the numbers pretty much the 
same as last time. 
 
Representative Bellew:  So $7.5 million per year. 
 
Chairman Vigesaa:  If we went to 100%, they would get $3 million over what they received 
last biennium. 
 
Representative Beadle continued with his explanation. 
 
Chairman Vigesaa:  The way it works now, of the taxes collected and whatever is allocated, 
the districts get 94.5% and fire chiefs association gets the 5.5%. 
 
Vice Chairman Brandenburg:  The fire chiefs are the reason that money goes there so they 
can prove that this fire district did this training. 
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Chairman Vigesaa:  That’s part of the statute? 
 
Levi Kinnischtzke, Fiscal Analyst, ND Legislative Council:  I don’t have specific 
information on it; but I can get a breakdown of the expenditures from the fire fighter’s 
association. 
 
Chairman Vigesaa:  Are you able to pull up last year’s bill? 
 
Levi Kinnischtzke:  In HB1010 for 2017-2019 the amount to the fire fighter’s association 
was $828,525.00. 
 
Chairman Vigesaa:  What did it show for the fire district? 
 
Levi Kinnischtzke:  The total amount was a little over $15 million.  The fire department’s 
amount was $14.2 million and then there was $828,000.00 to the fire fighter’s association. 
 
Representative Kempenich:  In the NDIRF, were we repealing sections there? 
 
Representative Beadle: The only repealer that was in their bill as it came over from the 
Senate was repealing the boiler inspection language. 
 
Representative Bellew:  In section 5, what does that do? 
 
Representative Beadle:  That deals with the fire premium money. 
 
Representative Bellew:  What does it amount to? 
 
Representative Beadle:  Whatever the funds are that is generated from the fire and tornado 
premium that’s on the insurance line; whatever the true and actual cost is as it flows into it. 
 
Representative Bellew:  It isn’t a specific amount? 
 
Representative Beadle:  The way it’s written it’s as the money it flows in the money flows 
out. 
 
Representative Bellew:  On our home owner’s policy? 
 
Representative Beadle:  This is inside your home owner’s insurance premium.  There is a 
fee on there that is generated for fire revenue. 
 
Representative Beadle continued with his explanation. 
 
Chairman Vigesaa:  It’s whatever is not allocated from what’s collected, stays in the general 
fund.  We have taken a percentage of that the last few sessions to help the general fund out.  
If we do it the way it’s written in this section, it would all go to the fire districts. 
 
Representative Bellew:  They don’t reduce our property taxes at all? 
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Chairman Vigesaa:  It’s always been identified as to the amount in the budget and then we 
appropriate.  That’s what the commissioner wants to change so that it’s a continuing 
appropriation so it doesn’t show up in his budget. 
 
Representative Bellew:  It also says that 5.5% goes to the fire fighter’s association. 
 
Chairman Vigesaa:  That’s the fire chiefs. 
 
Representative Beadle:  From the executive budget recommendation it would be $4 million 
from last time; there’s about $1.7 million difference from 2017-2019 to 2019-2021. 
 
Chairman Vigesaa:  Closed the discussion. 
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Chairman Vigesaa:  Opened the discussion on SB2010. 
 
Roll Call taken. 
 
Representative Beadle:  Discussed the green sheet. 
 
Chairman Vigesaa:  What was the percentage of tax on this? 
 
Representative Beadle:  The total taxes and fees premium tax rate is 2% for life and 1 ¾% 
for accident, health, property, casualty and surplus lines.  This would be coming from the 1 
¾%; this is a portion of that percentage. 
 
Chairman Vigesaa:  Do we know what portion? 
 
Representative Beadle:  I’ve asked for that breakdown and haven’t been able to get it yet. 
 
Chairman Vigesaa:  Is that done by policy or is it in code? 
 
Representative Beadle:  The breakdown is in code. 
 
Chairman Vigesaa:  What percent of the 1 ¾% goes to fire districts? 
 
Representative Beadle:  It looks like 100% of that tax collection is dedicated to it. 
 
Chairman Vigesaa:  If we kept the allocation the same as it was in the last biennium, what 
percentage of the total do they expect to collect? 
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Representative Beadle:  Roughly 80%. 
 
Representative Beadle continued with his explanation. 
 
Chairman Vigesaa:  They just removed that from the base because they are proposing a 
continuing appropriation. 
 
Vice Chairman Brandenburg:  They got $18.5 million to $19 million the last two bienniums. 
 
Chairman Vigesaa:  The firefighters received $14.2 million in the last biennium. 
 
Representative Beadle:  The total distribution was $18.9 million; they received 79% of that 
in 2017 and 80% in 2018.  The total distribution was $15,064,086.00; the fire district received 
94.5% of that, which is $14,235,000.00 and the firefighter’s association received the other 
5.5% which is the $828,000.00. 
 
Vice Chairman Brandenburg:  The numbers will match up with that 80% going out again? 
 
Representative Beadle:  The numbers based on the projected lines would roughly match 
up with 80% funding if that is what we do; there’s a request to put them up to 100% which 
would bump it up to just under $19 million. 
 
Chairman Vigesaa:  If we took the recommendation of the Senate and gave them 100%, it 
would be close to another $4 million distributed. 
 
Representative Beadle:  If the trend for construction and the amount of new dwellings that 
have insurance policies taken on them continues then they would have an uptick. 
 
Chairman Vigesaa:  Do you have the amount of the reduction in dollars that they took? 
 
Representative Beadle:  The reduction in dollars was non-existent.  In 2015-2016 it went 
from $18,700,000.00 up to $18,900,000.00. 
 
Representative Bellew:  Discussed the distribution in past biennium.  
 
Chairman Vigesaa:  What was the amount for the firefighter’s districts in 2015-2017? 
 
Representative Bellew:  $15,689,207.00. 
 
Representative Beadle:  In 2013 we went up to 96% of the premiums were distributed. 
 
Vice Chairman Brandenburg:  There is a training facility in Boulder Colorado and they were 
looking to put a training center up in Grand Forks and that never happened. 
 
Representative Beadle continued with his explanation. 
 
Chairman Vigesaa:  Why don’t you have the commissioner check with the association to 
see where their funding level is at this point in the biennium? 
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Representative Bellew:  Do the fire departments also have to submit a report? 
 
Larry Martin, Budget Analyst, ND Office of Management and Budget:  Yes. 
 
Representative Beadle:  See attachments A through F. 
 
Chairman Vigesaa:  The sections in regard to the boiler which is moving over to DEQ, is 
that in the Senate bill or is it something that came up after the Senate passed the bill out? 
 
Alex Cronquist, Fiscal Analyst, ND Legislative Council:  Right now the same language is 
in this bill and in the DEQ bill.  The Senate was not sure if the House was going to move 
forward with these changes. 
 
Chairman Vigesaa:  If it’s in the DEQ budget does all of this have to come out of the 
insurance budget? 
 
Alex Cronquist:  It doesn’t come out. 
 
Representative Bellew:  Do the fees cover the expenses for this? 
 
Alex Cronquist:  Right now the fees do not cover the entirety of the expenses. 
 
Representative Beadle continued with his explanation. 
 
Chairman Vigesaa:  That will be addressed in the DEQ either by policy or code? 
 
Alex Cronquist:  If the Senate goes along with this and makes that determination. 
 
Representative Bellew: If the Senate doesn’t do it can we do it in this budget? 
 
Chairman Vigesaa:  My understanding is that the program is moving over. 
 
Alex Cronquist:  There’s a limit of $200.00 for an inspection; so if they’re only charging 
$125.00 right now, they can update. 
 
Representative Beadle:  They’re at about $160.00 that they’ve been charging per item. 
 
Vice Chairman Brandenburg:  The money before was going to that insurance fund and now 
it’s going to go in the general fund? 
 
Representative Beadle:  Currently it goes to the state fire and tornado fund; and all income 
and expenses are run through that fund.  They suggest taking the income and expenses out 
of that fund and put them into the general fund. 
 
Chairman Vigesaa:  The fee isn’t set in code necessarily? 
 
Alex Cronquist:  There’s a limit set in code but it doesn’t appear that they’re at that limit at 
this point. 
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Representative Beadle:  If they did charge $200.00; based off of the number of items, they 
would still be about $100,000.00 less than their anticipated costs. 
 
Chairman Vigesaa:  I wonder if we even have to worry about it because it’s moving over to 
DEQ. 
 
Representative Beadle:  Made a motion to move attachment A. 
 
Representative Howe:  Seconded the motion. 
 
Voice Vote made. 
 
Motion Carried. 
 
Representative Bellew:  It’s such a small amount that I don’t know why they can’t find it in 
their own budget. 
 
Representative Beadle:  This would increase their operating expenses by $12,000.00 and 
increase their special fund by $12,000.00.  Wouldn’t that be an increase of $24,000.00 based 
on how this amendment is written? 
 
Alex Cronquist:  This is just a $12,000.00 total. 
 
Representative Beadle:  Made to a motion to increase state audit to $12,000.00. 
 
Representative Monk:  Seconded the motion. 
 
Representative Beadle:  Had they received the invoice from the auditor’s office while the 
budget was being done, it probably would have been in here already.  I think this is the fault 
of the auditor not getting things to the agencies in a timely manner. 
 
Larry Martin:  Even though they are special funded, any adjustments in this category 
reduces the amount that they turn back into the general fund.  It does have a general fund 
impact. 
 
Representative Beadle:  Do know what that turn back amount is? 
 
Larry Martin:  In the 2013-2015 biennium their operating expense turn back was 
$1,341,559.00; so approximately 47%.  In the 2015-2017 the operating turn back was 
$1,052,978.00; which was 42%. 
 
Chairman Vigesaa:  If we reduce their operating by $12,000.00 it would be $12,000.00 less 
going into the general fund.  Correct?  If we add the $12,000.00 back in is it going to affect 
the general fund? 
 
Larry Martin:  In the end, they’re going to spend it. 
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Representative Beadle:  They would be collecting it out of their fees, it would just not go 
into the general fund. 
 
Larry Martin:  Correct.  Either way it would have the same effect on the general fund amount. 
 
Voice Vote made. 
 
Motion Failed. 
 
Representative Beadle:  Made a motion to move attachment D. 
 
Representaive Howe:  Seconded the motion. 
 
Voice Vote made. 
 
Motion Carried. 
  
Representative Beadle:  Discussed attachment B. 
 
Chairman Vigesaa:  One of the things that drew some attention from political subdivisions 
was the continuing appropriation.  We would never see the activity in that arena going 
forward.  Correct? 
 
Alex Cronquist:  Yes. 
 
Chairman Vigesaa:  Do they currently have to report in regard to the activity in this fund? 
 
Alex Cronquist:  Right now because they are administering the fund themselves, you do 
appropriate money to them from the fund to pay the salaries, etc.  This continuing 
appropriation is a new thing. 
 
Chairman Vigesaa:  If this is transferring to NDIRF, do they report to anybody with regard 
to their activities? 
 
Alex Cronquist:  Not that I’m aware of. 
 
Representative Beadle:  The commissioner indicated it was because of the oversight that 
the board has and the people that are paying the fees into the fund are the political 
subdivisions that are on the board of the fund; that board is going to be very responsible. 
 
Chairman Vigesaa:  NDIRF is not considered to be a state entity.  Are they just a private 
industry?  What are they considered? 
 
Alex Cronquist:  I believe they’re considered a non-profit.  The continuing appropriation 
would just flow through the insurance department.  You could have the insurance 
commissioner required to report to the appropriations committees at the next session or an 
interim committee during budget section. 
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Terry Traynor, Association of Counties:  It is a non-profit corporation allowed for in law.  
There’s a section of code that makes it permissible for local government to create that; but it 
is an insurance company and it is regulated by the insurance commissioner.  They are 
audited by the insurance commissioner as well. 
 
Chairman Vigesaa:  Why does the money flow through the insurance department? 
 
Alex Cronquist:  That’s coming from a state fund that’s managed by that department.  
 
Terry Traynor:  The reserve fund is constitutionally authorized.  The pool of money has to 
be sitting in the insurance department. 
 
Representative Beadle:  Made a motion to allow the insurance department to contract with 
NDIRF. 
 
Representative Howe:  Seconded the motion. 
 
Voice Vote made. 
 
Motion Carried. 
 
Chairman Vigesaa:  With the amendment that addresses their compression issue, I don’t 
feel comfortable with working on this with one particular agency.  I think they’re all dealing 
with this issue. 
 
Representative Beadle:  I would agree with that as well.  I do think it’s an issue that many 
agencies are having. 
 
Representative Beadle continued with his explanation. 
 
Representative Bellew:  Looking at the base payroll changes, that’s almost a $300,000.00 
change from the governor’s recommendation to the Senate changes. 
 
Alex Cronquist:  In the governor’s recommendation a couple of FTE positions had been 
unfunded in that base payroll change.  That’s why the governor’s is negative; as to why the 
Senate is positive is that was a request of the agency.  The agency has given out promotional 
increases in pay for certain employees. 
 
Representative Bellew:  If the agency can do that, why is there a compression problem? 
 
Alex Cronquist:  The actual increase was $165,000.00 from the base level. 
 
Representative Bellew:  But it was $300,000.00 from the governor’s recommendation. 
 
Alex Cronquist:  Right.  That’s because the governor’s recommendation had unfunded a 
couple vacant positions. 
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Representative Bellew:  There is $100,000.00 in underfunded salaries in the governor’s 
recommendation but the Senate decided not to do that.  We’re talking about a $400,000.00 
increase from the governor’s proposal. 
 
Chairman Vigesaa:  Currently, where are they at with vacant FTE’s? 
 
Representative Beadle:  Currently they have four vacant FTE’s.   
 
Chairman Vigesaa:  The removal of the $660,000.00 by the Senate, is that because of the 
removal of the responsibility of oversight to the board? 
 
Alex Cronquist:  The governor’s budget did not provide a continuing appropriation authority 
for the $660,000.00; so that funding was appropriated in the bill.  With the continuing 
appropriation authority, the money is still going to be spent; but we don’t recognize it. 
 
Chairman Vigesaa:  It’s in the bill right now? 
 
Alex Cronquist:  This is for them to contract with NDIRF; it’s in the bill right now.  They 
basically took what the three FTE’s would have been paid with the governor’s compensation 
increase. 
 
Chairman Vigesaa:  If we did not go with the continuing appropriation, we would still have the 
$660,000.00? 
 
Alex Cronquist:  That’s correct.  Right now the insurance commissioner doesn’t know what 
NDIRF is actually going to charge them; but they would have up to $660,000.00 or more if 
they found it elsewhere in their budget to use. 
 
Representative Bellew:  The insurance department still has to contract with them isn’t that 
correct? 
 
Alex Cronquist:  Yes.  They still have to contract with them and they’ll still pay them whatever 
the amount is from those two funds that they will be contracting for the administration of.  
They’ll still spend the money, we just won’t recognize it in the bill; because in law they’ll have 
authority to spend as much as it costs and as much as they have money available. 
 
Representative Bellew:  That comes from the insurance reserve fund, is that correct? 
 
Alex Cronquist:  For this particular issue, because they’re contracting for the administration 
of those two funds, the administration costs would be paid from the bonding and fire and 
tornado funds. 
 
Chairman Vigesaa:  With regard to the distribution to the firefighter districts and the 
association, my feeling is that we should not have that be a continuing appropriation. 
 
Vice Chairman Brandenburg:  Made a motion to remove the continuing appropriation to the 
fire districts and the fire association. 
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Representaive Bellew:  Seconded the motion. 
 
Representative Howe:  Just to be clear, we’ll be dictating a percentage; not a dollar amount? 
 
Chairman Vigesaa:  I think it would be a dollar amount and you would just have to figure out 
the percentage.  Is that correct. 
 
Alex Cronquist:  If we’re going back to appropriating a specific amount, you would 
appropriate the dollar amount and you could calculate that based on a percentage. 
 
Chairman Vigesaa:  If we decided on 80%, the actual numbers will show up in the bill? 
 
Alex Cronquist:  That’s correct. 
 
Voice Vote made. 
 
Motion Carried. 
 
Representative Bellew:  Why is the insurance tax distribution fund not in the list of special 
funds? 
 
Alex Cronquist:  Everything that goes into that fund goes out so the balance is always going 
to be zero.  Only what’s been appropriated actually gets deposited in that fund. 
 
Vice Chairman Brandenburg:  How often does the money go out? 
 
Alex Cronquist:  It’s in December of each year. 
 
Representative Beadle continued with the green sheet. 
 
Chairman Vigesaa:  That’s in the Senate side also? 
 
Representative Beadle:  Yes. 
 
Alex Cronquist:  The continuing appropriation for NDIRF, it sounds like you want to have 
that go forward. Did you want to have a reporting requirement on that? 
 
Chairman Vigesaa:  I would like to have something in regard to a reporting requirement. 
 
Alex Cronquist:  Would you prefer them reporting to legislative management in the interim 
or would you prefer that they report to the appropriations committee at the next session? 
 
Chairman Vigesaa:  Let’s have them go to legislative management. 
 
Chairman Vigesaa:  Closed the discussion. 
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Chairman Vigesaa:  Opened the discussion on SB2010. 
 
Chairman Vigesaa:  What is the projected revenue from the premium tax for 2019-2021? 
 
Representative Beadle:  See attachment A. 
 
Chairman Vigesaa:  See attachment B. 
 
Representative Beadle:  If we did take a percent off of the 5 ½% that would reduce the fire 
fighter’s association portion from $976,000.00 down to $798,750.00. 
 
Chairman Vigesaa:  I’m trying to figure out what percentage we could go to short of the 
100% so we can retain some for the general fund at a level that the Senate would agree to. 
 
Representative Beadle:  If we did the 90% and we adjusted the number down to 5% going 
to the association; that number would equate to $758,000.00. 
 
Chairman Vigesaa:  How much would that be for the fire districts? 
 
Representative Howe:  I would like to see the 100%, I know that might not be possible.  Our 
state is rebounding from last biennium.  I would like to see a little higher. 
 
Representative Beadle:  To me it doesn’t sit really well when we have a dedicated fee that 
we’re then using for something other than what it’s been dedicated for.  I would like us to get 
as close to the 100% as possible. 
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Representative Mock:  I would like to see it be 100% if possible for the purposes that it’s 
intended.  I’d like to find a way to get us at or as close to 100% if possible. 
 
Chairman Vigesaa:  What about the continuing appropriation? 
 
Representative Beadle:  I would have no issues with making sure that we continually have 
an eye on it.  If we have that we can adjust what goes to the association versus the districts 
down the line. 
 
Representative Howe:  I would agree with that.  If we are giving that 100%, withholding that 
continuing appropriation. 
 
Representative Mock:  If I would have to pick between the two I would fully fund them and 
not have a continuing appropriation. 
 
Chairman Vigesaa:  The increased costs come with the districts. 
 
Representative Beadle:  If the association is providing a substantial value added benefit to 
the districts, they can certainly contract with the districts and collect some fees from the 
districts as needed. 
 
Chairman Vigesaa continued with attachment B. 
 
Representative Beadle continued with his explanation. 
 
Representative Howe:  I think we could just go over the double hit that the property owners 
are getting on their taxes and further explain I think he would come around. 
 
Chairman Vigesaa:  If it’s a continuing appropriation, would we still have that opportunity? 
 
Alex Cronquist, Fiscal Analyst, ND Legislative Council:  You would have to amend 
century code if you wanted to change it next session. 
 
Chairman Vigesaa:  We’d amend it to a certain percentage then? 
 
Alex Cronquist:  That would be an option. 
 
Chairman Vigesaa:  The way we do it now if it’s not a continuing appropriation, we can just 
set the numbers for each of the entities? 
 
Alex Cronquist:  That’s correct. 
 
Chairman Vigesaa:  In code right now, there’s not a specific ongoing percentage; it’s varied 
from session to session.  Correct? 
 
Alex Cronquist:  Correct. 
 
Chairman Vigesaa:  The percentages are not listed anywhere in century code? 
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Alex Cronquist:  Correct.  That was an agreement last session they came to as far as the 
funding split. 
 
Representative Beadle:  Discussed what changes had been adopted so far. 
 
Alex Cronquist:  The department of environmental quality budget with the boiler inspectors 
is over in the Senate right now.  They are not planning to accept the insurance 
commissioner’s proposal to move the funding source and fees from the fire and tornado fund 
to general fund.  They want the fire and tornado fund to continue paying the difference 
between the revenue and the expense of that program. 
 
Chairman Vigesaa:  So they’re not going to go with the continuing appropriation.  Is that the 
issue? 
 
Alex Cronquist:  This is a separate issue.  This is for the boiler inspectors.  Right now the 
fees for those boiler inspections are placed in the state fire and tornado fund.  That was one 
of the amendments that Representative Beadle had mentioned that the insurance 
commissioner had proposed; having those fees deposited in the general fund and to have 
the expenses of that program paid out of the general fund.  Right now the fees don’t cover 
the cost of the program; it’s about a $350,000.00 difference. 
 
Chairman Vigesaa:  Closed the discussion. 
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Chairman Vigesaa:  Opened the discussion on SB2010 
 
Chairman Vigesaa:  I ran the numbers and we’ll wait to hear Representative Kempenich’s 
thoughts. 
 
Representative Beadle:  We’ve agreed with what the compensation package is and the 
intention seems to be to adjust the formula a little bit but we’re not going to go to 100%.  Since 
we’ve previously done a voice vote adoption of the adjustment from the fire and tornado trust 
to the general fund; we need to confirm that and fix how that needs to be. 
 
Chairman Vigesaa:  I would request that we have a little more explanation on the NDIRF 
change; because it’s a big change in the way we’ve been doing things. 
 
Representative Beadle:  I am anticipating more questions from the full committee. 
 
Chairman Vigesaa:  Whether it would be the deputy or commissioner that comes down and 
goes through that with us. 
 
Vice Chairman Brandenburg:  As far as that disaster relief fund.  Do you have the exact 
number that we have in there? 
 
Alex Cronquist, Fiscal Analyst, ND Legislative Council:  The unobligated balance we’re 
looking at is about $25.7 million. 
 
Vice Chairman Brandenburg:  Holly had mentioned that there might be some turn back in 
there because of some of the projects. 
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Chairman Vigesaa:  Chairman Delzer was requesting that we make a change with regard 
to the monies that are in the fund that are available for carry over.   
 
Vice Chairman Brandenburg:  We’re going to have to visit with leadership. 
 
Alex Cronquist:  There is a section in the bill to allow for carry over of previous 
appropriations from the disaster relief fund; because they weren’t sure if it was going to be 
spent before June 30th.  The carry over was estimated to be as high as $3.9 million.  
Representative Delzer would prefer to have that as a new appropriation from the disaster 
relief fund rather than a carry over section. 
 
Chairman Vigesaa:  That would be for that $3.9 million or whatever is specifically authorized 
to go out on projects that are approved? 
 
Alex Cronquist:  Correct.  There would be that $3.9 million and that would be in addition to 
the $3 million that was already being appropriated for the next biennium; so that would be 
$6.9 million plus the $200,000.00 for Dickey county.  That brings it to $7.1 million.  
 
Vice Chairman Brandenburg:  We could have a disaster program and take care of these 
counties. 
 
Alex Cronquist:  The change from carry over to appropriation doesn’t change the 
unobligated balance at all; it’s just how we account for it. 
 
Chairman Vigesaa:  Section 14 would be changed or eliminated? 
 
Alex Cronquist:  Correct.  It would be eliminated. 
 
Chairman Vigesaa:  Would it be a different section that would appropriate the specific 
amount? 
 
Alex Cronquist:  It would be in section 1. 
 
Chairman Vigesaa:  Have you prepared that amendment yet? 
 
Alex Cronquist:  I have been waiting for the committee. 
 
Chairman Vigesaa:  If there is discussion about adding some relief for the counties that are 
undergoing extreme costs because of flooding or snow removal, that may work its way into 
this bill.  
 
 
Chairman Vigesaa:  Closed the discussion. 
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Chairman Vigesaa:  Opened the discussion on SB2010. 
 
Roll Call taken. 
 
Jon Godfread, Commissioner, ND Insurance Department:  The way we see this working 
out is allowing us to contract out to NDIRF to administer those funds.  This is housed in our 
special funds division.   
 
Representative Kempenich:  You’re going to treat the fire and tornado fund as a 
reinsurance company?  You’re still going to be in that boat aren’t you?  What’s going to be 
any type of due diligence outside of your office? 
 
Jon Godfread:  I think NDIRF has some built in checks and balances.  We’re sitting on $12 
million in reserve, so we do have some cushion if something were to happen.  We’ll be seeing 
a significant savings in the fund by letting us do this. 
 
Representative Kempenich:  Those cushions have a tendency to get used.   
 
Jon Godfread:  I don’t anticipate the cushion being eaten by this. 
 
Representative Kempenich:  I support what you’re trying to do.  In theory and on the 
structure of it, it looks like it should work. 
 
Jon Godfread:  This is what we can propose.  Over in the Senate there’s a pre-discussion 
about perhaps doing a referendum on changing this fund. 
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Chairman Vigesaa:  In your request this time there are some funds to administer the fund.  
Is that correct? 
 
Jon Godfread:  I believe our request was to turn this into a continuing appropriation. 
 
Chairman Vigesaa:  So that will not show in your budget? 
 
Jon Godfread:  That will allow us to then contract with NDIRF.  The last time I was here we 
talked about a continuing appropriation to allow us the negotiation tools. 
 
Chairman Vigesaa:  Going forward, other than if we a report requested. 
 
Jon Godfread:  We report to budget section on the cost of administering the fund. 
 
Chairman Vigesaa:  If you could explain your amendment for DEQ? 
 
Jon Godfread:  Explained his proposed amendments. 
 
Chairman Vigesaa:  With the adoption of the pay package there’s language in there urging 
agencies to use roll up dollars to try to address that issue. 
 
Chairman Vigesaa:  Closed the discussion. 
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Chairman Vigesaa:  Opened the discussion on SB2010. 
 
Representative Kempenich:  Explained his proposed amendment to add a study to the bill. 
 
Alex Cronquist:  Explained the changes to the bill. 
 
Chairman Vigesaa:  Discussed the green sheet. 
 
Representative Bellew:  I think we should go with $745,000.00 because that’s what they 
requested and this is 70% salaries. 
 
Chairman Vigesaa:  How about if we allocated in that section the$16,773,750.00; which 
would have been their normal breakout of 100%.  Then just put the fire districts at what they 
requested in that letter. 
 
Representative Kempenich:  They’re getting their 100%? 
 
Chairman Vigesaa:  They would be made whole again. 
 
Representative Beadle:  Is that established in code that we need to adjust that percentage? 
 
Alex Cronquist:  No, it’s not. 
 
Representative Beadle:  It’s just by practice? 
 
Alex Cronquist:  Correct.  I think it was first used during the 2017 session.  The estimate 
that was used by the Senate was about $18.8 million. 
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Chairman Vigesaa:  I assumed that the estimate we received was from the insurance 
department. 
 
Alex Cronquist:  There must have been an update on their estimate.  What you have would 
be a more recent estimate than what the Senate had. 
 
Representative Beadle:  Made a motion to move the recommendation. 
 
Vice Chairman Brandenburg:  Seconded the motion. 
 
Representative Beadle:  Made a motion to remove sections 3,4,5,6,9 and 16. 
 
Vice Chairman Brandenburg:  Seconded the motion. 
 
Representative Beadle:  All the language for the boiler inspectors will be in the DEQ budget. 
 
Voice Vote made. 
 
Motion Carried. 
 
Representative Bellew:  I’m personally against the distribution of 100%; and I probably won’t 
support the bill. 
 
Representative Kempenich:   Are we going to put some language in to use some of this 
funding to lower their ISO rating? 
 
Chairman Vigesaa:  That’s in there. 
 
Representative Beadle:  The remainder will flow in to the state fire and tornado fund. 
 
Alex Cronquist:  It flows to the general fund. 
 
Representative Kempenich:  Made a motion to adopt the amendments. 
 
Representative Beadle:  Seconded the motion. 
 
Voice Vote taken. 
 
Motion Carried. 
 
Representative Beadle:  Made a motion for a “Do Pass as Amended”. 
 
Representative Howe:  Seconded the motion. 
 
Roll Call Vote:  6 Yeas 1 Nay 0 Absent 
 
Motion Carried. 
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Chairman Vigesaa:  Closed the discussion. 
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Chairman Delzer: Called the meeting to order for SB 2010. 
 
2:00 Representative Beadle: Bottom of page 3 statement of purpose amendment, only 
change we have on the bottom of the page is the salary package to go the 2 and 2 ½. Page 
4 is the insurance tax payments, 17 million 519 thousand 422, this is the insurance premium 
tax that is collected for fire protection services. The senate had a continuing appropriation for 
the funding and we took that off so we needed to into that number into this line item. First 
page you will see a reduction of 5 FTEs, that would be the reduction of 3 employees because 
of the contract with North Dakota Insurance Reserve Fund (NDIRFD) and the reduction of 4 
boiler inspectors. That’s program is being shifted over to Department of Environmental 
Equality (DEQ) so we are taking that langue and funding out of this budget. There was 2 
additional FTEs added in, in the executive recommendation, o for consumer assistance 
outreach and 1 for high risk pool & health care reform coordinator. Even though we have a 
reduction of 7, you’re only seeing a reduction 5. Section 2 is the appropriation amount for the 
transfer for fire insurance tax premium.  
 
7:00 Section 6, 7, and 13 was the change to the bill, insurance companies would now be 
able to offer some of these promotions for to bring people in for a quote. 47 states already 
allow this 3 states say that you can’t give them an incentive or a promotion for a quote. All 
state agree that you can’t do an incentive for a contract, we will now allow companies to do 
these promotions. Page 3 in another removal of boiler inspector language.  Sections 14-15 
gives us some legislative intent. We are telling the fire districts that we are giving you this 
money but you need to focus on saving some of our tax payers money. Section 16 adds an 
emergency clause to section 8, 9, 10, 11, and 12 that transfers this to NDRIF. With that I 
would Move the amendment 19.0223.02003 
 
Representative Brandenburg: Second 
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Chairman Delzer: What kind of discussion did you have about the pension, where would 
you fund that?  
 
Representative Kempenich: Right now there is nothing for volunteers and in the past it 
wasn’t an issue; volunteers are getting harder to find. The idea was that when you go into 
training these people it isn’t something that you just do and then a year later you quit.  
 
Chairman Delzer: How do you plan to fund it and how do you determine their worth? 
 
Representative Kempenich: That’s why we are doing a study.  
 
Chairman Delzer: Are you talking about the funding this with premium tax money that goes 
out or are you talking about the state giving money to do something on top of that for 
retirement for volunteer firefighters.  
 
Representative Kempenich: It would be something that the local politic subs would have to 
find in the end.  
 
Chairman Delzer: Is there something stopping them from doing it now? 
 
Representative Kempenich: Because there is state money involved it gets complicated.  
 
Chairman Delzer: When you talked about the lines that create the insurance premium, one 
has to do with hail insurance in communities? Did you have much discussion about those 
lines?  
 
Representative Beadle: The original lines were fire, allied lines, home owners, farm owners, 
commercial and crop/hail insurance within the city.  We asked a couple of questions, 1 if they 
could provide a break out of how much is collected from each of these individual premiums, 
and 2 if they could give us some history of why the crop/hail insurance within the city limits 
was included in this language originally. They said they just get a lump sum amount from all 
the providers.  
 
Chairman Delzer: Did you put it anywhere in the bill that in the future they should be able to 
do that?  
 
Representative Beadle: We requested the insurance commissioner to look at it.  
 
Representative Monson: It says improve their rating what can they do to improve that 
rating? 
 
Representative Beadle: It comes down to the time that it takes for them to get to the property 
and the overall readiness.  
 
Representative Monson: Would it have to do with the level of training that they get? 
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Representative Beadle: We didn’t talk about the training but we do believe this revenue we 
are sending to them is intended to be better trained and better prepared. With the training 
comes better efficiencies and better response time.  
 
Representative Schobinger: It’s the distance to the closest fire department, if you’re within 
5 miles of a fire department it’ll improve your rating and it’s the equipment or sometimes it’s 
going through the process. 
 
 Representative Vigesaa: On the senate side they had the fire fighter distribution as a 
continuing appropriation, we took out the continuing appropriation so we can see those 
numbers every time.  
 
Chairman Delzer: Further questions on the amendment? Seeing none Voice Vote, All in 
Favor, Motion Carries.   
 
 Representative Holman: I also passed out an amendment 19.0223.02001, part of the 
reason for this is there has been discussion about eliminating ACA. This amendment deals 
with something that’s been working quite well in the state for the last several year and that is 
the insurance carriers are required to cover preexisting conditions. This amendment would 
add to the statuary requirements. It will not change anything under present law it only 
changes if things would change, I would Move the Amendment.  
 
 Representative Boe: Second  
 
Chairman Delzer: Brady would this have to go through PERS?  
 
Brady Larson, Legislative Council: It would have to go on PERS for two years before it 
could be applied to everyone. 
 
Representative Kempenich: Did we repeal the CHAND program? 
 
Chairman Delzer: I think it’s still in place, I don’t know that anyone is still on it.  
 
Representative Kempenich: If something did happen this would do the same thing.  
 
Chairman Delzer: We should be really careful with this one, I think it needs to go through 
the PERS, I see this as purely policy and not so much money. Maybe we should have had a 
study on here. 
 
Representative Monson: Can we see if CHAND is still in place? 
 
Representative Beadle: Pulling up this chapter of code that it would be looking towards; 
hospital and medical insurance, limits on preexisting exclusions.  A group policy may not 
impose a preexisting condition that 1 relates to pregnancy or 2 treats genetic information as 
a preexisting condition. That’s what we currently have within statute.  
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Chairman Delzer: The talk is that even if something did change the preexisting would still 
be covered. Any further discussion of the motion to further amend? Seeing none we will call 
the roll.  
 
A Roll Call vote was taken. Yea:       12       Nay:      9       Absent:   0 
 
Chairman Delzer: Motion Carries  
 
Chairman Delzer: Brady you better check and see what happens with this.  
 
Representative Beadle: I will make sure we go to conference with this so we have more 
time to find that out.  
 
Chairman Delzer: Any further amendments? Seeing none.  
 
Representative Beadle: Remained of the bill, page 1 is the salaries and wages as well as 
the positions. If there are no more questions I would move a Do pass as amended. 
 
Representative Howe: Second  
 
Chairman Delzer: The repealer is just with the NDIRF?  
 
Representative Beadle: The repealer is the boiler inspector language that’s currently within 
their area.  All that is being put into DEQ.  
 
Chairman Delzer: Any further discussion on the motion for a Do Pass as Amended? Seeing 
none, we will call the roll.  
 
A Roll Call vote was taken. Yea:          18    Nay:         3    Absent:      0 
 
Motion Carries, Representative Beadle will carry the bill 
 
Chairman Delzer: With that we will close this meeting.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Prepared by the North Dakota 
I nsu rance Depa rtment 

Febru a ry 2 8 ,  20 1 9 

PROPOS ED AM E N D M E NTS TO E N G ROSS E D  SENATE B I L L  N O .  201 0 

Page 9 ,  l i ne  1 4 , replace "state fi re and to rnado" with "general" 

Ren u m ber accord ingly 

Moving the Boiler Inspection program to DEQ, this would clarify that all funds collected 
by the Boiler Inspectors and the funds required to operate the program would go into 
and out of the general fund. 



This corrects and issue that  was brought to our attention by our agent community, as 
the law stands right now, our agents can make donations to a 50 1 (c )3 entity for any 
dollar amount. A donation cannot be an inducement to get a quote or a contract of 
insurance. This amendment allows for our agents to market based on getting quotes, 
"Come in this month and for every quote we give we will donate $ 1 0  to a X Charity" Our 
agents and companies agree to the amendment and The Department also agrees as it 
still protects the inducement on the contract, but allows for a marketing on quotes which 
in the end should benefit agents, consumers and non-profits. 

Prepared by the North Dakota 
I nsurance Department 

March 1 3 , 20 1 9 

PROPOSED AM E N D M E NTS TO ENGROSSE D  SENATE BILL NO.  201 0 

Page 1 ,  l i ne 9 ,  after the sem i co l on ,  i nsert "to amend and  reenact subd ivis ion c of 
subsect ion 8 of sect ion 26 . 1 -04-03 of the North Dakota Century Code ,  re lat ing to 
i nsu rance rebates ; to amend and  reenact subsect ion 2 of sect ion 26 . 1 -04-06 of 
the North Dakota Centu ry Code ,  re lat i ng  to i nsurance rebates ;  and to amend and 
reenact subsect ion 2 of sect ion 26 . 1 -25- 1 6 of the North Dakota Centu ry Code ,  
re lat i ng t o  i nsu rance rebates ; " 

Page 1 3 , after l i ne  2 1 , i nsert :  

SECTION 1 5 . AM E N D M E NT. S u bd ivis ion  c of  subsect ion 8 of  sect ion 26 . 1 -04-
03 of the North Dakota Centu ry Code is a mended and reenacted as fo l lows : 

8 .  Rebates .  

c .  Notwithstand i ng  any  other  p rovis ion i n  th i s  subsect ion ,  i f  t he  cost 
does not exceed a n  aggregate reta i l  va l ue of one hundred do l l a rs 
per  person per  yea r, an  i nsu rance prod ucer may g ive a g ift ,  p rize , 
p romot iona l  artic le ,  logo merchand ise, mea l ,  or  enterta i nment 
act iv ity d i rect ly or i nd i rect ly to a person i n  connection with 
market ing , p romoti ng ,  or advert is ing the bus iness .  As used in th is  
subd iv is ion ,  "person" means the named insured , po l icy owner, or  
p rospect ive c l ient o r  the spouse of  any of  these ind iv id ua ls ,  but the 
term does not  i nc lude a cert ifi cate holder, ch i l d , o r  emp loyee of  the 
named i nsu red , po l i cy owner, o r  p rospective c l i ent .  Subject to  the 
l im its of  th is  subd iv is io n ,  an  i nsu rance prod ucer may g ive a g ift ca rd 
fo r specif ic merchand ise o r  services such as a mea l ,  gaso l i ne ,  o r  
ca r wash  but may not  g i ve cash ,  a cash ca rd , any fo rm of cu rrency, 
or a ny refund or d i scount in p rem i um .  An insurance prod ucer may 
not cond i t ion the g iv ing of a g ift , p rize ,  promotion artic le ,  logo 
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mercha nd ise ,  mea l ,  o r  enterta inment activity on  obta i n i ng a quote 
o r  a contract of i nsu ra nce . Notwithstand ing the l im itation in th is  
subd iv is ion ,  a n  i nsu rance prod ucer may make a donatio n to a 
nonprofit o rgan izat ion that i s  exempt from federa l  taxat ion under  
I nte rna l  Revenue  Code sect ion 50 1 (c)(3)  [26 U . S . C .  50 1 (c) (3)] i n  
any  amount as l ong  as t he  donat ion is not g iven as an  i nducement 
to obta i n  a quote or a contract of i nsurance . 

S E CTION 1 6 . AM E N D M E NT. S ubsect ion  2 of sect ion 26 . 1 -04-06 of the North Da kota 
Centu ry Code is amended and  reenacted as fo l lows : 

2 .  Notwithsta nd i ng a n y  other  p rovis ion  i n  th is  sect ion ,  if the cost does not exceed 
an aggregate reta i l  va l ue  of one  h u nd red do l l a rs per person per year, an  
i nsu rance prod ucer may  g ive a g ift ,  p rize , p romotiona l  a rtic le ,  logo merchand ise ,  
mea l ,  or enterta i n ment act iv ity d i rect ly  o r  i nd i rectly to a person in  con nect ion with 
ma rketi ng , p ro moti ng , or advert is ing  the bus iness .  As used in th is  subsection ,  
"person "  mea ns  the named i nsu red , po l i cy owner, o r  prospect ive c l ient o r  the 
spouse of a ny of these i nd iv id ua l s ,  b ut the term does not inc lude a certificate 
ho lder, ch i l d , or emp loyee of the named i nsured , po l i cy owner, or prospect ive 
c l ient .  S u bject to the l i m its of th i s  subsect ion ,  an insurance prod ucer may g ive a 
g ift ca rd for specific merchand ise o r  services such as a mea l ,  gaso l i ne ,  o r  ca r 
wash but  may not g ive cas h ,  a cash ca rd ,  any  form of cu rrency ,  o r  any refund or  
d isco u nt i n  p rem ium . An i nsu rance p rod ucer may not cond it ion the  g iv ing of  a 
g ift ,  p rize , p romot iona l  a rt ic le ,  logo merchand ise ,  mea l ,  o r  enterta i nment act ivity 
on obta i n i ng a quote or a contract of i nsu ra nce . Notwithstand i ng the l im itation  i n  
th is  subsect ion ,  an  i nsu rance p rod ucer may make a donat ion to  a nonprofit 
o rg a n izat ion that is exempt from federa l  taxat ion under  I nterna l  Revenue Code 
sect ion  50 1 (c )(3 )  [26 U . S . C .  50 1 (c ) (3 )] in any amount as long as the donat ion is  
not g iven as a n  ind ucement to o bta i n  a quote or a contract of i nsurance . 

S E CTION 1 7 . AM E N D M E NT. S ubsect ion  2 of sect ion 26 . 1 -25-1 6 of the North Da kota 
Centu ry Code is amended and  reenacted as fo l lows : 

2 .  Notwithstand i ng  a n y  other  p rovis ion  i n  th is  section ,  if the cost does not exceed 
an aggregate reta i l  va l ue  of one  h u nd red do l l a rs per person per year, an  
i nsu ra nce prod ucer may g ive a g ift , p rize , p romotiona l  art ic le , logo merchand ise ,  
mea l ,  o r  enterta i n ment act ivity d i rectly o r  i nd i rectly to a person in  connect ion with 
ma rketi n g ,  p ro moti ng , or advert is i ng  the bus iness .  As used in th is  subsect ion ,  
"person "  mea ns  the named i nsu red , po l i cy owner, o r  prospect ive c l ient o r  the 
spouse of a ny of these i nd iv id ua l s ,  but the term does not inc lude a certificate 
ho lder, ch i l d , or emp loyee of the named i nsured , po l icy owner, or prospect ive 
c l ient .  S u bject to the l im its of th is  subsect io n ,  an  i nsurance prod ucer may g ive a 
g ift ca rd fo r specifi c merchand ise o r  services such as a mea l ,  gaso l i ne ,  o r  ca r 
wash but  may not g ive cas h ,  a cash ca rd ,  any fo rm of cu rrency, or  any refund or 
d iscou nt i n  p rem i um .  An i nsu rance prod ucer may not cond it ion the g iv ing of a 
g ift , p rize , promot iona l  a rtic le ,  logo merchand ise , mea l ,  or  enterta inment act iv ity 
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o n  obta i n i ng  a quote o r  a contract of i nsu ra nce . Notwithsta nd ing the l im itat ion i n  
t h i s  su bsectio n ,  an  i nsu rance producer  may  make a donat ion to  a no nprofit 
o rgan izat io n that is exempt from federa l  taxat ion under I nterna l  Revenue Code 
sect io n 50 1 (c )(3 )  [26 U . S . C .  50 1 (c )(3 )] i n  any amount as long as the donat ion is 
not g iven as an  i nducement to obta i n  a quote or a contract of insurance . 

Page 1 3 , l i ne  22 ,  rep lace " 1 5"  with " 1 8" 

Page 1 3 , l i ne  23 ,  rep lace " 1 6" with " 1 9 "  

Ren u m ber  accord i ng ly  
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19.0223.02003 
Title. 

Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for 
the House Appropriations - Government 
Operations Division Committee 

Fiscal No. 1 April 9, 2019 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED SENATE B ILL NO. 2010 

Page 1, line 2, remove "chapter 23.1-16 and" 

Page 1, line 3, remove "boiler inspections and" 

Page 1, line 4, remove "sections 18-04-04, 18-04-04.1, and 18-04-05, "  

Page 1 ,  line 5 ,  replace "subsection 1 of section 26.1-03-17, and" with "subdivision c of 
subsection 8 of section 26.1-04-03, subsection 2 of section 26.1-04-06, "  

Page 1 ,  line 6 ,  after "26.1-23.1-01" insert " ,  and subsection 2 of section 26.1-25-16" 

Page 1, line 8, after the second comma insert "insurance rebates, " 

Page 1, line 9, remove "to repeal chapter 26.1-22.1 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating 
to" 

Page 1, line 10, replace "boiler inspections; to provide a penalty; " with "to provide for a 
legislative management study; to provide legislative intent; " 

Page 1, line 10, remove "and to provide a" 

Page 1, line 11, replace "contingent effective date" with "and to declare an emergency" 

Page 1, replace lines 20 through 23 with: 

"Salaries and wages 
Operating expenses 
Total special funds 
Full-time equivalent positions 

$8,549,567 
2,179,777 

$10,729,344 
46.00 

($399, 569) 
(613,102) 

($1, 012,671) 
(5.00) 

$8,149,998 
1,566,675 

$9,716,673 
41.00 

SECTION 2. APPROPRIATION. There is appropriated out of any moneys in the 
insurance tax distribution fund in the state treasury, not otherwise appropriated, the 
sum of $17,519,422, or so much of the sum as may be necessary, to the insurance 
commissioner for the purpose of providing payments, in accordance with provisions of 
section 18-04-05, to North Dakota fire departments in the amount of $16,773,750 and 
payments to the North Dakota firefighter's association in the amount of $745,672, for 
the biennium beginning July 1, 2019, and ending June 30, 2021." 

Page 2, remove lines 4 through 30 

Page 3, remove lines 1 through 31 

Page 4, remove lines 1 through 31 

Page 5, remove lines 1 through 30 

Page 6, remove lines 1 through 31 

Page 7, remove l ines 1 through 31 

Page 8, remove lines 1 through 30 

Page 9, remove lines 1 through 31 
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Page 10, remove lines 1 through 3 

Page 10, line 16, replace "one hundred eleven thousand one hundred twenty-two" with "one 
hundred ten thousand five hundred eighty-two" 

Page 1 0, remove lines 1 7  through 31 

Page 11, replace lines 1 through 7 with: 

"SECTION 6. AMENDMENT. Subdivision c of subsection 8 of section 
26.1-04-03 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

c. Notwithstanding any other provision in this subsection, if the cost does 
not exceed an aggregate retail value of one hundred dollars per 
person per year, an insurance producer may give a gift, prize, 
promotional article, logo merchandise, meal, or entertainment activity 
directly or indirectly to a person in connection with marketing, 
promoting, or advertising the business. As used in this subdivision, 
"person" means the named insured, policy owner, or prospective client 
or the spouse of any of these individuals, but the term does not 
include a certificate holder, child, or employee of the named insured, 
policy owner, or prospective client. Subject to the limits of this 
subdivision, an insurance producer may give a gift card for specific 
merchandise or services such as a meal, gasoline, or car wash but 
may not give cash, a cash card, any form of currency, or any refund or 
discount in premium. An insurance producer may not condition the 
giving of a gift, prize, promotion article, logo merchandise, meal, or 
entertainment activity on obtaining a quote or a contract of insurance. 
Notwithstanding the limitation in this subdivision, an insurance 
producer may make a donation to a nonprofit organization that is 
exempt from federal taxation under Internal Revenue Code section 
501 (c)(3) [26 U.S.C. 501 (c)(3)] in any amount as long as the donation 
is not given as an inducement to obtain a quote or a contract of 
insurance. 

SECTION 7. AMENDMENT. Subsection 2 of section 26.1-04-06 of the North 
Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

2. Notwithstanding any other provision in this section, if the cost does not 
exceed an agg regate retai l value of one hundred dol lars per person per 
year, an insurance producer may give a g ift, prize, promotional article, logo 
merchandise, meal, or entertainment activity directly or indirectly to a 
person in connection with marketing, promoting, or advertising the 
business. As used in this subsection, "person" means the named insured, 
policy owner, or prospective client or the spouse of any of these 
individuals, but the term does not include a certificate holder, child, or 
employee of the named insured, policy owner, or prospective client. 
Subject to the limits of this subsection, an insurance producer may give a 
gift card for specific merchandise or services such as a meal, gasoline, or 
car wash but may not give cash, a cash card, any form of currency, or any 
refund or discount in premium. An insurance producer may not condition 
the giving of a gift, prize, promotional article, logo merchandise, meal, or 
entertainment activity on obtaining a quote or a contract of insurance. 
Notwithstanding the limitation in this subsection, an insurance producer 
may make a donation to a nonprofit organization that is exempt from 
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federal taxation under Internal Revenue Code section 501 (c)(3) [26 U.S .C. 
501 (c) (3)] in any amount as long as the donation is not given as an 
inducement to obtain a quote or a contract of insurance." 

Page 13, replace lines 22 through 28 with: 

"SECTION 13. AMENDMENT. Subsection 2 of section 26.1-25-16 of the North 
Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

2 .  Notwithstanding any other provision in this section, if  the cost does not 
exceed an aggregate retail value of one hundred dollars per person per 
year, an insurance producer may give a gift, prize, promotional article, logo 
merchandise, meal, or entertainment activity directly or indirectly to a 
person in connection with marketing, promoting, or advertising the 
business. As used in this subsection, "person" means the named insured, 
policy owner, or prospective client or the spouse of any of these 
individuals, but the term does not include a certificate holder, child, or 
employee of the named insured, policy owner, or prospective client. 
Subject to the limits of this subsection, an insurance producer may give a 
gift card for specific merchandise or services such as a meal, gasoline, or 
car wash but may not give cash, a cash card, any form of currency, or any 
refund or discount in premium. An insurance producer may not condition 
the giving of a gift, prize, promotional article, logo merchandise, meal, or 
entertainment activity on obtaining a quote or a contract of insurance. 
Notwithstanding the limitation in this subsection ,  an insurance producer 
may make a donation to a nonprofit organization that is exempt from 
federal taxation under Internal Revenue Code section 501 (c)(3) [26 U.S .C .  
501 (c)(3)] in any amount as long as the donation is not given as an 
inducement to obtain a quote or a contract of insurance. 

SECTION 14. LEGISLATIVE INTENT - INSURANCE TAX DISTRIBUTION 
FUND PAYMENTS TO FIRE DEPARTMENTS. It is the intent of the sixty-sixth 
legislative assembly that, when feasible, fire departments utilize increased payments 
from the insurance tax distribution fund to improve their insurance service office rating. 

SECTION 15. LEGISLATIVE MANAGEMENT STUDY - VOLUNTEER 
FIREFIGHTER PENSION. During the 2019-20 interim, the legislative management 
shall consider studying the feasibility and desirability of establishing a pension for 
volunteer firefighters. The study must include a review of firefighter needs of the state 
and benefits provided to volunteer firefighters in other states. The legislative 
management shall report its findings and recommendations, together with any 
legislation required to implement the recommendations, to the sixty-seventh legislative 
assembly. 

SECTION 16. EMERGENCY. Sections 8 ,  9, 10, 11, and 12 of this Act are 
declared to be an emergency measure." 

Renumber accordingly 
STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT: 

Senate Bi l l  No. 201 0 - Insurance Department - House Action 

Salaries and wages 
Operating expenses 

Base 
Budget 
$8,549,567 
2 , 179,m 

Senate 
Version 
$8,1 34,475 
1 ,566,675 

House 
Changes 

$1 5,523 

Page No. 3 

House 
Version 
$8,149,998 
1 ,566,675 
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I nsurance tax payments 1 5,064,086 17,51 9,422 17,51 9,422 

Total all funds $25,793,430 $9,70 1 , 1 50 $ 17,534,945 $27,236,095 
Less estimated inoome 25,793,430 9,70 1 , 1 50 17 ,534,945 27,236,095 
General fund $0 $0 $0 $0 

FTE 46.00 41 .00 0.00 41 .00 

Department 401 - Insurance Department - Deta i l  of House Changes 

Adds Funding Adjusts Total House 
for Salary Funding for Changes 
lncreases1 Fire District 

Paymentsl 

Salaries and wages $1 5,523 $1 5,523 
Operating expenses 
Insurance tax payments $ 17,51 9,422 17 5 19 422 

Total all funds $1 5,523 $1 7,519,422 $1 7,534,945 
Less estimated inoome 1 5,523 17 ,519,422 17,534,945 
General fund $0 $0 $0 

FTE 0.00 0.00 0.00 

1 Funding is adjusted to provide employee salary increases of 2 percent on July 1 ,  201 9, with a min imum monthly 
increase of $ 1 20 and a maximum monthly increase of $200, and 2.5 percent on Ju ly 1 ,  2020. The Senate provided 
funding for a 2 percent salary increase on July 1 ,  201 9, and a 3 percent salary increase on J uly 1 ,  2020. 

2 Funding from the insurance tax d istribution fund for payments to fire d istricts and the North Dakota Firefighter's 
Association is restored to reflect the removal of continuing appropriation authority approved by the Senate. This 
amendment provides $ 1 6 ,773,750 to be d istributed to fire districts, an estimated reduction of $ 1 ,009,288 from the 
Senate version but an increase of $2,538 , 1 89 from the base level .  The amendment also provides $745,672 to be 
distributed to the North Dakota F i refighters Association,  an estimated reduction of $289,320 from the Senate version 
and a reduction of $82,853 from the base level .  This results in a general fund revenue reduction of 
$2,455,336 compared to the base leve l ,  and a general fund revenue increase of $1 ,298,608 compared to the Senate 
version . 

Senate Bi l l  No. 201 0 - Other Changes - House Action 

This amendment also: 

Removes sections provid ing continu ing appropriation authority to the I nsurance Commissioner for fire 
department and North Dakota F i refighters Association payments from the insurance tax distribution fund.  
Removes sections provid ing for the transfer of the boiler inspection program to the Department of 
Environmental Qual ity. The transfer of the program is provided for in the Senate version of House Bi l l  No. 1 024. 
Adjusts the section provid ing statutory changes necessary to increase the salary of the I nsurance 
Commissioner. 
Adds sections to provide statutory changes relating to rebates associated with obtain ing an insurance quote . 

Adds a section to provide legislative i ntent that fire departments util ize increased d istributions from the 
insurance tax distribution fund  to improve their Insurance Service Office (ISO) ratings.  

Adds a section to provide for a legislative management study of the feasibi l ity and desirabi l ity of establ ishing a 
pension for volunteer firefighters .  
Adds a section to declare the sections providing for the transfer of administration of the state bonding fund and 
the state fire and tornado fund to be an emergency. 
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19.0223.02001 
. Title. 

Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for 
Representative Holman 

April 4, 2019 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSE D SENATE BILL NO. 2010 

Page 1, line 2, replace the second "and" with a comma 

Page 1, line 2, after "26.1-22-03.1" insert " ,  and a new section to chapter 26.1-36" 

Page 1, line 3, replace "and" with a comma 

Page 1, line 4, after "producers" insert " , and health insurance" 

Page 13, after line 21, insert: 

"SECTION 15. A new section to chapter 26.1-36 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is created and enacted as follows: 

Pre-existing conditions. 

Notwithstanding any law to the contrary, an accident and health insurance 
policy issued under this chapter may not take into account any pre-existing condition of 
an insured or applicant, including waiting periods, refusal of coverage, and ratesetting. "  

Page 13, line 23, replace "15" with "16" 

Page 13, line 28, replace "15" with "16" 

Renumber accordingly 
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1 9.0223.02005 
Title.03000 
Fiscal No. 2 

Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for 
the House Appropriations Committee 

April 1 0, 2019 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED SENATE BILL NO. 2010 

Page 1 ,  line 2, remove "chapter 23. 1 -16 and" 

Page 1, line 2, after "26.1-22-03. 1 "  insert "and a new section to chapter 26.1-36" 

Page 1 ,  line 3, remove "boiler inspections and" 

Page 1 ,  line 4, after "producers" insert "and health insurance" 

Page 1, line 4, remove "sections 1 8-04-04, 1 8-04-04.1 ,  and 1 8-04-05, "  

Page 1 ,  line 5 ,  replace "subsection 1 of section 26.1-03-17, and" with "subdivision c of 
subsection 8 of section 26. 1 -04-03, subsection 2 of section 26.1-04-06, "  

Page 1 ,  line 6 ,  after "26.1 -23. 1 -01 " insert " ,  and subsection 2 of section 26. 1 -25-1 6" 

Page 1, line 8, after the second comma insert "insurance rebates, "  

'uf) <1/11J//J 
I of { 

Page 1, line 9, remove "to repeal chapter 26.1-22.1 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating 
to" 

Page 1 ,  line 1 0, replace "boiler inspections; to provide a penalty ; "  with "to provide for a 
legislative management study; to provide legislative intent; "  

Page 1, line 1 0, remove "and to provide a" 

Page 1 ,  line 11,  replace "contingent effective date" with "and to declare an emergency" 

Page 1 ,  replace lines 20 through 23 with: 

"Salaries and wages 
Operating expenses 
Total special funds 
Full-time equivalent positions 

$8,549,567 
2,1 79,777 

$1 0,729,344 
46.00 

($399,569) 
(61 3,102) 

($1 ,01 2 ,671 ) 
(5.00) 

$8, 1 49,998 
1,566,675 

$9,71 6,673 
41 .00 

SECTION 2. APPROPRIATION. There is appropriated out of any moneys in the 
insurance tax distribution fund in the state treasury, not otherwise appropriated, the 
sum of $1 7,519,422, or so much of the sum as may be necessary, to the insurance 
commissioner for the purpose of providing payments, in accordance with provisions of 
section 1 8-04-05, to North Dakota fire departments in the amount of $ 1 6,773,750 and 
payments to the North Dakota firefighter's association in the amount of $745,672, for 
the biennium beginning July 1, 2019, and ending June 30, 2021." 

Page 2, remove lines 4 through 30 

Page 3, remove lines 1 through 31 

Page 4, remove lines 1 through 31 

Page 5, remove lines 1 through 30 

Page 6, remove lines 1 through 31 

Page 7, remove lines 1 through 31 
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Page 8, remove lines 1 through 30 

Page 9, remove lines 1 through 31 

Page 10, remove lines 1 through 3 

Page 1 0, l ine 16, replace "one hundred eleven thousand one hundred twenty-two" with "one 
hundred ten thousand five hundred eighty-two" 

Page 10, remove lines 17 through 31 

Page 11, replace lines 1 through 7 with: 

"SECTION 6. AMENDMENT. Subdivision c of subsection 8 of section 
26.1-04-03 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

b 0 1/;t(;7 
Z uf 5 

c. Notwithstanding any other provision in this subsection, if the cost does 
not exceed an aggregate retail value of one hundred dollars per 
person per year, an insurance producer may give a gift, prize, 
promotional article, logo merchandise, meal, or entertainment activity 
directly or indirectly to a person in connection with marketing, 
promoting, or advertising the business. As used in this subdivision, 
"person" means the named insured, policy owner, or prospective client 
or the spouse of any of these individuals, but the term does not 
include a certificate holder, child, or employee of the named insured, 
policy owner, or prospective client. Subject to the limits of this 
subdivision, an insurance producer may give a gift card for specific 
merchandise or services such as a meal, gasoline, or car wash but 
may not give cash, a cash card, any form of currency, or any refund or 
discount in premium. An insurance producer may not condition the 
giving of a gift, prize, promotion article, logo merchandise, meal, or 
entertainment activity on obtaining a quote or a contract of insurance. 
Notwithstanding the limitation in this subdivision, an insurance 
producer may make a donation to a nonprofit organization that is 
exempt from federal taxation under Internal Revenue Code section 
501 (c) (3) [26 U.S.C. 501 (c)(3)] in any amount as long as the donation 
is not given as an inducement to obtain a quote or a contract of 
insurance. 

SECTION 7. AMENDMENT. Subsection 2 of section 26.1-04-06 of the North 
Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

2. Notwithstanding any other provision in this section, if the cost does not 
exceed an aggregate retail value of one hundred dollars per person per 
year, an insurance producer may give a gift, prize, promotional article, logo 
merchandise, meal, or entertainment activity directly or indirectly to a 
person in connection with marketing, promoting, or advertising the 
business. As used in this subsection, "person" means the named insured, 
policy owner, or prospective client or the spouse of any of these 
individuals, but the term does not include a certificate holder, child, or 
employee of the named insured, policy owner, or prospective client. 
Subject to the limits of this subsection, an insurance producer may give a 
gift card for specific merchandise or services such as a meal, gasoline, or 
car wash but may not give cash, a cash card, any form of currency, or any 
refund or discount in premium. An insurance producer may not condition 
the giving of a gift, prize, promotional article, logo merchandise, meal, or 
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entertainment activity on obtaining a quote or a contract of insurance. 
Notwithstanding the limitation in this subsection, an insurance producer 
may make a donation to a nonprofit organization that is exempt from 
federal taxation under Internal Revenue Code section 501 (c) (3) [26 U.S.C. 
501 ( c)(3)] in any amount as long as the donation is not given as an 
inducement to obtain a quote OF a contract of insurance." 

Page 13, replace lines 22 through 28 with: 

"SECTION 13. AMENDMENT. Subsection 2 of section 26.1-25-16 of the North 
Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

2. Notwithstanding any other provision in this section, if the cost does not 
exceed an aggregate retail value of one hundred dollars per person per 
year, an insurance producer may give a gift, prize, promotional article, logo 
merchandise, meal, or entertainment activity directly or indirectly to a 
person in connection with marketing, promoting, or advertising the 
business. As used in this subsection, "person" means the named insured, 
policy owner, or prospective client or the spouse of any of these 
individuals, but the term does not include a certificate holder, child, or 
employee of the named insured, policy owner, or prospective client. 
Subject to the limits of this subsection, an insurance producer may give a 
gift card for specific merchandise or services such as a meal, gasoline, or 
car wash but may not give cash, a cash card, any form of currency, or any 
refund or discount in premium. An insurance producer may not condition 
the giving of a gift, prize, promotional article, logo merchandise, meal, or 
entertainment activity on obtaining a quote or a contract of insurance. 
Notwithstanding the limitation in this subsection, an insurance producer 
may make a donation to a nonprofit organization that is exempt from 
federal taxation under Internal Revenue Code section 501(c) (3) [26 U.S.C. 
501 (c)(3)] in any amount as long as the donation is not given as an 
inducement to obtain a quote OF a contract of insurance. 

SECTION 14. A new section to chapter 26.1-36 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is created and enacted as follows: 

Pre-existing conditions. 

Notwithstanding any law to the contrary, an accident and health insurance 
policy issued under this chapter may not take into account any pre-existing condition of 
an insured or applicant, including waiting periods, refusal of coverage, and ratesetting. 

SECTION 15. LEGISLATIVE INTENT - INSURANCE TAX DISTRIBUTION 
FUND PAYMENTS TO FIRE DEPARTMENTS. It is the intent of the sixty-sixth 
legislative assembly that, when feasible, fire departments utilize increased payments 
from the insurance tax distribution fund to improve their insurance service office rating. 

SECTION 16. LEGISLATIVE MANAGEMENT STUDY - VOLUNTEER 
FIREFIGHTER PENSION. During the 2019-20 interim, the legislative management 
shall consider studying the feasibility and desirability of establishing a pension for 
volunteer firefighters. The study must include a review of firefighter needs of the state 
and benefits provided to volunteer firefighters in other states. The legislative 
management shall report its findings and recommendations, together with any 
legislation required to implement the recommendations, to the sixty-seventh legislative 
assembly. 
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SECTION 17. EMERGENCY. Sections 8, 9, 10, 11, and 12 of this Act are 
declared to be an emergency measure."  

Renumber accordingly 

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT: 

Senate B i l l  No. 201 0 - Insurance Department - House Action 

Base Senate House 
Budget Version Changes 

Salaries and wages $8,549,567 $8, 1 34,475 $1 5,523 
Operating expenses 2 , 1 79,777 1 ,566,675 
Insurance tax payments 1 5,064,086 17 5 19  422 

Total all funds $25,793,430 $9,70 1 , 1 50 $1 7,534,945 
Less estimated income 25,793,430 9,701 , 1 50 1 7,534,945 
General fund $0 $0 $0 

House 
Version 
$8,149,998 

1 ,566,675 
1 7,51 9,422 

$27,236,095 
27,236,095 

$0 

41 .00 

Department 401 - Insurance Department - Detai l  of House Changes 

FTE 46.00 41 .00 0.00 

Adjusts 
Adds Funding Funding for 

for Salary Fire District Total House 
lncreases1 Payments1 Changes 

Salaries and wages $15 ,523 $1 5,523 
Operating expenses 
Insurance tax payments $1 7,519,422 17 ,519 422 

Total all funds $1 5,523 $17,519,422 $17,534,945 
Less estimated income 15 523 1 7,519 ,422 17 534 945 
General fund $0 $0 $0 

FTE 0.00 0.00 0.00 

1 Funding is  adjusted to p rovide employee salary increases of 2 percent on J uly 1 ,  201 9 ,  with a min imum monthly 
increase of $ 1 20 and a maximum monthly increase of $200, and 2 .5 percent on July 1 ,  2020. The Senate provided 
funding for a 2 percent salary increase on J uly 1 ,  201 9, and a 3 percent salary increase on Ju ly  1 ,  2020. 
2 Funding from the insurance tax d istribution fund for payments to fire d istricts and the North Dakota F irefighter's 
Association is restored to reflect the removal of continuing appropriation authority approved by the Senate .  This 
amendment provides $ 1 6 ,773,750 to be d istributed to fire d istricts , an estimated reduction of $ 1 , 009,288 from the 
Senate version but an increase of $2,538, 1 89 from the base leve l .  The amendment a lso provides $745,672 to be 
d istributed to the N orth Dakota F i refighter's Association, an estimated reduction of $289,320 from the Senate version 
and a reduction of $82,853 from the base level . This results in a genera l  fund revenue reduction of $2,455,336 
compared to the base leve l ,  and a general  fund revenue increase of $ 1 ,298,608 compared to the Senate version .  

Senate B i l l  No. 201 0 - Other Changes - House Action 

This amendment a lso:  
Removes sections provid ing continuing appropriation authority to the Insurance Commissioner for fi re 
department and North Dakota Firefighter's Association payments from the insurance tax d istribution fund .  
Removes sections  provid ing for the transfer  of  the boi ler inspection program to the Department of  
Environmental Qua l ity. The transfer of  the program is provided for in the Senate version of House Bi l l  No .  1 024. 
Adjusts the section provid ing statutory changes necessary to increase the salary of the I nsu rance 
Commissioner. 
Adds sections to p rovide  statutory changes relating to rebates associated with obtain ing an insurance quote . 
Adds  a statutory section to provide accident and health insurance policies may not take into account any 
pre-existing condition of an appl icant. 
Adds a section to p rovide legislative intent that fire departments uti l ize increased d istributions from the 
insurance tax d istribution fund to improve their Insurance Service Office (ISO) ratings .  
Adds  a section to provide for a Legislative Management study of the feasibi l ity and desirabi l ity of establ ish ing a 
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pension for volunteer firefighters . 

b P  f/0/19' 
$" ol i Adds a section to declare the sections providing for the transfer of administration of the state bonding fund and 

the state fi re and tornado fund to be an emergency. 
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2019 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES 

BILL/RESOLUTION NO. SB2010 

House Appropriations - Government Operations Division 

D Subcommittee 

Amendment LC# or Description :  

Date : 3/20/20 1 9  
Voice Vote : 1 

Committee 

------------------------
Recommendation :  IZI Adopt Amendment 

Other Actions :  

D Do Pass D Do Not Pass 
D As Amended 
D Place on Consent Calendar 
D Reconsider 

D Without Committee Recommendation 
D Rerefer to Appropriations 

D 

Motion Made By Representative Beadle Seconded By Representative Howe 

Representatives 
Chairman Vigesaa 
Vice Chairman Brandenburg 
Representative Beadle 
Representative Bellew 
Representative Howe 
Representative Kempenich 

Total 

Absent 

(Yes) 

Floor Assignment 

Yes 

' • I 
\ u 

\. \� '"' .. 

No Representatives 
Representative Mock 

L � 
. � (J .. 
\ 1' 
,\ -

No 

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent : 
A motion to replace page 9 line 1 4 . 
Motion Carried 

Yes No 



2019 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES 

BILL/RESOLUTION NO. S82010 

House Appropriations - Government Operations Division 

D Subcommittee 

Amendment LC# or Descri ption : 

Recommendation :  � Adopt Amendment 

Date: 3/20/20 1 9  
Voice Vote : 2 

Committee 

D Do Pass D Do Not Pass 
D As Amended 

D Without Committee Recommendation 
D Rerefer to Appropriations 

D Place on Consent Calendar 
Other Actions :  D Reconsider D 

Motion Made By Representative Beadle Seconded By Representative Monk 

Representatives Yes No Representatives 
Chairman Vigesaa Representative Mock 
Vice Chairman Brandenburg ,. 
Representative Beadle a Ill 
Representative Bellew ,, ,, 
Representative Howe 
Representative Kempenich • ... ' 

I , .... 
l Jil 

... 
I .. 

(Yes) Total 

Absent 

-----------

Floor Assignment 

'I 

No 

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent : 
A motion to increase the state audit fee to $12,000.00. 
Motion Failed. 

-

Yes No 



2019 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES 

BILL/RESOLUTION NO. SB2010 

House Appropriations - Government Operations Division 

D Subcommittee 

Amendment LC# or Description :  

Date : 3/20/201 9 
Voice Vote : 3 

Committee 

------------------------
Recommendation :  C8J Adopt Amendment 

D Do Pass D Do Not Pass 
D As Amended 
D Place on Consent Calendar 

Other Actions : D Reconsider 

D Without Committee Recommendation 
D Rerefer to Appropriations 

D 

Motion Made By Representative Beadle Seconded By Representative Howe 

Representatives 
Chairman Viqesaa 
Vice Chairman Brandenburq 
Representative Beadle 
Representative Bellew 
Representative Howe 
Representative Kempenich 

Total 

Absent 

(Yes) 

Floor Assignment 

Yes No 

I ., , -• • 
I _.,  
1 _JI ". • 

No 

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent : 
A motion to move attachment D. 
Motion Carried. 

Representatives Yes No 
Representative Mock 

-
� 



2019 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES 

BILL/RESOLUTION NO. SB2010 

House Appropriations - Government Operations Division 

D Subcommittee 

Amendment LC# or Descri ption :  

Recommendation :  � Adopt Amendment 

Date : 3/20/20 1 9  
Voice Vote: 4 

Committee 

D Do Pass D Do Not Pass 
D As Amended 

D Without Committee Recommendation 
D Rerefer to Appropriations 

D Place on Consent Calendar 
Other Actions :  D Reconsider D 

Motion Made By Representative Beadle Seconded By Representative Howe 

Representatives Yes 
Chairman Vigesaa 
Vice Chairman Brandenburg 
Representative Beadle 
Representative Bellew I � 

Representative Howe I ' ra, 
Representative Kempenich , , � 

,1 .. l • . ,. 
l .JI .. .v 

,1 

Total 

Absent 

(Yes) 

Floor Assignment 

No 

No 

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent: 

Representatives 
Representative Mock 

A motion to allow the insurance department to contract with NDIRF. 
Motion Carried. 

Yes No 



• 

Date : 3/20/201 9 
Voice Vote: 5 

2019 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES 

BILL/RESOLUTION NO. SB2010 

House Appropriations - Government Operations Division Committee 

D Subcommittee 

Amendment LC# or Description :  ------------------------
Recommendation :  � Adopt Amendment 

D Do Pass D Do Not Pass 
D As Amended 

D Without Committee Recommendation 
D Rerefer to Appropriations 

D Place on Consent Calendar 
Other Actions :  D Reconsider D 

Vice Chairman 
Motion Made By _B_ra_n_d_e_n_b_u ..... rg._______ Seconded By Representative Bellew 

Representatives Yes No Representatives 
Chairman ViQesaa Representative Mock 
Vice Chairman BrandenburQ 
Representative Beadle ... , 
Representative Bellew r ., j 

Representative Howe 
Representative Kempenich ' 

...... 
_ . ., 

\ --
\ -

I 

Total 

Absent 

(Yes) -----------

Floor Assignment 

.... 

No 

I f  the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent: 

Yes 

A motion to remove the continuing appropriation to the fire districts and fire association 
Motion Carried. 

No 



2019 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES 

BILL/RESOLUTION NO. SB2010 

House Appropriations - Government Operations Division 

D Subcommittee 

Amendment LC# or Description :  

Date : 4/9/20 1 9  
Voice Vote : 1 

Committee 

------------------------
Recommendation :  � Adopt Amendment 

D Do Pass D Do Not Pass 
D As Amended 
D Place on Consent Calendar 

Other Actions :  D Reconsider 

D Without Committee Recommendation 
D Rerefer to Appropriations 

D 

Vice Chairman 
Motion Made By Representative Beadle Seconded By _B_ra_n_d_e_n_b_u_,,rg.___ ____ _ 

Representatives Yes No Representatives 
Chairman Vigesaa Representative Mock 
Vice Chairman Brandenburg 
Representative Beadle L� 

Representative Bellew 
I l' 

Representative Howe " I t'  
Representative Kempenich . •• 

I I '" 

� I •  ,.,-
\ I -. 

(Yes) No Total 

Absent 

------------

Floor Assignment 

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent: 

,_, 

Yes No 

A motion to provide $17,750,000.00 to the fire fighter's association and $745,672.00 to the fire 
districts. In addition to remove sections 3,4,5 ,6,9 and 16 of the bill. 
Motion Carried. 



2019 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES 

BILL/RESOLUTION NO. SB2010 

House Appropriations - Government Operations Division 

D Subcommittee 

Amendment LC# or Description :  

Date : 4/9/20 1 9  
Vo ice Vote : 2 

Committee 

------------------------
Recommendation :  IZI Adopt Amendment 

D Do Pass D Do Not Pass 
D As Amended 

D Without Committee Recommendation 
D Rerefer to Appropriations 

D Place on Consent Calendar 
Other Act ions: D Reconsider D 

Motion Made By Representative Kempenich Seconded By Representative Beadle 

Representatives Yes No 
Chairman Viqesaa 
Vice Chairman Brandenburg 
Representative Beadle .... 
Representative Bellew y 
Representative Howe \� 
Representative Kempenich \.1 -.... . 

,r 
\� 

'II"'-,, 

No Total 

Absent 

(Yes) ------------

Floor Assignment 

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent: 
To adopt the changes to the bill . 
Motion Carried. 

Representatives Yes 
Representative Mock 

No 



2019 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES 

BILL/RESOLUTION NO. SB201 0 

House Appropriations - Government Operations Division 

D Subcommittee 

Amendment LC# or Description :  

Date : 4/9/201 9 
Rol l  Cal l  Vote : 1 

Committee 

------------------------
Recommendation : D Adopt Amendment 

IZl Do Pass D Do Not Pass 
IZl As Amended 
D Place on Consent Calendar 

Other Actions :  D Reconsider 

D Without Committee Recommendation 
D Rerefer to Appropriations 

D 

Motion Made By Representative Beadle Seconded By Representative Howe 

Representatives Yes No Representatives Yes No 
Chairman Vigesaa X Representative Mock X 
Vice Chairman Brandenburg X 
Representative Beadle X 
Representative Bellew X 
Representative Howe X 
Representative Kempenich X 

Total (Yes) _6 ___________ No _1 _____________ _ 

Absent 0 -------------------------------
Floor Assignment Representative Beadle 

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent : 
Motion Carried. 



Date: 4/1 0/20 1 9  
Ro l l  Ca l l  Vote #: 1 

House Appropriations 

2019 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES 

BILL/RESOLUTION NO. SB 2010 

D Subcommittee 

Amendment LC# or Description :  19.0223.02003 

Committee 

-----------------------
Recommendation :  IZI Adopt Amendment 

D Do Pass D Do Not Pass D Without Committee Recommendation 

Other Act ions: 

D As Amended 
D Place on Consent Calendar 
D Reconsider 

D Rerefer to Appropriations 

D 

Motion Made By Representative Bead le Seconded By Representative Brandenburg -�-�---------- ___ ,__ ________ _,,.__ 

Representatives Yes No 
Cha i rman Delzer 
Representative Kempen ich 
Representative Anderson 
Representative Bead le 
Representative Bel lew 
Representative Brandenburg 
Representative Howe 
Representative Kreidt 

Representative Mart inson 
Representative Meier 

Representative Monson 
Representative Nathe 
Representative J. Nelson 

Representative Sanford 
Representative Schatz 
Reoresentative Schm idt 

Total 

Absent 

(Yes) -----------

Floor Assignment 

Representatives 

Representative Schob inger 
Representative Vigesaa 

Representative Boe 
Representative Ho lman 
Representative Mock 

No 

Voice Vote/Motion Carries 

Yes No 



Date : 4/1 0/20 1 9  
Rol l  Ca l l  Vote #: 2 

House Appropriations 

2019 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES 

BILL/RESOLUTION NO. SB 2010 

D Subcommittee 

Amendment LC# or Description :  1 9.0223.02001 

Recommendation :  � Adopt Amendment 

Committee 

D Do Pass D Do Not Pass 
D As Amended 

D Without Committee Recommendation 
D Rerefer to Appropriations 

D Place on Consent Calendar 
Other Act ions: D Reconsider D 

Motion Made By __ R�ep�r_e_se_n_ta_t_iv_e_H_o_l_m_a_n __ Seconded By __ R_e�p_re_s_e_n_ta_t_iv_e_B_o_e ____ _ 

Representatives Yes No Representatives 
Cha i rman Delzer X 
Representative Kempenich X 
Representative Anderson X Representative SchobinQer 
Representative Bead le X Representative ViQesaa 
Representative Bel lew X 
Representative Brandenburg X 
Representative Howe X Representative Boe 
Representative Kreidt X Representative Ho lman 

Representative Mart inson X Representative Mock 
Representative Meier X 

Representative Monson X 
Representative Nathe X 
Representative J .  Nelson X 

Representative Sanford X 
Representative Schatz X 
Representative Schm idt X 

Total 1 2  No 9 

Yes No 

X 
X 

X 
X 
X 

(Yes) ----------- ---------------
Absent 0 ------------------------------
Floor Assignment 

Motion Carries 



Date : 4/1 0/20 1 9  
Ro l l  Ca l l  Vote #-.g 

House Appropriations 

2019 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES 

BILL/RESOLUTION NO. SB 2010 

0 Subcommittee 

Amendment LC# or Description :  

Committee 

-----------------------
Recommendation :  O Adopt Amendment 

IZI Do Pass O Do Not Pass 
IZI As Amended 

0 Without Committee Recommendation 
0 Rerefer to Appropriations 

0 Place on Consent Calendar 
Other Actions :  0 Reconsider 0 

Motion Made By _R
_,
ep

._
r_e_se_n_t_at_iv_e_B_e_a_d_le ____ Seconded By __ R.:..:e.Lp..:....re:....:s:....:e:....:n.:..:ta:....:t_iv_e_H_o_w_e ___ _ 

Representatives Yes No Representatives Yes No 
Cha i rman Delzer X 
Representative Kempenich X 
Representative Anderson X Representative Schobinger X 
Representative Bead le X Representative Vigesaa X 
Representative Bel lew X 
Representative BrandenburQ X 
Representative Howe X Representative Boe X 
Representative Kreidt X Representative Ho lman X 

Representative Mart inson X Representative Mock X 
Representative Meier X 

Representative Monson X 
Representative Nathe X 
Representative J .  Ne lson X 

Representative Sanford X 
Representative Schatz X 
Representative Schm idt X 

Total (Yes) 1 8  No 3 ----------- --=------------------
Absent _....:O=------------------------------

Floor Assignment Representative Beadle 

Motion Carries 



Com Standing Committee Report 
April 1 1 ,  201 9  8: 20AM 

Modu le ID :  h_stcomrep_65_001 
Carrier: Bead le 

I nsert LC: 1 9 .0223.02005 Title :  03000 

REPORT OF STAN DING COMMITTE E  
SB 201 0, a s  engrossed : Appropriations Committee (Rep. Delzer, Cha i rman) 

recommends AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended , recommends 
DO PASS ( 1 8 YEAS , 3 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AN D NOT VOTI NG) .  Eng rossed SB 20 1 0  
was placed o n  the Sixth order o n  the calendar. 

Page 1 ,  l ine 2 ,  remove "chapter 23 . 1 - 1 6  and" 

Page 1 ,  l i ne 2 ,  after "26 . 1 -22-03 . 1 "  i nsert "and a new section to chapter 26 . 1 -36" 

Page 1 ,  l ine 3 ,  remove "boiler inspections and" 

Page 1 ,  l ine 4 ,  after "producers" insert "and health i nsurance" 

Page 1 ,  l ine 4, remove "sections 1 8-04-04 , 1 8-04-04 . 1 ,  and 1 8-04-05 , "  

Page 1 ,  l i ne 5 ,  replace "subsection 1 of  section 26. 1 -03- 1 7 ,  and" with "subd iv is ion c of 
subsection 8 of section 26 . 1 -04-03 ,  subsection 2 of section 26. 1 -04-06 , "  

Page 1 ,  l i ne 6 ,  after "26 . 1 -23 . 1 -0 1 "  i nsert " ,  and  subsection 2 o f  section 26. 1 -25- 1 6" 

Page 1 ,  l ine 8 ,  after the second comma insert " i nsurance rebates , "  

Page 1 ,  l ine 9 ,  remove "to repeal chapter 26. 1 -22 . 1  of the North Dakota Centu ry Code,  
relat ing to" 

Page 1 ,  l ine 1 0 , rep lace "boi ler i nspections ;  to provide a penalty ; "  with "to provide for a 
legis lative management study; to provide leg is lative i ntent ; "  

Page 1 ,  l ine 1 0 , remove "and to provide a" 

Page 1 ,  l ine 1 1 ,  replace "contingent effective date" with "and to declare an emergency" 

Page 1 ,  replace l i nes 20 through 23 with : 

"Salaries and wages 
Operating expenses 
Total special funds 
Fu l l-time equ ivalent positions 

$8 ,549 ,567 
2, 1 79,777 

$ 1 0 , 729, 344 
46 .00 

($399, 569) 
(6 1 3, 1 02) 

($ 1 , 0 1 2 ,671 ) 
(5 .00) 

$8 , 1 49 , 998 
1 ,566,675 

$9 , 7 1 6 ,673 
4 1 . 00 

SECTION 2. APPROPRIATION.  There is appropriated out of any moneys i n  the 
insurance tax d istribution fund i n  the state treasury, not otherwise appropriated , the 
sum of $ 1 7 , 5 1 9 ,422, or so much of the sum as may be necessary, to the insurance 
commissioner for the purpose of provid ing payments, i n  accordance with provis ions 
of section 1 8-04-05 ,  to North Dakota fi re departments i n  the amount of $ 1 6 , 773 , 750 
and payments to the North Dakota fi refighter's associat ion i n  the amount of 
$745 ,672,  for the bienn ium beg i nn ing  Ju ly 1 ,  20 1 9 , and end ing June  30 ,  202 1 . "  

Page 2 ,  remove l i nes 4 th rough 30 

Page 3, remove l i nes 1 th rough 31 

Page 4 ,  remove l i nes 1 through 31  

Page 5 ,  remove l i nes 1 through 30 

Page 6, remove l ines 1 through 31 

Page 7 ,  remove l i nes 1 through 31  

Page 8 ,  remove l i nes 1 through 30 

( 1 ) DESK (3) COMMITTEE Page 1 h_stcomrep_65_001 



Com Standing Committee Report 
April 1 1 ,  201 9  8 :20AM 

Page 9 ,  remove l ines 1 through 31 

Page 1 0 , remove l i nes 1 through 3 

Module ID :  h_stcomrep_65_001 
Carrier: Bead le 

Insert LC: 1 9 .0223.02005 Title :  03000 

Page 1 0 , l ine 1 6 , rep lace "one hundred e leven thousand one hundred twenty-two" with "one 
hundred ten thousand five hundred eighty-two" 

Page 1 0 , remove l i nes 1 7  through 3 1  

Page 1 1 ,  replace l i nes 1 through 7 with : 

"SECTION 6. AMENDMENT. Subd ivis ion c of subsection 8 of section 
26. 1 -04-03 of the North Dakota Centu ry Code is  amended and reenacted as fo l lows: 

c. Notwithstand ing any other provis ion i n  th is subsection ,  if the cost 
does not exceed an aggregate reta i l  val ue of one hund red dol lars 
per person per year, an insurance producer may g ive a g ift, prize , 
promotional art ic le ,  logo merchand ise, mea l ,  or enterta i nment activity 
d i rectly or i nd i rectly to a person in connection with marketing , 
promoting ,  or advert is ing the bus iness. As used in th is subd ivision , 
"person" means the named insured , pol icy owner, or prospective 
cl ient or the spouse of any of these ind ivid ua ls ,  but the term does not 
inc lude a certificate holder, ch i ld , or employee of the named insu red , 
pol icy owner, or prospective cl ient .  Subject to the l im its of th is 
subdivision , an insurance producer may g ive a g i ft card for specific 
merchand ise or services such as a mea l ,  gaso l i ne ,  or car wash but 
may not g ive cash , a cash card , any form of cu rrency, or any refund 
or d iscount i n  prem ium .  An insurance producer may not cond it ion the 
g iv ing of a g ift , prize , promotion artic le ,  logo merchandise ,  meal , or 
enterta inment activity on obta in ing a q uote or a contract of 
insurance. Notwithstand ing the l im itation i n  th is subd iv is ion ,  an 
insurance producer may make a donation to a nonprofit organ ization 
that is exempt from federa l  taxation u nder I nterna l  Revenue Code 
section 501 (c)(3) [26 U . S . C .  50 1 (c) (3) ]  i n  any amount as long as the 
donation is not g iven as an inducement to obta in  a quote or a 
contract of i nsurance. 

SECTION 7. AMENDMENT. Subsection 2 of section 26 . 1 -04-06 of the North 
Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as fol lows : 

2 .  Notwithstanding any other provision i n  th is section ,  i f  t he  cost does not 
exceed an aggregate retai l  value of one hundred do l lars per person per 
year, an insurance producer may g ive a g ift , prize, promotiona l  article , 
logo merchandise, mea l ,  or enterta inment activity d i rectly o r  i nd i rectly to 
a person in connection with marketing ,  promoti ng ,  or advertis ing the 
bus iness. As used in  this subsection , "person" means the named insured ,  
pol icy owner, or  prospective cl ient or the spouse of any of these 
ind ividua ls ,  but the term does not inc lude a certificate holder, ch i l d ,  or 
employee of the named insured , pol icy owner, or prospective cl ient .  
Subject to the l im its of th is subsection ,  an insurance producer may g ive a 
g ift card for specific merchand ise or services such as a mea l ,  gaso l ine ,  or 
car wash but may not g ive cash ,  a cash card , any form of currency, or 
any refund or discount in  prem ium .  An insurance producer may not 
cond ition the g iv ing of a g ift, prize , promotional  art ic le ,  logo merchand ise, 
mea l ,  or enterta inment activity on obta in ing  a quote or  a contract of 
insurance. Notwithstand ing the l im itation i n  th is subsection ,  an i nsurance 
producer may make a donation to a nonprofit organ ization that is exempt 
from federal taxation under I nternal Revenue Code section 501  (c)(3) [26 
U . S .C .  501 (c)(3 ) ]  in any amount as long as the donation is not g iven as 
an inducement to obta in a quote or a contract of i nsurance . "  
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"SECTION 1 3 . AMENDMENT. Subsection 2 of section 26 . 1 -25- 1 6 of the North 
Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as fo l lows: 

2 .  Notwithstanding any other provis ion i n  th is section ,  i f  t he  cost does not 
exceed an aggregate reta i l  value of one hundred do l lars per person per 
year, an insurance producer may g ive a g ift, prize, promotiona l  article , 
logo merchandise, mea l ,  or enterta inment activity d i rectly or i nd i rectly to 
a person i n  connection with marketing ,  promoti ng ,  or advertis ing the 
busi ness. As used in  th is subsection ,  "person" means the named insured , 
pol icy owner, or prospective cl ient or the spouse of any of these 
ind iv iduals ,  but the term does not inc lude a certificate holder, ch i ld ,  or 
employee of the named insured , pol icy owner, or  prospective cl ient .  
Subject to the l im its of th is subsection ,  an  insurance producer may g ive a 
g ift card for specific merchand ise or services such as a mea l ,  gaso l i ne ,  or 
car wash but may not g ive cash , a cash card , any form of currency, or 
any refund or discount i n  prem ium .  An insurance producer may not 
cond it ion the g iving  of a g ift, prize , promotional  artic le , logo merchand ise, 
meal ,  or enterta i nment activity on obta in i ng  a quote or a contract of 
insurance. Notwithstand ing the l im itation i n  th is subsection , an i nsurance 
producer may make a donation to a nonprofit organ ization that is exempt 
from federal taxation under I nternal  Revenue Code section 501  (c)(3) (26 
U .S .C .  501 (c)(3)] in  any amount as long as the donation is not g iven as 
an inducement to obta in  a quote or a contract of i nsurance.  

SECTION 1 4. A new section to chapter 26. 1 -36 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is created and enacted as fo l lows: 

Pre-existing conditions. 

Notwithstand ing any law to the contrary, an accident and health i nsurance 
po l icy issued under th is chapter may not take into account any pre-existi ng cond it ion 
of an insured or appl icant, inc lud ing wa iti ng periods, refusal of coverage, and 
ratesett ing. 

SECTION 1 5. LEGISLATIVE INTENT - INSURANCE TAX D ISTRIBUTION 
FUND PAYM ENTS TO FIRE DEPARTMENTS. I t  is the in tent of the sixty-sixth 
leg islative assem bly that, when feasib le ,  fi re departments uti l ize i ncreased payments 
from the insurance tax distribution fund to improve their i nsurance service office 
rating .  

SECTION 1 6. LEGISLATIVE MANAGEMENT STUDY - VOLUNTEER 
F IREFIGHTER PENSION. During the 20 1 9-20 i nterim ,  the leg is lative management 
shal l  consider studying the feasib i l ity and des i rab i l ity of estab l ish ing a pension for 
vo lunteer fi refighters .  The study must inc lude a review of fi refig hter needs of the 
state and benefits provided to vol unteer fi refig hters i n  other states .  The legis lative 
management shal l  report its find ings and recommendations ,  together with any 
legis lation requ i red to implement the recommendations ,  to the sixty-seventh 
legis lative assembly. 

SECTION 1 7 . EMERGENCY. Sections 8 ,  9 ,  1 0 , 1 1 ,  and 1 2  of th is Act are 
declared to be an emergency measu re . "  

Renumber accord ing ly 

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT: 
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Salaries and wages 
Operating expenses 
Insurance tax payments 

$8,549,567 
2, 1 79,777 

1 5,064,086 

$8, 1 34,475 $1 5, 523 $8, 1 49,998 
1 , 566,675 1 , 566,675 

1 7, 5 1 9,422 17 , 5 1 9,422 

Total all funds $25,793,430 
25,793 430 

$9,70 1 , 1 50 $ 1 7,534,945 $27,236,095 
Less estimated income 
General fund 

9,701 , 1 50 1 7,534 945 27 236,095 
$0 $0 $0 

FTE 

$0 

46.00 41 .00 0.00 41 .00 

Department 401 - Insurance Department - Deta i l  of House Changes 
Adds Funding for Salary Adjusts Funding for Fire 

lncreases1 District Payments1 Total House Changes 

Salaries and wages $ 1 5,523 $1 5, 523 
Operating expenses 
Insurance tax payments $ 1 7 ,51 9,422 1 7,5 1 9,422 

Tolal al l funds $1 5,523 $1 7 ,51 9,422 $ 1 7,534,945 
Less estimated income 1 5, 523 1 7, 5 1 9,422 1 7 , 534,945 
General fund $0 $0 $0 

FTE 0.00 0 .00 0.00 

1 Fund ing is adj usted to provide employee salary i ncreases of 2 percent on Ju ly 1 ,  20 1 9 , with 
a min imum monthly i ncrease of $ 1 20 and a maximum month ly increase of $200 ,  and 2 . 5  
percent on  Ju ly 1 ,  2020. The Senate provided fund ing for a 2 percent salary i ncrease on Ju ly 
1 ,  20 1 9 , and a 3 percent salary increase on Ju ly 1 ,  2020. 

2 Fund ing from the insurance tax d istribut ion fund for payments to fi re d istricts and the North 
Dakota F irefighter's Association is restored to reflect the removal of conti nu i ng  appropriation 
authority approved by the Senate . This amendment provides $ 1 6 , 773 , 750 to be d istri buted 
to fi re d istricts , an estimated reduction of $ 1 , 009 , 288 from the Senate vers ion but an 
i ncrease of $2 ,538 , 1 89 from the base leve l .  The amendment also provides $745 ,672 to be 
d istri buted to the North Dakota Firefighter's Association , an estimated reduction of $289, 320 
from the Senate version and a reduction of $82 , 853 from the base leve l .  This resu lts i n  a 
general fund revenue reduction of $2 ,455 , 336 compared to the base leve l ,  and a general 
fund revenue increase of $ 1 , 298,608 compared to the Senate vers ion .  

Senate B i l l  No. 201 0 - Other Changes - House Action 

This amendment also: 
• Removes sections provid ing conti n u ing  appropriation authority to the I nsu rance 

Commissioner for fi re department and North Dakota F i refighter's Association 
payments from the insurance tax d istribut ion fund .  

• Removes sections provid ing for the transfer of the boi ler i nspection prog ram to the 
Department of Environmental Qua l ity. The transfer of the program is provided for in 
the Senate version of House B i l l  No. 1 024 . 

• Adjusts the section provid ing statutory changes necessary to increase the salary of 
the Insurance Commissioner. 
Adds sections to provide statutory changes relating  to rebates associated with 
obta in ing an insurance quote. 
Adds a statutory section to p rovide accident and health insurance pol icies may not 
take i nto account any pre-existing cond it ion of an appl icant. 
Adds a section to provide legis lative i ntent that fire departments ut i l ize i ncreased 
d istri butions from the insurance tax d istri bution fund to improve their I nsurance 
Service Office ( ISO) ratings. 

• Adds a section to provide for a Leg is lative Management study of the feas ib i l ity and 
desirabi l ity of establ ish ing a pension for volunteer fi refighters. 

• Adds a section to declare the sections provid ing for the transfer of admin istration of 
the state bond ing fund and the state fi re and tornado fund to be an emergency. 
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A BILL for an Act to provide an appropriation for defraying the expenses of the insurance 
commissioner. 
 

Minutes:                                                 Testimony # 1 - 3 

 
Legislative Council: Alex Cronquist  
OMB: Larry Martin  
 
Conferees: 
Senator Oehlke, Senator Erbele, Senator Grabinger 
Representative Beadle, Representative Brandenburg, Representative Bellew 
 
Alex Cronquist handed out: 
Base Level Funding Changes – attached - #1  
Statement of Purpose of Amendment – attached # 2 
 
Senator Oehlke called the conference committee to order on SB 2010. Asked the House 
members to walk through their changes.  
 
Representative Beadle: What we did in the House was fairly simple. If you look at the initial 
changes all in the title language, we had adjustments for the insurance rebates, legislative 
management study, and removing the boiler inspector language. Bottom of page 1 on bill 
(speaking off of bill 19.0223.02005 – attached # 3) that is where we get into the adjustments 
for the overall compensation. What we did there was adjust the salary package as per 
agreement by both chambers and appropriation committees. We had the five FTE reduction, 
that would be the result of transferring the three to individuals for NDIRF, transferring four 
individuals for the boiler inspector program over to DEQ, and then we added two individuals. 
One, for the consumer assistance and also another one for dealing with the high risk pool 
healthcare reform coordinator position. There were seven positions adjusted but it is a net 
result of five FTE’s from this department itself. Section 2 of the green line bill, middle of page 
2, deals with the adjustment for the fire insurance premiums. This is also dealt with in a 
couple of other sections within the code. 3,4, and 5 in particular were removed and so what 
this language allows for is, based on the projections coming from the insurance department 
for what is going to be collected for the various lines of insurance. For clarification on that, 
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the lines that are dedicated towards fire insurance premiums are fire, allied lines, home 
owners multiple peril, farm owners multiple peril, commercial multiple peril, and crop hail 
insurance and property within the city. The revenue anticipated to be coming into the 
department from those lines are the $17,519,422. Based on historical agreement from the 
last couple of sessions, we usually split this 94.5% to the fire districts, and 5.5% to the 
firefighter’s association. That is where the $16,773,750 came from. That would be 100% 
funding, the 94.5% split to the fire districts. Based on how we do that, they would at 100%. 
The fire fighter’s association however, the House felt that should not be at 100% of 5.5% 
because when they submitted their budget request information to the insurance department 
as part of formulating the executive recommendation, their budget request amount was for 
$745,672. The House felt that we would fully fund their request that they made to the 
department but, if we gave them the full 5.5% that would have put them closer to $1,900,000. 
We felt that they didn’t need the extra $200,000 to go towards that.  
 
Senator Oehlke: Did you ask how they came up with their $730 budget? 
 
Representative Beadle: We didn’t request it from the fire fighter’s association but, we do 
have the full letter that they provided to the tax commissioner’s office as well as the work 
sheet of the budget information for both their estimated income and expenses for the fire 
fighters association. We utilized that just as we do when are looking at what OMB provides 
us for agency budget detail. This letter was dated July 13, 2018 for the appropriations request 
for the 2019-2020 biennium to the insurance commissioner John Godfread. This is a letter 
that pursues a section in century code that requires the itemized amount of the money 
necessary to conduct fire schools held during the biennium under the direction association 
of OMB. Fire fighter’s association is requesting to the North Dakota insurance department 
include $745,672 in your base budget for the 2019 biennium to fund the fire fighter’s 
association.  
 
Senator Oehlke: I’m thinking about the third line of that, I heard you say something as 
directed by OMB.   Is this OMB’s budget that they indicated they should have or is this the 
fireman’s association budget that was submitted?  
 
Representative Beadle: OMB helps compile for the executive budget recommendation so I 
believe that was it but, I am going to pull up a reference in their letter that says in addition 
North Dakota Century Code 18-03.08 required NDFA to report annually to OMB a letter of 
full and complete report of the disposition of all money received. I think that would be what 
they were referencing for the OMB portion of this. I will provide a copy of this letter to all of 
the members of the committee as well as the previous itemized costs so we can see that as 
well. Page 2 and 3, we removed sections 3,4, and 5. That was the continuing appropriation.  
 
Senator Oehlke: Are you sure that’s what that was? Did you read sections 3,4,5? When I 
read those sections, it says that particularly under section 4, section 3 it says the insurance 
companies are to report fire, allied lines, home owners multiple peril, farm owners multiple 
peril, crop hail, and commercial multiple peril insurance premium collections. It goes on and 
on to explain how that was to be reported and how it is supposed to be segmented out so 
that the insurance department knows where to disperse the money to. 
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Representative Beadle: That would be the language that is within section 3 I believe. We 
can provide clarification from Legislative Council on that.  
 
Senator Oehlke: I don’t care who made the goof here but then on section 4 it says; the tax 
distribution fund is a special fund in the state treasury. In section 5 it talks about the amount 
due cities, rural fire protection districts, or rural fire departments. Without all those sections 
all the way over to section 6, you have no way to spend that money.  
 
Representative Brandenburg: We discussed that this morning and that was never our 
intention to take away the ongoing money that goes to the fire fighters so, if that came out 
that way, our intention was to come back and look at it again next session.  
 
Senator Oehlke: You’re on a different section from what we talked about this morning, that 
is a whole different piece of the pie. 
 
Representative Beadle: In section 4, the language that was included in the bill as it came 
over from the Senate, references existing century code language of 18-04-04.1, which is the 
insurance tax distribution fund. You overstruck language on line 10, page 3 that said, subject 
to legislative appropriation. That was the only adjustment. Our amendment did not eliminate 
or repeal that section of code. It repealed the amendment of subject to legislative 
appropriation so, without having that change within that section, the section itself could be 
removed from the bill because we don’t need to just print existing code with no changes to it. 
Section 5 is the same, the language that you had added was continuing appropriation and 
then overstruck most of the language of subject to legislative appropriation and overstruck 
the insurance commissioner shall allocate, based on the appropriation of December of each 
year. That language was to make it a continuing appropriation because you had also added 
subsection 5 into that of annually they shall determine the amount and just pay it out without 
having a legislative appropriation in there. When we removed the language that the Senate 
had included of the continuing appropriation piece, the section of the bill was no longer 
necessary. We did not repeal those sections of existing code. It would maintain it as it 
currently was. The one area that might have been an oversight would be the changes that 
were made in section 3, it was not our intention to do anything that would be, in regards to 
the company’s annual statement or crop hail, our intention was purely to eliminate the 
legislative appropriation overstriking to create it as a continuing appropriation in sections 4 
and 5.   

Alex Cronquist:  Rep. Beadle was correct, by removing those sections in the bill the House 
just brought it back to what is currently in law would remain law. Section 3, when the changes 
were made by our office there, those were changes that I’m not sure necessarily had to be 
made, they were kind of clean up language.   

Senator Oehlke: Are you telling me that the insurance department is supposed to have rules 
for the insurance companies to make this report and they don’t need this in century code? 
 
Alex Cronquist:  It’s in the century code. By removing these sections from the bill, the current 
century code just wouldn’t be changed. 

Representative Beadle:  Not repealing, just their reference in the bill.  
 



Senate Appropriations Committee  
SB 2010 Insurance conference committee 
April 18, 2019 
Page 4  
   

Jon Godfread, North Dakota Insurance Commissioner: I think section 3 was clean up 
language to modernize the words. The rest of the sections, 4,5 were, from our intention, to 
make it a continuing appropriation. Our projection for the collections in this fund are $17.75 
million. I think as it has come over from the house it is $17.5 million. I think some of the 
reason why we were advocating for a continuing appropriation is for this reason alone is that, 
our projection is here and if it comes in at $17.75 million and we are allocated out $17.5 
million, there is $250,000 that is swept over to the general fund which is what we were trying 
to avoid. That is why we are advocating for the continuing appropriation. It is our 
understanding that section 3 was clean up language, sections 4 and 5 is what allowed that 
to become a continuing appropriation as it came over from the Senate.  
 
Representative Beadle: That was us taking the $17.75 million that was in the request for 
the budget in reducing the fire fighter’s association portion from $976,250 down to $745,672, 
which that balance is why it comes down to $17,519,000.   
 
Senator Oehlke: And the balance goes where? 

Representative Beadle: General fund.  

Senator Oehlke: Why?  

Representative Beadle:  That is where it has been going.  

Senator Oehlke: The boiler section has been removed. 

Representative Beadle: Yes, page 5-9. All that overstruck language is removing the boiler 
inspection program. That was transferred over to DEQ. That language was fully added into 
the DEQ budget and so council requested us to remove the language just to make sure that 
we didn’t have any code discrepancies in one section of another. It would be cleaner that 
way.  

Senator Oehlke: That is over in DEQ so we are good on that. Section 9 that was removed, 
that has to do with the premium tax, section 9. Go back to where you adjust the 
commissioner’s salary.  
 
Representative Beadle:  That would be again with regards to the continuing appropriation 
because the language that was originally there was the overstriking for the amount computed 
under section 18-04-05 for the transfer.  

Senator Oehlke: Where is the premium tax showing in there? 
 
Representative Beadle: It would be line 14, of page 11 for the overstruck language and then 
is where the underlined language of the amount computed under section 18-04-05 was as it 
came over from the Senate. The language towards the rest of that sentence of, one half of 
the biennial not appropriated under distribution of, the Senate had crossed out section 18-
04-05 and that language. That was the language in there from the Senate and it was our 
understanding that was another reference to the continuing appropriation for fire districts and 
I see council is nodding.  
Senator Oehlke: Where is the 1¾ and the 2% premium tax showing in this bill?  
 
Alex Cronquist: Whatever current law is; it would remain current law under the house 
version with regard to the insurance premium tax. What was removed in section 9, in current 
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law the amount is one half of the appropriation because, the House actually appropriated 
funding for the fire departments and fire fighter’s association, the insurance commissioner 
would have to calculate ½ of that amount. What the Senate had changed was, instead of 
having it being ½ of the appropriation, it would be just the amount that the insurance 
commissioner computed when determining how much to do under that continuing 
appropriation. That change wasn’t necessary.   
 
Senator Oehlke: Section 2 changes it from continuing appropriation, does it not?    
 
Alex Cronquist: Correct, because the house chose to do an actual appropriation rather than 
a continuing appropriation, the language in current law where it states that the insurance 
commissioner would have calculate the ½ of that appropriation amount, the current law would 
be necessary with section 2 added by the house.    
 
Representative Beadle: Sections 6,7, and 8 that is all referenced to language in regards to, 
what companies are able to offer as inducements for getting clients in for a quote.  It was 
referenced the companies, especially national companies such as State Farm, will offer 
promotions of; Receive a quote today and we will have a donation to veterans group etc. 47 
states currently allow this, the changes in these sections would allow that to take place. That 
would 6,7, and 13 of the bill. Page 13, lines 22-28, the language there in regards to the boiler 
inspection, that was another repeal with the infective date. That would now be page 15 of the 
overstruck language. We have the change language for NDIRF, we did not make any 
adjustments to that on the house side so that all remains the same. Section 14, page 16 of 
the green line version was language that was not added during our section of appropriations 
but when we were in full committee, that was proposed by another member. Based off of 
conversations about what is happening with federal law, with changes in the Affordable Care 
Act there was a concern that some of the protections that are out there for pre-existing 
conditions might be removed. The committee voted in full committee and I believe it was a 
12 to 9 vote approved adding this pre-existing conditions on there. We have had 
conversations with the department since, that this language is a little overly broad and would 
apply beyond where our committee’s intention was for that but, the intention for that was to 
ensure that if something changed in federal law in regards to pre-existing conditions, as in 
the status-quo would remain regardless of the federal changes. Section 15 was legislative 
intent with regards to the insurance tax distribution fund. This was one of the arguments in 
terms of making sure that fire districts receive money, be able to bring down the insurance 
office rating, and improve access to fire protection services in various communities to lower 
the premium tax that is necessary as you are in a higher risk area. Section 15 is a legislative 
management study, this came at the request of one of our members about volunteer fire 
fighter pensions. We recognize that for many of our fire districts across the state, particularly 
in the rural area, it becomes very difficult to retain and recruit fire fighters so, this wanted to 
look at establishing if there was any desirability of offering some level of a pension program 
or benefits type program to help incentivize fire fighters to join and stay with the departments 
across the state to help with recruiting. Section 17, which I believe was in the House version 
but did not carry over due to the vote on the floor about not being sufficient for the emergency 
clause for sections 8,9,10,11, and 12. That came out of our committee but due to the House 
vote I don’t believe that the emergency clause carried. The emergency clause was in regards 
to NDIRF, so that they would be able to contract and enter into a contractual arrangement 
so that they could prepare for the next biennium. They would just be looking at entering 
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earlier and then being able to have that relationship start but there really wouldn’t be a 
substantial change at that point just so they could have that conversation.  
 
Senator Oehlke: The insurance service office rating, it says it is the intent, I’m trying to wrap 
my brain around that. I’m guessing that, that what fireman do, that is their life, is to try and 
improve the communities fire ratings. Why do we need it in century code?  
 
Representative Beadle: It was the belief amongst some on the committee that while 
absolutely that is the intention and the goal of fire departments across the state, they just 
wanted to say this is revenue generated by premium tax associated with fire departments. 
The tax is formulated in part based off of what the level of access is to fire protection services 
and what rating they’re in all effects what their premiums would end up being. The intention 
was just to say as a reminder of we hope that these funds go to help improve the services 
across the state and however the departments feel needed. This language is written 
purposely with a lot of flexibility to it, just wanted to reiterate that we are very comfortable 
giving fire departments 100% of the premium tax collected, we just want to make sure that 
with that 100% that they ensure they are continuing to work for better services for the citizens.  
 
Senator Oehlke: That is a great comment because I think the best thing we can do to 
increase ratings is to find ways to get them more services so that they can do their job better. 
Which would include maybe the associations share of the pie to provide more training. 
 
Representative Beadle:  We are giving the association what they requested.   
 
Senator Grabinger: Reality is you’re giving them what they asked, but they didn’t know what 
the dollar amount was going to be is the bottom line. This money was paid for by people 
paying their premiums for firemen, for fire departments, and for fire training. The idea that we 
would keep any of it is appalling to me. It is theirs, it is for them, and we should just allocate 
it to the percentage that was set. Whatever comes in, that is what they get.   
 
Representative Brandenburg: I can remember when this was thing was only 50%, then we 
went to 80% and now we are going to 100%. No one is saying they aren’t doing their job.  As 
far as going from 80%, we’re picking up about $2,000,000 here for the fire fighters. As far as 
the $250,000 for the association, we can have a discussion and talk about it. We came 
$2,000,000 so, let’s talk.    
 
Representative Beadle: For the record, just a little history on the grants of the fire districts 
and the state allocations from the insurance premium tax distribution fund. No money was 
allocated from the state to the fire fighters association until 2002. At that point in 2002 NDFA 
was received $52,000 a year from 2002-2004, $60,000 from 2005-2008, $310,000 from 
2009-2010, $335,000 in 2011-2012, $400,000 for two years, $575,000 in 2015, $445,000 
2016, and then $414,262 in 2017-2018. That was the history of it. Prior to 2002, this money 
wasn’t directly going to the association, it was to the fire districts and at that year we were at 
76% of the tax was distributed out to the fire districts.  Just for the record, their collections 
have increased significantly from this fund. 
 
Senator Oehlke adjourned the conference committee on SB 2010.     
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A BILL for an Act to provide an appropriation for defraying the expenses of the 
insurance commissioner. 
 

Minutes:                                                 Testimony #1 - 3 

 
Legislative Council: Alex Cronquist  
OMB: Larry Martin  
 
Conferees: 
Senator Oehlke, Senator Erbele, Senator Grabinger 
Representative Beadle, Representative Brandenburg, Representative Bellew 
 
Alex Cronquist: Handed out Base Level Funding Changes – Attached #1. 
 
Senator Oehlke: Sent an email to the committee outlining four points they need to discuss. 
On Friday, did you have any time to take any of that into consideration? 
 
Representative Beadle: I can remind people of those. You had some easy items and then 
one with a little more discussion. Your 4 points were one, section 14 in the current 2005 
version as a pre-existing condition language for accident and health insurance. You wanted 
the committee to consider turning that into a study. Number two was another study option 
relating to HB 1106 to be considered as it brings clarity to the cost of health insurance. 
Number three was to look at the emergency clause with regard to NDIRF. That was 
something that came off when it went to the House. We were a few votes shy. Number four 
was making the insurance premium tax collections that are divided between the Fire Fighters 
Association and the departments continual appropriation with the caveat that there is 
mandatory reporting to the legislature. Those are the four items you sent to us on Friday for 
discussion.  
 
Senator Oehlke: Do any of the members feel angst with #1,2, and 3 as far as making those 
changes as indicated in that? Making that into a study would be a wise thing to do. I do not 
know that we are in a condition to make that kind of decision at this point.   
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Representative Beadle:  I agree with that. Presented proposed amendment 19.0223.02006 
- Attached #2. I am passing this out in regards to your point number two about HB 1106. This 
is language that another Representative had drafted from council in conjunction with the 
commission of Godfread’s office. He was the one that emailed this over to me in regards to 
HB 1106. This would be an insurance department analysis of health care and hospital 
recording requirements. I believe they adjusted to operating expenses to allow for them to 
fund a study on this. I need clarification on what they did there.   
 
Alex Cronquist: This is the first time I’ve seen this amendment. Whoever did this, did not 
tell me.  
 
Jon Godfread, Insurance Commissioner: This was drafted for another representative. I 
believe the intention was to take $200,000 from the operating line and add that back in to the 
operating line for us to hire an actuarial consultant to come in and help us prepare an in depth 
study on the cost of health care. It was a $200,000 addition in there for a study and it looks 
funny because it’s reducing a reduction essentially.  
 
Representative Beadle: On the .03000 version of the bill, currently line 21, page 1 of the 
.3000 has a reduction of the operating expenses of $613,102. So, it looks like this change 
would make that reduction $413,102. That would track with $200,000 for that.  
 
Senator Oehlke: Would you like to make a motion?      
 
Representative Beadle: Moved amendment 19.0223.02006. 
Representative Bellew: Seconded the motion.  
Voice vote approved.  
 
Senator Oehlke: We will hold off on voting on the bill until we get a couple more.  
 
Representative Beadle: Did you have any language drafted in regards to the pre-existing 
study that had been discussed?   
  
Senator Oehlke: Handed out a proposed amendment from the insurance department – 
Attached # 3.  
 
Representative Beadle: Alex, would you need any adjustments to this in order to make sure 
it fits with all the other amendments we will end up having on this bill?  
 
Alex Cronquist: We can work with this language.  
 
Representative Bellew: With this language, does that mean Section 14 comes out of the 
bill? 
 
Representative Beadle: That would be on the House amendments since we’re already 
going to end up having to recede to further amend so maybe we wouldn’t have to. Alex, could 
you clarify for us? So, when we end up making the ultimate motion on the bill, we’ll end up 
having the House recede and further amend since it was the House’s amendment that put 
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on section 14 to begin with. Would we have a motion to take that off? Or once we recede 
and further amend, would that just drop off?    
 
Alex Cronquist: It would just drop off so there’s no need to act on it.  
 
Senator Oehlke: It appears the amendment matches up with the .02000 version of SB 2010 
at this point.   
 
Senator Oehlke: Asked for motion to add the amendment to provide for a legislative 
management study on health insurance.  
 
Representative Beadle: Moved the proposed amendment from the insurance dept. 
relating to a legislative management study - health insurance and pre-existing 
conditions.   
Representative Brandendburg: Seconded the motion. 
Voice vote carried.  
 
Senator Oehlke: I don’t know if we need an amendment to make sure the emergency clause 
is in there, but when we are all done, I think we need to make sure the emergency clause 
applies to anything relative to the ND Insurance Reserve Fund sections which may be not 
numbered exactly how we would say them if we actually said them into the record.  
 
Alex Cronquist: That may be the case.  If you state that you would like an emergency clause, 
we can add it and then the committee will be able to vote on the drafted amendment once 
we get that put together.   
  
Senator Oehlke: That emergency clause would be relative to those particular sections when 
it is finalized?  
 
Alex Cronquist: Correct. We’ll make sure that it lines up.   
 
Senator Oehlke: With that understanding, can we vote on those two amendments that we’ve 
completed so far and then talk about the insurance premium tax as a separate issue? 
 
Representative Beadle: Would it be more convenient for drafting if we had a vote on the 
emergency clause? Since that was not on the Senate version that came over, that would end 
up having to be an amendment added on. 
 
Alex Cronquist: We’ll add it.  
 
Representative Beadle: Would it be cleaner if we have a motion to put the emergency 
clause on there since it would be an amendment on to the bill? 
 
Alex Cronquist: At this point, it is not necessarily required separately. I assume there is still 
to be discussion on the insurance tax distribution payments to fire departments and the Fire 
Fighters Association. Once we get everything hammered out, we can go through one motion 
if you would like.  
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Senator Oehlke: So we do not have to vote on the others ones until we are done with our 
discussion. It appears we are down to visiting about the insurance premium tax and the 
division of such. In my email, we find that originally this was a continuing appropriation. The 
insurance premium tax was intended to go to help the fire departments and the association. 
It wasn’t until the state got into some real fiscal trouble that it started to get picked away at, 
and it got disseminated. It wasn’t until 2007, 2009,10,11,12,13 that we got it back to a 
reasonable level and to its original form. It is not there quite yet. I would love to see it get 
there but I would like to hear your input on message you sent over. I would be open to more 
discussion on our firemen and our firemen’s association.  
 
Representative Beadle: In discussion with the House leadership, we believe the firemen do 
a tremendous job. That is why we are committed to increase the funding for the premium tax 
going out to 100%. We have the revised numbers so we do need make sure to adjust that 
going forward in terms of what the premium tax collections are. However, the continuing 
appropriation discussion has been a nonstarter. I ran it up the flagpole on Friday as well as 
today and the House isn’t ready for a continuing appropriation yet but we’ll give 100% of tax 
collections to the fire fighters and the fire districts themselves.   
 
Representative Brandenburg: We’re perfectly willing to go to the $18,818,000 and have 
that discussion. They’re getting 100%. I don’t think we’ll get anything further. We should have 
some discussion. There might be quarter of a million laid out with the association. In 
discussion with the House leadership, we are willing to give that extra to the fire districts. I 
am assuming the number would be around $300,000 and that would go to $19.1M or 
whatever it would be and go to the fire districts so there is nothing left on the table. The 
association would stay at the 750. I believe that is what their budget request was.  The fire 
districts would get that balance.  
 
Senator Oehlke: Just so we’re clear, the association came back with $745,872 and that 
wasn’t really what their budget appeared to be. I know one of the comments was that the 
fireman or the various departments can just chip in and can help pay for some of that.  
 
Representative Brandenburg: I’ve had discussions with some fire departments. They feel 
the fire district should go to the fire districts. They feel the association is getting enough. That 
is the feedback I got back. If the association, its their budget, they can request more from the 
districts if they have to. We’re willing to give the whole 100%. We will not leave any money 
on the table.  
 
Senator Grabinger: I am glad to hear the House has agreed to the 100%. We have a set 
way to divide this up. We all know the reason the budget was put in the way it was by the 
association was because of the allotment procedure and the request for that reduction not 
knowing that we would be in the situation we are today. The association has seen the training. 
There’s a whole lot of training that is done for fire fighters today then there was when I was 
on the department. This has changed. It takes money to provide those schools that training 
and leadership. There is no reason that we should change the division between the money. 
Let’s just do it the way we have in the past. Give 100% and divide it up as it was. 
 
Representative Beadle: We should remember that a lot of districts do provide their own 
training. The association does provide training and most districts take advantage of that. 
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Some districts will do individual training that is separate from the association. Every 
association member pays dues to the association itself. The districts can be levied if the cost 
for the association truly were higher and the members felt there was value for the association 
to increase those costs. Even with the 90% budget request, that would put associations 
request up to $827,000 if you gave them 100% of what they were before they did the 90% 
budget so that would mean a maximum of what they requested. It would be the $827,000 
and not the $1,034,000 that they would be getting if we gave this a straight pass through 
appropriation. I think our districts would be able to better utilize this money and if the 
association truly needed more, I’m sure their members would be willing to chip in.   
 
Senator Oehlke: Is there any more discussion? I am thinking about the wisdom of not 
allowing additional training.  
 
Representative Beadle: I would not say that we are advocating against additional training.   
In no way are we saying that we do not want them to provide training. We are saying there’s 
more than a million dollars going out to districts. Districts can provide training themselves 
and just like any trade association or organization that any of us belong to, if we see value in 
the training, we pay for that in form of membership dues or costs for individual programs. 
There is nothing under statute that would preclude the fire districts from being able to do the 
same with their association.  
 
Senator Grabinger: This money will not be wasted if given to the association for training. By 
suggesting that we are going to decide how much money and changing this, we are micro-
managing what they are doing with that. If they get this money, they can do their job and do 
it even better. That is a good thing for the fire departments all across the state. This training 
is valuable and well spent in the sense that it could save lives.   
 
Representative Beadle: At no point was House’s position that the association is wasting 
money.   The comment is just that with $3M additional dollars going out to the districts, they 
can certainly pay for additional training through the association if they see fit. The 90% budget 
request by the association was $745,000. Even if we gave them 100% of their request, that 
would be $827,000 and not $1.34M. I think the districts could utilize additional revenue.  
 
Senator Oehlke: One of the pieces of language that the house added into this bill was 
relative to making sure the money goes to improving the fire district rating so the insurance 
premium will be lower. If I take you literally, you are saying you now you want to take it away 
from the fire districts and have them pay it to the association, so they can get training rather 
than provide equipment for vehicles and such that can help them improve their fire district 
rating.   
 
Representative Beadle: That would be a misinterpretation of what that language means. 
The way you lower the rating is through a number of factors including improving access and 
timely response times for properties that are effected. Also, it needs to ensure that there is 
the adequate equipment and training necessary for that department to carry out all the needs 
of their department. There is a whole variety of ways that money could be utilized in order to 
help bring down that rating.  
 
Senator Oehlke: Keep that equipment thing in mind. We will have one more meeting.    
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A BILL for an Act to provide an appropriation for defraying the expenses of the insurance 
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Legislative Council: Levi Kinnischtzke   
OMB: Larry Martin  
 
Conferees: 
Senator Oehlke, Senator Erbele, Senator Grabinger 
Representative Beadle, Representative Brandenburg, Representative Bellew 
 
Levi Kinnischtzke: Handed out Base Level Funding Changes – Attachment #1. 
 
Senator Oehlke: Who feels like they want to walk thru this part? Does it address any of the 
other three sections we talked about? 
 
Representative Beadle: Handed out Attachment #2. The long sheet is based off the last 
committee’s conversation on what to do with the budget. Now this is not based off of the 
emailed amendments that were sent out by the insurance commissioner’s office but the 
numbers should all be the same but language adjusted.  
Section 3 – firefighters’ association and districts appropriation. So this language has the 
change on here to go up to the 18.8, which is what the true numbers associated with the 
tax collection are. This would have amount of $828,525 going to the association. The $745 
letter was based off of the 90% budget. $828 matches up with what they received last 
biennium and would’ve been their 100% budget request. Then it has the remaining balance 
go into the fire districts. With regards to the language that the insurance commissioner’s 
office was working on I had a conversation with Alex Cronquist about the adjustments that 
the insurance department was looking at to see if they could make it work and his concern 
was that within the section of code, if we didn’t handle it like section 3 as it had left the 
house and with the updated language to here, that that section of code would still would 
include the term appropriate money. So just by overstriking a continuing appropriation and 
the language of replacing annually with for this interim. Because the language in there says 
appropriate there was concern that would still effectively make it a continuing appropriation 
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whether it was in the title or not. But having the word appropriate within that section would 
still cause that issue. So I understand the concerns of the department to make sure that the 
true 100% of the tax collection, no overage and no underage, is what is being distributed. 
So that if the collections came in lower than what the premium tax forecast is that they don’t 
have a separate issue or if they came in over, that they’re not diverting the excess to the 
general fund. I understand that concern of making sure it does act as a pass through. But 
according to Alex Cronquist there were just issues with that and so the language that he 
thought within section 3 was necessary, because it’s the amount or so much of the sums 
may be necessary so that would give them leeway if the collections weren’t there. That 
would be the main change with regards to the fire money on there. The other changes, we 
didn’t have anything we were talking about with the FTEs, that stayed the same. Fire, 
tornado, boiler inspectors that all stayed the same and really we just came down to that and 
then the $200,000 was added in there for the study that we had adopted at our conference 
committee meeting yesterday. To insure as the commissioner testified to yesterday that 
they are able to hire the expert they need to properly go thru the data. 
 
Senator Oehlke: So the study relative to section 14 is addressed in here? Sections 7, 8 
and 14 provide statutory changes related to rebates, that was that pre-existing conditions 
stuff. 
 
Representative Beadle: The one relating to rebates is with regards to the State Farm 
Insurance offering the promotion to come in for a quote and will receive…  
 
Senator Oehlke: They’ve got section 14 in there and section 14 in the bill that was sent 
over to us… 
 
Representative Beadle: The long sheet is made up of this amendment of 19.0223.02007 
– attached # 2. So that would have section 14 being the last adjustment for crossing out a 
quote or with regards to the promotion activities. Section 15 with regards to the study that’s 
in relation to 1106 and the cost associated for the various insurance stuff. That language 
for section 15 in the 02007 version, that is what is referenced in the one-time funding 
$200,000 operating for the cost there. That’s reflected in the long sheet.   
 
Senator Oehlke: So we have effectively, you’re looking at it now, we kind of just eliminated 
that section 14 that’s in this version that came over from you guys. 
 
Representative Beadle: The pre-existing condition study was moved to now section 17 in 
the .02007 version, which is the study of pre-existing. The one that we previously had for 
the volunteer pension, that dropped down to 18. This amendment does include the 
emergency clause with the renumbering. This emergency clause on the .02007 version 
applies to sections 9,10,11,12 and 13. The NDIRF language – now all matches up with 
various sections.   Even though they are numbered different, they are still the NDIRF 
sections. 

Senator Oehlke: Could I see a more definite nod from council?  
I’m guessing you would like to move this amendment.      (Side bar discussion) 
 
Senator Oehlke: Would you like to make a motion? 
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Representative Beadle: I move the House recede from the House amendments and 
adopt amendment 19.0223.02007.  
Representative Bellew:  Seconded the motion.  
 
 
A Roll Call Vote Was Taken:  5 yeas,  1 nays,  0 absent.   
Motion carried.   
 
 Senator Oehlke - Y    Representative Beadle - Y 
 Senator Erbele – Y    Representative Brandenburg – Y 
 Senator Grabinger – Y   Representative Bellew – N 
 
 
Senator Oehlke: I know we’ll be back in two years to revisit a lot of this. I’m certainly happy 
with the numbers and I think everyone can live with those. 
 
Representative Brandenburg: I’ve come as far as I can come. Every penny we gave to 
the fire districts and the fire associations and I think we’re being real fair. I think we will be 
back next session to talk about it. I don’t feel good about a continuing appropriation  
 
Senator Oehlke: In total fairness to the House, I know you stepped up to the plate, I know 
that’s going to be appreciated. I thank you for that effort. 
 
Representative Brandenburg: Thank you.  
 
Representative Beadle: I completely understand where the department was, the 
adjustments they were trying to make on this in consultation with Legislative Council. I think 
there were still concerns that they had with how this language was going to be drafted. So 
at least for this interim, I think going forward with how we have it in this 19.0223.02007 
version I think will do the job. Then if we want to work to adjust the language so it’s not a 
continuing appropriation, because the House position is that we want them to continue to 
come to check and that allows us to adjust what goes toward the association if we see 
them needing more. It allows us to check in the future but if we want to work on the 
language in the interim to clarify exactly how that money will flow we can work on that. For 
now, I don’t think we’ll get it resolved.  
 
Representative Brandenburg: Another warm fuzzy feeling when we all come together.   



1 9.0223. 02006 
Title. 

Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for 
Representative J. Nelson 

Apri l 1 6, 201 9 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED SENATE BILL NO. 201 0  

That the House recede from its amendments as printed on pages 1 572-1 575 of the Senate 
Journal and pages 1 740-1 742 of the House Journal and that Engrossed Senate Bill No. 201 0 
be amended as follows: 

Page 1 ,  l ine 1 0, after the first semicolon insert "to provide for a report;" 

Page 1 ,  replace l ines 21 and 22 with : 

"Operating expenses 
Total special funds 

Page 1 3, after line 22, insert: 

2, 1 79,777 
$1 0 ,729,344 

(4 13, 102) 
($828, 1 94) 

1 ,766,675 
$9,901 , 1 50" 

"SECTION 1 6. REPORT TO LEGISLATIVE MANAGEMENT - INSURANCE 
DEPARTMENT ANALYSIS OF HEALTH CARE - HOSPITAL REPORTING 
PENAL TY. During the 201 9-20 interim, the insurance department shall assist the 
legislative management with the interim study of health insurance premium trends as 
provided for in House Bill No. 1 1 06 of the sixty-sixth legislative assembly. During the 
interim, the insurance department shall conduct a detailed analysis of health care in the 
state and shall submit the report to the legislative management. During the interim, 
upon request of the insurance department, hospitals in cities with a population 
exceeding ten thousand shall provide the insurance department requested data 
regarding bi l l ing and payment information ,  financial information , management 
information , and other information the insurance department deems necessary to 
complete a detailed analysis of health care in the state. The department may not 
request data that include personally identifiable information and the hospitals may 
provide data in the aggregate. If a hospital fai ls, without just cause, to provide the 
insurance department with requested data as required under th is section , the 
insurance commissioner may charge the hospital a civil penalty of up  to one thousand 
dollars per day the hospital is in violation ." 

Renumber accord ingly 

Page No. 1 1 9.0223.02006 



PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED SENATE BILL NO. 201 0 

Page 1 ,  l ine 1 0 , after the th i rd semicolon ,  insert "to provide for a leg islative management 

study; " 

Page 1 3 , after l ine 28 ,  insert: 

SECTION 1 7. LEGISLATIVE MANAGEMENT STUDY - HEALTH INSURANCE. 

During the 20 1 9-2020 interim ,  the leg islative management shal l  consider studying the 

desirab i l ity and feasib i l ity of state guaranteed issue provisions, to include protections for 

ind ividuals with preexisting cond itions and an analysis of restructuring the 

comprehens ive hea lth association of North Dakota . 

Renumber accord ing ly 

f l  
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Title.04000 
Fiscal No. 1 

Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for 
Representative Beadle 

April 23, 2019 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED SENATE BILL NO. 2010 

That the House recede from its amendments as printed on pages 1572-1576 of the Senate 
Journal and pages 1740-1744 of the House Journal and that Engrossed Senate Bill No. 2010 
be amended as fol lows: 

Page 1, line 2, remove "chapter 23.1-16 and" 

Page 1, line 3, remove "boiler inspections and" 

Page 1, line 4, remove "sections 18-04-04, 18-04-04.1, and 18-04-05,"  

Page 1 ,  line 5, replace "subsection 1 of section 26.1-03-17, and" with "subdivision c of 
subsection 8 of section 26.1-04-03, subsection 2 of section 26.1-04-06, "  

Page 1 ,  line 6 ,  after "26.1-23.1-01" insert ", and subsection 2 of  section 26. 1 -25-16" 

Page 1, line 8, after the second comma insert "insurance rebates," 

Page 1, line 9, remove "to repeal chapter 26.1-22.1 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating 
to" 

Page 1, line 10, replace "boiler inspections; to provide a penalty; "  with "to provide for a 
legislative management study; to provide a statement of legislative intent; to provide for 
a report;" 

Page 1, line 10, remove "and to provide a" 

Page 1, line 11, replace "contingent effective date" with "to provide for a penalty; and to declare 
an emergency" 

Page 1, replace lines 20 through 23 with: 

"Salaries and wages 
Operating expenses 
Total special funds 
Full-time equivalent positions 

$8,549,567 
2,179,777 

$10,729,344 
46.00 

($399,569) 
(413,102) 

($812,671) 
(5.00) 

$8,149,998 
1,766,675 

$9,916,673 
41.00 

SECTION 2. ONE-TIME FUNDING - EFFECT ON BASE BUDGET - REPORT 
TO THE SIXTY-SEVENTH LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY. The following amounts reflect 
one-time funding items approved by the sixty-fifth legislative assembly for the 2017-19 
biennium and the one-time funding items included in the appropriation in section 1 of 
this Act: 

One-Time Funding Description 
Health care analysis 
Total special funds 

2017-19 
� 
$0 

2019-21 
$200,000 
$200,000 

The 2019-21 biennium one-time funding amounts are not a part of the entity's 
base budget for the 2021-23 biennium. The insurance commissioner shall report to the 
appropriations committees of the sixty-seventh legislative assembly on the use of this 
one-time funding for the biennium beginning July 1, 2019, and ending June 30, 2021. 
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SECTION 3. APPROPRIATION. There is appropriated out of any moneys in the 
insurance tax distribution fund in the state treasury, not otherwise appropriated, the 
sum of $18,818,030, or so much of the sum as may be necessary, to the insurance 
commissioner for the purpose of providing payments, in accordance with provisions of 
section 18-04-05, to North Dakota fire departments in the amount of $17,989,505 and 
payments to the North Dakota firefighter's association in the amount of $828,525, for 
the biennium beginning July 1, 2019, and ending June 30, 2021." 

Page 2, remove lines 4 through 30 

Page 3, remove lines 1 through 31 

Page 4, remove lines 1 through 31 

Page 5, remove lines 1 through 30 

Page 6, remove lines 1 through 31 

Page 7 ,  remove l ines 1 through 31 

Page 8, remove lines 1 through 30 

Page 9, remove lines 1 through 31 

Page 10, remove lines 1 through 3 

Page 10, line 16, replace "one hundred eleven thousand one hundred twenty-two" with "one 
hundred ten thousand five hundred eighty-two" 

Page 10, remove lines 17 through 31 

Page 11, replace lines 1 through 7 with: 

"SECTION 7. AMENDMENT. Subdivision c of subsection 8 of section 
26.1-04-03 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

c. Notwithstanding any other provision in this subsection , if the cost does 
not exceed an aggregate retail value of one hundred dollars per 
person per year, an insurance producer may give a gift, prize, 
promotional article, logo merchandise, meal, or entertainment activity 
directly or indirectly to a person in connection with marketing , 
promoting , or advertising the business. As used in this subdivision, 
"person" means the named insured, policy owner, or prospective client 
or the spouse of any of these individuals, but the term does not 
include a certificate holder, child, or employee of the named insured, 
policy owner, or prospective client. Subject to the limits of this 
subdivision , an insurance producer may give a gift card for specific 
merchandise or services such as a meal, gasoline, or car wash but 
may not give cash, a cash card, any form of currency, or any refund or 
discount in premium. An insurance producer may not condition the 
giving of a gift, prize, promotion article, logo merchandise, meal, or 
entertainment activity on obtaining a quote or a contract of insurance. 
Notwithstanding the limitation in this subdivision, an insurance 
producer may make a donation to a nonprofit organization that is 
exempt from federal taxation under Internal Revenue Code section 
501 (c)(3) [26 U.S.C. 501 (c)(3)] in any amount as long as the donation 
is not given as an inducement to obtain a quote or a contract of 
insurance. 
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SECTION 8. AMENDMENT. Subsection 2 of section 26.1-04-06 of the North 
Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

2.  Notwithstanding any other provision in this section, if the cost does not 
exceed an aggregate retail value of one hundred dollars per person per 
year, an insurance producer may give a gift, prize, promotional article, logo 
merchandise, meal, or entertainment activity directly or indirectly to a 
person in connection with marketing, promoting, or advertising the 
business. As used in this subsection, "person" means the named insured, 
policy owner, or prospective client or the spouse of any of these 
individuals, but the term does not include a certificate holder, child, or 
employee of the named insured, policy owner, or prospective client. 
Subject to the limits of this subsection, an insurance producer may give a 
gift card for specific merchandise or services such as a meal, gasoline, or 
car wash but may not give cash, a cash card, any form of currency, or any 
refund or discount in premium. An insurance producer may not condition 
the giving of a gift, prize, promotional article, logo merchandise, meal, or 
entertainment activity on obtaining a quote or a contract of insurance. 
Notwithstanding the limitation in this subsection, an insurance producer 
may make a donation to a nonprofit organization that is exempt from 
federal taxation under Internal Revenue Code section 501 (c)(3) [26 U. S.C.  
501 (c)(3)] in any amount as long as the donation is not given as an 
inducement to obtain a quote OF o contract of insurance. "  

Page 13, replace lines 22 through 28 with: 

"SECTION 1 4. AMENDMENT. Subsection 2 of section 26.1-25-16 of the North 
Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

2. Notwithstanding any other provision in this section, if the cost does not 
exceed an aggregate retail value of one hundred dollars per person per 
year, an insurance producer may give a gift, prize, promotional article, logo 
merchandise, meal, or entertainment activity directly or indirectly to a 
person in connection with marketing, promoting, or advertising the 
business. As used in this subsection, "person" means the named insured, 
policy owner, or prospective client or the spouse of any of these 
individuals, but the term does not include a certificate holder, child, or 
employee of the named insured, policy owner, or prospective client. 
Subject to the limits of this subsection, an insurance producer may give a 
gift card for specific merchandise or services such as a meal, gasoline, or 
car wash but may not give cash, a cash card, any form of currency, or any 
refund or discount in premium. An insurance producer may not condition 
the giving of a gift, prize, promotional article, logo merchandise, meal, or 
entertainment activity on obtaining a quote or a contract of insurance. 
Notwithstanding the limitation in this subsection, an insurance producer 
may make a donation to a nonprofit organ ization that is exempt from 
federal taxation under Internal Revenue Code section 501 (c)(3) [26 U.S.C. 
501 (c) (3)] in any amount as long as the donation is not given as an 
inducement to obtain a quote OF a contract of insurance. 

SECTION 1 5. REPORT TO THE LEGISLATIVE MANAGEMENT -
INSURANCE DEPARTMENT ANALYSIS OF HEALTH CARE - HOSPITAL 
REPORTING - PENALTY. During the 2019-20 interim, the insurance department shall 
assist the legislative management with the interim study of health insurance premium 
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• 

• 

• 

trends as approved by the sixty-sixth legislative assembly in House Bill No. 1106. 
During the interim, the insurance department shall conduct a detailed analysis of health 
care in the state and submit the report to the legislative management. During the 
interim, upon request of the insurance department, hospitals in cities with a population 
exceeding ten thousand shall provide the insurance department requested data 
regarding billing and payment information , financial information , management 
information , and other information the insurance department deems necessary to 
complete a detailed analysis of health care in the state. The department may not 
request data that include personally identifiable information and the hospitals may 
provide data in the aggregate. If a hospital fails, without just cause, to provide the 
insurance department with requested data as required under this section , the 
insurance commissioner may charge the hospital a civil penalty of up to one thousand 
dollars per day the hospital is in violation . 

SECTION 16. LEGISLATIVE INTENT - INSURANCE TAX DISTRIBUTION 
FUND PAYMENTS TO FIRE DEPARTMENTS. It is the intent of the sixty-sixth 
legislative assembly that, when feasible, f ire departments utilize increased payments 
from the insurance tax distribution fund to improve their insurance service office rating. 

SECTION 17. LEGISLATIVE MANAGEMENT STUDY - HEALTH INSURANCE 
- PRE-EXISTING CONDITIONS. During the 2019-20 interim, the legislative 
management shall consider studying the feasibility and desirability of state guaranteed 
issue provisions for health insurance. The study must include consideration of 
protections for individuals with pre-existing conditions and consideration of whether to 
restructure the comprehensive health association of North Dakota. The legislative 
management shall report its findings and recommendations, together with any 
legislation required to implement the recommendations, to the sixty-seventh legislative 
assembly. 

SECTION 18. LEGISLATIVE MANAGEMENT STUDY - VOLUNTEER 
FIREFIGHTER PENSION. During the 2019-20 interim, the legislative management 
shall consider studying the feasibility and desirability of establ ishing a pension for 
volunteer firefighters. The study must include a review of firefighter needs in the state 
and benefits provided to volunteer firefighters in other states. The legislative 
management shall report its findings and recommendations, together with any 
legislation required to implement the recommendations, to the sixty-seventh legislative 
assembly. 

SECTION 19. EMERGENCY. Sections 9, 10, 11, 12 , and 13 of this Act are 
declared to be an emergency measure." 

Renumber accordingly 

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT: 

Senate B i l l  No. 201 0  - Insurance Department - Conference Committee Action 

Conference Conference 
Base Senate Committee Committee House Comparison to 

Budget Version Changes Version Version House 

Salaries and wages $8,549,567 $8,1 34,475 $1 5,523 $8, 149,998 $8, 149,998 
Operating expenses 2, 1 79,777 1 ,566,675 200,000 1 ,766,675 1 ,566,675 $200,000 
Insurance tax payments 15,064,086 18 818,030 18 ,81 8,030 1 7,51 9,422 1 ,298,608 

Total all funds $25,793,430 $9,70 1 , 1 50 $19 ,033,553 $28,734,703 $27,236,095 $1 ,498,608 
Less estimated income 25,793,430 9,701,150 19 033 553 28,734,703 27,236,095 1 ,498,608 
General fund $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 
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FTE 46.00 41 .00 0.001 41 .00 41 .00 0.00 

Department 401 - Insurance Department - Deta i l  of Conference Committee Changes 

Adjusts Add One-Time Total 
Adds Funding Funding for Funding for Conference 

for Salary Fire District Health Care Committee 
lncreases1 Payments1 Analysis1 Changes 

Salaries and wages $1 5,523 $1 5,523 
Operating expenses $200,000 200,000 
Insurance tax payments $1 8,81 8,030 18 ,818 ,030 

Total al l funds $1 5,523 $1 8,81 8,030 $200,000 $19 ,033,553 
Less estimated income 1 5,523 18,81 8,030 200,000 19 ,033,553 
General fund $0 $0 $0 $0 

FTE 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

1 Funding is adjusted to provide employee salary increases of 2 percent on Ju ly 1 ,  201 9, with a min imum monthly 
increase of $1 20 and a maximum monthly increase of $200, and 2.5 percent on Ju ly 1 ,  2020, the same as the 
House version. The Senate provided funding for a 2 percent salary increase on Ju ly 1 ,  201 9, and a 3 percent salary 
increase on July 1 ,  2020. 

2 Funding from the insurance tax distribution fund for payments to fire districts and the North Dakota Firefighter's 
Association is restored to reflect the removal of continuing appropriation authority approved by the Senate. The 
House also removed the continu ing appropriation authority. This amendment provides $ 1 7,989,505 to be distributed 
to fire departments , an increase of $3,753 ,944 from the base level .  The Senate provided an estimated $1 7,783,038 
and the House provided $1 6,773,750 for fire department payments. The amendment also provides $828,525 to be 
distributed to the North Dakota Firefighter's Association ,  the same as the base level .  The Senate provided an 
estimated $1 ,034,992 and the House provided $745,672 for the North Dakota Firefighter's Association .  This results 
in a general fund revenue reduction of $3,753,944 compared to the base level ,  the same as the Senate version and 
$1 ,298,608 more than the House version. 

3 One-time funding of $200,000 is appropriated for an analysis of health care in  the state to assist the Legislative 
Management in its study of health insurance premium trends pursuant to House Bi l l  No.  1 1 06.  Neither the House nor 
the Senate included funding for the health care analysis. 

Senate B i l l  No. 201 0  - Other Changes - Conference Committee Action 

This amendment also: 

Removes sections added by the Senate to provide continuing appropriation authority to the I nsurance 
Commissioner for fire department and North Dakota Firefighter's Association payments from the insurance tax 
distribution fund.  The House also removed these sections. 

Removes sections added by the Senate to provide for the transfer of the boiler inspection program to the 
Department of Envi ronmental Quality. The transfer of the program is provided for in the Senate version of 
House Bi l l  No.  1 024. 
Adjusts the section providing statutory changes necessary to increase the salary of the Insurance 
Commissioner, the same as the House version. 

Adds sections to provide statutory changes relating to rebates associated with obtain ing an insurance quote , 
the same as the House version. 

Adds a section to provide for the Insurance Department to conduct a detai led analysis of health care in  the 
state to assist the Legislative Management with its interim study of health insurance premium trends pursuant 
to House Bil l No. 1 1 06.  Neither the House nor the Senate included this section .  

Does not include a section added by  the House to  provide accident and  health insurance pol icies may not take 
into account any pre-existing condition of an appl icant. The Conference Committee amendment provides for a 
Legislative Management study of health insurance coverage for pre-existing conditions. 

Adds a section to provide legislative intent that fire departments util ize increased d istributions from the 
insurance tax d istribution fund to improve their I nsurance Service Office (ISO) ratings,  the same as the House 
version. 

Adds a section to provide for a Legislative Management study of the feasibi l ity and desirabi l ity of establ ishing a 
pension for volunteer firefighters ,  the same as the House version . 
Adds a section to declare the sections providing for the transfer of administration of the state bonding fund and 
the state fire and tornado fund to be an emergency. 
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201 9  SENATE CONFERENCE COMMITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES 

Date :  4/22/20 1 9  
Rol l  Ca l l  Vote #: 1 

B I LL/RESOLUTION  NO .  SB 20 1 0  as (re) engrossed 

Senate Appropriations Committee 

Action Taken � Adopt amendment 1 9 .0223.02006. 

Motion Made by : Representative Beadle Seconded by: Representative Bel lew 

Senators Yes No Representatives 
Senator Oeh l ke X Representative Bead le 411 nator Erbe le X Representative Brandenburq 

nator Grabinqer X Representative Bel lew 

Total Senate Vote 3 0 Total Rep. Vote 

Unan imous vo ice vote carried . 

Vote Count Yes : 6 No :  0 Absent: 0 

House Carrier -----------

Yes 
X 

X 

X 

3 

Senate Carrier 

LC Number of amendment 

No 

0 

LC N umber of eng rossment 

Emergency clause added or  de leted 

Statement of pu rpose of amendment 

• 

----------



• 201 9  SENATE CONFERENCE COMMITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES 

Date :  4/22/20 1 9 
Rol l  Ca l l  Vote #: 2 

B I LL/RESOLUTION NO .  SB  20 1 0 as (re) engrossed 

Senate Appropriations Committee 

Action Taken IZI Adopt proposed amendment from the insurance department re lating to 
a leg islative management study - health insurance. 

Motion Made by: Representative Beadle 

411 Senators Yes 
enator Oehlke X 

Senator Erbele X 

Senator Grabinger X 

Total Senate Vote 3 

No 

0 

Seconded by: Representative Brandenburg 

Representatives Yes No 
Representative Bead le X 

Representative BrandenburQ X 

Representative Bel lew X 

Total Rep. Vote 3 0 

Unan imous vo ice vote carried . 

Vote Count Yes :  6 

Senate Carrier 

LC N umber 

LC Number 

Emergency clause added or deleted 

Statement of pu rpose of amendment 

No :  0 Absent: 0 

House Carrier 

of amendment 

of engrossment ----------



201 9 SENATE CONFERENCE COMMITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES 

Date :  4/23/201 9 
Rol l  Ca l l  Vote #: 1 

B I LL/RESOLUTION NO .  SB 201 0 as (re) engrossed 

Senate Appropriations Committee 

Action Taken D SENATE accede to House Amendments 

D SENATE accede to House Amendments and further amend 

D HOUSE recede from House amendments 

� HOUSE recede from House amendments and amend as fol lows 

D Unable to agree, recommends that the committee be d ischarged and a new 
comm ittee be appointed . 

Motion Made by : Representative Beadle Seconded by: Representative Bel lew 

Senators 4/1 8 4/22 4/23 Yes No Representatives 4/1 8 4/22 4/23 Yes 
Senator Oeh lke X X X X Representative Bead le X X X 

Senator Erbele X X X X Representative Brandenburq X X X 

Senator Grabinqer X X X X Representative Bel lew X X X 

Total Senate Vote 3 0 Total Rep. Vote 

Vote Count Yes : 5 No :  1 Absent: 0 

Senate Carrier Senator Oeh l ke House Carrier Representative Bead le 

LC Number 1 9 . 0223 02007 of amendment 

X 
X 

2 

No 

X 

1 

LC Number 1 9 . 0223 . 04000 of eng rossment 

Emergency clause added or  de leted 

Statement of purpose of amendment 

----------



Com Conference Committee Report 
Apri l 24, 201 9 1 0 : 09AM 

Modu le ID :  s_cfcomrep_74_002 

Insert LC:  1 9 .0223.02007 
Senate Carrier: Oeh lke 
House Carrier: Bead le 

REPORT OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE 
SB 201 0,  as engrossed : Your  conference committee (Sens. Oeh lke ,  Erbele, Grab inger and 

Reps.  Bead le ,  Brandenburg ,  Bel lew) recommends that the HOUSE RECEDE from 
the House amendments as printed on SJ pages 1 572-1 576, adopt amendments as 
fo l lows , and place SB 201 0 on the Seventh order: 

That the House recede from its amendments as pr inted on pages 1 572- 1 576 of the Senate 
Journal and pages 1 740-1 744 of the House Journa l  and that Engrossed Senate B i l l  No .  
20 1 0  be amended as fo l lows : 

Page 1 ,  l i ne 2 ,  remove "chapter 23 . 1 - 1 6  and" 

Page 1 ,  l i ne 3 ,  remove "boi ler inspections and" 

Page 1 ,  l ine 4 ,  remove "sections 1 8-04-04 , 1 8-04-04 . 1 ,  and 1 8-04-05 , "  

Page 1 ,  l i ne  5 ,  replace "subsection 1 of  section 26 . 1 -03- 1 7 ,  and" with "subdiv is ion c of 
subsection 8 of section 26 . 1 -04-03 ,  subsection 2 of section 26. 1 -04-06 , "  

Page 1 ,  l i ne  6 ,  after "26 . 1 -23 . 1 -0 1 "  insert " ,  and  subsection 2 o f  section 26 . 1 -25- 1 6" 

Page 1 ,  l i ne 8 ,  after the second comma insert " insurance rebates ,"  

Page 1 ,  l i ne 9 ,  remove "to repeal chapter 26. 1 -22 . 1 of the North Dakota Century Code, 
re lating  to" 

Page 1 ,  l i ne 1 0 , replace "boi ler inspections ;  to provide a penalty ; "  with "to provide for a 
legis lative management study; to provide a statement of leg is lative in tent; to provide 
for a report; " 

Page 1 ,  l i ne 1 0 , remove "and to provide a" 

Page 1 ,  l i ne 1 1 ,  replace "cont ingent effective date" with "to provide for a pena lty; and to 
declare an emergency" 

Page 1 ,  replace l i nes 20 th rough 23 with : 

"Salaries and wages 
Operating expenses 
Total special funds 
Fu l l-time equ ivalent positions 

$8 ,549 ,567 
2, 1 79,777 

$ 1 0 ,729 , 344 
46 .00 

($399, 569) 
(4 1 3, 1 02) 

($8 1 2 , 67 1 )  
(5 . 00) 

$8 , 1 49 , 998 
1 ,766,675 

$9 , 9 1 6 ,673 
4 1 . 00 

SECTION 2. ONE-TIME FUNDING - EFFECT ON BASE BUDGET -
REPORT TO THE SIXTY-SEVENTH LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY. The fo l lowing 
amounts reflect one-time fund ing items approved by the sixty-fifth leg is lative 
assembly for the 20 1 7-1 9 bienn ium and the one-time fund ing  items inc luded in the 
appropriation in section 1 of this Act: 

One-Time Fund ing Description 
Health care analysis 
Total special funds 

201 7-1 9 
.$_Q 
$0 

201 9-2 1 
$200,000 
$200 , 000 

The 201 9-2 1 bienn ium one-time fund ing amounts are not a part of the 
entity's base budget for the 2021 -23 bienn i um .  The insurance commissioner shal l  
report to the appropriations committees of the sixty-seventh leg is lative assembly on 
the use of th is one-time fund ing for the bienn ium beg i nn ing  July 1 ,  20 1 9 , and end ing 
June 30 ,  202 1 . 
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Module ID :  s_cfcomrep_74_002 

Insert LC : 1 9 .0223 .02007 
Senate Carrier: Oehlke 
House Carrier: Beadle 

SECTION 3 .  APPROPRIATION. There is appropriated out of any moneys in 
the insurance tax d istribut ion fund i n  the state treasu ry, not otherwise appropriated , 
the sum of $ 1 8 , 8 1 8 , 030 ,  or so much of the sum as may be necessary, to the 
insurance commissioner for the pu rpose of provid i ng  payments, in accordance with 
provis ions of section 1 8-04-05 ,  to North Dakota fi re departments i n  the amount of 
$ 1 7 ,989 , 505 and payments to the North Dakota fi refighter's association in the 
amount of $828 ,525 ,  for the bienn ium beg i nn ing Ju ly 1 ,  20 1 9 , and end ing  June 30 ,  
202 1 . " 

Page 2 ,  remove l i nes 4 through 30 

Page 3 ,  remove l i nes 1 through 31 

Page 4 ,  remove l i nes 1 through 31 

Page 5 ,  remove l i nes 1 through 30 

Page 6 ,  remove l i nes 1 through 3 1  

Page 7 ,  remove l i nes 1 through 3 1  

Page 8 ,  remove l i nes 1 through 30 

Page 9 ,  remove l i nes 1 through 3 1  

Page 1 0 , remove l i nes 1 through 3 

Page 1 0 , l i ne 1 6 , replace "one hundred eleven thousand one hundred twenty-two" with "one 
hundred ten thousand five hundred eighty-two" 

Page 1 0 , remove l i nes 1 7  th rough 3 1  

Page 1 1 ,  replace l i nes 1 through 7 with : 

"SECTION 7. AMENDMENT. Subd ivis ion c of subsection 8 of section  
26 . 1 -04-03 of  the  North Dakota Centu ry Code is amended and reenacted as fo l lows: 

c .  Notwithstand ing any other provis ion i n  th is subsection ,  if the cost 
does not exceed an aggregate reta i l  value of one hundred dol lars 

( 1 ) DESK (2) COMMITTEE 

per person per year, an insurance prod ucer may g ive a g ift , prize, 
promotional art icle, logo merchand ise, mea l ,  or enterta i nment activity 
d i rectly or i nd i rectly to a person in connection with marketi ng ,  
promoting ,  or advertisi ng the  busi ness. As used in  th i s  subd iv is ion ,  
"person" means the named insured , pol icy owner, or prospective 
cl ient or the spouse of any of these i nd iv idua ls ,  but the term does not 
inc lude a certificate holder, ch i l d ,  or employee of the named insured , 
pol icy owner, or prospective cl ient . Subject to the l im its of th is 
subd iv is ion , an insurance prod ucer may g ive a g ift card for specific 
merchand ise or services such as a mea l ,  gasol i ne ,  or car wash but 
may not g ive cash ,  a cash card , any form of currency, or any refund 
or d iscount i n  prem ium.  An insurance prod ucer may not cond it ion the 
g iv ing of a g ift, prize , promotion art icle, logo merchand ise ,  meal ,  or 
enterta inment activity on obta in ing  a quote or a contract of 
insurance. Notwithstand ing the l im itation i n  th is subd iv is ion ,  an 
insurance prod ucer may make a donation to a nonprofit organ ization 
that is exempt from federal taxation u nder I nternal Revenue Code 
section 501 (c)(3) [26 U . S .C .  501 (c) (3)) i n  any amount as long as the 
donation is not g iven as an ind ucement to obta in a quote or a 
contract of insurance. 
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SECTION 8 .  AMENDMENT. Subsection 2 of section 26. 1 -04-06 of the North 
Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as fo l lows : 

2 .  Notwithstand ing any  other provision i n  th is section , i f  t he  cost does not 
exceed an aggregate reta i l  va lue of one hundred do l lars per person per 
year, an insurance producer may g ive a g ift, prize, promotional  article , 
logo merchand ise, mea l ,  or enterta inment activity d i rectly or i nd i rectly to 
a person in con nection with marketi ng ,  promoti ng ,  or advert is ing the 
business. As used in th is subsection , "person" means the named insured ,  
pol icy owner, or prospective c l ient or the spouse of any of these 
ind ivid ua ls ,  but the term does not inc lude a certificate holder, ch i l d ,  or 
employee of the named insured , pol icy owner, or prospective cl ient .  
Subject to the l im its of th is subsection ,  an insurance producer may g ive a 
g ift card for specific merchand ise or services such as a meal , gaso l i ne ,  or 
car wash but may not g ive cash , a cash card , any form of currency, or 
any refund or d iscount i n  prem ium.  An insurance producer may not 
cond it ion the g iv ing of a g ift, prize, p romotiona l  article, logo merchand ise, 
mea l ,  or enterta inment activity on obta in ing  a quote or a contract of 
insurance. Notwithstand ing the l im itation i n  th is subsection , an insurance 
producer may make a donation to a nonprofit organ ization that is exempt 
from federal taxation under I nternal Revenue Code section 501 (c) (3) (26 
U . S .C .  501 (c) (3)] in any amount as long as the donat ion is not g iven as 
an inducement to obta in a quote or a contract of i nsurance . "  

Page 1 3 , replace l i nes 22 throug h 28 with : 

"SECTION 1 4. AM ENDMENT. Subsection 2 of section 26. 1 -25- 1 6 of the 
North Dakota Centu ry Code is amended and reenacted as fo l lows : 

2 .  Notwithstand ing any other provis ion i n  th is section ,  if the cost does not 
exceed an aggregate reta i l  va lue of one hundred do l lars per person per 
year, an insurance producer may g ive a g ift, prize, promotiona l  art ic le, 
logo merchand ise, mea l ,  or enterta inment activity d i rectly or  i nd i rectly to 
a person i n  con nection with marketing ,  promoting ,  or advertis ing the 
business. As used in  this subsection , "person" means the named insured ,  
pol icy owner, or prospective c l ient or the spouse of any of these 
ind iv idua ls ,  but the term does not i nc lude a certificate holder, ch i l d ,  or 
employee of the named insured , pol icy owner, or prospective cl ient .  
Subject to the l im its of this subsection ,  an insurance producer may g ive a 
g ift card for specific merchand ise or services such as a meal ,  gaso l i ne ,  or 
car wash but may not g ive cash ,  a cash card , any form of currency, or 
any refund or d iscount i n  prem ium.  An insurance producer may not 
cond it ion the g iv ing of a g ift, prize, promotional  art ic le, logo merchand ise, 
meal , or enterta inment activity on obta in ing  a quote or a contract of 
insurance .  Notwithstand ing the l im itation i n  th is subsection ,  an insurance 
producer may make a donation to a nonprofit organ ization that is exempt 
from federal taxation under I nternal Revenue Code section 501  (c) (3) [26 
U . S .C .  501  (c) (3)] in any amount as long as the donation is not g iven as 
an inducement to obta in a quote or a contract of insurance. 

SECTION 1 5. REPORT TO THE LEGISLATIVE MANAG EMENT -
INSURANCE DEPARTM ENT ANALYSIS OF H EALTH CARE - HOSPITAL 
REPORTING - PENALTY. Dur ing the 201 9-20 interim ,  the insurance department 
shal l assist the leg is lative management with the interim study of health insurance 
prem ium trends as approved by the sixty-sixth legis lative assembly i n  House B i l l  No. 
1 1 06.  During the i nterim ,  the insurance department sha l l  conduct a deta i led analysis 
of health care in  the state and submit the report to the leg is lative management. 
During the interim ,  upon request of the insurance department, hospitals i n  cities with 
a popu lation exceed ing ten thousand shal l  provide the insurance department 
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requested data regard ing  b i l l i ng and payment information ,  financia l  information ,  
management information ,  a n d  other information the insurance department deems 
necessary to complete a deta i led analysis of health care i n  the state . The department 
may not req uest data that inc lude personal ly identifiable i nformation and the 
hospita ls may provide data i n  the aggregate. I f  a hospita l fa i ls ,  without just cause, to 
provide the i nsurance department with requested data as requ i red under  th is section , 
the i nsurance commissioner may charge the hospital a civi l  penalty of up  to one 
thousand do l lars per day the hospita l is i n  vio lation .  

SECTION 1 6 . LEGISLATIVE INTENT - INSURANCE TAX DISTRIBUTION 
FUND PAYMENTS TO F IRE DEPARTMENTS. I t is the i ntent of the sixty-s ixth 
legis lative assembly that, when feasib le ,  fi re departments uti l ize i ncreased payments 
from the i nsurance tax d istr ibution fund to improve their i nsurance service office 
rating .  

SECTION 1 7. LEGISLATIVE MANAGEMENT STUDY - H EALTH 
INSURANCE - P RE-EXISTING CONDITIONS. During the 201 9-20 interim ,  the 
legis lative management sha l l  consider studying the feasib i l ity and desirabi l ity of state 
guaranteed issue provis ions for hea lth i nsurance . The study must inc lude 
consideration of protections for ind ivid uals with pre-existi ng cond itions and 
consideration of whether to restructu re the comprehensive health association of 
North Dakota . The leg is lative management shal l  report its fi nd ings and 
recommendations ,  together with any leg is lation req u i red to implement the 
recommendations ,  to the sixty-seventh leg is lative assembly. 

SECTION 1 8 . LEGISLATIVE MANAGEMENT STUDY - VOLUNTEER 
FIREFIGHTER PENSION.  During the 20 1 9-20 i nterim ,  the leg is lative management 
shal l  cons ider study ing the feasib i l ity and des i rab i l ity of establ ish ing a pension for 
volunteer firefighters . The study must inc lude a review of fi refighter  needs i n  the state 
and benefits provided to volunteer fi refighters in other states. The legis lative 
management sha l l  report its fi nd ings and recommendations ,  together with any 
legis lation requ i red to imp lement the recommendations ,  to the sixty-seventh 
legis lative assembly. 

SECTION 1 9 . EM ERGENCY. Sections 9, 1 0 , 1 1 ,  1 2 ,  and 1 3  of th is Act are 
declared to be an emergency measu re . "  

Renumber accord ing ly 

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDM ENT: 

Senate B i l l  No.  201 0 - I nsurance Department - Conference Committee Action 
Conference Conference 

Base Senate Committee Committee House Comparison to 
Budget Version Changes Version Version House 

Salaries and wages $8,549,567 $8, 1 34,475 $1 5,523 $8, 1 49,998 $8, 1 49,998 
Operating expenses 2 , 1 79,777 1 ,566,675 200,000 1 ,766, 675 1 , 566, 675 $200,000 
Insurance tax payments 1 5 , 064,086 1 8,8 1 8,030 1 8, 8 1 8,030 1 7 ,5 1 9,422 1 , 298, 608 

Total al l funds $25,793,430 $9,70 1 , 1 50 $ 1 9,033, 553 $28,734,703 $27,236,095 $1 ,498,608 
Less estimated i ncome 25,793 ,430 9,701 , 1 50 1 9, 033,553 28,734,703 27, 236,095 1 ,498,608 
General fund $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

FTE 46.00 41 .00 0.00 41 . 00 41 .00 0 .00 
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Department 401 - Insurance Department - Deta i l  of Conference Committee Changes 

Adjusts Funding for Add One-Time 
Adds Funding for Fire District Funding for Health Total Conference 
Salary Increases' Payments1 Care Analysis1 Committee Changes 

Salaries and wages $1 5,523 $1 5,523 
Operating expenses $200,000 200,000 
Insurance tax payments $1 8 ,8 1 8 , 030 1 8 ,8 1 8,030 

Total all funds $1 5,523 $1 8 ,8 1 8 , 030 $200,000 $ 1 9,033,553 
Less estimated i ncome 1 5 , 523 18 , 8 1 8,030 200,000 19 , 033,553 

General fund $0 $0 $0 $0 

FTE 0.00 0 .00 0 .00 0 .00 

1 Fund ing is adj usted to provide employee salary i ncreases of 2 percent on J u ly 1 ,  20 1 9 , with 
a min imum month ly i ncrease of $ 1 20 and a maximum month ly increase of $200, and 2 . 5  
percent o n  J u ly 1 ,  2020 , the same a s  the House vers ion .  The Senate provided fund ing for a 
2 percent salary increase on Ju l y  1 ,  20 1 9 , and a 3 percent salary increase on J u ly 1 ,  2020. 
2 Funding from the insurance tax d istri bution fund for payments to fi re d istricts and the North 
Dakota F irefighter's Association is restored to reflect the remova l of conti nu i ng  appropriation 
authority approved by the Senate . The House also removed the conti nu ing appropriation 
authority. This amendment provides $ 1 7 , 989, 505 to be d istributed to fi re departments, an 
increase of $3 ,753 ,944 from the base leve l .  The Senate provided an estimated $ 1 7 ,783 , 038 
and the House provided $ 1 6 , 773 , 750 for fi re department payments .  The amendment also 
provides $828, 525 to be d istributed to the North Dakota F i refighter's Association ,  the same 
as the base leve l .  The Senate provided an estimated $ 1 , 034 , 992 and the House provided 
$745 ,672 for the North Dakota F i refighter's Association . This resu lts i n  a genera l  fund 
revenue reduction of $3 ,753 ,944 compared to the base leve l ,  the same as the Senate 
version and $ 1 ,298 ,608 more than the House version . 
3 One-time fund ing of $200, 000 is appropriated for an analysis of health care i n  the state to 
assist the Leg is lative Management in its study of health insurance prem ium trends pursuant 
to House Bi l l  No .  1 1 06 .  Neither the House nor the Senate inc luded fund ing for the health 
care analysis .  

Senate Bi l l  No. 201 0  - Other Changes - Conference Committee Action 

This amendment also: 
Removes sect ions added by the Senate to provide conti nu ing appropriat ion authority 
to the I nsurance Commissioner for fi re department and North Dakota F i refighter's 
Association payments from the insurance tax d istri bution fund .  The House also 
removed these sections .  

• Removes sect ions added by the Senate to provide for the transfer  of the boi ler 
inspection program to the Department of Environmental Qua l ity. The transfer of the 
program is provided for in  the Senate version of House Bi l l  No .  1 024.  

• Adjusts the section provid ing statutory changes necessary to increase the salary of 
the I nsurance Commissioner, the same as the House version . 
Adds sections to provide statutory changes re lati ng to rebates associated with 
obtai n ing an insurance quote , the same as the House version .  
Adds a section to  provide for t he  I nsurance Department to  conduct a deta i led 
analysis of health care in the state to assist the Leg islative Management with its 
interim study of health insurance prem ium trends pursuant to House B i l l  No .  
1 1 06 .  Neither the House nor the Senate i nc luded th is  section .  
Does not inc lude a section added b y  the House to provide accident a n d  health 
insurance pol ic ies may not take into account any pre-existing cond it ion of an 
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appl icant. The Conference Committee amendment provides for a Leg is lative 
Management study of hea lth insurance coverage for pre-existi ng  cond it ions .  

• Adds a section to provide legis lative i ntent that fire departments ut i l ize i ncreased 
d istri but ions from the insurance tax d istri bution fund to improve their I nsu rance 
Service Office ( I SO) rati ngs ,  the same as the House vers ion .  

• Adds a section to provide for a Leg is lative Management study of the feas ib i l ity and 
desirab i l ity of estab l ish ing a pens ion for vo lunteer fi refig hters , the same as the 
House vers ion .  
Adds a section to declare the sections provid ing for the transfer of  admin istration of 
the state bond ing  fund and the state fi re and tornado fund to be an emergency. 

Eng rossed SB  20 1 0 was placed on the Seventh order of business on the ca lendar. 
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Prepared for the Senate Appropriations Comm ittee 

Department 401 - Insurance Commissioner, Including Insurance Tax Payments to Fire 
Departments 
Senate Bill No. 201 0 

E xecu Ive u 1ge f B d t C  

201 9-21 Executive Budget 
20 1 7- 1 9  Leg islative Appropriations 

I ncrease (Decrease) 

omparison o rior Ienmum t P · B"  
FTE Positions General Fund 

44.00 
46.00 

(2 .00) 

On and One-Time Other Funds A 

,pproprIa ions A · r  
Other Funds Total 

$0 $25,587,964 $25 ,587,964 
0 25,793 ,430 25,793,430 

$0 ($205,466) ($205,466) 

Ongoing General Fund 
A ro riation 

One-Time General  
Fund A ro riation 

Total General Fund 
A ro riation 

201 9-21 Executive Budget 
201 7- 1 9  Legis lative Appropriations 

I ncrease Decrease 

Agency Funding 

$25,587,964 
25,793,430 

$205,466 

FTE Positions 

$0 
0 

$0 

$25,587 ,964 
25,793,430 

$205,466 

$30.00 
$26.38 

$25.00 

II) 
$20.00 -

$1 5.00 i >---

$1 0.00 >---

$5.00 � 
$0.00 

$0.00 

$1!!5 
$25.79 -

$0.00 $0.00 

$25.59 
-

-

-

-

-
$0.00 

50.00 -,---'---'-'----==---------� 
49.00 -1----------',.,_------------1 
48.00 +---------�---------1 
47.00 -l----------__,.,.----------1 
46.00 +-----------a:-----� 
45.00 +------------""""":----� 
44.00 +--------------�-� 
43.00 +---------------------i 
42.00 +--------------------1 
41 .00 +-----�---�---�-----I 

201 3-1 5 201 5-1 7 201 7-1 9 201 9-21  201 3-1 5 201 5-1 7 201 7-1 9 201 9-21 

• General Fund a Other Funds 

E xecutive 

201 9-21 Executive Budget 
201 9-21 Base Level 

I ncrease (Decrease) 

Executive 
Budget 

u 1get B d C omparIson to 
General Fund 

$0 
0 

$0 

B ase L eve 
Other Funds 

$25,587,964 
25,793,430 

($205,466) 

Executive 
Budget 

Total 
$25,587,964 

25,793,430 

($205,466) 

Attached as an appendix is a detai led comparison of the executive budget to the agency's base level appropriations. 

Executive Budget Highlights 
General Fund 

1 .  Provides fund ing for state employee salary and benefit increases,  $0 
of which $353,324 is for salary increases , $ 1 66,279 is for health 
insurance increases, and $42,801 is  for retirement contribution 
increases 

2. Removes 3 FTE positions and transfers admin istration of the fire 
and tornado fund  and the bonding fund to the insurance reserve 
fund 

3 .  Adds  fund ing to contract with the insurance reserve fund  for fund 
admin istration 

4. Adds  1 FTE consumer assistance outreach position 

5 .  Reduces fund ing for operating expenses, inc luding travel ,  
information technology, a n d  professional services 

6.  Adds fund ing for Microsoft Office 365 l icensing expenses 

$0 

$0 

$0 

$0 

$0 

Other Funds 

$562,404 

($6 1 0 ,352) 

$660,804 

$29,824 

($636,62 1 )  

$24, 1 53 

Total 

$562 ,404 

($61 0 ,352) 

$660,804 

$29,824 

($636,62 1 ) 

$24, 1 53 
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Other Sections Recommended to be Added in the Executive Budget 
(As Detailed in the Attached Appendix) 

I nsurance tax distribution fund - Section 2 would designate $ 14, 1 1 3,086 for payments to fire departments and $951 ,000 for 
payments to the North Dakota Firefighters Association .  

State fi re and tornado fund - Section 3 would designates $660,804 from the state fire and  tornado fund to pay state fire and 
tornado fund administrative expenses and $893,509 from the state fire and tornado fund to pay boiler inspection program 
expenses. 

Unsatisfied judgment fund - Section 4 would designate $28,390 from the state unsatisfied judgment fund to pay unsatisfied 
judgment fund administrative expenses. 

Insurance Commissioner's salary - Section 5 would provide the statutory changes necessary to increase the Insurance 
Commissioner's salary by 4 percent the 1 st year and 2 percent the 2nd year as fol lows: 

Annual salary authorized by the Legislative Assembly in 201 7: 

Ju ly 1 ,  201 7  
Ju l  1 , 201 8  

$1 05,770 
$1 05,770 

Proposed annual salary recommendation in  the 201 9-21 executive budget: 

July 1 ,  201 9  
Ju l  1 , 2020 

$1 1 0,001 
$1 1 2,201 

Fund administration - Sections 6,  7 ,  and 8 would provide statutory changes necessary to al low the I nsurance Commissioner 
to contract with the insurance reserve fund for administration of the state fire and tornado fund and the state bonding fund. 

Fees - Section 9 would amend North Dakota Century Code Section 26. 1 -01 -07 relating to fees chargeable by the I nsurance 
Commissioner to adjust fees charged to county mutual insurance companies and benevolent societies. 

Continuing Appropriations 
There are no continuing appropriations for this agency. 

Significant Audit F indings 
There were no sign ificant audit findings for this agency. 

Major Related Legislation 
House Bi l l  No. 1 028 - Provides for a Publ ic Employees Retirement System self- insurance plan for health benefits coverage 
under the Insurance Commissioner. 
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I nsurance Commissioner, includ ing Insurance Tax Payments to F i re 

Departments - Budget No. 401 

Senate B i l l  No. 201 0 

Base Level Fund ing Changes 
Executive Budget Recommendation 

FTE General Other 
Positions Fund Funds Total 

201 9-21 Biennium Base Level 46.00 $0 $25,793,430 $25,793,430 

201 9-21 Ongoing Funding Changes 
Base payroll changes ($ 1 27,688) ($1 27,688) 
Salary increase 353, 324 353,324 
Health insurance increase 1 66 ,279 1 66,279 
Retirement contribution increase 42 ,801  42 ,801 
Underfund salaries and wages ( 1 07,990) ( 1 07,990) 
Add 1 FTE consumer assistance outreach 1 .00 29,824 29 , 824 
coordinator position 
Remove 3 FTE positions related to the (3.00) (61 0 , 352) (61 0 , 352) 
transfer of admin istration of the fire and 
tornado fund and bond ing fund to the 
insurance reserve fund 
Add funding to contract with the insurance 660,804 660, 804 
reserve fund for fund adm inistration 
Reduce funding for operating expenses , (636,62 1 ) (636 ,621 ) 
including travel, information technology, and 
professional services 
Add fund ing for Microsoft Office 365 24, 1 53 24, 1 53 
l icensing expenses 
Total ongoing funding changes (2.00) $0 ($205,466) ($205,466) 

One-time funding items 
No one-time funding items $0 
Total one-time funding changes 0 .00 $0 $0 $0 

Total Changes to Base Level Funding (2.00) $0 ($205 ,466) ($205,466) 

201 9-21 Total Funding 44.00 $0 $25, 587,964 $25, 587,964 

Other Sections for Insurance Commissioner, including Insurance Tax Payments to Fire 
Departments - Budget No. 401 

I nsurance tax distribution fund 

State fi re and tornado fund 

Executive Budget Recommendation 
Section 2 would designate $ 1 4 , 1 1 3 ,086 for payments to 
fire departments and $951 , 000 for payments to the North 
Dakota F irefighter's Association. 
Section 3 would designate $660, 804 from the state fi re 
and tornado fund to pay state fi re and tornado fund 
admin istrative expenses and $893,509 from the state fire 
and tornado fund to pay boiler inspection program 
expenses. 



Other Sections for I nsurance Commissioner, includ ing I nsurance Tax Payments to Fire 
Departments - Budget No. 401 

Unsatisfied j udgment fund 

I nsurance Commissioner's salary 

Fund admin istration 

Fees 

Executive Budget Recommendation 
Section 4 would designate $28,390 from the state 
unsatisfied judgment fund to pay unsatisfied j udgment 
fund admin istrative expenses. 
Section 5 would provide the statutory changes necessary 
to increase the Insurance Commissioner's salary to 
$1 1 0 ,001 beginning July 1 ,  201 9 ,  and $1 1 2 ,201 beginning 
Ju ly 1 ,  2020. 
Sections 6 ,  7 , and 8 would provide statutory changes 
necessary to al low the I nsurance Commissioner to 
contract with the insurance reserve fund for admin istration 
of the state fire and tornado fund and the state bonding 
fund. 
Section 9 wou ld amend North Dakota Century Code 
Section 26. 1 -01 -07 relating to fees chargeable by the 
I nsurance Commissioner to adjust fees charged to county 
mutual insurance companies and benevolent societies. 



Prepared by the Legislative Counci l  staff 

Department 401 - Insurance Commissioner, Including Insurance Tax Payments to Fire 
Departments 

H istorical Appropriations I nformation 

Ongoing Other Funds Appropriations Since 2011-13 

Ongoing Other Funds Appropriations ( in Mi l l ions) FTE Positions 
$35.00 �--------------� 54.00 
$30.00 $28.03 

52.00 
$25.00 50.00 49.50 49.50 49.50 - - -......... $20.00 48.00 
$1 5.00 46.00 

�00 

$1 0.00 44.00 
-�oo 

$5.00 42.00 
$0.00 40.00 

201 1 -1 3  201 3-1 5 201 5-1 7 201 7-1 9 201 9-21 
Executive 

Budget 

201 1 -1 3  201 3-1 5 201 5-1 7 201 7-1 9 201 9-21 
Executive 

Budget 

Ongoing Other Fund Appropriations 

201 1 -1 3  201 3-1 5 201 5-1 7 201 7-1 9 
Ongoing general fund appropriations $ 1 7 ,974,080 $26,377,090 $28 ,026 ,346 $25,793,430 

Increase (decrease) from previous biennium N/A 8 ,403,01 0  1 ,649,256 ($2 ,232 ,9 16) 

Percentage increase (decrease) from N/A 46.8% 6 .3% (8 .0%) 
previous biennium 

Cumulative percentage increase (decrease) N/A 46.8% 55.9% 43.5% 
from 201 1 -1 3  biennium 

Major Increases (Decreases) in Ongoing General Fund Appropriations 
201 3-1 5 Bienn ium 

1 .  I ncreased funding from the insurance tax d istribution fund for grants to fire d istricts to provide a total 
of $ 1 4 ,536,386 for grants to fire departments and $800,000 to the North Dakota Firefighter's 
Association 

2 .  Reduced funding for operating expenses 

201 5-1 7 Bienn ium 
1 .  I ncreased funding from the insurance tax d istribution fund for grants to  fire districts to  provide a total 

of $1 5,68 1 ,207 for grants to fire departments and $890,000 to the North Dakota Firefighter's 
Association 

2 .  Adjusted funding for operating expenses relating primarily to actuarial services , travel ,  and office 
rental 

201 7-1 9 Bienn ium 
1 .  Removed 3 .5 FTE positions 

2. Reduced funding for operating expenses 

3 . Reduced grants to fire departments to provide total ongoing funding of $1 4,235,561 from the 
insurance tax distribution fund 

201 9-21 Biennium (Executive Budget Recommendation) 
1 .  Removes 3 FTE positions relating to the transfer of fund administration duties 

2 .  Adds funding to contract with the insurance reserve fund for fund administration 

3 . Adds 1 FTE consumer outreach coordinator position 

4 .  Reduces funding for operating expenses , including travel ,  i nformation technology, and professional 
services 

201 9-21 
Executive 

Budget 
$25,587,964 

($205,466) 

(0 .8%) 

42.4% 

$8,296,386 

($690 ,892) 

$1 ,234,821 

($345,966) 

($724,488) 

($357,265) 

($1 ,445,646) 

($61 0 ,352) 

$660,804 

$29,824 

($636,62 1 )  

January 8 ,  201 9  



GOVERNOR'S RECOMMENDATION FOR THE 
INSURANCE COMMISSIONER AS SUBMITTED 

BY 'THE OFFICE OF MANAGEMENT AND BUDGET 

SECTION 1 .  APPROPRIA TlON. The funds provided in this section, or so much of the funds as may 
be necessary, are appropriated from spec_ial fi.mds derived from federal funds and other income, to the 
insurance commissioner for the purpose of defraying the expenses of that agency, for the biennium 
beginn ing Ju ly 1 ,  201 9;  and ending June 30, 202 1 , as follows: 

Salaries and wages 
Operating expenses 
Total specia l  funds 

Ful l-t ime equ ivalent positions· 

Base Level 
$8,549,567 
2,1 79,777 

$1 0,729,344 

46.00 

Adjustments or 
Enhancements 

($253,802) 
48,336 

($205,466) 

(2 .00) 

Appropriation 
$8 ,295,765 

2,228, 1 1 3  
$1 0,523,878 

44.00 

SECTION 2 .  A P P  R O  P R  I A T  I O N. There is appropriated out of any moneys in the insurance tax 
distribution fund in  the state treasury, not otherwise appropriated, the sum of $1 5 ,064,086 or so much of 
the sum as may be necessary, to the insurance commissioner for the purpose of providing payments , in  
accordance with provisions of section 1 8-04-05, to North Dakota fire departments in the amount of 
$ 14, 1 1 3,086 and payments to the North Dakota firefighter's association in the amount of $951 ,000 for 
the bienn ium beg inn ing Ju ly 1 ,  201 9 ,  and ending June 30, 2021 . 

SECTION 3. FIRE AND TORNADO FUND. Section 1 .  of this Act includes $660,804 from the state 
fire and tornado fund to pay fi re and tornado fund administrative expenses, and $893,509 to pay boi ler 
inspection program expenses for the bienn ium beg inn ing July 1 ,  201 9, and ending June 30, 2021 . 

SECTION 4 .  UNSATISFIED JUDGMENT FUND. Section 1 of this Act includes $28,390 from the 
state unsatisfied judgment fund to pay unsatisfied judgment fund administrative expenses for the 
bienn ium beginn ing Ju ly 1 ,  201 9 ,  and ending June 30, 2021 . 

SECTION 5. AMENDMENT. Section 26. 1 -01-..09 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and 
reenacted as fol lows: 

26.1 -01 -09. Salary of commissioner. 

The annual salary of the commissioner is one hundred five thousand seven hundred eighty dollars 
through June 3Q1 .201 � and one h_undred ten thousand and one dollar through June 30, 2020 and one 
hundred twelve thousand two hundred and one dol lar thereafter. 

SECTION 7. AMENDMENT; Section 26. 1-2 1 -03 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and 
reenacted as fol lows: 

26.1 -21 -03. Commiss ioner may employ assistants. 

The commissioner may employ assistants or contract for the services of assistants using money from 
the reserve fund dfthe state bonding fund as  may be necessary to operate the fund .  

SECTION 8. AMENDMENT. Section 26. 1-22-03 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and 
reenacted as fol lows: 

26.1 -22-03. Employment of assistants - Expenditures from fund. 
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To carry out this chapter, the commissioner may uti l ize any information on  fi le in the state fire 
marshal's department and any of the employees of the commissioner and the commissioner may employ 
necessary assistants or contract for the services of assistants from the North Dakota insurance reserve 
fund using money from the reserves of the fund and incur necessary expenses that may be paid from the 
reserves of the fund.  

SECTION 9. AMENDMENT. Subsection 2 of section 26. 1 -0 1 -07 of the North Dakota Century Code 
is amended and reenacted as fol lows: 

26.1 -01 -07. Fees chargeable by commissioner. 

1 .  The commissioner shal l  charge and collect the fol lowing fees: 
a .  For fi l ing articles of incorporation,  or copies, or amendments thereof, twenty-five dol lars .  
b .  For each orig inal certificate of authority issued upon admittance and for each annual 

renewal thereof, one hundred dollars and for amendment to certificate of authority, or 
certified copy thereof, fifty dol lars. 

c. For issuing an annual reciprocal exchange l icense, the same fees as those applicable to the 
issuance of a certificate of authority in subsection 2. 

d .  For fi l ing an  annual report of a fraternal benefit society, and  issuing a l icense o r  permit to 
the society, and for each renewal thereof, one hundred dol lars. 

e. For fi l ing of articles of merger, or copies thereof, thirty dol lars. 
f. For fi l ing an annual statement, twenty-five dol lars .  
g .  For fi l ing the abstract of the annual statement of an insurance company for publication ,  thirty 

dol lars .  
h .  For an official examination , the expenses of the examination at the rate adopted by the 

department. The rates must be reasonably related to the d irect and indirect costs of the 
examination ,  including actual travel expenses, includ ing hotel and other l iving expenses, 
compensation of the examiner and other persons making the examination ,  and necessary 
attendant admin istrative costs of the department d irectly related to the examination and 
must be paid by the examined insurer together with compensation upon presentation by the 
department to the insurer of a detai led account of the charges and expenses after a detai led 
statement has been fi led by the examiner and approved by the department. 

i .  For  issuing a certificate to a domestic insurance company showing a compliance with the 
compulsory reserve provisions of this title and the maintenance of proper security deposits 
and for any renewal of the certificate, twenty-five dol lars. 

j . For a written l icensee's examination not administered by the office of the commissioner 
under a contract with a testing service, the actual cost of the examination ,  subject to 
approval of the commissioner, which must be paid to the testing service. 

k. For issuing a surplus l ines i nsurance producer's or insurance consultant's l icense, one 
hundred dol lars. For each annual renewal of a surplus l ines insurance producer's or 
insurance consultant's license, twenty-five dol lars .  

I . For issuing an i nsurance producer's l icense, one hundred dol lars. 
m .  For  issuing a dupl icate of any l icense or reg istration issued under this title, ten dol lars .  
n .  For each insurance company appointment and renewal of an appointment of an insurance 

producer, ten dol lars. 
o. For each company appl ication for admission ,  five hundred dol lars, except appl ications for 

admission for county mutual ,  fraternal benefit, and surplus l ines companies must be one 
hundred dol lars. 

p. For issuing a l icense and each annual renewal of a l icense to an insurance premium finance 
company, one hundred dollars .  
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q .  For examining or  investigating an insurance premium finance company, the actual expense 
and per diem incurred; but the per diem charge may not exceed fifty dollars. 

r. For issuing and each annual renewal of a license to an advisory organization, fifty dollars. 
s. For filing an individual insurance producer licensing continuation, twenty-five dollars. 

2 .  Nonprofit health service corporations and health maintenance organizations are subject to the 
same fees as any other insurance company. County mutual insurance companies and benevolent 
societies are liable only for the fees mentioned in subdivisions b, f, g, and * h of subsection 1 .  

SECTION 6. AMENDMENT. Section 26. 1 -23 . 1 -01  of the North Dakota Century Code is amended 
and reenacted as follows: 

26.1 -23.1 -01 . Government self-insurance pools - Regulation - Reinsurance. 

1 .  Any two or more entities that have united to self-insure against thei r legal liability under chapter 32-
1 2 . 1  or any state agency that unites with another state agency or political subdivision, or both, to self
insure against their legal liabilities are subject to the provisions of this chapter with the exception of a city 
and its park district established pursuant to chapter 40-49. Government self-insurance pools may only 
provide coverage of the following types for pool members, their officers, employees, and agents: 

a. Casualty insurance, including general, public officials, and professional liability 
coverages. 

b. Automobile insurance, including motor vehicle liability insurance coverage, security for motor 
vehicles owned or operated as required by chapter 26. 1 -41 , and protection against other liability 
and laws associated with the ownership of motor vehicles and automobile physical damage 
coverages. 
c. Property insurance, including inland marine coverage, money and securities coverage, and extra 
expense coverage. However, this subdivision does not authorize government self-insurance pools 
to write those types of insurance coverages offered by the state fire and tornado fund under the 
provisions of chapter 26. 1 -22 as they existed on December 3 1 , 1 988. unless a government self
insurance pool enters into a contract with the commissioner to provide services for the state fire 
and tornado fund under the provisions of 26. 1 -22-03. 
d. Other coverages authorized by the commissioner and necessary to a pool's membership. 

2. A government self-insurance pool may not expose itself to loss on any single risk or hazard in an 
amount exceeding ten percent of the amount of its admitted assets unless the pool obtains excess 
insurance or reinsurance with insurance companies approved for such business by the insurance 
commissioner. 
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Good morning Mr. Chainnan and members of the Senate Appropriations Committee. For the 
record , my name is  Jon Godfread , Insurance Commissioner. Before we get into the changes we  
are proposing to  our budget, I wanted first t o  give you a very brief summary of our insurance 
industry here in North Dakota and our Insurance Department . 

ND Insurance Industry and Regulation-At a Glance: 

The No11h Dakota Insurance Department is a special funded agency that primarily serves as a 
consumer protection agency for No11h Dakota. We receive our funding from the Insurance 
regulatory trust fund, which i s  funded by al l taxes , fees and fines paid for by insurance 
companies and agents operating in thi s state. 

It i s  the mission of the North Dakota Insurance Department to protect the public good by fairly 
and effectively administering the laws of North Dakota. We are committed to vigorous consumer 
protection efforts, while  fostering a strong, competitive marketplace that provides consumers 
with choices and access to high-qual i ty insurance products and services at competitive prices . In 
pursuit of our mission, we treat all our constituencies with the highest ethical standards and 
respect they deserve. 

The North Dakota Insurance Department takes pride in helping our citizens by providing 
effective, resource fit! and caring services while inspiring the h ighest level of consumer trust. 

We remain committed to vigorous consumer protection whi l e  fostering a strong, competitive 
market place that provides consumers with choice and access to high-quality insurance products 
and services at competitive prices. The Department contributed $55 . 1 mil l ion in premium tax 
revenue to the state ' s  General Fund l ast fiscal year. Including turn-back, the Department 
contributed $59.4M to the General Fund in 20 1 7 . 
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Total remi w e 

Net premium tax collected (General Fund 

dollars 

Claims, losses and benefits paid to consumers 

Consumer rehef from complaints and hotline 

contacts 

Enforcement fines from agents and companies 

Prescri tion Connection r am 
Number of No Dakotans assisted 

Savin s for North Dakota citizens 

Insw-.nce regulatory trust fund; tum back to the 

General Fund 

Net premium tax collected (General Fund dollars) 

lnsw-.nce regulatory trust fund; tum back to the 

General Fund 

Total Contribution to the General Fund 

2007 2008 

$3,700,000,000 $4,325,613,863 

$27,000,000 $33,590,545 

$27,000,000 $3,0 12,236, 1 8 1  

$3,300,000 $ 1 ,400,000 

$754,000 $25,795 

$27,000,000 $33,590,545 

$3,455 , 194 $3,894,82 1 

$30,455,194 $37,485,366 

• 
North Dakota Insurance Industry 

2009 20 10 

$4,044,836,633 $4, 19 1 ,934,7 14 $4,94 1 ,246,953 $5,046,323,923 

$34,2 18,272 $3 1 , 10 1 ,2 1 1  $34,8 13 , 193 $35,736,397 

$2,865,404,3 1 1  $3,007,791 ,719 $4,263,096,958 $3, 1 53,594,767 

$ 1 ,400,000 $75 1 , 1 98 $ 1 ,255,655,61 $ 1 , 1 26,575.76 

$42,850 $ 16,0 13  $ 1 ,000 $ 1 ,257,06 1 

Contributions to the General Fund 

$34,2 1 8,272 $3 1 , 1 0 1 ,2 1 1  $34,8 13 , 193 $35,736,397 

$2,384,455 $3,9 1 5,348 $2,979,660 $3,546,995 

$36,602,727 $35,016,559 $37,792,853 $39,283,392 

Contributions to the General Fund 20 17  
$70,000,000 

20 1 6  
$60,000,000 20 1 5  
$SO,OOO,OOO 20 14  

20 1 3  
$40,000,000 20 12  
$30,000,000 20 1 1 

20 10  
$20,000,000 2009 
$10,000,000 2008 

2007 
$0 

2007 2001 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 

- Net premium tax collected I General Fund dollars) - Insurance reculatory trust fund; tum back to the General Fund 

- Total Contribution to the General Fund 

• 
20 13  2 14 15  0 6 0 7 

$5,452, 137, 1 83 $5,72 1 ,428,925 $5,746,825,005 $5,949,890,632 $6,026,076,962 

$46,283,404 $49,264,493 $49,734,23 1 $55,57 1 ,924 $55,147,062 

$3,994,852, 194 $3,975,428,88 1 $3,664,256,3 13  $5,607,737,53 $4,487,7 16,434 

$3,35 1 , 1 30 $ 1 ,042,282 $3,0 16,284 $2,756,40 1 $ 1 , 1 57,967.53 

$986,786 $834,802 $595,298 $480,054 $ 1 84,296 

129 

$845 125 .00 

$4,300, 173 

$46,283,404 $49,264,493 $49,734,23 1  $55,57 1 ,924 $55,147,062 

$3,846,205 $5,445,434 $4, 1 60,581 $4,025,635 $4,300,173 

$50,129,609 $54,709,927 $53,894,812 $59,597,559 $59,447,235 

6 026 076 962 
$5 949 890 632 

5 746 825 005 
5 72 1 428 925 
5 452 1 37 1 83 
5 046 323 923 
4 941 246 953 

$4 1 9 1  934 7 1 4  
4 044 836 633 
4 325 6 1 3 863 

$3 700 000 000 - lA 
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The insurance industry 

Total premium written $5 ,746 ,825 ,005 $8 , 3 72,344,928 $ 8 ,546, 807 ,8 1 1  

Net premium tax collected (General Fund 
dollars) 

$ 49,734,23 1 $ 55 ,5 7 1 ,924 $55 , 1 47,062 

Claims, losses and benefits paid to consumers $3 ,664,256 ,3 1 3  $5 ,607,737 , 533  $5 , 877 ,006, 1 29 

Regulation and consumer protection 

Consumer relief from complaints and hotline $ 3 ,0 1 6 ,284 $2 ,756,40 1 $ 1 , 1 5 7 ,967 . 5 3  
contacts 

Enforcement fines from agents and $595 ,298 $480,054 $268 ,50 1  
companies 

Benefiting North Dakota taxpayers 

Insurance regulatory trust fund; tum back to $4, 1 60,5 8 1 $4,025 ,63 5 $4,3 00, 1 73 
the General Fund 

• 

Department Overview: 

The North Dakota Insurance Department cu 1Tentl y  has 46 FTEs working in 7 different divisions . 

CONSUMER ASSISTANCE DIVIS ION 

The Consumer Assistance Divi sion assi sts North Dakota consumers having i ssues or concerns 
about their insurance by conducting detai l ed investigations. 

STATE HEALTH INSURANCE COUNSELING ( S H I C)  

Provides free, unbiased and confident ial health insurance counsel ing to Medicare beneficiaries ,  
their families or other representatives. The program held eight Medicare Part D enrollment 
events and co-sponsored numerous events across the state in 20 1 8 . In 20 1 7 ,  the SHIC program 
accounted for over $2M in savings for North Dakota cit izens. 

PRESCRIPTION CONNECTION PROGRAMS 

Helps low income North Dakotans find low-cost and no-cost prescription drugs by connecting 
them with prescription assi stance programs offered by various phannaceuti cal companies .  The 
program assi sts consumers with the appl i cation process and connects over 95 percent of all 
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appl icants t o  a program. I n  20 1 7 ,  thi s program assi sted 1 29 North Dakotans and saved them 
roughly $900,000. 

A mix of state dol lars and federal dol lars cuITent ly funds our Consumer Assistance Division. 
Federal funds currently fund two FTEs for SHIC ,  partial ly funds the director of our Consumer 
Assistance Division, and 30% of another Consumer Assi stance Division position. 

This budget proposes bringing those positions in-house and using regulatory trust fund dol lars to 
fund them whil e  sti l l  applying for federal grant dol lars, which would allow us to tum back state 
funds if we receive federal grants. As we have seen, these grants are shrinking and getting harder 
to receive. I am uncomfortable relying on the federal government to fund four of the six 
posit ions in this division. Consumer protection i s  our primary mission it  i s  why we exist .  If the 
federal funds dried up, we essential ly  would not be able to provide the services that constitute 
our core purpose. 

PRODUCER LICENSING DIVISION 

The producer l icensing division i s  responsible for the l i censing of more than 79,000 individual 
insurance producers doing business in North Dakota. Insurance producers must comply  with pre
l icensing exams,  background checks and continuing education requirements .  

PRODUCT FILING DIVISION 

The Product F i l ing Division reviews policy fonns and rate requests to ensure policy l anguage 
compl ies with all the l aws of this state, properly reflects the benefits provided by the pol icy and 
is not deceptive or misleading. For most types of insurance, this division evaluates the premium 
rates companies propose to charge to ensure that the premiums are not excessive, inadequate or 
unfairly discriminatory. 

EXAMINATIONS AND COMPANY LICENSING 

The primary function of the Examinations and Company Licensing Division i s  to monitor the 
financial strength of insurance companies l i censed to do business in North Dakota. 

In 20 1 7 ,  there were 2 ,293 insurance enti ties l icensed to do business in North Dakota and among 
them, 30 domici l ed companies. 

LEGAL DIVISION 

The functions of the Legal Division are to provide legal counsel to the Department ;  investigate 
and prosecute insurance fraud and rel ated offenses;  investigate and enforce all l aws governing 
insurance producers and insurance companies ;  l i t igate administrative actions, and research and 
prepare proposed l egis lative bil ls  and admini strative rules .  

ADMINISTRATION 

The Admini stration Division of the Insurance Department i s  responsible for oversight of the 
budget, accounting, IT needs and general office support through the Department .  In addition, the 
division oversees day-to-day business operations, publ ic rel ations, human resource management 
and the internal pol icies and procedures for the Department 



2,578,311 
Accrued leave payouts 163,182 

Total salaries and benefits 6,468,536 7,385,180 8,182,696 8,94 

IT - software/suppl ies 70,200 147,590 89,490 97,360 114,463 
Professional suppl ies 18,400 36,350 16,980 19,365 11,993 
Safety 3,600 2,200 1,100 2,700 2,500 
M isce l laneous suppl ies 51,302 35,015 16,080 16,080 4,130 
Office suppl ies 33,399 45,300 28,820 28,820 15,800 
Postage 115,436 128,800 99,875 96,250 77,890 
Printing 122,925 109,200 58,666 46,335 33,090 
IT equipment under $5,000 40,800 67,780 39,050 35,150 25,575 
Office equip/furn under $5,000 25,300 92,600 29,185 20,800 20,150 
I nsurance 41,550 28,980 15,175 5,070 3,810 
Rental/leases-equip/other 25,550 30,660 21,840 19,440 14,190 
Rental/leases-bldg and land 222,600 355,818 364,449 429,767 441,240 

a i rs 1,700 2,100 2,630 6,556 5,290 
IT - data processing 375,000 299,028 376,954 403,950 375,080 
IT - commun ications 85,000 112,979 94,136 7 ,130 ' 9 
I - contract service/repair ,2 8 ,  8 0 38,348 24,420 
Professiona l development 76,529 77,685 82,608 72,477 63,720 
Operating fees and services 225,640 238,435 138,310 130,344 89,583 
Professiona l services 167,624 2,165,120 917,036 531,185 476,615 

Total operating expenses 2,063,264 4,548,900 2,858,008 2,512,042 2,179,777 

Grants, Technology, Equipment 
Equipment > $5,000 170,000 70,000 - 90,000 -
Technology carryover 25,000 - - - -
G rants, benefits, c la ims 6,990,000 7,040,000 15,336,386 16,701,207 15,064,086 

Total appropriation $ 15,716,800 $ 19,044,080 $ 26,377,090 $ 28,246,346 $ 25,793,430 

Insurance Department Appropriations 
2009-11 2011-13 2013-15 2015-17 2017-19 

Agency Sa lary and Benefits 6,468,536 7,385, 180 8,182,696 8,943,097 8,549,567 
Agency Operations 2,063,264 4,548,900 2,858,008 2,512,042 2,179,777 
Fire Districts 6,990,000 7,040,000 15,336,386 16,701,207 15,064,086 
Total Appropriation $ 15,716,800 $ 19,044,080 $ 26,377,090 $ 28,246,346 $ 25,793,430 
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Funding source 
General funds $ - $ - $ 
Special funds 15,080,504 15,780,561 
Federal funds 636,296 3,263,519 
Total Funds $ 15,716,800 $ 19,044,080 $ 

!FTEs 45.5 1 45 .s 1 

2007-09 2009-11 

I nsurance agent fees $ 7,143,047 $ 7,173,314 $ 
I nsurance fees 4,426,484 4,961,683 
Cont inu ing education/course fi l ing 190, 123 97,152 
F ines 
Examiner fees 14,493 48,817 
Total $ 11,774,146 $ 12,280,966 $ 

Transfers to general fund $ 7,850,015 $ 6,299,803 $ 

- $ -
24,996,065 27,636,101 

1,381,025 610,245 
26,377,090 $ 28,246,346 

49.5 1 49.5 1 

2011-13 2013-15 

7,954,756 $ 9,444,535 
5,090,529 4,919,795 

, 0 81,0 
1,860,714 

170,380 
$ 16,476,424 

6,526,655 $ 9,291,639 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 
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25,174,104 

619,326 
25,793,430 
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2015-17 

10,032,255 
4,676,242 

71,900 
625,636 
275,400 

15,681,432 

8,186,216 



Agency Salary and Benefits 
Agency Operations 

Fire Districts 
Total Appropriation $ 

30,000,000 

25,000,000 
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Insurance Department Overview 
2009-11 2011-13 2013-15 2015-17 2017-19 

6,468,536 7,385,180 8,182,696 8,943,097 8,549,567 
2,063,264 4,548,900 2,858,008 2,512,042 2, 179,777 
6,990,000 7,040,000 15,336,386 16,701,207 15,064,086 

15,716,800 $ 19,044,080 $ 26,377,090 $ 28,246,346 $ 25,793,430 

I nsurance Department Appropriations 

2011-13 2013-15 2015-17 

-Agency Salary and Benefits -Agency Operations -Fire Districts -Total Appropriation 

2017-19 
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SPECIAL FUNDS DIVIS ION 

FIRE AND TORNADO FUND 
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Created in 1 9 1 9 , this fund provides low-cost insurance coverage to North Dakota government 
entities and political subdivis ions for their bui ldings and contents .  The fund currently serves 
1 , 1 64 policyholders with a combined insured value of $ 1 4  bi l l ion .  

ST A TE BONDING FUND 

Created in 1 9 1 9, this fund provides blanket fidelity bond coverage to North Dakota government 
entit ies and political subdivisions in the event of employee theft of property and money. Thi s  
fund currently serves 3 ,002 bondholders with a combined insured value of approximately $ 800 
mill ion. 

PETROLEUM TANK RELEASE COMPENSATION FUND 

Created in  1 989,  this fund provides contamination clean-up coverage and third party l iab i l ity 
coverage to petroleum tank owners . Currently 1 , 7 1 3  regi stered sites pay an annual registration 
fee for approximately 6,000 tanks. 

BOILER AND PRESSURE VESSEL INSPECTORS 

Created in 1 95 3 ,  thi s  safety program ensures that all boilers in North Dakota are inspected 
annually  or biannually  depending on the type and use of the boiler. We inspect all new boilers 
for proper instal lation. There are approximately 1 1 ,200 active boi lers in  North Dakota. The 
department inspects 5 , 1 24 and private insurance carriers inspect the remaining. 

Changes Proposed to 2019-2021 Budget: 

In analyzing our budget proposal for the 20 1 9-2 l biennium we took a hard look at what the 
Insurance Department is currently responsible for and what truly fits our mission of consumer 
protection, competitive markets, and access to high qual i ty insurance products. The resulting 
budget amendment i s  the product of months of work, tough decisions, and hard conversations. 
We believe the result allows us to focus our attention on our mission, become more efficient in 
the use of our dollars, and provide better service to our consumers . 

MOVING TI-IE  PETROLE U M  TANK RELEASE C O M PE NSATION FUN D TO TI-IE 

D E PARTMENT O F  ENVI RONMENTAL QUALITY : 

Created in 1 989,  this fund provides contamination clean-up coverage and third party l iabil ity 
coverage to petroleum tank owners . The real ity is  thi s  fund is  in need of a complete re-work .  As 
i t  currently stands we admini ster thi s fund, but much of the expert ise l ies within the Department 
of Health (DEQ) . We are asking to move thi s  fund to the Department of Environmental Quality. 
This change was mutually proposed by both the Department and the North Dakota Petroleum 
Marketers . The DEQ has agreed to thi s  change and has subsequently included it in its budget 
proposal as wel l .  
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Fire and Tornado Fund premiums and claims 

Fiscal Year Policvholders Rate Chane:e Premiums Collected # Claims Claim Payments 
2007 1 ,084 50% premium credit $2,640,000 202 $ 1 0, 100,000 
2008 1 ,085 35% premium credit $3,850,000 - 1 1 1  - $ 1 ,085,373 
2009 1 ,088 No change $6,440,000 25 1 $2,670,000 
20 10  1 ,087 50% premium credit $3,220,000 - 38 1  $4,200,000 
20 1 1  1 ,090 50% premium credit $3,470,000 272 $4,350,000 

20 12  1 , 1 3 1  Permanent 50% $3. 77 million 220 $2.87 million premium reduction 
20 1 3  1 , 1 40 No reduction $4. 1 1  million 1 99 $ 1 .30 million 
20 14 1 , 1 37 Premium waived n/a 2 14  $ 1 .68 million 
20 1 5  1 , 145 No reduction $4.28 million 1 82 $ 1 .70 million 
20 16  1 , 1 55 No reduction $4.49 million 2 1 5  $ 1 .52 million 
20 17  1 , 1 64 No reduction $4.82 million 268 $6.04 million 
20 1 8  1 , 1 64 No Reduction $5 .42 million 25 1 $3 .94 million 

Special Funds balance report .Note: Reserve balance = assets - liabilities 
As of Sep. 30, 2018 

Fund Reserve Balance Minimum Variance Fav (Unfav) Loss Claims Payable Requirement 
State Bonding Fund $358,240 $2,000,000 $ 1 ,582,40 1 $ 1 1 0,408 
Fire and Tornado Fund $22,56 1 ,229 $ 1 2,000,000 $ 1 0,56 1 ,229 $ 1 ,729,940 
Petroleum Tanlc Release Comp Fund* $5,594,62 1 $6,000,000 ($405,379) $ 1 ,242,275 
Unsatisfied Jud!!lllent $ 1 56,486 $ 1 50,000 $6,486 $0 
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This  move makes sense as it removes us, basi cal ly the middle man, and al lows the DEQ and 
Petrol eum Marketers to rework this fund into something that works for the industry while 
protecting our primacy from the EPA. 
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MOVING THE BOILER AND PRESS U RE VESSEL I N S PECTORS TO THE 

D E PARTMENT O F  ENVI RONMENTAL QUALITY : 

Created in 1 95 3 ,  this safety program ensures that al l boi lers in North Dakota are inspected 
annually or biannually, depending on the type and use of the boiler. We currently have four 
boiler inspectors that service boilers all across the state. These employees perfonn their 
administrative work from home as their primary function is to be out inspecting boilers . We are 
seeking to transfer the responsibil ity for boi l er inspections and the four fil led FTEs to the DEQ.  
The DEQ i s  responsible for safeguarding North Dakota ' s  air, l and, and water resources. In 
cooperation with the general public, industry, and government at al l  levels ,  the section 
implements protective programs and standards to help maintain and improve environmental 
quality. We bel ieve the general safety program of inspecting boilers more closely aligns with the 
stated purpose of the DEQ, protecting the public safety is the mission of the DEQ. 

The four FTEs that are currently preforming these functions are self-sufficient and we recently 
made an investment to update their software program, which al lows them to administer a vast 
majority of their job duties from home or in the field .  We are seeking to move this program to an 
agency with a mission that aligns with the goal s of thi s  program, we bel ieve that is the DEQ. 
When you think boiler inspections, I doubt the first agency that comes to mind i s  the Insurance 
Department . 

This move was discussed with the Governor' s  Office, however ultimately i t  was left out of the 
executive budget recommendation. I al so understand that the DEQ may be opposed to this move 
for reasons that are unknown to me. We beli eve the DEQ, as a new agency, makes the most 
sense to house these simi lar public health inspections under one roof. If this i s  not the right place, 
we are certainly open to that discussion, we just know that with the changes proposed in  this 
budget, it would no longer be logical to house the boi l ers in the lnsurance Department, as these 
four boiler inspectors would no longer have a divi sion or a divi sion director to report to within 
the Insurance Department. 

Ultimately, both the Petroleum Tank Release Compensation Fund and Boiler Inspections do not 
fit in within our defined mission and purpose and would be better served under the Department 
of Environmental Quality. 

MOVING ADMINISTRATION OF THE FIRE AND TORNADO AND STATE BONDING FUND TO 

THE NORTH DAKOTA I N S U RANCE RESERVE FUN D :  

FIRE AND TORNADO FUND 

Created in 1 9 1 9 , this  fund provides low-cost insurance coverage to North Dakota government 
entities and political subdivisions for their bui ld ings and contents .  The fund currently serves 
1 , 1 64 pol icyholders with a combined insured value of $ 1 4  b i l l ion. 

ST ATE BONDING FUND 

---
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Created in 1 9 1 9  this fund provides blanket fidelity bond coverage to North Dakota government 
entities and political subdivisions in the event of employee theft of property and money. Thi s  
fund currently serves 3 ,002 bondholders with a combined insured value of approximately $800 
mil l ion .  

Both of these funds serve other governmental divi sions .  One hundred years ago, I am sure i t  
made sense to essential ly provide self-insured governmental property and fideli ty bond coverage 
for government entities. I am not sure that logic would stand today. We are proposing moving 
the administration of these funds to the North Dakota Insurance Reserve Fund (NDIRF) .  
CmTently, under the law we are able to  take money from the Fire and Tornado Fund to cover 
costs associated with some operations of the Fund, but we are barred from taking salary dol lars 
for the 3 FTEs who work on this fund. We are proposing a change that would al low us to 
contract with NDIRF for administration of both the Fire and Tornado Fund and the State 
Bonding Fund. 

NDIRF i s  a not-for-profit organization owned by its members , al l political subdivisions are 
eligib le for membership to NDIRF. Brennan Quintus, CEO of NDIRF, and I have been working 
out detai l s  of this proposed change since early 20 1 8 . Cunently, NDIRF provides simil ar 
coverage that the Fire and Tornado fund provides to other pol itical subdivisions but due to a state 
l aw, is baned from writing that coverage for state entit ies . This coverage is not foreign to NDIRF 
and all ows us to utilize NDIRFs network of agents to serve our state entit ies .  As i t  stands ,  three 
people are unable to provide the level of service that our cl ients have come to expect. Without 
contracting with NDIRF, we would likely need to add 4-6 FTEs to provide a simi lar l evel of 
service NDIRF can provide with its 1 8  staff and network of agents .  

This move also al lows the Depa1iment to get out of the business of providing insurance and 
focus on regulating the insurance industry. It does not make logical sense that the regulator for 
the industry is also in the business of providing insurance. Thi s move rectifies that unhealthy 
relationship and in doing so allows our cl ients to receive a higher level of service. 

I would like to invite Brenna,Quintus to provide some comments about this proposed move. 

As mentioned, this move has been vetted over the last year; stakeholders have been consulted 
and agree that this move makes sense. 

1 00 %  FUNDING FOR FIRE D I STRICTS : 

Funding for Fire Departments and Fire Di stricts comes from a couple different sources (property 
taxes, benefits, etc . )  but a significant portion of the funding has come from the Insurance 
premium tax .  The Department administers the premium tax and from that, the Legi s lative 
Assembly  appropriates an amount up to 1 00% of the fire insurance premium tax revenue 
collected . 

This i s  essential ly a pass through fund, whereby we coll ect the tax and pass that col lection on to 
the fire districts .  This fund was a continuing appropriation from 1 8 87  - 1 98 5 .  Since 1 985 ,  
funding t o  the fire distri cts has fluctuated between I O  1 % of  the funds t o  a s  l ow a s  48% of the 
funds avai lable. 
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We are asking that the continuing appropriation be restored ; thi s  ensures that the dol lars that are 
intended to go to the fire di stricts are actual ly going to the fire di stri cts .  The average consumer 
l ikely knows that a portion of their homeowner' s insurance premiums go to funding fire 
departments .  What they do not know i s  that a portion of those dol lars are being taken from the 
fire departments and put back into the State general fund . Our consumers are being double or 
triple hit, once on my homeowner' s insurance, once on their property tax, and then again by 
participating in various fundraisers put on by Fire Departments to cover their costs. 

We have also been working the past year with the F ire Chiefs from across the state and forging a 
stronger partnership. That partnership  has opened up some di scussions regarding the ISO ratings 
across our state . In North Dakota, we have a di spropo1iionately high number of class 9 fire 
departments .  With proper funding and some increased help from the Insurance Department, these 
departments could move to a class 8. The resulting move would decrease homeowner' s 
premiums by up to 30%.  

I do not  expect our Fire Chiefs to be experts in insurance and I know they do not  expect me to be 
an expert in fire service. What I can te l l  you i s  we are building a strong partnership that could 
lead to more transparent funding for our fire departments, lower premiums and better fire 
coverage for our consumers . 

At this point, I would like to invite the Fire Chiefs up to share some comments .  

Ultimately, we are one tragedy away from the citizens of North Dakota heavily scrutinizing this 
i s sue. It i s  my bel ief we can solve thi s  problem with our proposed budget, and provide the 
funding that has been designated and paid by our consumers to the fire service as it has always 
intended to be. 

Conclusion: 

This budget proposes a net reduction of five FT Es,  a reduction of 7 . 5% from our appropriation, 
and allows us to repurpose some FTEs to serve our mission. We would be looking to engage 
with North Dakota consumers on insurance education and do a better job of reaching out to them 
so they understand why insurance is vital ly  important to a financial ly  successful future. By  
engaging in that conversation with our consumers , we  are also hopeful that we can close the 
insurance gap that exists in our state. In doing so, we cannot only help consumers find the 
products they need, but also continue to foster a competiti ve marketplace. 

I would be happy to answer any questions you may have. 
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Fire District Grants 

Fire Districts 2007 payment 2008 payment 2009 payment 2010 payment 201 1 payment 2012 payment 2013 paymen1 2014 payment 201S paymenl 2016 payment 2017 paymen1 

Tohll Premium, (aU dlalricll) $306,862,744 $328,770,097 $328,770,097 $351,089,41 1 $371,993,873 $396,747,255 $456,634,313 $466,161,04$ $523,403,441 $545,776,424 $544,267,88! 

Tohll Pavmena laU dlstriclll $3 100 000 $3.100.000 $3 100 000 S3 100.000 $3.100.000 $3 100.000 $3 100 000 $7.2611.193 $7 840,603 $7,340 603 $7,117,781 

$9,000,000 
Total Pa ments all districts 
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P repared by the North Dakota 
I nsu rance Depa rtment 

January 8 ,  20 1 9  

PROPOSED AME N D M E NTS TO SENATE B ILL NO.  201 0 

Page 1 ,  l i ne 1 ,  after "A B I LL"  rep lace the rema inder  of the b i l l  with "for an  Act to provide  
a n  appropr iat ion for defrayi ng  t he  expenses o f  the i nsurance comm iss ioner; t o  create and  enact 
a sect ion 26 . 1 -22-03. 1 ,  re lat i ng  to the North Dakota i nsura nce reserve fund ut i l iz ing producers 
and  pay ing com m iss ions ;  to amend and  reenact sect ions 1 8-04-04 . 1 and  1 8-05-05 of the North 
Dakota Century Code ,  re lat ing to d i str i but ions from the i nsurance tax d istri but ion fund to fi re 
d i str i cts , fi re departments ,  and the North Dakota fi refig hter 's assoc iat i on ,  and to provide  for a 
cont i n u i ng appropriat i on ;  to a mend and  reenact sect ions 23-37-02,  23-37-04, 23-37-05, 23-37-
06 ,  23-37- 1 0 ,  23-37- 1 1 ,  23-37- 1 4, 23-37- 1 4 ,  23-37- 1 5 ,  23-37- 1 7 ,  23-37- 1 8 ,  23-37- 1 9 ,  23-37-20 ,  
23-37-23 ,  23-37-24, 23-37-25 ,  23-37-26 , 23-37-27 ,  23-37-28 ,  23-37-29 ,  and 23-37-30 of  the  
North Dakota Centu ry Code ,  re lat i ng  to  petro leum re lease remed iat ion ;  to  amend and  reenact 
subsect ion 2 of sect ion 26 . 1 -0 1 -07 of the North Dakota Centu ry Code ,  re lat i ng to fees 
chargeab le  by comm iss ioner; to amend and reenact subsect ion 1 of sect ion 26 . 1 -03- 1 7 of the 
North  Dakota Centu ry Code ,  re lat i ng  to the comm iss ioner 's co l lect ion  of prem i um tax; to amend  
and  reenact sect ion 26 . 1 -2 1 -03 of t he  North Dakota Centu ry Code ,  re lat ing to  com m iss ioner  
emp loy ing ass istants for the state bond i ng fund and to prov ide for a cont i nu i ng  appropriati on ;  to  
amend and  reenact sect ion 26 . 1 -2 1 - 1 7 of  the North Dakota Centu ry Code ,  re lat ing to  methods 
of  payment  for adm in i strat ive expenses for the state bond ing  fund ; to  amend and  reenact 
sect ion 26 . 1 -22-03 of the North Dakota Century Code ,  re lat ing to emp loyment of ass istants for 
the state f ire and tornado fund and to provide for a cont i n u i ng appropriat i on ;  to amend and  
reenact sect ions 26 . 1 -22 . 1 -02, 26 . 1 -22 . 1 -03 ,  26 . 1 -22 . 1 -04 , subsect ion 1 o f  26 . 1 -22 . 1 -07 ,  26 . 1 -
22 . 1 -08 ,  26 . 1 -22 . 1 -09, 26 . 1 -22. 1 - 1 0 , 26 . 1 -22. 1 - 1 2 , and  26 . 1 -22 . 1 - 1 4  of the North Dakota 
Centu ry Code ,  re lat ing to bo i ler  i nspect ions ;  to amend and reenact sect ion 26 . 1 -23 . 1 -0 1  of the 
North Dakota Century Code ,  re lat i ng to government se lf- i nsurance poo ls ;  and  to provide  a n  
appropriat ion for the d istri but ion of funds from the i nsu rance tax d istri but ion fund .  

B E  IT  ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSE M B LY OF  NORTH DAKOTA: 

S ECTION 1 .  APPROPRIAT ION .  The funds provided in th is section ,  or  so m uch of the 
funds  as may be necessary, a re appropriated from speci a l  fu nds  derived from federa l  fu nds and  
othe r  i ncome,  to  t he  i nsurance comm iss ioner for the pu rpose o f  defrayi ng the expenses o f  t he  
i nsu ra nce com m iss ioner ,  for t he  b ienn i um  beg i nn i ng  J u ly 1 ,  20 1 9 , and  end i ng  J une 30 ,  202 1 , as  
fo l lows : 

Sa la ries and wages 

Operati ng  expenses 

Tota l spec ia l  fu nds 

Fu l l -t ime eq u iva lent pos i t ions 

Base Leve l 

$8 , 549 , 567 

2 , 1 79,777 

$ 1 0 , 729 , 344 

46 . 00 

D 

Governor 's 

Recommendat ion AQQrOQr iat ion 

$8 ,295 , 765 $8 ,353 , 9 1 0 

2,228, 1 1 3  1 ,566,675 

$ 1 0 , 523 , 878 $9 , 920 , 585 

44 . 00 4 1 .00  
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SECTI O N  2 .  U NSATI S F I E D  J U DG M ENT F U N D .  Sect ion 1 of th is  Act i n c ludes $29 , 703 
from the state u nsat isf ied j udgment  fund to pay unsat isf ied judgment fund adm i n istrative 
expenses for the b ie n n i u m  beg i nn i ng  J u ly 1 ,  20 1 9 , and  end i ng June  30 ,  202 1 . 

SECTION  3 .  AM E N D M E NT. Sect ion 1 8-04-04 . 1  of the North Dakota Century 

Code is  amended a nd reenacted as fo l lows : 

1 8-04-04. 1 .  I nsu rance tax d istri but ion fund .  
The i nsu ra nce tax d istri b ut ion fund is  a spec ia l fund i n  the state treasury .  The port ion of 
revenue  p rovided i n  sect ion 26 . 1 -03- 1 7 must be depos ited in the fund fo r d i sbursement 
as p rov ided in th is chapter and chapter 23-46 , subject to legislative appropriation . 

S ECTION 4 .  AM E N D M E NT. Section 1 8-04-05 of the North Dakota Century Code 

is  a mended and  reenacted as fo l l ows : 

1 8-04-05.  Amount  due c it ies ,  ru ra l  fi re protect ion d istricts , or  rural fi re 
departments -Transfe r  to fi refighters death benefit fund - D isbursement to North 
Dakota fi refighter's association - Payments by insurance commiss ioner -
Conti n u i ng Appropriat ion .  

1 .  

2 .  

3 .  

4 .  

The i nsu ra nce com m iss ioner  sha l l  d i sburse funds i n  t he  i nsu rance tax 
d istri but ion fund as p rovided under th is  sect ion . 
The i nsu rance com m iss ioner  sha l l  transfer an  amount of u p  to fifty 
thousand do l l a rs per  b ienn i um ,  as may be necessary, to the fi refighters 
d eath benefit fund fo r d istri but io n under chapter 1 8-05 . 1 .  
The i nsu rance com miss ioner  sha l l  compute and d isburse funds to the 
No rth  Dakota fi refig hter's association fo r uses authorized under  chapter 
1 8-03 ,  subject to legislative appropriations. 
The i n su ra nce com miss ioner  sha l l  compute the amounts d ue to the 
cert if ied c i ty fi re departments , certified ru ra l  fi re departments ,  o r  cert if ied 
fi re p rotect ion d istr icts ent i t led to benefits under  this chapter on or before 
Dece m ber  fi rst of each year. The insurance commissioner shall allocate 
one half of the biennial legislative appropriation for distribution under this 
subsection, to each eligible city not 1.vithin a certified fire protection district , 
each certified rural fire protection district organized under this title, and 
each rural fire department certified by the state fire marshal , and pay the 
amount allocated in December of each year. The allocation must be made 
in proportion to the amount of insurance company premiums received by 
insurance companies pursuant to section 26. 1  03 1 7  for policies for fire , 
allied lines, homeowner's multiple peril ,  farmovmer's multiple peril , 
commercial multiple peril ,  and crop hail insurance on property vvithin the 
city, certified rural fire protection district , or area served by the certified 
rural fire department to the total of those premiums for those policies in the 
stat&. 
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There is appropriated out of  any moneys i n  the  insurance tax d istri but ion 
fund i n  the state treasury, not otherwise appropriated, 1 .  75% of the amount 
of i nsurance company prem iums received by i nsurance compan ies 
pu rsuant to sect ion 26 . 1 -03- 1 7 fo r po l i c ies fo r fi re, a l l ied l i nes, 
homeowner's mu lt iple peri l ,  fa rmowner's mu lt iple peri l ,  commercia l  
mu lt iple peri l ,  a n d  crop ha i l  i nsu rance on  property with i n  t he  city, ru ra l  fi re 
protect ion d ist rict, o r  a rea served by the ru ra l fi re department, that 
complete and return an  annua l  cert if icate of existence to the state fi re 
marsha l ,  and a re certified by the state fi re marsha l  i n  compl i ance with the 
appl icab le  requ i rements of t i t le  1 8, to the tota l of  those prem iums fo r those 
po l ic ies i n  the state, 94 . 5% of wh ich is appropriated to North Dakota fi re 
departments and fi re d istr icts and  5 . 5% of wh ich is appropriated to No rth 
Dakota fi refighter's association .  Fund i ng for the North Dakota fi re 
departments and  fi re d istr icts and  the North Dakota fi refighter' s 
associat ion i s  appropriated on  a conti nu i ng bas is fo r the pu rposes of th i s  
chapter. 

SECTION 5 .  AM ENDMENT. Sect ion 23-37-02 of the North Dakota Centu ry Cod e  
i s  amended a n d  reenacted a s  fo l l ows : 

23-37-02.  Defin itions.  
As used i n  th is  chapter, un less the context otherwise requ i res :  
1 .  "Actua l ly incu rred" means ,  i n  the case of co rrect ive act io n expend itu res ,  

that the owner, the operato r, the landowner, an  i nsu rer ,  o r  a contractor 
h i red by the owner, operato r, o r  the l and lo rd has expended t ime and  
materia l s  and that on ly tha t  person is  rece ivi ng re imbursement from the  
fund . 

2 .  "Administrator" means the manager of the state fire and tornado fund . 
J2 . "Board "  means the petro leum re lease compensation boa rd .  
4 .  "Commissioner" means the insurance commissioner. 
�3 . "Correct ive act ion"  means an  act ion requ i red by the department to 

m i n im ize , conta i n ,  e l im i nate , remed iate , m it igate , or c lean up a re lease , 
i ncl ud ing any remed ia l  emergency measures .  The term does not i nc l ude 
the  repa i r  o r  rep lacement of  equ i pment o r  p reconstructed property. 

e4 . "Dea ler" means any person l icensed by the tax comm iss ioner to se l l  moto r 
veh ic le fue l  o r  spec ia l  fue ls  with i n  the state . 

+5 . "Department" means the state d epartment of hea lth . 
g5 _ "Fund"  means the petro leum re lease compensatio n fund . 
97 . " Location"  means a physica l add ress o r  s ite that has cont ig uous 

p ropert ies .  
Noncont ig uous properties with i n  a mun ic i pa l i ty o r  other  governmenta l 
j u risd ict ion a re cons idered separate locat ions .  

4-G8 . "Operato r" means any person i n  contro l  of, o r  hav ing respons ib i l i ty for, the 
da i ly operat ion of  a tank  under  th is  chapter. 

4-49 . "Owner" means any person who ho lds  t i t le to , contro ls ,  o r  possesses a n  
i nterest i n  the tank befo re the d isconti nuat ion of its use .  

3 



4-21 0 .  

4-J 1 1 .  

4-41 2 .  

-%1 3 .  

4-e1 4 .  

"Person"  mea ns  a n  ind ivid u a l ,  trust ,  fi rm , jo i nt stock compa ny ,  federa l  
agency ,  co rpo rat io n ,  state , mun i cipa l ity , commiss io n ,  po l i t ica l subd ivis ion 
of a state , o r  any  i nterstate body .  The term a lso i nc ludes a conso rt i u m ,  a 
jo i nt ventu re ,  a commerc ia l  entity, and the U n ited States government .  
" Petro leum"  means any of the fo l lowing : 
a .  Gaso l i ne  a nd petro leum prod ucts a s  defi ned i n  cha pter 1 9- 1 0 .  
b .  Const i tuents of gaso l i ne and fue l  o i l  under subd ivis ion a .  
c .  O i l  s l udge a nd o i l  refuse . 
" Po rtab le  tan k" means a sto rage  tank  a long with its p ip ing  a nd wiri ng  that 
i s  not stationa ry or affixed , i nc l ud ing a tank  that is  on sk ids .  
" Re lease"  means a n y  u n i ntent iona l  sp i l l i ng ,  leak ing , em itti ng , d ischarg i ng ,  
escap i ng ,  leach i ng ,  o r  d ispos ing  of petro leum from a tank  i nto the 
env i ro n ment whether  occu rri ng befo re or  after the effect ive date of th is  
chapter, but  does not  i nc lude d i scharges or  des ig ned venti ng a l lowed 
u nde r  federa l  or state law or under adopted ru les . 
"Tan k" means any  one  o r  a comb i nat ion of conta iners ,  vesse ls ,  and 
enc losu res ,  whether  a bovegro u nd or  underg round , inc lud ing  associated 
p i p i ng or appu rtenances used to conta i n  an  accumu lat io n of petro leu m .  
T h e  term does not i nc l ude :  
a .  
b .  
C .  

d .  

e .  

f. 
g .  
h .  

i .  

j .  
k .  

Tan ks owned b y  the federa l  government .  
Tan ks used fo r the transportat ion of petro leum .  
A p i pe l i ne fac i l i ty, i nc lud i ng  gathering l i nes ,  reg u lated under: 
( 1 ) The N atu ra l  Gas P ipe l i ne  Safety Act of 1 968 . 
( 2 )  The Hazardous  L iqu id P ipe l i ne  Safety Act o f  1 979 . 
( 3 )  An  i nterstate p i pe l i ne fac i l ity regu lated under  state laws 

com pa rab le  to the provis ions of law in paragraph  1 or 2 .  
An  underg ro u nd fa rm o r  resident ia l  tank  with a capacity of one 
thousand one h u nd red ga l lons [4 1 63 .94 l ite rs] or  less o r  an 
a bovegro u nd fa rm o r  res ident ia l  tank  of  any ca pacity used fo r 
stori ng moto r  fue l  fo r noncommerc ia l  pu rposes .  
However, the owner  of an aboveg round fa rm or  res ident ia l  tan k  
may ,  u pon  app l icat ion ,  reg ister the ta nk  a n d  b e  e l i g i b le  fo r 
re imbu rsement u nder  th is  chapter. 
A tan k  used fo r sto ri ng heati ng o i l  fo r consumptive use on the 
p rem ises where sto red . 
A su rface impoundment ,  pit ,  po nd ,  or  lagoon .  
A flowthrough  p rocess ta nk .  
A l i qu id t ra p  o r  associated gathering l i nes d i rect ly re lated to  o i l  o r  
gas  prod uct ion o r  gatheri ng  operat ions .  
A sto rage tan k  s ituated i n  an underg round a rea such  as a 
basement ,  ce l l a r, m i ne work ing , d rift ,  shaft ,  o r  tunne l  if the sto rage 
ta n k  is  s ituated u pon or  a bove the su rface of  the floor .  
A ta n k  used fo r the storage of propane .  
A ta n k  used to  fue l  ra i l  locomotives o r  su rface coa l  m i n i ng 
eq u i pment .  
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I .  A n  aboveground  ta nk  used to feed d iesel fue l  generato rs . U po n  
app l icat ion ,  the owner  o r  operato r of an  abovegro u nd ta n k  used to 
feed d iesel fue l  generato rs may reg i ste r the tank  a nd is e l i g i b le  for 
re imbursement u nder  th is  chapter .  

m .  A portab le  ta nk .  
n .  A tan k  with a capacity under  one thousand three hund red twenty 

ga l lons  [4996 . 728 l iters] used to sto re l ub ricat ing o i l .  
4--7-1 5 .  "Tank  i nteg rity test" means a test to determ i ne that a tank  is  sound a n d  

not leak i ng .  
For  an  u nderg round tank ,  t he  te rm mea ns a cert if ied th i rd-pa rty test that 
meets envi ronmenta l protect ion agency leak detect ion req u i rements .  For 
a n  aboveground tan k ,  the term mea ns a test conducted acco rd i ng to stee l  
ta n k  i nst itute S P  00 1 o r  America n  petro leum inst i tute 653 . 

.ig1 6 .  "Th i rd party" means a person who i s  damaged by the act of a reg istered 
owner ,  operator, or dea ler  requ i ri ng co rrective act ion or a perso n who 
suffers bod i ly i nju ry o r  p roperty damage caused by a petro leum re lease . 

SECTION 6 .  AM E N D M ENT. Section 23-37-04 of the North Da kota Centu ry Code 
is  amended and reenacted as fo l lows : 

23-37-04. Adm i n istrat ion of fu nd - Staff. (Cont ingent repeal - See note) 
The administrator department of env i ronmenta l qua l ity sha l l  ad m i n ister the fund 

acco rd i ng to th is  chapter. The administrator depa rtment of  envi ron menta l qua l ity sha l l  
convene the  boa rd as may  be necessa ry to  keep the  board apprised o f  t he  fund 's 
genera l  operat ions .  However, the board sha l l  meet at least once each ha lf of each 
ca lendar  yea r  to review and to advise the administrator depa rtment of env i ron menta l 
qua l i ty rega rd i ng  the ad m in istrat ion of the fu nd , the fu nd 's  genera l  operat ions ,  and to 
hear  and  decide den ia ls  of c la ims by the administrator depa rtment of env i ron menta l 
qua l i ty wh ich may be appea led to the board ,  and  to d i scuss a l l  c la ims aga i nst the fund . 
The administrator depa rtment of env i ron menta l qua l ity may emp loy any ass istance and  
staff necessary to  adm in i ster the fund with i n  the l im its of  leg is lat ive appropriat ion .  A 
c la imant aggrieved by a decis ion of the administrator department of envi ronmenta l 
qua l ity rega rd i ng a c la im  upon the fund may appea l  the dec is ion to the boa rd .  The 
boa rd may susta i n ,  mod ify ,  o r  reverse the dec is ion of the administrator depa rtment of 
env i ro n menta l qua l i ty .  The c la imant o r  the administrator depa rtment of envi ronmenta l 
qua l ity may appea l  the board 's  dec is ion to the commissioner state hea lth officer. The 
dec is ion of  the commissioner state hea lth officer may be appea led under  cha pter 28-32 . 

SECTION 7 .  AM E N D M E NT. Sect ion 23-37-05 of the North Da kota Centu ry Code 
is amended and reenacted as fo l lows : 

23-37-05 .  Adoption of rules . 
The administrator department of env i ron menta l qua l ity sha l l  adopt ru les 

regard i ng the pract ices and proced u res of the fu nd , the fo rm and proced u re fo r 
app l icat ions fo r compensat ion from the fu nd , p roced u res fo r investigat ion of c la ims ,  
proced u res fo r determ in i ng the a mount and  type of costs that a re e l i g i b l e  fo r 
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re i m b u rsement fro m the fund , proced u res fo r persons to perfo rm services fo r the fu nd , 
proced u res fo r appea ls  to the board by c la imants agg rieved by an  adverse decis ion of 
the administrator department of env i ron menta l qua l ity ,  and any other ru les as may be 
app rop riate to ad m i n ister th is  chapte r. 

S ECTION 8. AM E N D M E NT. Sect ion  23-37-06 of the North Da kota Century Code 
is  a mended and  reenacted as  fo l lows : 

23-37-06 .  Re lease d iscovery. 
I f  the depa rtment has  reason to be l ieve a re lease has occu rred , it sha l l  not ify the 

administrator d epartment of envi ronmenta l qua l ity .  The department sha l l  d i rect the 
owner  or operato r to take reasonab le  and necessary correct ive act ions as provided 
under  federa l  o r  state law o r  under  adopted ru les . 

S ECTION 9 .  AM E N D M E NT. Sect ion  23-37- 1 0 of the North Da kota Century Code 
is a mended a nd reenacted as fo l lows : 

23-37- 1 0 .  Provid i ng  of i nformation .  
Any perso n whom the administrator department of environ menta l qua l ity o r  the 

department has reason to be l ieve is  an owner  or operato r, the owner  of rea l  property 
where co rrective act ion is o rdered to be ta ken , or any pe rso n who may have i nfo rmation 
concern i ng a re lease sha l l ,  if req uested by the administrator depa rtment of 
env i ronmenta l qua l ity o r  the department ,  o r  any member, emp loyee ,  o r  agent of the 
administrator d epartment of envi ronmenta l qua l ity o r  the department ,  fu rn i sh  to the 
administrator d epartment of envi ro nmenta l qua l ity or  the depa rtment any i nfo rmat ion 
that person has o r  may reasonab ly o bta i n  that is  re leva nt to the re lease . 

S ECTION 1 0 . AM E N D M E NT. Section 23-37- 1 1 of the North Da kota Centu ry 
Code i s  a mended and  reenacted as  fo l lows : 

23-37-1 1 .  Exam i nation of records .  
Any emp loyee of  the administrator department of  env iron menta l qua l ity o r  the  

department may ,  upon  presentat ion of  offic ia l  credent ia l s :  
1 .  Exam i ne  and  copy books ,  papers ,  records ,  memoranda , o r  data of any 

person who has a d uty to provide info rmation to the administrator 
d epa rtment of env i ronmenta l qua l ity o r  the department under  sect ion 23-
37- 1  0 ;  a nd 

2 .  Enter u pon  pub l i c  o r  p rivate p ro perty fo r the purpose of ta k ing act ion 
a uthorized by th is  sectio n ,  i nc lud ing obta i n i ng i nfo rmatio n fro m any person 
who has  a d uty to provide the i nfo rmation under sect ion 23-37- 1 0 ,  
co nduct ing su rveys a n d  invest igations ,  and tak ing co rrective act i on .  

SECTION 1 1 .  AM E N D M E NT. Sect ion 23-37- 1 4  of  the  North  Da kota Centu ry 
Code is  a mended a nd reenacted as fo l lows : 

23-37- 1 4 . Other  remedies .  
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env i ron menta l qua l ity o r  department ,  o r  p recl ude the pu rsu i t  of any other adm in istrat ive , 
civ i l ,  i nj u nct ive , o r  crim i na l  remed ies by the administrator depa rtment of env i ronmenta l 
qua l ity o r  department or  any other  person .  Adm i n istrat ive remed ies need not be 
exhausted in o rder  to p roceed under  th is chapter. The remed ies provided by th is  
chapter a re i n  add it ion to  those p rovided under  ex ist ing statuto ry or  common law. 

SECTION 1 2. AM ENDMENT. Sect ion  23-37- 1 5 of the North  Dakota Centu ry 
Code i s  amended and reenacted as fo l lows : 

23-37-1 5 . Revenue to the fund .  
Revenue from the  fo l lowing sou rces must be depos ited i n  t he  state treasury and  

cred ited to  the  fund : 
1 .  Any reg i st rat ion fees co l lected under  sect ion 23-37- 1 7 ;  
2 .  Any  money recovered by  t he  fund u nder  sect ion 23-37-23 ,  and any money 

pa id under  a n  agreement ,  sti pu lat io n ,  o r  sett lement ;  
3 .  Any i nterest attri butab le  to investment of money i n  the fund ; and 
4 .  Any money received by the administrator depa rtment of env i ro nmenta l 

qua l ity i n  the form of g ifts ,  g ra nts , re imbu rsements ,  o r  app rop riat ions  from 
any sou rce i ntended to be used fo r the pu rposes of the fund . 

SECTION 1 3. AM ENDME NT. Section  23-37- 1 7 of the North Dakota Centu ry 
Code is  amended and  reenacted as fo l lows : 

23-37- 1 7 . Reg istration fee .  
1 .  An owner  o r  operator of a tan k  sha l l  pay an  annua l  reg istrat ion  fee of fifty 

do l l a rs fo r each aboveg round  or underground tank  owned or operated by 
that person .  I f  after the fisca l yea r  has been closed and a l l  expenses 
re lat i ng to the fisca l yea r  have been accounted fo r, the fund ba lance is  
less than s ix m i l l ion  do l l a rs ,  the annua l  reg istrat ion fee of  fifty do l l a rs is 
i ncreased to one hundred do l l a rs .  I f  after the fisca l yea r has been c losed 
and a l l  expenses re lat ing to the fisca l yea r have been accounted fo r, the 
fund ba lance is  five m i l l ion  five hund red thousand do l l a rs o r  more and the 
annua l  reg i strat ion fee has been increased to one hund red do l l a rs ,  the fee 
must be reduced to fifty do l l a rs .  I f  after the fisca l yea r has been c losed and 
a l l  expenses re lat i ng to  the fisca l yea r have been accounted fo r, the fund 
ba lance exceeds n i ne m i l l i on  do l l a rs ,  the annua l  reg istrat ion fee is 
red uced to five do l l a rs .  Annua l  reg i strat ion fees must cont i nue at five 
do l l a rs unt i l the fund  ba la nce does not exceed n i ne m i l l io n  do l l a rs .  

2 .  A n  owner o r  operato r of a n  exist i ng tank  that i s  d iscovered a t  a locat ion 
that cu rrent ly and p revious ly has had tanks reg istered wi th the fund sha l l  
pay  an  add it iona l  twenty-five do l l a r  pena lty fee i n  add it ion to  the 
reg istrat ion fee for each aboveground  tank  and each underg round tank  
owned or  operated by  that person fo r each previous yea r that t he  tank  was 
requ i red to be reg istered fo r wh ich a fee was not pa id . The payment 
inc ludes the fees and the pena lty fo r the fa i l u re to reg ister .  
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An  owner  o r  operato r of a n  ex ist i ng ta nk  a t  a locat ion that was not 
p rev iously a nd cont i nuously reg iste red with the fund , whether  the 
reg i strat ion  was req u i red by law or not must provide the fu nd with a phase 
two e nv i ronmental study co nducted by a qual if ied fi rm accord ing  to 
American soc iety fo r test ing materials sta ndards .  A ta nk  i nteg rity test must 
also be perfo rmed . The env i ro n mental study and ta n k  i nteg rity test must 
be rev iewed by the commissioner depa rtment of env i ronmental qual ity 
a long  with the a pplicat ion  fo r reg istrat ion with the fu nd . If the 
commissioner d epartment of env i ronmental qual ity rejects the appl icat i o n ,  
t he  a p pl icant  i s  denied el ig i b i l ity t o  the fu nd . However, i f  t he  s ite i s  
rem ed iated and  t he  leak ing  tan k  i s  replaced , the appl icant may  reapply fo r 
reg i st rat ion with the fund . A new i nstallat ion that i s  us ing  a used ta n k  must 
p rov ide ta n k  i nteg rity test resu lts fo r the used tank .  Use of a synthet ic l i ner  
i n  an  a bovegro u nd d ike  system negates the need fo r a tan k  i nteg rity test . 
The owner  o r  operator of a new tan k  at a new s ite o r  a new ta nk  at an  
ex ist i ng  s ite t ha t  had a tan k  reg iste red a t  t he  s ite prev iously need o nly pay 
the req u i red fees fo r registrat ion wi th the fund . 
I f  a ccepted for reg i st rat i on  with the fund , the owner o r  operato r of the tan k  
sha ll pay a n  add i t ional  twenty-five dolla r penalty fee i n  add i t ion to the 
reg i stration fee fo r each a boveg round tan k  and underg round  tank  owned 
or operated by that person for each prev ious yea r  that the ta nk  was 
req u i red to be registered fo r wh i ch a fee was not pa id , rega rd less of 
owners h i p  i n  each of those yea rs .  The payment i ncludes the fees and the 
penalty fo r the fa i lu re to register .  
The reg i st rat i on  fees collected u nder  th is  sect ion must be paid to the fuoo 
administrator d epa rtment of env i ronmental qual i ty fo r depos it i n  the state 
treas u ry fo r the d ed i cated cred it to the petroleu m  release com pensat io n  
fu nd . 

6 .  I f  a reg i strat i on  payment i s  not rece ived with i n  s ixty days of J uly fi rst by 
the Commissioner d epartment of env i ronmental qual ity ,  a late fee of 
twenty-five dolla rs per  tan k  per month must be i m posed on the ta n k  owner  
o r  o perato r. 

S ECTION 1 4. AM E N D M E NT. Sect ion 23-37- 1 8 of the North Da kota Century 
Code i s  a mended and  reenacted as  follows : 

23-37- 1 8 .  Re i m b u rsement for corrective action .  
1 .  The administrator depa rtment of envi ronmental qual ity shall re imburse a n  

el ig i ble owner  o r  o perato r fo r n i nety percent of the costs o f  co rrect ive 
act i o n ,  i n clud i ng  the i nvest igat ion ,  wh ich a re g reate r than five thousa nd 
dolla rs a nd less than one m ill io n  dolla rs per occu rrence and two m ill io n  
dolla rs i n  the aggregate . A n  el i g i ble ta nk  owner  o r  operato r may not be 
l ia ble fo r more tha n twenty thousand dolla rs out-of-pocket expenses fo r 
any  one  release .  A re i m b u rsement may not be made u nless the 
administrator department of env i ronmental qual i ty determ ines that :  
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a .  At the t ime the re lease was d iscovered the owner o r  operator  and 

the tank  were i n  comp l ia nce with state and federa l  ru les and  ru les 
app l icab le to the tank ,  i nc lud ing  ru les re lat i ng to fi nanc ia l 
respons ib i l ity , ru les re lat i ng to i nfrastructure com pati b i l i ty, and a l l  
ru les re lat ing t o  hea lth and safety wh ich were i n  effect a t  t he  t ime  of 
the re lease; 

b .  The department was g iven not ice of the re lease as requ i red by 
federa l  and state law; 

c .  The owner o r  operato r has pa id  the fi rst five thousand do l l a rs of  the 
cost of  corrective act io n ;  and 

d .  The owner o r  operato r, to the extent poss ib le ,  fu l ly cooperated with 
the department and the administrator depa rtment of env i ronmenta l 
qua l ity i n  respond i ng  to the re lease .  

The  fund sha l l  compensate th i rd part ies fo r corrective act ion ta ken for a 
petro leum re lease if the p rovis ions of subd iv is ions a ,  b ,  c, and d of 
subsect ion 1 were met at the t ime the re lease was d iscovered . 
Compensation  for th i rd -party co rrect ive act ion i nc ludes compensat ion for 
costs i ncu rred i n  retu rn i ng  the rea l  estate to that leve l  deemed d u ly 
remed iated by the department .  
The fund sha l l  re imburse the tank  owner ,  operato r, o r  dea ler  fo r bod i ly  
i nj u ries to a th i rd party caused by a petro leum re lease i f  the provis ions of  
subd iv is ions a ,  b ,  c ,  and  d of  subsect ion 1 were met at the t ime the 
re lease was d iscovered i n  an  amount determ ined by: 
a .  F ind i ngs red uced to judgment i n  federa l  o r  state d istr ict cou rt with i n  

the  state of North Dakota o r  such  other  cou rt hav i ng  j u risd ict ion  
over  t he  matter i n  a p roceed ing  i n  wh ich t he  fund has been made  a 
party; 

b .  F i nd i ngs by a n  a rb i trat ion pane l  agreed upon i n  writ ing by  the 
part ies i n  a p roceed ing  i n  wh ich the fund has been made a party; or 

c .  A written sett lement entered i nto by the part ies i n  wh ich  the 
commissioner state hea lth officer or  the commissioner's state 
hea lth officer' s  agent has  part ic i pated . The  sett lement must be 
reviewed and app roved by the commissioner state hea lth officer . 

In any civ i l act ion aga inst the owner, operator, o r  dea ler  fo r damages 
resu lt ing from a petro leum re lease , if the pre- leak cond it ion of rea l  estate 
is an issue and if there is no reasonab le  means of dete rm in i ng  the pre
leak cond it ion of rea l  estate , the cond it ion is that wh ich exists at the t ime 
the department dete rm ines the rea l  estate has been d u ly remed iated . 
The fund may not compensate fo r atto rney's fees of owners ,  operators , o r  
dea lers ,  nor  may the  fund com pensate fo r exemp la ry damages ,  crim i na l  
fi nes ,  o r  adm in i strative pena lt ies . 
A th i rd party accept ing moneta ry compensat ion d i rect ly from the fund fo r 
damages due to a re lease caused by a tank  owner, operato r, o r  dea ler  
covered by the fund is deemed to have wa ived any ca use of  action  
aga i nst the  fund or  aga inst the  tan k  owner, operato r, o r  dea ler  . 
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7 .  T h e  fu nd sha l l  re imbu rse the department fo r a l l  costs , atto rney's fees ,  and 

other lega l  expenses re lat ing to ad m in i strat ive and adjud icat ive 
p roceed ings  u nder  th is  chapter and any subsequent lega l  proceed ing . Any 
mon ies re i m b u rsed m ust be deposited i n  the department 's operat i ng  fund 
in the state t reasu ry a nd must be spent subject to appropriat ion by the 
leg is lat ive assemb ly .  

SECTION 1 5 . AM E N D M E NT. Sect ion 23-37-1 9 of  the North Da kota Centu ry 
Code is  amended and  reenacted as  fo l lows : 

23-37- 1 9 .  App l i cation  for re imbursement. 
Any owner  or operator who is a fi rst-pa rty c la imant who proposes to take 

correct ive act ion  or has unde rta ken  corrective act ion in response to a re lease,  the t ime 
of such re lease be ing  u nknown , may app ly  to  the administrator department of 
env i ronmenta l qua l i ty fo r part ia l  o r  fu l l  re imbu rsement under  sect ion 23-37- 1 8 .  An owner  
o r  operato r who i s  a fi rst-pa rty c la imant may be re imbursed on ly  fo r costs i ncu rred afte r 
J u ly  1 ,  1 989 ,  even if the re leases were d iscovered befo re J u ly 1 ,  1 989 ,  up  to the 
max i m u m  of twenty-five thousand do l l a rs per locat ion .  

SECTION 1 6 . AM E N D M E NT. Section 23-37-20 of the North Da kota Centu ry 
Code is  amended and  reenacted as  fo l lows : 

23-37-20 . Administrator Department of env ironmenta l qua l i ty to dete rm ine 
costs . 

A re i m b u rsement fo r co rrect ive act ions taken by an  owner ,  operato r, or  dea ler  
may not be made fro m the fund u nt i l the administrator depa rtment of  env i ron menta l 
qua l ity has  d eterm i ned that the costs fo r wh ich re imbursement is  req uested were 
actua l ly i n cu rred and  were reasonab le .  A l l  necessa ry loss adjustment expenses must 
be i nc luded as  a com ponent of the loss and  m ust be pa id out of the fu nd . 

SECTION 1 7 . AM E N D M E NT. Sect ion 23-37-23 of the North Da kota Century 
Cod e is  a mended a nd reenacted as  fo l lows : 

23-37-23. Recovery of expenses . 
Any reasonab le  and  necessary expenses i ncu rred by the fund , wh ich exceed the 

coverage l i m its p rovid ed by sect ion 23-37- 1 8 ,  i n  ta k ing a co rrect ive act io n ,  inc lud ing 
costs of i nvest igat i ng a re lease ,  a nd i n  tak ing lega l  act ions may be recovered i n  a civi l 
act ion i n  d i str ict cou rt brought by the administrator depa rtment of environ menta l qua l ity 
aga inst a n  owner  o r  operato r. The certif icat ion  of expenses by an  approved agent of the 
fu nd is  p rima  fac ie evidence that the expenses are reasonab le and necessa ry .  Any 
expenses that a re recovered u nder  th i s  sect ion must be depos ited in the fu nd . 

SECTION 1 8 . AM E N D M E NT. Sect ion 23-37-24 of the North Da kota Centu ry 
Code i s  a mended a nd reenacted as  fo l lows : 

23-37-24. Costs exceed ing re imburseme nt. 
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I f  the cost of any extraord i na ry authorized action  under  th is  chapter exceeds  

a mounts awa rded to the administrator depa rtment o f  env i ronmenta l  qua l ity o r  the 
department from the federa l  government ,  the administrator depa rtment of env i ronmenta l 
qua l ity may pay the depa rtment the cost of the corrective act ions ,  i nc l ud i ng the cost of 
i nvest igat ing a re lease , if the board fi nds that the cause was a petro leum substance ,  
that a n  adequate amount exists i n  t he  fund to pay  fo r t he  co rrect ive act ion ,  that the 
occu rrence was extraord i na ry in  scope and size ,  and that a danger  to the hea lth a nd 
safety of cit izens exists . 

S ECTION 1 9 . AM E N D M E NT. Section 23-37-25 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is  a mended and reenacted as  fo l lows : 

23-37-25 . Coord inat ion of benefits . 
I f  a n  owner  o r  operator has an  i nsurance po l i cy that p rov ides the same coverage as  the 
fund , the administrator department of env i ronmenta l qua l ity of the fund sha l l  pay the 
share of the covered loss o r  damage for wh ich the fund  is  respons ib le .  The share that 
m ust be pa id from the fund i s  equa l  to the p roport io n  that the app l icab le  l im it of 
coverage under  the fund bears to the l im its of i nsu rance of a l l  i nsurance coverage on  
t he  sa me bas is .  

SECTION 20 .  AM E N D M E NT. Section 23-37-26 of  the North Dakota Centu ry 
Code is  a mended and reenacted as  fo l lows : 

23-37-26 . Th i rd-party damages - Part ic i pation  i n  actions and review of 
settleme nts . 

1 .  An owner o r  operator who is  sued fo r damages resu lt ing from a re lease 
sha l l  not ify the administrator department of envi ronmenta l  qua l ity wit h i n  
fou rteen days o f  be ing  served with a summons and  comp la i nt .  The  owner  
o r  operato r sha l l  a l so  advise the administrator department of 
env i ronmenta l qua l i ty if any  i nsu rer  is  defend ing  the owner o r  operato r and  
p rov ide to  the  administrator depa rtment of  envi ronmenta l qua l ity the name 
of  that i nsurer .  

2 .  

3 .  

4 

An owner o r  operato r who , befo re l it igat ion ,  enters i nto negot iat ions with a 
th i rd party who c la ims  to have been damaged by a re lease ,  o r  who 
receives a demand fo r payment of damages to a th i rd party who c la ims  to 
have been damaged by a re lease ,  sha l l  not ify the administrator 
department of envi ronmenta l qua l ity with i n  fou rteen  days of the demand o r  
t he  negot iat ions .  
The administrator department of  env i ronmenta l qua l ity and the board sha l l  
review the cond uct of  any  l it igat ion o r  negot iat ion . The administrator 
department of envi ronmenta l qua l ity may not assume any lega l  costs 
i ncurred by the defendant or p l a i nt iff, but may part ic i pate in d i scovery ,  tri a l  
p roceed ings ,  o r  sett lement negot iat ions of  e i ther d i sputed l i ab i l i ty or  
damages that  bear  on  the determ i nat ion of  a p la i nt iff's damages .  
The administrator department of  env i ronmenta l qua l ity and the boa rd sha l l  
review any  sett lement negot iat ions to  determ ine t he  do l l a r  amount of 
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bod i ly  i nj u ry o r  p roperty damage actua l ly ,  necessa ri ly ,  and reasonab ly  
i ncu rred by th i rd pa rt ies wh ich , if pa id by the defendant ,  wo u ld be 
co ns idered e l i g i b l e  costs . 

SECTION 2 1 . AM E N D M E NT. Section 23-37-27 of the North Da kota Centu ry 
Code i s  a mended and  reenacted as  fo l lows : 

23-37-27 . Th i rd-party damages - Documentation .  
1 .  An  app l i ca nt 's payments for th i rd -pa rty da mages pursuant to a judgment 

ente red i n  a cou rt must i nc l ude  copies of the notice of entry of judg ment 
and a bstra ct of costs . 

2 .  An  app l ica nt's payments for th i rd-pa rty damages made by agreement i n  
sett lement of l it igat ion m u st i nc l ude copies of the sett lement agreement 
and  such suppo rt ing  documents as may be requ i red by the administrator 
d epartment of env i ro n menta l qua l ity .  

3 .  An  app l i ca nt 's payments for th i rd -pa rty damages made b y  agreement 
without  reference to l it igat ion must i nc lude cop ies of the sett lement and 
such support ing documents as  may be requ i red by the administrator 
depa rtment of env i ronmenta l qua l ity .  

4 .  The administrator department of environmenta l qua l ity and the boa rd may 
req u i re a t h i rd party who c la ims  bod i ly  i nj u ry to be exa m ined by a 
phys ic ia n a nd req u i re that the phys ic ian 's report be subm itted to the 
administrator d epartment of envi ron menta l qua l ity .  The administrator 
d epartment  of env i ronmenta l qua l ity may requ i re a th i rd pa rty who c la ims 
p roperty d amage to  permit a p roperty appra iser o r  c la ims adjuste r reta i ned 
by the administrator department of env iron menta l qua l ity to i nspect the 
p roperty a nd report to the administrator department of env iron menta l  
qua l ity .  

5 .  The fund sha l l  pay a judgment aga inst an  owner ,  operato r, o r  dea ler  
awa rded to a th i rd party as  a resu lt of  a th i rd-pa rty c la im a nd property 
d a mage aga i nst a n  owner ,  operator, o r  dea ler  reg istered by the fu nd . 

6 .  The fund sha l l  pay fo r correct ive act ion a s  awa rded to a th i rd party i n  any 
judg ment aga inst a n  owner ,  operator, or  dea ler. 

7 .  L i ab i l i ty o f  t h e  tan k  owner, operator, dea ler, o r  fu nd to th i rd part ies fo r 
co rrective act io n  o r  persona l  i nj u ries and property da mage may not 
exceed , per person ,  one  m i l l i on  do l l a rs .  Max imum l i ab i l ity of the fu nd , 
i nc l ud i ng  a l l  c la ims  by th i rd part ies ,  may not exceed , fo r any re lease site , 
the maxi m u m  p rovided i n  sect ion 23-37- 1 8 .  

8 .  A th i rd party m a y  not b ri ng  a n  act ion aga i nst any owner, operato r, o r  
dea le r  more tha n th ree yea rs after a co rrect ive act ion p lan has been 
approved by the department if the owner ,  operator, or  dealer fu l ly 
i m p lements and  comp l ies with the co rrect ive act ion p la n .  

9 .  I n  i nvest igat ing a re lease s ite o r  reviewi ng the imp lementatio n of any 
co rrective act ion p lan  approved by the department ,  the department sha l l  
determ ine  whether  the re lease currently threatens pub l i c  hea lth o r  the 
env i ronment .  The department sha l l  requ i re ,  based on science and 
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tech nology appropriate for the site , any mon ito ring , remed iat ion ,  o r  other  
appropriate co rrect ive act ion  that is  reasonab ly necessa ry to  protect pub l i c  
hea lth or  the  environ ment .  The department may req u i re co rrective act ion  
a t  a re lease s ite a t  any  t ime after a re lease occurs .  

S ECTION 22 .  AM E N D M E NT.  Section 23-37-28 o f  t he  North Da kota Centu ry 
Code i s  a mended and reenacted as  fo l lows : 

23-37-28 . M atch i n g  fede ra l  fu nds .  
The administrator department of  env i ronmenta l qua l ity and the  boa rd may 

annua l ly a l low the department a ten percent match ing  g ra nt fo r federa l  lea k ing 
underg ro und sto rage tank  funds to be pa id  o ut of the fund if the moneys a re ava i l ab le  
and  the administrator department of envi ro nmenta l qua l ity and the  boa rd determ i ne the 
a l lowa nce appropriate . 

S E CTION 23.  AM E N D M E NT.  Section  23-37-29 of the North Da kota Century 
Code i s  amended a nd reenacted as  fo l l ows : 

23-37-29 . Fund appropriations .  
Money i n  the  fund is  conti nuous ly app ropriated to  the  administrator department of 

env i ro nmenta l qua l ity fo r the purpose of mak ing re imbu rsements under  th is  chapter . 

S E CTION 24. AM E N DME NT.  Section  23-37-30 of the North Da kota Centu ry 
Code is  amended and reenacted as  fo l lows : 

23-37-30 . I nvestment of fu n d .  
I nvestment o f  the fund is  u nder  t he  supervis ion  o f  t he  state investment board i n  

accorda nce with chapter 2 1 - 1 0 . The commissioner state hea lth office r may  pu rchase a 
contract fo r re i nsurance of any ris k  to be pa id by the fund . The administrator department 
of env i ron menta l qua l ity may i nvest igate the pu rchase of i nsurance that re imburses an  
owner  o r  operato r for property damage c la ims  by  th i rd part ies other tha n c la ims fo r 
costs of co rrect ive actio n .  

S ECTION 25. AM E N D M E NT.  S ubsect ion 2 of Sect ion 26 . 1 -0 1 -07 of the North 
Da kota Centu ry Code is  amended a nd reenacted as fo l lows : 

26. 1 -01 -07 .  Fees chargeab le  by com m iss ioner. 

2 .  Nonp rofit hea lth se rv ice co rpo rat io ns a nd hea lth ma intena nce 
organ izat io ns  a re subject to the same fees  as any other  i nsu rance com pany .  County 
m utua l  i n s u ra nce compan ies  and benevo lent societ ies a re l i ab le  on ly  fo r the fees 
ment ioned in subd iv is ions b ,  f, g ,  a nd k b  of subsect ion 1 .  

S E CTIO N 26 .  AM E N D M E NT.  Sect ion  26 . 1 -0 1 -09 of the No rth Da kota Centu ry 
Cod e i s  amended and reenacted as  fo l lows : 

26 . 1 -0 1 -09 .  Sa lary of com m iss ioner. 
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The annua l  sa l a ry of the com m iss ioner  is one hundred two thousand six hundred 

eighty nine dollars through June 30, 201 6, and one hundred five thousand seven 
hundred seventvone h u n d red ten thousand and one do l l a r  th rough June  30, 2020 and 
one  h u nd red twe lve thousand two hund red and one do l l a rs thereafter .  

S E CTION 27. AM E N D M E NT. S ubsect ion 1 of Sect ion 26 . 1 -03- 1 7 of the North 
Dakota Centu ry Code is amended and  reenacted as fo l lows : 

26 . 1 -03-1 7 .  Com m iss ioner  to co l lect prem ium tax - Insurance compan ies 
genera l ly - Computation  - C red its - Penal ty - Esti mated tax .  
1 .  Befo re issu i ng  the annua l  cert ifi cate req u i red by law,  the co mm issioner  sha l l  co l lect 
from eve ry stock  and  mutu a l  i nsu ra nce company, nonprofit hea lth service corporat io n ,  
hea lth ma i ntenance o rg a n izat ion ,  a nd p repa id  lega l  service o rgan ization ,  except 
frate rna l  benefit and  benevo lent  soc iet ies ,  do ing  bus iness in th is  state , a tax on the 
g ross a m ount  of prem i ums ,  a ssessments ,  membersh ip  fees ,  subscriber  fees ,  po l i cy 
fees ,  se rv ice fees co l lected by a ny t h i rd-party ad m in istrato r provid ing  adm in i strat ive 
serv ices to a g ro u p  that i s  se lf- i nsu red fo r hea lth ca re benefits , a nd fi nance and 
service charges received i n  th i s  state d u ri ng  the preced ing ca lendar  yea r, at the rate of 
two percent with respect to l ife i n su rance ,  one  and th ree-fou rths percent with respect 
to acc ident  a nd hea lth i n su ra nce ,  and  one  and  th ree-fou rths percent with respect to a l l  
other  l i nes o f  i nsu rance .  Th i s  tax does  no t  a pp ly  to  cons iderations for a n n u it ies . The 
tota l tax i s  paya b le on  o r  befo re March  fi rst fo l lowing the yea r  fo r wh ich the tax is  
assessab le .  I f  the d ue d ate fa l l s  o n  a Satu rday  or lega l  ho l iday ,  the tax is  payab le  on 
the next succeed ing  bus i ness day .  Co l lect ions from th is  tax must be depos ited i n  the 
i nsu ra nce tax d i stri b ut ion fu nd u nde r  sect ion 1 8-04-04 . 1  but not i n  an  amount 
exceed i ng  one-ha lf of the b ienn i a l  amount appropriated fo r d i stri but ion under  section 
1 8  04 05 and chapter 23-46 and  the amount computed under  sect ion 1 8-04-05 i n  any 
fi sca l yea r. Co l lect io ns  from th is  tax exceed ing  the 
sum of the amount depos ited in the i nsu rance tax d i stri but ion fund must be de pos ited 
in the genera l  fu nd in the state t reasury .  

S E CTIO N  28.  AM E N D M E NT. Section 26 . 1 -2 1 -03 of  the North Da kota Century 
Code i s  a mended and  reenacted as  fo l l ows : 

26 . 1 -2 1 -03 .  Com m iss ioner  may emp loy ass istants - Conti n u i ng 
appropriation .  

The com m iss ioner  may emp loy ass ista nts o r  contract for the services of 
ass ista nts from the North Da kota I nsu rance Reserve Fund us ing money from the 
reserve fu nd of the state bond i ng fund as  may be necessa ry to operate the fu nd . +4e 
salaries of all employees together with all other expenditures for the operation of the 
fund must remain within the appropriations made by the legislative assembly for these 
purposes and must be paid by warrant check drawn on the state treasury prepared by 
the office of management and budget after the approval of expense vouchers by the 
office of the budget. Fund i ng fo r the state bond ing fund is  appropriated on a co nt i n u i ng 
bases fo r the pu rposes of th is  sect ion .  
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S E CTIO N 29 .  AM ENDME NT. Sect ion 26 . 1 -2 1 - 1 7 of the No rth Da kota Century 

Code is  a mended and  reenacted as  fo l lows : 

26 . 1 -21 -1 7 .  Al lowed l i ab i l i ty c la ims  payable from fu nd - Adm i n istrative 
expe nses - M ethods of payment .  

A c la i m  a l lowed aga inst the fund must be pa id upon  wa rrants d rawn upon the 
state t reasurer  aga inst the fund . The warrant must be p repared by the office of 
management a nd budget pu rsuant  to the d i rect io ns of the commiss ioner. Payments fo r 
adm in i strative expenses of the state bond i ng  fund may be made from the reserve fund  
of  the state bond i ng fund or  must be made with i n  the  l im itat ions of  leg is lat ive 
app rop riat ions  u pon  warrant-checks p repared by the office of management a nd budget 
after the app rova l of vouchers by the com miss ioner. 

S E CTIO N  30 .  AM E N D M E NT. Sect ion  26 . 1 -22-03 of the North Dakota Centu ry 
Code is  a mended and  reenacted as  fo l l ows : 

26 . 1 -22-03 .  E m ployment of assistants - Expend itures from fund = 
Cont i n u i ng appropriation .  

To ca rry out th i s  chapter, the  com miss ioner may  ut i l ize any i nfo rmatio n on fi le  i n  
t he  state fi re ma rsha l 's  department and  any  o f  t he  emp loyees o f  t he  comm iss ioner  a nd 
the com m iss ioner  may emp loy necessary ass istants o r  contract fo r the services of 
ass istants from the North Dakota I nsu ra nce Reserve Fund us ing money from the 
reserves of the fund and  incur  necessary expenses that may be pa id from the reserves 
of the fund . A l l  expend itu res made for these purposes, other  than services contracted 
and pa id fo r by money from the fund and  necessary expenses pa id from the reserves of 
the fund ,  m u st rema in  with i n  the  l i m its of  leg is lat ive app rop riat ions and  must be pa id  o ut 
of the fund u pon  wa rrants prepared by the office of management and budget d rawn 
u pon  the state t reasurer  after the app rova l of vouchers by the office of the budget .  
Fund i ng fo r the state fi re and to rnado fund i s  appropriated on a cont i n u i ng bases fo r the 
pu rposes of th is sect io n .  

S E CTIO N  3 1 . Sect ion 26 . 1 -22-03 . 1 o f  t he  North Dakota Centu ry Code is  created 
and enacted as fo l lows : 

26 . 1 -22-03 . 1 . North Dakota i nsurance reserve fu nd  may uti l ize producers 
and  pay comm iss ions .  

The North  Dakota i nsurance reserve fund may ut i l ize the service of  producers 
l icensed under  the l aws of th is  state to ass ist po l i cyho lders .  Any comm iss ion pa id to the 
producers must be pa id out of the prem ium i ncome of the fund and must be assessed 
aga i nst the po l i cyho lders that benefit from the producers .  

S E CTION 3 2 .  AM E N D M E NT.  Sect ion 26 . 1 -22 . 1 -02 o f  t he  North Dakota Centu ry 
Code is  a mended and  reenacted as fo l l ows : 

26 . 1 -22. 1 -02. Ch ief boi ler  i nspector, deputy i nspectors - Appoi ntment -
J u ri sd iction .  
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The commissioner, as manager of the state fire and tornado fund d epartment of 
env i ronmenta l qua l ity, sha l l  emp loy a ch ief bo i le r  i nspecto r and  deputy i nspecto rs . The 
ch ief bo i l e r  i nspecto r has j u risd ict ion over a l l  bo i lers in th is state except as  otherwise 
provided . 

SECTION 33 .  AM E N D M E NT. Section  26 . 1 -22 . 1 -03 of the North Dakota Century 
Cod e i s  a mended and  reenacted as  fo l lows : 

26 . 1 -22 . 1 -03 .  Qua l ifications of ch ief boi ler  inspector - Deputy i nspectors . 
1 .  No person i s  e l i g i b le  to the office of ch ief bo i le r  i nspecto r u n less that 

person :  
a .  H a s  had a t  the t ime o f  the appo intment at least f ive years' 

experience in the construction ,  i nspect ion ,  operat io n ,  ma intenance ,  
o r  repa i r  of h i g h  p ressure bo i le rs and  pressu re vesse ls  as a 
mecha n ica l eng i neer, bo i lermaker, steam operat ing  eng i neer, o r  
bo i l e r  i n specto r .  An app l i cant  possess ing a mechan ica l  eng i neeri ng 
degree from a n  accred ited school  may subst itute that degree fo r 
two yea rs of the five years' experience ,  at the d iscret ion of the 
commissioner d epartment of env i ro nmenta l qua l i ty .  

b .  Ho lds  a com miss ion  issued by the nat iona l  board of bo i le r  a nd 
p ressu re vesse l  i n specto rs o r  obta i ns  the comm iss ion with i n  one 
yea r  after the d ate of appo i ntment by the commissioner department 
of env i ronmenta l qua l i ty. 

c . Is not d i rect ly or i nd i rect ly i nte rested in the man ufactu re or sa le of 
bo i l e rs or steam mach i ne ry o r  a rt ic les used in the construct ion or 
m a i ntenance of eng i nes o r  bo i lers .  

2 .  The commissioner d epa rtment of  envi ronmenta l qua l i ty sha l l  estab l ish 
q u a l if icat ions  fo r a deputy i n spector wh ich a re not i ncons istent wi th  the 
req u i rements of the pos i t ion .  

SECTION 34. AM E N D M E NT.  Sect ion 26 . 1 -22 . 1 -04 of the North Da kota Centu ry 
Code i s  a mended and  reenacted as  fo l lows : 

26 . 1 -22 . 1 -04. Powers and dut ies of ch ief boi l e r  i nspector. 
1 .  The ch ief bo i l e r  i n specto r sha l l :  

a .  Keep a comp lete record of the type ,  d i mens ions ,  maxi mum 
a l lowab le  work i ng  pressu re ,  age ,  cond it ion ,  locat io n ,  a nd date of 
the last- recorded i nterna l  and externa l  i nspect ion of bo i le rs to wh ich 
th is chapter app l ies .  

b .  Cooperate and  ass ist i n  loss prevent ion p rograms  sponsored by the 
commissioner d epa rtment of envi ro n menta l qua l ity .  

2 .  The ch ief bo i l e r  i nspecto r may de legate powers a n d  d ut ies to a n y  deputy 
i nspecto r o r  spec ia l  i nspecto r. 

SECTION 35. AM E N D M E NT. S ubsect io n 1 of sect ion 26 . 1 -22 . 1 -07  of the North 
Da kota Centu ry Cod e i s  amended a nd reenacted as fo l lows : 
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26. 1 -22 . 1 -07 .  I nspection of boi l e rs .  
1 .  The ch ief bo i le r  i nspecto r sha l l  i nspect each bo i le r  used or  p roposed to be 

used with i n  th is  state . The i nspect ion must be tho rough  as to the 
constructio n ,  i nsta l l at io n ,  cond it ion ,  and operat ion as p rovided by the ru les 
adopted to imp lement th is  chapter . 
An exempt bo i l e r  may be i nspected by the ch ief bo i l e r  i nspecto r when the 
owner ,  the owner's agent ,  or the user of the bo i le r  makes written request 
fo r i nspect ion to the commissioner depa rtment of env i ronmenta l qua l ity .  

SECTION 36.  AM E N D M E NT.  Section 26 . 1 -22 . 1 -08 of the North Dakota Centu ry 
Code is  amended and reenacted as  fo l lows : 

26 . 1 -22 . 1 -08 .  S pec ia l  i ns pector. 
1 .  U pon  written request of a n  emp loyer, the commissioner depa rtment of 

env i ronmenta l qual i ty may appo i nt as  a specia l i nspecto r an  i nspecto r i n  
the employ of: 
a .  An i nsu rance com pany authorized to i nsure bo i l e rs i n  t h i s  state 

aga i nst loss from exp los ion ;  
b .  A com pany qua l ified b y  the nat iona l  boa rd of bo i le r  a n d  p ressu re 

vesse l i nspecto rs as  an  accred ited owner/user i nspect ion 
o rgan ization ;  or 

c .  A com pany qua l ified by the nat iona l  boa rd of bo i le r  and p ressure 
vessel i nspectors as  an  accred ited autho rized i nspect ion agency .  A 
person may not be appo i nted as a specia l  i nspector u n less that 
person has passed the exam inat ion p rescri bed by the nat iona l  
boa rd of  bo i l e r  and  p ressu re vesse l i nspecto rs . 

2 .  An i nspect ion perfo rmed b y  a specia l  i nspecto r must b e  performed i n  
accordance with th i s  chapter a nd  a comp lete report o f  the i nspect ion must 
be fi led with the commissioner department of env i ronmenta l  qua l ity i n  the 
t ime ,  manner, and fo rm as  p rescri bed by the commissioner depa rtment of 
env i ronmenta l qual i ty .  

3 .  I f  a comp lete report i s  not fi led b y  the specia l i nspecto r's emp loyer with the 
commissioner depa rtment of envi ronmenta l qua l ity with i n  n i nety days from 
the cert ifi cate d ue d ate , the ch ief bo i le r  i nspecto r may make the requ i red 
i nspect ion , un less an extens ion of t ime is  g ranted by the ch ief bo i le r  
i nspecto r. The specia l  i nspecto r's employer must pay the i nspect ion fees 
as requ i red by sect ion 26 . 1 -22 . 1 -09 fo r a specia l  i nspect ion .  

4 .  The ch ief bo i l e r  i nspecto r may  inspect a ny  bo i le r  to wh ich a specia l  
i nspect ion app l ies .  

5 .  The commissioner d epa rtment o f  env ironmenta l qua l ity may ,  fo r cause , 
suspend o r  revoke the appo i ntment of any specia l  i nspecto r. 

S ECTION 37. AM E N D M E NT.  Section 26 . 1 -22 . 1 -09 of the North Dakota Centu ry 
Code is a mended and reenacted as fo l lows : 
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26 . 1 -22 . 1 -09 . I ns pectio n  and  ce rt ifi cate fees . 
U pon  comp let ion of i nspect ion ,  the owner or  user of a bo i l e r  sha l l  pay to the 

commissioner d epa rtment of env i ron menta l qua l ity fees or  a comb i nat ion of i nspect ion 
and ce rt if icate fees .  I nspect ion fees must be d eterm i ned by the commissioner 
depa rtment of env i ronmenta l qua l ity .  Certif icate fees a re dete rm i ned by sect io n 26 . 1 -
22 . 1 - 1 0 . The commissioner depa rtment of env i ronmenta l qua l ity must determ i ne and  
may annua l ly adjust a fee sca le fo r the i nterna l  i nspect ions  of  power bo i le rs ,  i nterna l  
i nspect ions of  l ow pressu re heat i ng  bo i l e rs ,  externa l  i nspect ions of  a l l  bo i le rs ,  and 
i nspect ion of bo i l e rs used excl u s ive ly  fo r exh i b it ion pu rposes. 
N ot more tha n two h u nd red do l l a rs may be charged or  co l lected fo r any one i nspect ion 
of a bo i ler  except fo r speci a l  i nspect ions made u pon  request. A l l  other  i nspect ions made 
by the ch ief bo i l e r  i nspecto r, i nc l ud i ng shop i nspect ions and reviews and specia l  
i nspect ions  when  requested by the owner  o r  user  of  a bo i le r, must be  charged at a rate 
not to exceed five h u nd red do l l a rs per  day or three hundred do l l a rs per  ha lf day of fou r  
hou rs o r  less , p l us  payment for m i leage ,  mea ls ,  and hotel expenses as a l lowed by 
sect ion s  44-08-04 and  54-06-09 , except that the m i leage rate for a state-owned veh ic le 
wi l l  be the actua l  amount i ncu rred by the commissioner department of env i ronmenta l 
qua l ity .  The annua l  fee fo r the issuance of  a reci p roca l comm iss ion ca rd fo r a spec ia l  
i n specto r i s  fo rty do l l a rs and  the annua l  fee for the issua nce of  a we lder-q ua l if ied ca rd is  
twenty do l l a rs .  The fee fo r ta k i ng  a n  exam inat ion for a hobby bo i le r  operat ing l icense is  
twenty-five do l l a rs and  the fee fo r a hobby bo i ler operat ing l icense is twenty-five do l l a rs .  
A hobby  bo i l e r  operat ing l icense issued unde r  th is sect ion is  va l id  for s i x  yea rs .  

SECTION 38.  AM E N D M E NT. Sect ion 26 . 1 -22 . 1 - 1 0  of  the  North Da kota Century 
Code is  a mended and  reenacted as  fo l lows : 

2 6 . 1 -22 . 1 - 1 0 . Cert ifi cate of i ns pection  - Certificate to be posted .  
The commissioner depa rtment of  envi ronmenta l qua l ity sha l l  i ssue a certificate of 

i nspect ion  fo r each bo i le r  i nspected u po n  receipt of an inspect ion report certify ing that 
the bo i l e r  i s  i n  a safe co nd i t ion to be  operated . The commissioner depa rtment of 
env i ro n menta l qua l ity sha l l  charg e  a fee of twenty do l l a rs per yea r for each yea r  that a 
certif icate is  va l i d , o r  part of a yea r  thereof, fo r each certif icate of i nspect ion issued as 
the resu lt of  i nspect ions a uthorized under  sect ions 26 . 1 -22 . 1 -07 and 26 . 1 -22 . 1 -08 . The 
fees a re the l i ab i l i ty of the owner  o r  user  and must be pa id i n  accorda nce with ru les 
adopted by the commissioner d epa rtment of envi ron menta l qua l ity .  
No  certif icate may be issued fo r any bo i le r  not in  a safe cond it ion to be operated or  fo r a 
bo i l e r  fo r wh ich the i nspect ion a nd certif icate fees have not been paid i n  fu l l .  No 
certif icate is  va l i d  fo r a period of more than th i rty-s ix  months fo r power bo i le rs descr ibed 
in subsect ion 2 of sect io n 26 . 1 -22 . 1 -07 , and no more than twe lve months fo r other  
power bo i le rs ,  twe lve mo nths fo r stea m tract ion eng ines ,  and th i rty-six mo nths fo r low 
p ressu re bo i l e rs except that a two-month g race period may be extended fo r any 
certif icate . U pon  written req uest from a specia l  inspecto r, the ch ief bo i le r  i nspecto r may 
issue a sho rt-te rm certificate . Each certif icate of inspect ion must be posted 
consp icuous ly  under  g lass in the bo i le r  room or  adjacent to the bo i le r  i nspected . 
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SECTIO N 39 . AM E N D M E NT. Section 26 . 1 -22 . 1 - 1 2  of the North Dakota Centu ry 
Code is  amended and reenacted as  fo l lows : 

26 . 1 -22. 1 -1 2 .  Man ufacturer's data report .  
The bo i le r  manufactu rer sha l l  p rov ide the commissioner department of 

envi ro nmenta l qua l ity with a manufacturer's data report .  When s igned by an  autho rized 
i nspecto r, th is  data sheet togethe r  with the stam p  on the bo i l e r  i s  the record denoti ng 
that  the bo i le r  has been constructed i n  accordance with the ru les adopted to imp lement 
th is chapter. 

SECTION 40 . AM E N D M E NT.  Section 26 . 1 -22 . 1 - 1 4  of the North  Dakota Century 
Code is  a mended and reenacted as  fo l lows : 

26 . 1 -22 . 1 - 1 4. Ru les - Pena l ty for v io lat ion - Heari n g .  
The  commissioner department o f  env i ronmenta l qua l ity sha l l  adopt ru les for the 

safe and p roper i nsta l lat ion ,  use ,  operat ion ,  and inspect ion of bo i le rs and  pressu re 
vesse l s  subject to th i s  chapter. The commissioner department of envi ronmenta l qua l ity 
sha l l  adopt ru les fo r the l icens ing of o perators of hobby bo i le rs used d u ring  parades ,  
exh i b it ions ,  and th resh ing  shows where the pub l ic  i s  i nvited . A fee must be cha rged fo r 
a n  operat ing l icense ,  fo r a l icense renewa l ,  and  fo r a n  exam inat ion conducted to 
determ ine  m i n imum com petence . I nd iv id ua l s  operat ing hobby bo i le rs with i n  th is  state as  
of  J u ly 1 ,  2007 ,  a re cons idered acceptab le  for a l icense without add it iona l  tra i n i ng  o r  
exa m inat ion .  An ind iv id ua l  who i s  no t  a res ident o f  t h i s  state and  who ho l ds  a bo i l e r  
operator l icense or  credent ia l i n  a nothe r  state o r  Canad ian  p rov ince is exem pt from 
l i censu re as a hobby bo i l e r  operato r i n  th i s  state . The commissioner depa rtment of 
envi ro nmenta l qua l ity may not issue  a certificate of i nspect ion to any owner  o r  user of a 
bo i le r  who fa i l s  o r  refuses to comp ly  with those ru les .  The commissioner depa rtment of 
env i ro n menta l qua l ity sha l l  revoke any  certificate p resent ly i n  fo rce upon evidence that 
the owner o r  user of the boi ler is fa i l i ng o r  refus ing  to comp ly with the ru les .  
Any owner o r  user of  a bo i le r  may request a hear ing befo re the commissioner 
depa rtment of env i ronmenta l qua l i ty with i n  fifteen  days from service of an  o rder  refus ing  
o r  revok ing a certifi cate of  i nspect io n .  I t  i s  the bu rden  of  the owner  o r  user to  show 
cause why the cert ificate of i nspect ion shou ld  not be refused o r  revoked . If no hea ri ng  i s  
requested with i n  the  requ i red period , the o rder  of  the commissioner depa rtment of 
envi ro nmenta l qua l ity becomes fi n a l  and  i s  not subject to fu rther  proceed ings .  

S ECTION 41 . AM E N D M E NT. Section 26 . 1 -23 . 1 -0 1  of  the North Dakota Centu ry 
Code is  a mended and reenacted as  fo l l ows : 

26 . 1 -23. 1 -0 1 . Gove rnment  se lf- i nsurance pools - Regu lat ion - Re i nsurance .  
1 .  Any two or  more ent i t ies that have un ited to self- i nsure aga inst the i r  lega l 

l i ab i l i ty under  chapter 32- 1 2 . 1  o r  any  state agency that un ites with a nothe r  
state agency or  po l i t ica l  subd iv is ion ,  o r  both ,  to se lf- i nsure aga inst the i r  
lega l  l i ab i l i t ies a re subject t o  t he  provis ions of t h i s  chapter with the 
except ion of a city and i ts pa rk d istrict estab l ished pu rsuant to chapter 40-
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49 . Govern ment se lf- i nsu ra nce poo ls  may on ly provide coverage of the 
fo l lowi ng types fo r pool  members ,  the i r  office rs ,  emp loyees ,  and agents : 
a .  Casua lty i nsu ra nce,  i nc l ud ing genera l ,  pub l i c  offic ia l s ,  and 

p rofess iona l  l i a b i l i ty coverages .  
b .  Automob i l e  i nsu rance ,  i nc l ud ing  motor veh ic le l i ab i l ity i nsu rance 

coverage ,  secu rity fo r motor veh ic les owned or operated as 
req u i red by cha pter 26 . 1 -4 1 , and protect ion aga inst other  l i ab i l ity 
and  laws assoc iated with the ownersh ip  of moto r veh ic les and 
a utomob i l e  phys ica l  d am age coverages .  

c .  P roperty i nsu ra nce , i n cl u d i ng i n land mari ne coverage ,  money and 
securit ies coverage ,  and  extra expense coverage .  However, th is  
subd iv is ion does not  a uthorize government self- i nsura nce poo ls  to 
write those types of i n su ra nce coverages offered by the state fi re 
a nd to rnado fu nd under  the provis ions of chapter 26 . 1 -22 as they 
existed on December  3 1 , 1 988, un less a govern ment self- i nsurance 
poo l  enters i nto a contract with the comm iss ioner to provide 
serv ices for the state fi re a nd to rnado fund under  the provis io ns  of 
26 . 1 -22-03 .  

d .  Other  coverages a uthorized by  t he  commiss ioner a nd necessa ry to 
a poo l 's  membersh i p .  

A govern ment se lf- i nsu ra nce poo l  may  not expose itself t o  loss on  any 
s ing le  ris k  o r  haza rd i n  a n  a m o u nt exceed ing ten percent of the amount of 
its ad m itted assets u n less the pool  obta i ns  excess i nsurance or  
re i n su ra nce with i n su ra nce com pan ies approved fo r such  bus i ness by  the 
i n s u ra nce comm iss ioner. 

Ren u m ber  acco rd i ng ly 
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Co l lection and NDFA Payment 

$7,840,604 

$7,1 1 7,781 $7,1 1 7,781 
$7,268,1 93 $7,268,1 93 

$7,000,000 

$6,000,000 

$5,000,000 

$4,000,000 

$3,000,000 

$2,000,000 

$1 ,000,000 

$-
3 

201 8 201 7 

-

$3,1 00,000 

$3,1 00,000 

63 0 

201 6 201 5 201 4 201 3  201 2 201 1 

• Legislative Appropriation 

• Difference Between Collection and Distribution to Fire Departments 

D ND Firefighter's Association Appropriation 

201 0 

• 

$3,1 00,000 

0 

2009 
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$1 0,000,000.00 

$9,000,000.00 

$8,000,000.00 

$7,000,000.00 

$6,000,000.00 

$5,000,000.00 

$4,000,000.00 

$3,000,000.00 

$2,000,000.00 

$1 ,000,000.00 

$-

• • 
201 8 Insurance Premium Tax Distribution Breakdown 

201 8 Premium Tax Collected • 201 8 Premium Tax Disbursed to Fire Departments 

· 201 8 Premium Tax Distributed to N DFA • 201 8 Premium Tax Not Disbursed 



An nua l  Gross Premium Tax Leg is lative Percentage • Year Col lection Col lected Appropriation Appropriated 

201 8 $ 537 , 1 83 , 536 . 00 $ 9 ,400 , 7 1 1 . 88 $ 7 , 1 1 7 , 78 1 . 00 76% 

201 7  $ 553 ,37 1 ,685 . 00 $ 9 I 684 I 004 .49 $ 7 , 1 1 7 , 78 1 . 00 74% 

201 6 $ 544 ,267 , 885 . 00 $ 9 ,524 ,687 . 99 $ 7 , 840 ,603 . 00 82% 

201 5 $ 545 ,776 , 385 . 00 $ 9 ,55 1 , 086 . 74 $ 7 , 840 ,603 . 50 82% 

201 4  $ 523 ,403,44 1 . 00 $ 9 , 1 59 , 560 .22 $ 7 ,268 , 1 93 . 00 79% 

2013 $ 466 , 1 6 1 , 049 .00 $ 8 , 1 57 , 8 1 8 . 36 $ 7 ,268 , 1 93 . 00 89% 

201 2 $ 456 ,634 , 3 1 3 . 00 $ 7 ,99 1 , 1 00 .48 $ 3 , 1 00 , 000 .00  39% 

201 1 $ 396 ,747 ,255 .00 $ 6 ,943 , 076 . 96 $ 3 , 1 00 , 000 .00 45% 

201 0 $ 351 , 089 ,41 1 . 00 $ 6 , 1 44 , 064 .69 $ 3 , 1 00 , 000 .00 50% 

2009 $ 328 , 770 , 097 .00 $ 5 , 753 ,476 . 70 $ 3 , 1 00 , 000 .00  54% 

2008 $ 306 ,862 , 744 .00 $ 5 , 370 ,098 . 02 $ 3 , 1 00 , 000 . 00 58% 

2007 $ 290, 322 , 343 . 00 $ 5 , 080 ,64 1 . 00 $ 3 , 1 00 , 000 .00 6 1 % 

2006 $ 292 ,456 , 078 . 00 $ 5 , 1 1 7 , 98 1 . 37 $ 3 , 1 00 , 000 .00 6 1 % 

2005 $ 269 , 876 ,034 .00 $ 4 ,722 , 830 .60 $ 2 ,600 , 000 .00  55% 

2004 $ 279, 024 ,462 . 00 $ 4 ,882 , 928 . 09 $ 2 ,600 , 000 .00 53% 

2003 $ 239, 1 82 ,4 1 3 . 00 $ 4 ,  1 85 ,692 :23 $ 2 ,600 , 000 .00  62% 

• 2002 $ 2 1 1 , 549 ,2 1 9 . 00 $ 3 , 702 , 1 1 1 . 33 $ 2 ,600 , 000 . 00 70% 

2001 $ 1 94 ,626 , 506 . 00 $ 3 ,405 , 963 . 86 $ 2 ,600 , 000 .00  76% 

2000 $ 1 70 ,693 , 1 75 . 00 $ 2 , 987 , 1 30 . 56 $ 2 ,600 , 000 . 00 87% 

1 999 $ 1 8 1 , 77 1 ,209 .00 $ 3 , 1 80 , 996 . 1 6  $ 2 ,600 , 000 .00  82% 

1 998 $ 1 73 , 337 , 5 1 8 . 00 $ 3 , 033,406 . 57 $ 2 ,600 , 000 . 00 86% 

1 997 $ 1 85 ,22 1 , 3 1 4 . 00 $ 3 ,24 1 , 373 . 00 $ 2 ,600 , 000 .00 80% 

• 
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In the early 1 900s, major U.S .  cities suffered disastrous fires that destroyed billions of dollars ' 
worth of property. In the aftermath, insurance companies realized they needed advance 
information on the fire loss characteristics of individual communities .  

The National Board of Fire Underwriters (NBFU) had been established in 1 866 to  promote fire 
prevention and public fire protection. After a number of conflagrations - including the great 
Baltimore fire of 1 904, which claimed 1 40 acres, more than 70 blocks, and 1 ,526 buildings -
the NBFU expanded its scope, developing the Municipal Inspection and Grading System. Under 
that program, engineers evaluated the fire potential of many cities .  In response, those cities 
improved their public fire protection services .  

Since 1 909, the Municipal Inspection and Grading System and its successors have been an 
important part of the underwriting and rating process for insurers writing personal and 
commercial fire policies . ISO ' s  Public Protection Classification (PPC®) Service now gives 
insurers credible data to help them develop premiums that fairly reflect the risk of loss in a 
particular location. 

ISO ' s  Public Protection Classification (PPC®) information plays an important part in the 
decisions insurers make affecting the underwriting and pricing of property insurance. In fact, 
most U .S .  insurance companies - including the largest ones - use PPC information in one or 
more of the following ways : 

• to identify opportunities for writing new business 
• to manage the quality of community fire protection across their book of  business 
• to review loss experience in various rating territories 
• to offer coverages and establish deductibles for individual homes and businesses 

Insurance companies - not ISO - establish the premiums they charge to policyholders . The 
methodology a company uses to calculate premiums for property insurance may depend on the 
company' s  fire loss experience, underwriting guidelines, and marketing strategy. 

Here are some general guidelines to help you' understand the benefits of improved PPC ratings 
for residents and businesses: 

• PPC may affect the underwriting and pricing for a variety of personal and commercial 
insurance coverages, including homeowners, mobile home, fine arts floaters, and 
commercial property (including business interruption) . 

• Assuming all other factors are equal, the price of property insurance in a community with a 
good PPC is lower than in a community with a poor PPC. 

To determine a community's Public Protection Classification (PPC®) ,  ISO conducts a field 
survey. Expert ISO staff visit the community to observe and evaluate features of the fire 
protection systems . Using our manual called the Fire Suppression Rating Schedule (FSRS), ISO 

• 
objectively evaluates four major areas : 

fj Lf 
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• Emergency communications systems 
A review of the emergency communications systems accounts for 1 0  points of the total 
classification. The review focµses on the community's facil ities and support for handling 
and dispatching alarms for structure fires .  

• Fire department 
A review of the fire department accounts for 50 points of the total classification. ISO 
focuses on a community's fire suppression capabilities. We measure suppression 
capabilities based on the fire department's first-alarm response and initial attack to 
minimize potential loss. Here, ISO reviews such items as engine companies, ladder or 
service companies, deployment of fire companies, equipment carried on apparatus, 
pumping capacity, reserve apparatus, company personnel, and training. 

• Water supply 
A review of the water supply system accounts for 40 points of the total classification. ISO 
evaluates the community's water supply system to determine the adequacy for fire 
suppression purposes. We also consider hydrant size, type, and installation, as wel l  as the 
frequency and completeness of hydrant inspection and flow-testing programs. 

• Community risk reduction 
We review a community's risk reduction efforts and credit them in the Community Risk 
Reduction section, which allows for extra credit of up to 5 . 5  points for a potential total of 
1 05 . 5 .  That takes into account fire prevention code adoption and enforcement, public fire 
safety education, and fire investigation . 

After completing the field survey, ISO analyzes the data and calculates a PPC . The grading then 
undergoes a quality review. The community wil l  receive a notification letter identifying the new 
PPC. ISO also provides a hydrant-flow summary sheet, along with a Public Protection 
Classification Summary Report. The summary explains each subcategory and indicates the total 
points the community earned. The report also indicates the performance needed to receive full 
credit for each specific section in the schedule, as wel l  as the quantity actually provided . 

s 
fj 
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Fargo ISO Class to Insurance Prem ium Difference 

Value C lass 1 0  C lass 9 Class 8 Class 7 Class 6 C lass 5 C lass 4 C lass 3 Class 2 Class 1 
1 00% 93% 72% 68% 65% 63% 60% 58% 55% 53% 

$1 60,000.00 :f> 1 , 1 50 . 00 $ 1 , 069 .50 $ 828 .00  $ 782 . 00 $ 747 .50 $ 724 .50 $ 690. 00 $ 667 . 00 $ 632 . 50 $ 609 .50 
$250,000.00 $ 2 ,450 .00 $ 2 , 278 .50 $ 1 ,764 . 00 $ 1 ,666 .00 $ 1 ,592 .50 $ 1 , 543 . 50 $ 1 ,470 .00 $ 1 ,42 1 .00  $ 1 , 347 .50 $ 1 ,298 .50 
$31 0,000.00 $ 2 ,750 . 00 $ 2 , 557 .50 $ 1 , 980 .00 $ 1 ,870 .00 $ 1 ,787 . 50 $ 1 , 732 . 50 $ 1 ,650 .00 $ 1 , 595 .00 $ 1 , 5 1 2 . 50 $ 1 ,457 . 50 
$450,000.00 $ 3 ,450.00 $ 3 , 208 .50 $ 2 ,484 .00 $ 2 , 346 .00 $2 , 242 . 50 $ 2 , 1 73 .50 $ 2 , 070 .00 $ 2 , 00 1 .00 $ 1 , 897 .50 $ 1 , 828 . 50 
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Test imony to the 
North Dakota Senate Appropriations Committee 
J a n u a ry 8, 2019 

I - f-- (j)of 1 

Prepa red by Brennan  Qu intus, CEO 
North Da kota I nsu rance Reserve Fu n d  RE :  Senate B i l l  No. 2010 

M r. Cha i rman  and members of the Senate Appropriat ions Com m ittee, my name  i s  Bren nan  
Qu i ntus  and  I am the  CEO of  t he  North Da kota I n su rance Reserve F und  ( ND I RF } .  The N D I R F  is  a 
govern ment se lf- i n sura nce pool  that offe rs l i a b i l ity, a utomob i le, a nd  equ i pment ri s k  coverage 
to po l it i ca l s ubd iv is ions in North Da kota .  Over 2,500 loca l government ent it ies h ave jo i ned the  
N D I R F  as  mem bers s ince 1986. 

The N D I RF supports givi ng the ND I n su ra nce Department the opportun ity to contract with the 
N D I RF to operate the F i re and Tornado and State Bond i ng Funds  (of wh ich, many po l it ica l 
s ubd ivi s ions a re members of} as provided i n  SB 2010. Wh i l e  the  cu rrent F i re and  Tornado Fund  
and  State Bond ing  Fund  operat ion i s  cert a i n ly not b roken,  we hea r  from N D I RF mem bers 
cons i stent ly that there i s  certa i n ly room for imp rovement .  By l everagi ng the cu rrent N D I R F  
operat iona l  mode l, we  fee l  t h e  ND I R F  i s  i n  a pos it ion t o  ma i nta i n  t h e  fi n anc i a l  hea lth o f  both 
fu nds  whi le  imp rovi ng coverage and service. The N D I R F  has  a p roven track record of success 
over the last 32 yea rs, i n c l u d i ng: 

• Mem bersh i p  which i n c l udes a l l  53 N D  count ies a nd  we l l  over 90% of N D  cit i es, school  
d i str icts, park d ist r icts, and a l l  othe r  po l it ica l subd ivi s ions .  

• Extraord i n a ry fi nanc i a l  hea lth wh ich has  a l lowed the  N D I RF to retu rn over $61 .5  m i l l i on 
back to our members 

• Strong re lat ionsh ips  with the N DACo, N DLC, N DSBA, N DRPA, N DTOA, N DFA, a nd  othe r  
po l it ica l s ubd ivis ion associat ions  a nd  groups wh i ch  a l low for cont i n ued feed back 
rega rd i ng  N D I R F  p roducts and  service. 

• Strong re l at ionsh ip s  with the N D  loca l i n s u rance agent comm u n ity wh ich aga i n  a l l ows 
for conti nuous  product imp rovement and  p ri c ing feedback .  

• The ND I RF's focus i s  on provi d i ng  the best p rod uct a nd  service at the lowest poss i b l e  
rate for its members .  That focus  has  t u rned out outstand i ng  fi nanc i a l  resu lts for N D I R F  
members wh i l e  we  cons istently rece ive very posit ive mem ber feed back .  As I to ld t h e  
I n s u rance Commiss ioner, what we  do works a nd  ou r  goa l i s  t o  put the  N D IRF  stamp  on  
the  N D  F i re and  Tornado a nd  State Bond i ng  Funds .  

Tha n k  you  for the opportun ity to  provide  th i s  test imony. I wou l d  be p l eased to  respond to  
quest ions  the Comm ittee may have. 

( 
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Chairman Holmberg and Members of  the Committee, my name is Dana Schaar 

Jahn er, and I am executive director of  the North Dakota Recreation and Park Association 

(NDRPA) . NDRPA represents more than 700 members across the state, including park 

board members and park district staff, and works to advance parks, recreation and 

conservation for an enhanced qual ity of l ife in North Dakota. 

I am here on behalf of NDRPA to support the concept outl ined in Senate Bill 2010  as 

it relates to management of the State Fire and Tornado Fund. 

Many park districts utilize services provided by the North Dakota Insurance Reserve 

Fund (NDIF) and appreciate its commitment to high-quality customer service and 

understanding of parks and recreation activities in North Dakota. NDRPA supports the 

transfer of management of the State Fire and Tornado Fund from the Insurance 

Department to NDIRF because it would streamline services for park districts, allowing 

them to work with one entity to be more efficient in managing their insurance needs. 

Thank you for your time. 

1 6 0 5  E A S T  C A P I TO L  AV E PO B O X  1 0 9 1  B I S M A R C K , N O R T H  D A K OTA 5 8 5 0 2  7 0 1 . 3 5 5 . 4 4 5 8  w w w . n d , p �.;, 



• SB 2010 :SP, :lo I D  

Senate Appropriations Committee 
I - f? - d-.0 J 1 

By Jason Catrambone 

January 8 ,  2019 

Mr . Chairman and members of the committee, my name is Jason Catrambone, Fire Chief for the City 

of Williston. I am currently serving as the President of the North Dakota Fire Chief 's Association and 

am also representing that organization . 

I support SB 2010 with the proposed amendment to again equate the fire service funding allocation to 

match the full amount collected as a continuing appropriation . 

• 
The distribution from the premium tax to fire departments has historically been a significant 

component of fire protection funding. The Insurance Premium Tax was established in 1887 , before 

North Dakota was a state . The law taxes certain types of insurance premiums to provide funds to 

support local fire department operations and pensions. Originally 100% of the premium tax collected 

was distributed to the fire service. Over time the distribution percentage has varied and we are 

requesting that it be re-established to the full collection amount. 

• 

The need for these funds is a reasonable request and matches the original intent. The fire 

departments statewide have great responsibilities and your support of SB 2010 with the Insurance 

Commissioners amendment will be greatly appreciated . 
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M y  name i s  Bruce Schreiner. I a m  the Fire Chief from Garrison, where I have been Chief since 

1993 .  Our Fire Department protects a City of 1, 550  citizens, as well as an additional 2 ,300 that 

l ive in the rural areas, which includes several developments along Lake Sakakawea. In addition 

to our City and Rural District, we provide fire protection for the City of  White Shield and 

surrounding rural areas. There are approximately another 700 people that l ive in those areas. 

Our service area as described above is over 588 square miles. Our department provides fire 

protection, hazardous materials incidents, extrication, water rescues and recoveries, as well as 

weather related services. Our department consists of 40 volunteer firefighters that are very 

dedicated to our fire protection duties. 

I have included a current budget showing our income and expenses for a year, as well as what 

we try to set aside for equipment replacement. This budget shows our current anticipated 

replacement timetable, which is s ignificantly longer than what it should be .  With our current 

budget, we do not have the funds or resources to replace our equipment any sooner. I have 

included a second budget that shows a shorter replacement timeframe which would be more in 

line with industry standards. As you can see from our current budget, we barely break even 

with the longer replacement periods. You can also see that with a more standardized 

replacement period, we are very short of meeting our needs. 

In our budget, there is $43,519.00 in fund raising income. We are forced to do 7 to 8 maj or fund 

raising events throughout the year in order to survive. If you remove the fund raising income 

} I) 
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out of  our budget, you can see we have a huge deficit. The $ 25,500 .00  that we net off of these 

fund raisers equates to a mil l  levy of 6 .1 mills . This is in addition to the 4. 5 mil ls that the City 

provides us through their budget. In addition to the City mills, the Rural District also has a 10 .8  

mill levy. We feel that i t  would be  difficult in today's times to  increase the taxes to  our  patrons, 

so  we continue to concentrate on our fund raising efforts to keep a positive budget. We cannot 

afford to lose any funding from the Insurance Premium Tax and negatively affect our budget 

any more than it already has. We are very fortunate to have a group of firefighters that work as 

hard as they do on fund raising so we can afford to train and replace equipment as we are 

allowed to. A lot of small towns do not have the numbers or ability to do the fund raising that 

we do. I know a lot of small departments struggle to survive. 

I think we are very representative of small town fire departments .  We have the same budget 

stress and difficulty as most small town departments have. We struggle with the need to 

replace and upgrade equipment without the funding to do so .  As with most small town 

departments, we run our equipment and utilize our gear far longer than we should. We have 

two pumpers, one is a 1973 and one is a 1979 .  Both of these pumpers are in need of replacing, 

but we do not have the needed funds to replace them. When we are able to, we have decided to 

replace the two of them with one in order to save money and upkeep. 

We need 100% of the Insurance Premium Tax that is due to us in order to have any chance of 

adequately protecting the patrons that we have agreed to protect. What I am asking is twofold. 

One is to not reduce our Insurance Premium Tax funding source and two is to give back what 

was taken the last Legislative Session. I would ask any Legislator what value they place on their 

fj tA 
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property and life when it comes to fire protection. I do not believe that any of you would not 

think that it is worth the small dollars that each fire department receives from this tax. To us 

those same small dollars make the difference between being able to keep gas in our apparatus, 

adequate personal protective gear on our firefighters, and to properly train our firefighters to 

do their jobs safely and efficiently. As a Fire Chief, it is my job and duty to protect my 

firefighters and not put them in harm's way; I need these funds to do my job. Thank you for 

your time and consideration . 
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INCOME: 

Taxes 
Insurance Premium Tax 
City Budget 
Fund Raising 

Total Income 

EXPENSES 

Training 
General Operating 
Fund Raising 

Total Expenses 

REPLACEMENT FUND 

Pumper 
Tanker 
Grass Unit 
Rescue Unit 
SCBA's 
40 Sets of Turn Out Gear 
Extrication Tools 
Miscellaneous Tools 

Total Replacement Funds 

NET INCOME 

2017 2017 
RURAL DISTRICT CITY OF GARRISON 

$85,062 .80 
$34,966 .30  

$120,029.10 

$2 6,054 .87 
$58,044.78 
$17,982 .95 

$102,082.60 

COST 

$300,000 .00  
$350,000 .00  
$ 120,000 .00  
$ 120,000 .00  
$ 120,000 .00  
$ 120,000 .00  

$60,000 .00  

$8,294.84 
$8,838 .45 

$43, 519 . 00  

$60,652 .29  

YEARS 

3 0  
2 0  
1 5  
1 5  
1 5  
1 0  
1 0  

2017  
TOTAL INCOME 

$85 ,062 .80 
$43,2 61 . 14  

$8,838.45 
$43, 5 19 .00  

$180,681.39 

$102,082.60 

PER YEAR 

$ 1 0,000 .00  
$ 1 7,500 .00  

$8,000 .00  
$8,000 .00  
$8,000 .00  

$ 1 2,000 .00  
$6,000 .00  
$5 ,000 .00  

$74,500 .00 

$4,098.79 
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INCOME: 

Taxes 
Insurance Premium Tax 
City Budget 
Fund Raising 

Total Income 

EXPENSES 

Training 
General Operating 
Fund Raising 

Total Expenses 

REPLACEMENT FUND 

Pumper 
Tanker 
Grass Unit 
Rescue Unit 
SCBA's 
40 Sets of Turn Out Gear 
Extrication Tools 
Miscellaneous Tools 

Total Replacement Funds 

NET INCOME 

2017 2017 
RURAL DISTRICT CITY OF GARRISON 

$85,062 .80 
$34,966 .30  

$120,029 .10 

$26,054.87 
$58,044.78 
$ 17,982 .95 

$102,082.60 

COST 

$300,000 .00 
$350 ,000 .00 
$ 120,000 .00 
$ 120,000 .00 
$ 120,000 .00 
$ 120,000 .00  

$60 ,000 .00 

$8,294.84 
$8,83 8 .45 

$43, 5 19 .00  

$60,652 .29 

YEARS 

1 5  
1 5  
1 0  
1 0  
1 2  

8 
8 

2017  
TOTAL INCOME 

$85 ,062 .80 
$43,2 61 . 14  

$8,838.45 
$43,5 19 .00  

$180,681.39 

$102,082.60 

PER YEAR 

$20,000 .00  
$23 ,3 33 . 33  
$ 1 2,000 .00  
$ 1 2,000 .00  
$ 1 0,000 .00  
$ 1 5,000 .00  

$7,500 .00  
$5 ,000 .00  

$104,833 .33  

($26,2 34.54) 
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M r. Cha i rman  and  mem bers of the comm ittee, my name is Joe l  Boespfl ug, F i re Ch ief fo r the City of B isma rck .  

am cu rrent ly servi ng as  a Di rector of the North  Da kota F i re Ch ief's Assoc iat ion and am a l so speak ing on  the i r  

beha lf. 

My test imony is  in support of SB 2010 that conta i n s  the p roposed amendment for a cont i n u i ng app rop riat io n .  

Based on  t h e  pu rpose o f  t h e  i nsu ra nce prem i um  t a x  and  based o n  t h e  importa nce o f  these do l l a rs fo r the  loca l 

• fi re depa rtments, we respectfu l ly req uest that  the a ppropr iat ion fo r payments to the fi re service eq uate to the 

fu l l  amount co l lected . 

The B isma rck F i re Depa rtment a long with many othe r  fi re depa rtments ac ross the state fa ce cha l le nges to 

obta i n  the app ropriate level of fi refighting equ i pment a nd  t ra i n i ng .  We have a respons ib i l ity to p rotect 

persons from fi re and hazards, i nc l ud ing o u r  fi refighters .  The I n s u ra n ce P rem i um  Tax suppo rts o u r  m iss ion a nd  

has  been a sou rce o f  revenue fo r fi re depa rtments and  fi re d i str icts fo r many yea rs. The  d i stri but ion from t he  

p rem ium t a x  to  t he  departments h a s  h isto rica l ly been  a s ign ifica nt com ponent o f  fi re p rotect ion fu nd i ng .  The 

I n sura nce P rem i um Tax was esta b l ished i n  1887, befo re North Da kota was a state .  The l aw taxed ce rta i n  types 

of i n su ra nce prem iums  to provide funds to support loca l fi re depa rtment operat ions and pens ions .  Fo r a lmost 

100 yea rs, few sign ifica nt cha nges were made .  The fu l l  amount of tax co l l e cted was passed on to fire 

departments .  Sta rt ing i n  the ea rly 1980's, econom ic  vo lat i l ity a n d  cha nges in the i n su ra nce i ndu stry ca u sed 

• la rge fl uctuat ions i n  the revenues d i str ibuted to the fi re service .  S ince 1985, seve ra l cha nges i n  the l aw were 

made to sta b i l ize the revenue sou rce . A m i n imum d istri but ion a mount was set .  The d istr i but ion was made  a / 

Pj 
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• cont i nu i ng a pp rop riat ion,  then the cont i nu i ng app ropr iat ion was removed .  Eventua l ly b ia n n u a l  i ncreases were 

• 

• 

provided that  we re intended to resto re fund i ng to 100%. Howeve r, the resu l t  has  been m ixed a t  best . Though 

somet imes the  cha nges provided sta b le  fu nd i ng, m uch of the t ime the cha nges lagged beh ind the revenue  

generated by  the t ax .  I n  fact, the fi rst th ree yea rs after  the cha nges made  i n  1985, the leg is l a tu re d ist ri buted 

mo re fu nds  to the depa rtment than were generated by the p rem i um tax .  Howeve r, s ince that t ime, the effect 

of the cha nges has  been that less fu nd ing is p rov ided than  is  co l l ected .  

A s  a n  exam p le,  be low is  a gra ph  o f  t he  funds  a l located to  B isma rck F i re Depa rtment compa red to  the fu nds  

that wou l d  be a l located if the tax  revenue was d istr i buted a s  i ntended .  

Premium Tax 
Collected for the 
fire se rvice per ND Firefighte r's ND Fire 

N DCC 18-04-05 & Association Departments 
Year 26.1-03-17 Appropriation Appropriation 
2009 $ 5,753,476. 70 $ 310,000. 00 $ 3, 100,000.00 

2010 $ 6, 144,064. 69 $ 310,000.00 $ 3, 100,000.00 

2011 $ 6, 509,892.78 $ 335,000.00 $ 3, 100,000.00 

2012 $ 6,943,076. 96 $ 335,000.00 $ 3, 100,000. 00 

2013 $ 7,991, 100.48 $ 335,000.00 $ 7, 268, 193. 00 

2014 $ 8, 157,818. 36 $ 335,000.00 $ 7, 268, 193. 00 

2015 $ 9, 159, 560. 22 $ 575,000.00 $ 7,840,603 .50 

2016 $ 9, 551,086. 74 $ 445,000.00 $ 7,840,603. 50 

2017 $ 9, 524, 687 .99 $ 414, 263. 00 $ 7, 117,781.00 

2018 $ 9,400,711 .88 $ 414, 263. 00 $ 7, 117,781.00 

B i smarck Fi re Dep 't Reduct ion total 

$1 ,400,000.00 

$1 , 200,000.00 

$1 ,000,000.00 

$800,000.00 

$600,000.00 

$400,000.00 

$200,000.00 

$-

I 

2009 

I I 
2010 2011 2012 

% of premium Amount of Premium 
tax collection Tax Collection 
distributed to NQI directed to the 

fire se rvice ND fire se rvice 
59. 27% $ 2, 343,476. 70 

55. 50"/o $ 2,734,064. 69 

52.77% $ 3,074,892 .78 

49.47% $ 3, 508,076. 96 

95. 15% $ 387,907.48 

93. 20"/o $ 554, 625. 36 

91. 88% $ 743,956. 72 

86.75% $ 1, 265,483. 24 

79.08% $ 1,992, 643.99 

80. 12% $ 1,868, 667. 88 

$ 18,473,795 .79 

- • -

Bismarck FD 
Premium 

Check 
$ 211, 178.06 

$ 215,771 .52 

$ 221,411.61 

$ 223,431. 25 

$ 467,697 .60 

$ 505,939. 09 

$ 569, 132. 14 

$ 527,264.25 

$ 513,980. 67 

$ 540, 335.94 

I 

Bismarck FD 
Bismarck % of payment reduction 
ND Premium due to 
Tax Collection appropriation l imit 

6.8122% 

6. 9604% 

7. 1423% 

7. 2075% 

6.4349% 

6.9600% 

7. 2588% 

7. 1828% 

7. 2211% 

7. 5914% 

$ 159, 642. 32 

$ 190, 301 .84 

$ 219,618.07 

$ 252, 844. 65 

$ 24,961.46 

$ 38,601.92 

$ 54,002.33 

$ 90,897. 13 

$ 143,890. 81 

$ 141,858.05 

$ 1, 316,618. 58 

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 B ismarc k 
F ire Dep 't 
Red uction 

tota l  
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Senate Appropriations Committee 

Senate Bil l  20 1 0  

By Shawn Weltikol 

January 8, 20 1 9  

Mr. Chairman and members of the committee, my name is Shawn Weltikol ,  Fire Chief o f  the Devi ls  

Lake Rural Fire Department. 

I am requesting your support of Senate Bil l 20 1 0  and the amendment to increase the fire service 

• 
funding. Our department' s annual operating budget is $ 1 55 ,000 which includes $ 1 20,000 from the mil l  

levy and $35 ,000 from the Insurance Premium Tax. During a normal year, after al l  operating 

expenses, the remaining balance is approximately $ 1 6,000. The remaining balance does not 

• 

adequately fund the repl acement of items such as firefighting gear or fire trucks . Therefore, it becomes 

necessary for our department to raise additional funds through donations, charitable gaming and grants. 

Thank you for your consideration to increase the allocation to fire departments in Senate Bil l  20 1 0  and 

making it a continuing appropriation. I am avail able for any questions that you may have . 
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G ive n by: Robert Kn uth, Tra i n i ng D i recto r, North  Da kota F i refighter' s  Assoc iat ion . 
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Good Morn i ng Cha i rman  Ho lmbe rg a nd  membe rs of the Senate Approp riat ions Com m ittee . My name  is  

Robert Knuth a nd I a m  the Tra i n ing D irecto r of the North  Da kota F i refighter's  Assoc iat io n .  I sta nd befo re 

you today in support of Senate B i l l  2010 as  we l l  a s  the p reviou s  testimony hea rd from the N D  F i re Ch ief's 

Assoc iat io n .  

I n  No rt h  Dakota Centu ry Code, Chapte r 18-03, The North  Da kota F i refighte r 's  Assoc iat ion is  tasked with 

Deve lop i ng and adopt ing a statewide fi re educat ion and tra i n ing p l an ;  Coord i nat ing fi re service t ra i n i ng 

at a l l  leve l s; a nd  Esta b l i s h i ng p rocedu res to govern the certificat ion p rocess for fi refighter t ra i n i ng .  N D FA 

is nat io na l ly acc red ited t h rough the Fire Se rvice P rofess io n a l  Qua l ificat ions System, common ly refe rred 

• 
to a s  P ro Boa rd ® . 

• 

N D FA i s  p r ima r i ly  funded by the I nsu rance Tax D istr i but ion fu nd .  Cu rre nt ly the N D FA rece ives 5 . 5% of the  

d is bu rsement .  As  we a re a non-profit, c ha rita b le ,  ed ucat ion a l  501 (c ) ( 3 )  o rga n izat ion ,  N D FA re l ies  heav i ly  

on  these funds, a s  does eve ry fi re depa rtment .  O u r  m iss ion is  to p romote the safety and we lfa re of the 

Assoc iat ion membe rs by p rovid i ng a coord inated tra i n ing service and sta nda rd ized ce rt ificat ion p rogram 

based o n  nat io n a l  sta nda rds .  A l l  o rga n ized fi re depa rtments a c ross the state be long to the North Da kota 

F i refighter ' s  Assoc iat io n .  The Assoc iat ion hosts an a n n ua l  fi re schoo l  a n d  offe rs regio n a l  fi re schoo l s  g iv ing 

fi refighters an oppo rt un ity to p ra ctice o ld sk i l l s  and learn new sk i l l s  that a re req u i red  fo r the ever-cha ng ing 

demand s  p laced o n  them . A l l  our  i nstructo rs a re contract e m p loyees who vo l u ntee r  the i r  t ime to t ra i n  

a n d  a ss i st t h e  depa rtments req uesting t ra i n i ng . 

PJ I 



• 

:# /0 
St3 cJ.o/ O  
I - ff - J,o!Cf 

Along with the  app ropriated fu nds, N DFA co l lects d ues o f  $ 100 .00 a n n u a l ly from ea ch  F i re Depa rtment, 

a nd we rece ive fund i ng from the fo l lowing com petit ive g ra nts we a pp ly for :  

• Fede ra l  Eme rgency Ma nagement Agency ( F EMA) 

• N D  I ns u ra nce Rese rve Fund ( N D I R F )  

• Workfo rce Safety and  I nsura nce (WS I )  

• D iv is ion of Emergency M a nagement ( DES)  

• Nat iona l  F i re Academy 

• N D  Forest Se rvice 

Over the past severa l yea rs we have see n  a dec l i ne  in ava i l a b l e  grant  fu nd i ng wh ich  has ca u sed u s  to re ly more 

on ou r  a ppropr iated fu nd i ng .  Ou r  goa l ha s  a lways been to m i n im ize the cost to depa rtments for the vita l t ra i n i ng  

we provid e .  Without  these fu nds N DFA cou l d  be fo rced to cha rge depa rtments fo r these c l a sses wh i ch ,  i n  t u rn, 

wou l d  p l a ce more of a fi na nc ia l b u rden on  depa rtments who a re t ry ing to u pdate e q u i pment, rep lace outdated 

• 
appara tus, o r  j u st pay ing fue l  and  ut i l ity b i l l s .  Hav ing NDFA p rovid e  th i s  t ra i n i ng at  l i tt l e  to no cost p rov ides these 

departments the opportu n ity to attend re leva nt, u p  to d ate, a n d  e ssent i a l  t ra i n i ng without affect ing the i r  othe r  

budgeta ry p r io ri t ies .  

I n  c los ing I w i sh  to tha n k  the comm ittee for a l lowing me to p resent th i s  test imony and aga i n  vo ice our s uppo rt 

of Senate B i l l  2010 a s  p resented by the I n s u ra n ce Comm iss ione r  a n d  wou l d  we lcom e  the cha nce to a n swer a ny 

q uest ions  you may have .  Tha nk  you . 

• 
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I nsurance Com missioner, inc lud ing Insurance Tax Payments to F i re IJ I Departments - Budget No.  401 

Senate B i l l  No.  201 0 

Base Level Fund ing  Changes 
Executive Budget Recommendation Senate Version Senate Changes to Executive Budget 

Increase (Decrease) - Executive Budget 
FTE General Other FTE General FTE General Other 

Positions Fund Funds Total Position Fund Other Funds Total Positions Fund Funds Total 
201 9-21 Biennium Base Level 46.00 $0 $25,793,430 $25,793,430 46.00 $0 $25,793,430 $25,793,430 0 .00 $0 $0 $0 

201 9-21 Ongoing Funding Changes 
Base payro l l  changes ($1 27,688) ($ 1 27,688) $0 $1 27,688 $1 27,688 
Salary increase 353,324 353,324 229 , 1 1 9  229, 1 1 9 ( 1 24 ,205) ( 1 24,205) 
Health insurance increase 1 66 ,279 1 66 ,279 1 96 ,332 1 96 ,332 30,053 30,053 
Retirement contribution increase 42 ,801 42,801 0 (42 ,80 1 ) (42 ,801 ) 
Underfund salaries and wages ( 1 07,990) ( 1 07,990) 0 1 07,990 1 07 ,990 
Add 1 FTE consumer assistance outreach 1 .00 29,824 29,824 0 ( 1 .00) (29,824) (29,824) 

coordinator position 
Remove 3 FTE positions related to the (3 .00) (6 1 0 ,352) (6 1 0 ,352) 0 3.00 61 0 ,352 61 0 ,352 
transfer of admin istration of the fi re and 
tornado fund and bonding fund to the 
insurance reserve fund 
Add funding to contract with the insurance 660 ,804 660,804 0 (660 ,804) (660,804) 
reserve fund for fund admin istration 
Reduce funding for operating expenses, (636 ,62 1 )  (636,62 1 )  0 636 ,62 1 636 ,621 
including travel ,  information technology, and 
professional services 
Add funding for M icrosoft Office 365 24, 1 53 24 , 1 53 0 (24, 1 53) (24 , 1 53) 
l icensing expenses 
Total ongoing funding changes (2.00) $0 ($205 ,466) ($205 ,466) 0 .00 $0 $425 ,45 1 $425,451 2 .00 $0 $630,9 1 7  $630,9 1 7  

One-time funding items 
No one-time funding items $0 $0 $0 
Total one-time funding changes 0 .00 $0 $0 $0 0.00 $0 $0 $0 0 .00 $0 $0 $0 

Total Changes to Base Level Funding (2 .00) $0 ($205,466) ($205 ,466) 0 .00 $0 $425,451 $425,451 2 .00 $0 $630,91 7 $630,91 7 

201 9-21 Total Funding 44 .00 $0 $25 ,587,964 $25,587,964 46.00 $0 $26 ,21 8 ,881 $26 ,21 8 ,881 2 .00 $0 $630,91 7 $630 ,91 7 



Other Sections for Insurance Commiss ioner, inc lud ing Insurance Tax Payments to F i re 
Departments - Budget No. 401 

I nsurance tax d istribution fund 

State fire and tornado fund 

Unsatisfied judgment fund 

I nsurance Commissioner's salary 

Fund admin istration 

Fees 

Executive Budget Recommendation 
Section 2 would designate $ 1 4 , 1 1 3 ,086 for payments to 
fi re departments and $951 ,000 for payments to the North 
Dakota F i refighter's Association . 
Section 3 would designate $660 ,804 from the state fire 
and tornado fund to pay state fi re and tornado fund 
admin istrative expenses and $893,509 from the state fire 
and tornado fund to pay boi ler inspection program 
expenses. 
Section 4 would designate $28,390 from the state 
unsatisfied judgment fund to pay unsatisfied judgment 
fund admin istrative expenses . 
Section 5 would provide the statutory changes necessary 
to increase the I nsurance Commissioner's salary to 
$ 1 1 0 ,001 beg inn ing Ju ly 1 ,  201 9 ,  and $1 1 2 ,201 
beginn ing Ju ly 1 ,  2020. 
Sections 6 ,  7 ,  and 8 would provide statutory changes 
necessary to a l low the I nsurance Commissioner to 
contract with the insurance reserve fund for 
admin istration of the state fi re and tornado fund and the 
state bonding fund.  
Section 9 would amend North Dakota Century Code 
Section 26. 1 -0 1 -07 re lating to fees chargeable by the 
Insurance Commissioner to adjust fees charged to county 
mutual insurance companies and benevolent societies. 

� (  

Senate Vers ion 
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1 9.0223 .0 1 001 
Title. 

Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for 
Senator Oehlke 

Fiscal No. 1 February 1 1 ,  201 9  

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO SENATE BILL NO. 201 O 

Page 1 ,  line 2, remove "and to provide an appropriation for the distribution of funds from the 
insurance" 

Page 1 ,  line 3 ,  replace "tax distribution fund" with "to create and enact chapter 23. 1 - 1 6  and 
section 26. 1 -22-03 . 1  of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to boiler inspections 
and North Dakota reserve fund use of producers; to amend and reenact sections 
1 8-04-04, 1 8-04-04. 1 ,  and 1 8-04-05, subsection 2 of section 26. 1 -0 1 -07, section 
26. 1 -01 -09, subsection 1 of section 26. 1 -03- 1 7, and sections 26. 1 -2 1 -03 , 26. 1 -21 - 1 7, 
26. 1 -22-03 , and 26. 1 -23. 1 -01  of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the state 
fire and tornado fund, the state bonding fund, fees chargeable by the insurance 
commissioner, the salary of the insurance commissioner, and government self
insurance pools; to repeal chapter 26. 1 -22. 1 of the North Dakota Century Code, 
relating to boiler inspections; to provide for continu ing appropriations; and to provide for 
a contingent effective date" 

Page 1 ,  replace l ines 1 O through 1 5  with: 
I I  

Salaries and wages 
Operating expenses 
Total special funds 

Base Level 
$8,549,567 

2, 1 79,777 
$1 0,729, 344 

46.00 

Adjustments or 
Enhancements 

($41 5 ,092) 
(61 3 , 1 02) 

($1 , 028, 1 94) 
(5.00) 

Appropriation 
$8, 1 34,475 

1 ,566,675 
$9,701 , 1 50 

41 .00" Full-time equivalent positions 

Page 1 ,  remove l ines 1 6  through 22 

Page 2, remove lines 1 through 6 

Page 2, replace l ines 1 O through 1 3  with: 

"SECTION 3. AMENDMENT. Section 1 8-04-04 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

18-04-04. Insurance companies to report fire, allied lines, homeowner's 
multiple peril , farmowner's multiple peril , crop hail, and commercial multiple peril 
insurance premium collections - Form furnished by insurance commissioner. 

The insurance commissioner, wl=leRat the time the commissioner forwards to an 
insurance company WA-teRthat is issuing policies for fire, allied l ines, homeowner's 
multiple peril , farmowner's multiple peril , crop hail, and commercial multiple peril 
insurance in this state the form to be used in submitting its the company's annual 
statement, shall forward a form containing the names of all cities and all rural fire 
protection districts or rural fire departments entitled to benefits under the provisions of 
this chapter. Every insurance company issuing policies for fire, allied lines , 
homeowner's multiple peril , farmowner's multiple peril , crop hail, and commercial 
multiple peril insurance within this state shall complete Stfflflthe form by showing 
thereon the amount of al l premiums received by ttthe company upon such policies 
issued on property within the corporate limits of each city shown on Stfflflthe form and 
on property within the boundaries of each rural fire protection district shown on St:lffithe 
form or property within the boundaries of each rural fire department as certified by the 

Page No. 1 1 9.0223 .01 001 
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state fire marshal during the year ending on the preceding thirty-first day of December f_j J... 
and shall file the sameform as a part of itsthe company's annual statement . 

SECTION 4. AMENDMENT. Section 1 8-04-04 . 1 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

18-04-04.1. Insurance tax distribution fund. 

The insurance tax distribution fund is a special fund in the state treasury. The 
portion of revenue provided in section 26. 1 -03-1 7 must be deposited in the fund for 
disbursement as provided in this chapter and chapter 23-46, subject to legislative 
appropriation. 

SECTION 5. AMENDMENT. Section 1 8-04-05 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

18-04-05. Amount due cities, rural fire protection districts, or rural fire 
departments - Transfer to firefighters death benefit fund - Disbursement to North 
Dakota firefighter's association - Payments by insurance commissioner : 
Continuing appropriation. 

1 .  The insurance commissioner shall disburse funds in the insurance tax 
distribution fund as provided under this section. 

2. The insurance commissioner shall transfer an amount of up to fifty 
thousand dollars per biennium, as may be necessary, to the firefighters 
death benefit fund for distribution under chapter 1 8-05. 1 .  

3. The insurance commissioner shall compute and disburse funds to the 
North Dakota firefighter's association for uses authorized under chapter 
1 8-03, subject to legislative appropriations .  

4 .  The insurance commissioner shall compute and disburse the amounts due 
to the certified city fire departments, certified rural fire departments, or 
certified fire protection districts entitled to benefits under this chapter on or 
before December first of each year. The insurance commissioner shall 
allocate one half of the biennial legislative appropriation for distribution 
under this subsection, to each eligible city not 1.vithin a certified fire 
protection district, each certified rural fire protection district organized 
under this title, and each rural fire department certified by the state fire 
marshal, and pay the amount allocated in December of each year. The 
allocation must be made in proportion to the amount of insurance company 
premiums received by insurance companies pursuant to section 
26. 1 -03- 1 7 for policies for fire, allied lines, homeowner's multiple peril ,  
farmowner's multiple peril, commercial multiple peril, and crop hail 
insurancethe lines of insurance identified under section 1 8-04-04 on 
property within the city of a certified city fire department , fl certified rural 
fire protection district , or area served by tflef! certified rural fire department 
to the total of those premiums for those policies in the state. 

5 .  Annually, the insurance commissioner shall determine the amount of 
insurance premium taxes collected from the insurance lines identified in 
section 1 8-04-04 . Of this amount, annually the commissioner shall 
disburse five and one-half percent to the North Dakota firefighter's 
association and ninety-four and one-half percent to certified city fire 
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departments. certified rural fire departments. and certified fire protection 
districts. Moneys authorized for disbursement under this section are 
appropriated from the insurance tax distribution fund to the insurance 
commissioner on a continuing basis for the purpose of this section . 

SECTION 6. Chapter 23.1-16 of the North Dakota Century Code is created and 
enacted as follows: 

23.1-16-01. Definitions. 

As used in this chapter, unless the context otherwise requires: 

.1. "Boiler" means a closed vessel in which water is heated, steam is 
generated, steam is superheated. or any combination thereof. under 
pressure or vacuum for use externally to the boiler by the direct application 
of heat from the combustion of fuels. or from electricity or nuclear energy. 
The term includes fired units for vaporizing liquids other than water when 
these units are separate from processing systems and are complete within 
themselves. 

2. "Department" means the department of environmental quality. 

23.1-16-02. Chief boiler inspector, deputy inspectors - Appointment -
Jurisdiction. 

The department shall employ a chief boiler inspector and deputy inspectors . 
The chief boiler inspector has jurisdiction over all boilers in this state except as 
otherwise provided . 

23.1-16-03. Qual ifications of chief boiler inspector - Deputy inspectors . 

.1. An individual is not eligible to the office of chief boiler inspector unless that 
individual: 

_g_,_ Has had at the time of the appointment at least five years' experience 
in the construction. inspection. operation. maintenance. or repair of 
high-pressure boilers and pressure vessels as a mechanical engineer. 
boilermaker. steam operating engineer. or boiler inspector. An 
applicant possessing a mechanical engineering degree from an 
accredited school may substitute that degree for two years of the five 
years' experience. at the discretion of the department. 

� Holds a commission issued by the national board of boiler and 
pressure vessel inspectors or obtains the commission within one year 
after the date of appointment by the department . 

_g_.,_ Is not directly or indirectly interested in the manufacture or sale of 
boilers or steam machinery or articles used in the construction or 
maintenance of engines or boilers. 

2,, The department shall establish qualifications for a deputy inspector which 
are not inconsistent with the requirements of the position. 

23.1-16-04. Powers and duties of chief boiler inspector . 

.1. The chief boiler inspector shall: 

Page No. 3 19. 0223.01001 
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Keep a complete record of the type, dimensions, maximum allowable 
working pressure, age, condition, location, and date of the 
last-recorded internal and external inspection of boilers to which this 
chapter applies. 

Cooperate and assist in loss prevention programs sponsored by the 
department . 

2 .  The chief boiler inspector may delegate powers and duties to any deputy 
inspector or special inspector. 

23.1-16-05. General requirement. 

Every boiler in this state must be constructed, installed, and maintained 
according to rules adopted to implement this chapter. 

23.1-16-06. Exempt boilers - Inspection of exempt boilers. 

This chapter does not apply to: 

1.:. Any boiler subject to federal inspection or under federal control . 

2-,_ Any boiler located on a farm and used solely for agricultural purposes. 

� Any heating boiler located in a private residence or in an apartment house 
of less than six family units. 

4. Any hot water supply boiler not exceeding the following limitations: 

� Input of two hundred thousand British thermal units per hour. 

Q,. Pressure of one hundred sixty pounds per square inch [1 1 03. 1 6  
kilopascals] gauge. 

c .  Temperature of two hundred fifty degrees Fahrenheit [1 2 1 . 1 1  degrees 
Celsius]. 

§.,. Any portable steam cleaner commonly used in a garage. 

Q,. Any boiler of a miniature model locomotive, boat, tractor, or stationary 
engine design constructed as a hobby, not for commercial use, having an 
inside diameter not exceeding ten inches [25.4 centimeters] and a grate 
area not exceeding one and one-half square feet [1 393.54 square 
centimeters] and which is properly equipped with a safety valve, water 
level indicator, and pressure gauge. 

L Any electric boiler used as an integral part of an espresso coffee machine, 
provided that the boiler does not exceed one and one-half cubic feet [.0566 
cubic meter] in water capacity, does not exceed fifty pounds per square 
inch [344 . 74 kilopascals] pressure, and is constructed, approved, or 
certified to the American society of mechanical engineers code or to other 
national or international standards. 
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23.1-16-07. Inspection of boilers. 

The chief boiler inspector shall inspect each boiler used or proposed to be 
used within this state. The inspection must be thorough as to the 
construction, installation, condition, and operation as provided by the rules 
adopted to implement this chapter. An exempt boiler may be inspected by 
the chief boiler inspector when the owner, the owner's agent, or the user of 
the boiler makes written request for inspection to the department . 

2.,. Each boiler of one hundred thousand pounds [45359.24 kilograms] per 
hour or more capacity, used or proposed to be used within this state, which 
has internal continuous water treatment under the direct supervision of a 
graduate engineer or chemist, or one having equivalent experience in the 
treatment of boiler water when the water treatment is for the purpose of 
controlling and limiting serious corrosion and other deteriorating factors, 
and with respect to which boiler the chief boiler inspector has determined 
the owner or user has complied with the prescribed recordkeeping 
requirements, must be inspected at least once every thirty-six months 
internally while not under pressure, and at least once every twelve months 
externally while under pressure. If a hydrostatic test is necessary to 
determine the safety of a boiler, the test must be conducted by the owner 
or user of the equipment under the supervision of the chief boiler inspector. 
The owner or user of a boiler of one hundred thousand pounds [45359.24 
kilograms] per hour or more capacity desiring to qualify for thirty-six-month 
internal inspection intervals shall keep available for examination by the 
chief boiler inspector accurate records showing the date and actual time 
the boiler is out of service and the reason or reasons therefor, and the 
results of the chemical and physical analysis of the boiler water, whether 
from laboratory analysis of samples taken at regular intervals of not more 
than forty-eight hours or from continuous online analysers, which will 
adequately show the condition of the water and any other elements or 
characteristics of the water capable of producing corrosion or other 
deterioration of the boiler or its parts. If an inspection discloses deficiencies 
in equipment or in operating procedures, inspections may be required once 
every twelve months. 

23.1-16-08. Special inspector. 

1. Upon written request of an employer, the department may appoint as a 
special inspector an inspector in the employ of : 

f!.:. An insurance company authorized to insure boilers in this state 
against loss from explosion; 

!2,. A company qualified by the national board of boiler and pressure 
vessel inspectors as an accredited owner/user inspection 
organization; or 

c. A company qualified by the national board of boiler and pressure 
vessel inspectors as an accredited authorized inspection agency. 

2.,. An individual may not be appointed as a special inspector unless that 
individual has passed the examination prescribed by the national board of 
boiler and pressure vessel inspectors . 
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fJ '  An inspection performed by a special inspector must be performed in 
accordance with this chapter and a complete report of the inspection must 
be filed with the department in the time, manner, and form as prescribed by 
the department. 

If a complete report is not filed by the special inspector's employer with the 
department within ninety days from the certificate due date, the chief boiler 
inspector may make the required inspection, unless an extension of time is 
granted by the chief boiler inspector. The special inspector's employer 
must pay the inspection fees as required by section 23.1-16-09 for a 
special inspection. 

The chief boiler inspector may inspect any boiler to which a special 
inspection applies. 

The department may, for cause, suspend or revoke the appointment of any 
special inspector. 

23.1-16-09. Inspection and certificate fees. 

1.,, Upon completion of inspection, the owner or user of a boiler shall pay to 
the department fees or a combination of inspection and certificate fees. 
The department shall determine the inspection fees . Certificate fees are 
determined by section 23.1-16-10. The department shall determine and 
annually may adjust a fee scale for the internal inspections of power 
boilers, internal inspections of low-pressure heating boilers, external 
inspections of all boilers, and inspection of boilers used exclusively for 
exhibition purposes. 

2. Not more than two hundred dollars may be charged or collected for any 
one inspection of a boiler, except for special inspections made upon 
request. All other inspections made by the chief boiler inspector, including 
shop inspections and reviews and special inspections when requested by 
the owner or user of a boiler, must be charged at a rate not to exceed five 
hundred dollars per day or three hundred dollars per half day of four hours 
or less, plus payment for mileage, meals, and hotel expenses as allowed 
by sections 44-08-04 and 54-06-09, except that the mileage rate for a 
state-owned vehicle will be the actual amount incurred by the department. 

� The annual fee for the issuance of a reciprocal commission card for a 
special inspector is forty dollars and the annual fee for the issuance of a 
welder-qualified card is twenty dollars. 

4. The fee for taking an examination for a hobby boiler operating license is 
twenty-five dollars and the fee for a hobby boiler operating license is 
twenty-five dollars .  

-5.,_ A hobby boiler operating license issued under this section is valid for six 
years. 

23.1-16-1 0. Certificate of inspection - Certificate to be posted. 

The department shall issue a certificate of inspection for each boiler inspected 
upon receipt of an inspection report certifying that the boiler is in a safe condition to be 
operated. The department shall charge a fee of twenty dollars per year for each year 
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that a certif icate is val id, or part of a year thereof, for each certif icate of i nspection M 7 issued as the result of inspections authorized under sections 23. 1-16-07 and 1 __; 
23.1-16-08. The fees are the l iabil ity of the owner or user and must be paid i n  
accordance with rules adopted by the department. A cert i f icate may not be issued for 
any boiler not i n  a safe condition to be operated or for a boi ler for which the inspection 
and certif icate fees have not been paid in full . A certif icate is not val id for a period of 
more than thirty-six months for power boilers described i n  subsection 2 of section 
23.1-16-07, and no more than twelve months for other power boi lers, twelve months for 
steam traction engines, and thirty-six months for low-pressure boi lers except that a 
two-month grace period may be extended for any certificate. Upon written request from 
a special i nspector, the chief boiler i nspector may issue a short-term certif icate. Each 
certificate of i nspection must be posted conspicuously under glass i n  the boiler room or 
adjacent to the boi ler i nspected. 

23.1-16-11. Certificate of inspection required - Penalty. 

A person may not operate a boi ler i n  this state without a val id cert if icate of 
i nspection . A v iolation of this section is a class A misdemeanor on the part of the owner, 
user, or operator of the boiler. 

23.1-16-12. Manufacturer's data report. 

The boiler manufactu rer shall provide the department with a man ufacturer's 
data report . When signed by an authorized i nspector, this data sheet together with the 
stamp on the boiler is the record denot ing the boiler has been constructed i n  
accordance with the rules adopted to implement this chapter. 

23.1-16-13. Disposition of funds . 

All funds collected and received u nder this chapter must be paid to the state 
treasurer and deposited i n  the state f ire and tornado fund to be used to defray the 
costs of boiler i nspections . 

23.1-16-14. Rules - Penalty for violation - Hearing. 

1.,, The department shall adopt rules for the safe and proper i nstallation, use, 
operation, and i nspection of boi lers and pressu re vessels subject to this 
chapter. 

2 .  The department shall adopt rules for the l icensi ng of operators of hobby 
boi lers used dur ing parades, exhibit ions, and threshi ng shows where the 
publ ic is i nvited. 

3.  A fee must be charged for an operat ing l icense, for a l icense renewal, and 
for an examination conducted to determine min imum competence.  
Indiv iduals operati ng hobby boi lers with in  this state as of July 1, 2007, are 
considered acceptable for a l icense without addit ional trai n i ng or 
examination . An i ndiv idual who is not a resident of this state and who holds 
a boi ler operator l icense or credential i n  another state or Canadian 
province is exempt from l icensure as a hobby boiler operator in this state. 

4. The department may not issue a cert if icate of i nspection to any owner or 
user of a boiler who fails or refuses to comply with the rules . The 
department shall revoke any certif icate presently i n  force upon evidence 
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that the owner or user of the boiler is fai ling or refusing to comply with the 
rules . 

§.,. Any owner or user of a boiler may request a hearing before the department 
with in fifteen days from service of an order refusing or revoking a 
certif icate of inspection. It is the burden of the owner or user to show cause 
why the certif icate of inspection should not be refused or revoked. If no 
hearing is requested within the required period, the order of the 
department becomes final and is not subject to further proceedings. 

SECTION 7. AMENDMENT. Subsection 2 of section 26.1-01-07 of the North 
Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

2. Nonprof it health service corporations and health maintenance 
organizations are subject to the same fees as any other insurance 
company. County mutual insurance companies and benevolent societies 
are liable only for the fees mentioned in subdivisions b, f, g, and kh of 
subsection 1 .  

SECTION 8. AMENDMENT. Section 26.1-01-09 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows : 

26.1-01-09. Salary of commissioner. 

The annual salary of the comm issioner is one hundred t'>vo thousand six 
hundred eighty nine dollars through June 30, 2016one hundred seven thousand eight 
hundred eighty-five dollars th rough June 30, 2020, and one hundred five thousand 
seven hundred seventyone hundred eleven thousand one hundred twenty-two dollars 
thereafter. 

SECTION 9. AMENDMENT. Subsection 1 of section 26.1-03-17 of the North 
Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

1. Before issuing the annual certificate required by law, the com missioner 
shall collect from every stock and mutual insurance company, nonprofit 
health service corporation, health maintenance organ ization, and prepaid 
legal service organization,  except fraternal benefit and benevolent 
societies, doing business in th is state, a tax on the gross amount of 
prem iums, assessments, membership fees, subscriber fees , pol icy fees, 
service fees collected by any third-party administrator providing 
administrative services to a group that is self-insured for health care 
benefits, and finance and service charges received in th is state during the 
preceding calendar year, at the rate of two percent with respect to life 
insurance, one and three-fourths percent with respect to accident and 
health insurance, and one and three-fourths percent with respect to all 
other l ines of insurance. This tax does not apply to considerations for 
annuit ies .  The total tax is payable on or before March fi rst following the 
year for which the tax is assessable. If the due date falls on a Saturday or 
legal holiday, the tax is payable on the next succeeding business day. 
Collections from this tax must be deposited in the insurance tax distribution 
fund under section 18-04-04 .1 but not in an amount exceeding the amount 
computed under section 18-04-05 and one-half of the b iennial amount 

a t  

• 

• 

appropriated for distribut ion under section 18 04 05 and chapter 23-46 in 
• any fiscal year. Collections from this tax exceeding the sum of the amount 
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deposited in the insurance tax distribution fund must be deposited in the a 
general fund in the state treasury. fJ I 

SECTION 10. AMENDMENT. Section 26.1-21-03 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

26.1-21-03. Commissioner may employ or contract for assistants : 
Continuing appropriation .  

The commissioner may employ assistants or contract for the services of 
assistants from the North Dakota insurance reserve fund as may be necessary to 
operate the state bonding fund. The salaries of all employees together with all other 
expenditures for the operation of the fund must remain •.-.iithin the appropriations made 
by the legislative assembly for these purposes and must be paid by \'/arrant check 
drawn on the state treasury prepared by the office of management and budget after the 
approval of expense vouchers by the office of the budgetMoneys in the reserve fund of 
the state bonding fund are appropriated to the commissioner on a continuing basis for 
the purpose of employing or contracting for services as provided under this section . 

SECTION 11. AMENDMENT. Section 26.1-21-17 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

26.1-21-17. A l lowed liability claims payable from fund - Administrative 
expenses - Methods of payment. 

A claim allowed against the fund must be paid upon warrants drawn upon the 
state treasurer against the fund. The warrant must be prepared by the office of 
management and budget pursuant to the directions of the commissioner. Payments for 
administrative expenses of the state bonding fund must be made from the reserve fund 
of the state bonding fund or must be made within the limitations of legislative 
appropriations upon warrant-checks prepared by the office of management and budget 
after the approval of vouchers by the commissioner. 

SECTION 12. AMENDMENT. Section 26.1-22-03 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

26.1-22-03. Employment of assistants - Expenditures from fund : 
Continuing appropriation .  

To carry out this chapter, the commissioner may utilize any information on file in 
the state fire marshal's department and any of the employees of the commissioner and 
the commissioner may employ necessary assistants or contract for services of 
assistants from the North Dakota insurance reserve fund and may incur necessary 
expenses. All expenditures made for these purposes, other than services contracted 
and paid for by moneys from the fund and any necessary expenses paid from moneys 
from the reserve balance within the fund, must remain within the limits of legislative 
appropriations and must be paid out of the fund upon warrants prepared by the office of 
management and budget drawn upon the state treasurer after the approval of vouchers 
by the office of the budget. Moneys from the reserve balance within the fund are 
appropriated to the commissioner on a continuing basis for the purposes of this 
section. 

SECTION 13. Section 26.1-22-03.1 of the North Dakota Century Code is 
created and enacted as follows: 
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The North Dakota insurance reserve fund may use the services of producers 
licensed under this title to assist policyholders. Any commission paid to a producer 
under this section must be paid out of the premium income of the fund and must be 
assessed against the policyholders that benefit from the producer. 

SECTION 14. AMENDMENT. Section 26.1-23.1-01 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

26.1-23.1-01. Government self-insurance pools - Regulation - Reinsurance. 

1 .  Any two or more entities that have united to self-insure against their legal 
liability under chapter 32-12 .1 or any state agency that unites with another 
state agency or political subdivision, or both, to self-insure against their 
legal liabilities are subject to the provisions of this chapter with the 
exception of a city and its park district established pursuant to chapter 
40-49. Government self-insurance pools may only provide coverage of the 
following types for pool members, their officers, employees, and agents: 

a. Casualty insurance, including general , public officials, and 
professional liability coverages. 

b .  Automobile insurance, including motor vehicle liability insurance 
coverage, security for motor vehicles owned or operated as required 
by chapter 26.1-41, and protection against other liability and laws 
associated with the ownership of motor vehicles and automobile 
physical damage coverages. 

c .  Property insurance, including inland marine coverage, money and 
securities coverage, and extra expense coverage. However, this 
subdivision does not authorize government self-insurance pools to 
write those types of insurance coverages offered by the state fire and 
tornado fund under the provisions of chapter 26.1-22 as they existed 
on December 31, 1988, unless a government self-insurance pool 
enters a contract with the commissioner to provide services for the 
state fire and tornado fund under section 26.1-22-03. 

d. Other coverages authorized by the commissioner and necessary to a 
pool's membership. 

2. A government self-insurance pool may not expose itself to loss on any 
single risk or hazard in an amount exceeding ten percent of the amount of 
its admitted assets unless the pool obtains excess insurance or 
reinsurance with insurance companies approved for such business by the 
insurance commissioner. 

SECTION 15. REPEAL. Chapter 26.1-22.1 of the North Dakota Century Code 
is repealed. 

• 

• 

SECTION 16. EFFECTIVE DATE. Sections 6 and 15 of this Act become 
effective on July 1, 2019, if the legislative council has received certification from the 
chief of the environmental health section of the state department of health that all 
authority , powers, and duties from the environmental health section of the state • department of health have been transferred to the department of environmental quality . 
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I f  the certif ication is not received by July 1, 2019, sections 6 and 15 of th is Act become 
effective on the date certification is received. "  

Renumber accordingly 

STATEM ENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT: 

Senate B i l l  No.  201 0 - Insurance Department - Senate Action 

Salaries a n d  wages 
Operating expenses 
Insurance tax payments 

Total a l l  funds 
Less estimated income 
General fund 

FTE 

Base 
Budget 
$8,549,567 
2 , 1 79,777 

1 5 ,064,086 

$25,793,430 
25,793 ,430 

$0 

46.00 

Senate 
Changes 

($4 1 5,092) 
(6 1 3 , 1 02) 

(1 5 ,064,086) 

($ 1 6 ,092,280) 
/ 1 6 ,092,280) 

$0 

(5 .00) 

Senate 
Vers ion 
$8 , 1 34,475 

1 ,566,675 

$9,70 1 , 1 50 
9,70 1 , 1 50 

$0 

4 1 .00 

Department 401 - Insurance Department - Deta i l  of Senate Changes 

Adjusts Adds Funding 
Funding for for Salary and 
Base Payrol l  Benefit Adds FTE Transfers Fund 

Changes1 lncreases2 Positions• Admin istration' 
Salaries and wages $ 1 65,007 $401 , 1 1 6  $382, 502 ($61 0 ,352) 
Operating expenses 
Insurance tax payments 

Total a l l  funds $ 1 65 ,007 $401 , 1 1 6  $382,502 ($61 0 ,352) 
Less estimated income 1 65 ,007 401 , 1 1 6  382,502 (6 1 0 ,352) 
General fund $0 $0 $0 $0 

FTE 0 .00 0.00 2 .00 (3 .00) 

Adds Funding Adjusts 
for Microsoft Funding for 

Office 365 F ire District Total Senate 
Licensingr Payments1 Changes 

Salaries and wages ($4 1 5 ,092) 
Operating expenses $24, 1 53 (6 1 3 , 1 02) 
I nsurance tax payments ($1 5 ,064 ,086) ( 1 5 ,064,086 

Total a l l  funds $24 , 1 53 ($1 5 ,064,086) ($ 1 6 ,092,280) 
Less estimated income 24 , 1 53 (1 5 ,064 ,086) ( 1 6 ,092,280 
General fund $0 $0 $0 

FTE 0.00 0 .00 /5 .00) 

1 Funding is  adjusted for base payrol l  changes.  

Transfers the Reduces 
Boiler Funding for 

Inspection Operating 
Programl Expenses1 

($753,365) 
($637 ,255) 

($753,365) ($637,255) 
(753,365) (637,255) 

$0 $0 

(4.00) 0.00 

2 The fol lowi ng fund ing is added for 201 9-2 1 b ienn ium sa lary adjustments of 2 percent on Ju ly  1 ,  20 1 9 , and 
3 percent on Ju ly  1 ,  2020, and increases in health insurance prem iums from $ 1 ,241 to $ 1 ,427 per month : 

Salary increase 
Health insurance increase 
Tota l 

Other Funds 
$21 8 , 1 70 

1 82.946 
$40 1 , 1 1 6  

3 The fol lowi ng FTE positions and related fund ing are added : 
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Consumer assistance outreach coord inator 
High risk pool and hea lth care reform coord i nator 
Tota l 

1 . 00 
1 .00 
2 .00 
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$ 1 79 , 7 1 1  
202.791 

$382 , 502 
4 Fund ing is reduced by $6 1 0 . 352 and 3 FTE posit ions a re removed to transfer  adm in istrat ion of the state bond ing 
fund and the state fi re and tornado fund to the North Dakota insurance reserve fund .  This amendment a lso provides 
conti nu ing  appropriat ion a uthority from the state bond ing fund and the state fi re and  tornado fund to pay 
contract expenses to the North Dakota i nsura nce reserve fund .  

5 Fund ing  is reduced by $753 ,365 and 4 FTE positions are removed to  transfer the  bo i le r  i nspection  program to  the 
Department of Environmental Qua l ity. 

6 Fund ing for operati ng  expenses.  i nclud ing  travel ,  professional services ,  and  i nformation technology expenses, is  
reduced by $637.255.  Th is  amount i ncl udes operati ng reductions for the removal of  the bo i ler  i nspection program 
and admin istrat ion of the state bond ing  fund ,  state fi re and tornado fund .  and petro leum release compensation fund .  
7 Fund ing  of  $24 , 1 53 i s  added for M icrosoft Office 365 l icens ing expenses. 

8 Funding for payments to fi re d istr icts and the North Dakota Firefighter's Association  is removed to reflect continu ing 
appropriation authority provided i n  th is amendment. The I nsurance Commiss ioner  estimates $ 1 8 ,8 1 8 , 030 wi l l  be 
deposited i n  the insurance tax d istri but ion fund pursuant to th is  amendment ,  of wh ich $ 1 7 ,783,038 (94 .5  percent) wi l l  
be d istributed to fi re d istricts and $ 1 . 034,992 (5 .5 percent) w i l l  be d istr ibuted to the North Dakota F i refighter·s 
Association du ri ng  the 201 9-21 b ienn i um ,  an increase of $3,753,944 from the base leve l .  Th is  resu lts i n  a general 
fund revenue reduct ion of $3 ,753 ,944. 

Senate B i l l  No. 201 0 - Other Changes - Senate Action 

This amendment a lso :  
Removes the sect ion identifying the appropriation from the insurance tax d istri but ion fund for payments to fi re 
d istricts and the North Dakota F i refighter's Association . 
Adds sect ions to provide continu i ng  appropriation authority from the i nsu rance tax d istribut ion fund for 
payments to fi re d istr icts and the North Dakota F i refighter·s Associat ion . These sect ions a lso provide for the 
I nsurance Commiss ioner to calcu late the amounts to be deposited in and d istr ibuted from the insurance tax 
d istr ibut ion fund for payments to fire d istricts and the North Dakota F i refighter·s Association .  
Removes sections identify ing the  amounts appropriated from the  state bond ing  fund .  state fi re and tornado 
fund ,  and the petro leum release compensation fund .  
Adds sect ions t o  a l low t he  I nsu rance Commissioner t o  contract for the admin istrat ion o f  the state bonding fund 
and the state fi re and tornado fund .  
Adds sect ions to  provide conti nu i ng  appropriat ion authority from the state bond ing  fund and t he  state fi re and 
tornado fund to the I nsu ra nce Commiss ioner to pay the contractual adm in i strat ion costs for the funds .  
Adds sect ions to transfer the bo i ler  i nspection program from the I nsu rance Commiss ioner to the Department of 
Environmenta l Qua l ity. 
Adds a section to i ncrease the I nsu rance Commiss ioner's sa lary by 2 percent beginn i ng  Ju ly  1 ,  201 9 ,  and 
3 percent beg inn i ng  Ju ly 1 ,  2020. 
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Prepared for the House Appropriations Comm ittee 

Department 401 - Insurance Commissioner, Including Insurance Tax Payments to Fire 
Departments 
Senate Bill No. 2010 

E xecu Ive u 1ge f B d t C  ompanson o nor Ienmum t P . B" A ,ppropnatIons 
FTE Positions General  Fund Other Funds Total 

201 9-21 Executive Budget 44.00 $0 $25,587 ,964 $25,587,964 
201 7- 1 9  Leg islative Appropriations 46.00 0 25,793 ,430 25, 793,430 
Increase (Decrease) (2 .00) $0 ($205,466) ($205,466) 

and One-Time Other Funds A 
Ongoing General Fund 
A ro riation 

One-Time  General  
Fund A ro riation 

Total General  Fund 
A riation 

201 9-21 Executive Budget 
201 7- 1 9  Leg islative Appropriations 
Increase Decrease 

$25,587,964 
25,793,430 

$205 ,466 

Agency Funding FTE Positions 

u, 

i 

$30.00 

$25.00 

$20.00 

$1 5.00 

$1 0.00 

$5.00 

$0.00 

$26.38 $�5 
$25.79 $25.59 - ---

- -

- -

- -

- -
$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 

201 3-1 5 201 5-1 7 201 7-1 9 201 9-2 1  
Executive 

Budget 
• General Fund CJ Other Funds 

50.00 
49.00 
48.00 
47.00 
46.00 
45.00 
44.00 
43.00 
42.00 
41 .00 

E xecu Ive u 1ge f B d t C  ompanson 

49 50 --

201 3-1 5 

t B 0 ase L 

49 50 --

$0 
0 

$0 

$25 ,587,964 
25,793,430 

$205,466 

201 5-1 7 

eve 

�.00 

� 
�00 -

201 7-1 9 201 9-21 
Executive 

Budget 

Genera l  Fund Other Funds Total 
201 9-21 Executive Budget $0 $25 ,587 ,964 $25,587,964 
201 9-21 Base Level 0 25,793,430 25,793,430 
I ncrease (Decrease) $0 ($205,466) ($205,466) 

First House Action 
Attached is a comparison worksheet deta i l ing fi rst house changes to base level fund ing and the executive budget .  

Executive Budget Highlights 
{With First House Changes in Bold) 

General  Fund 
1 .  Provides funding for state employee salary and benefit increases,  

of which $353,324 is for salary increases , $ 1 66,279 is  for health 
insurance increases, and $42,801  is for reti rement contribution 
increases. The Senate added funding for salary adjustments 
of 2 percent July 1 ,  201 9, and 3 percent J uly 1 ,  2020, and 
increases in  health insurance prem i ums from $1 ,241 to 
$1 ,427 per month. The Senate did not add funding for 
retirement contribution i ncreases. 

2 .  Removes 3 FTE positions and transfers admin istration of the fire 
and tornado fund and the bond ing fund to the insurance reserve 
fund 

$0 

$0 

Other Funds 
$562 ,404 

($61 0 ,352) 

Total 
$562,404 

($6 1 0 ,352) 

February 28, 201 9 



3. Adds funding to contract with the insurance reserve fund for fund 
admin istration .  The Senate provided continu ing  appropriation 
authority to contract with the insurance reserve fund for fund 
administration .  

4. Adds 1 FTE consumer assistance outreach position . The Senate 
added $1 79,71 1 for the consumer assistance outreach 
position. 

5. Reduces funding for operating expenses, including travel ,  
information technology, and professional services 

6. Adds funding for Microsoft Office 365 l icensing expenses 

$0 

$0 

$0 

$0 

Other Sections in Senate Bill No. 2010 

$660,804 $660,804 

$29,824 $29,82 

($636,621 )  ($636,621 )  

$24 , 1 53 $24 , 1 53 

Unsatisfied judgment fund - Section 2 designates $29,703 from the state unsatisfied judgment fund to pay unsatisfied 
judgment fund administrative expenses. 

Insurance tax d istribution fund - Section 3 ,  4, 5 ,  and 9 provide statutory changes necessary for the I nsurance Commissioner 
to calculate the amounts due to fi re d istricts and the North Dakota Firefighter's Association and provide continuing appropriation 
authority to distribute the amounts due. 

Boiler i nspection program - Sections 6 and 1 5  provide statutory changes necessary to transfer the boi ler inspection program 
to the Department of Environmental Qual ity. Section 1 6  provides a contingent effective date for the transfer. 

Fees - Section 7 amends North Dakota Century Code Section 26. 1 -01 -07 relating to fees chargeable by the Insurance 
Commissioner to adjust fees charged to county m utual insurance companies and benevolent societies. 

Insurance Commissioner's salary - Section 8 provides the statutory changes necessary to increase the I nsurance 
Commissioner's salary by 2 percent the 1 st year and 3 percent the 2nd year as fol lows: 

Annual salary authorized by the Legislative Assembly in 201 7: 

Ju ly 1 ,  201 7  

Ju l  1 , 201 8  

$1 05,770 

$1 05,770 

Annual salary authorized by the Legislative Assembly in 201 9 :  

Ju ly 1 ,  201 9  

Ju l  1 , 2020 

$1 07,885 

$1 1 1 , 1 22 

Fund administration - Sections 1 0  through 1 4  provide statutory changes necessary to al low the Insurance Commissioner to 
contract with the insurance reserve fund for administration of the state fire and tornado fund and the state bonding fund. The 
sections also provide continu ing appropriation authority from the state fire and tornado fund and the state bonding fund to pay 
contractual fund administration expenses. 

Continuing Appropriations 
There are no continu ing appropriations for this agency. Sections are included in the bi l l  to provide continuing appropriations for 
insurance tax payments to fire departments, payments to the Fi refighter's Association ,  and admin istration of the bonding fund 
and fire and tornado fund.  

Significant Audit Findings 
There were no sign ificant audit findings for this agency. 

Major Related Legislation 
House Bi l l  No. 1 028 - Provides for a Publ ic Employees Retirement System self- insurance plan for health benefits coverage 
under the Insurance Commissioner. 

House B i l l  No. 1 1 06 - Provides for an invisible reinsurance pool for the individual health insurance market. This bi l l  also provides 
for a Legislative Management study of health insurance premium rates. 

2 
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Insurance Commissioner, i nc lud ing Insurance Tax Payments to F i re Departments - Budget No. 401 

Senate Bi l l  No. 201 0 

Base Level Fund ing Changes 
Executive Budget Recommendation Senate Version 

FTE General Other FTE General Other 
Positions Fund Funds Total Position Fund Funds Total 

201 9-21 Biennium Base Level 46.00 $0 $25,793,430 $25,793,430 46.00 $0 $25,793,430 $25,793,430 

201 9-21 Ongoing Funding Changes 
Base payroll changes ($1 27,688) ($1 27,688) $1 65,007 $ 1 65,007 
Salary increase 353 ,324 353,324 2 1 8 , 1 70 2 1 8 , 1 70 
Health insurance increase 1 66 ,279 1 66,279 1 82,946 1 82,946 
Retirement contribution increase 42,801 42 ,80 1 0 
Underfund salaries and wages ( 1 07,990) (1 07,990) 0 
Add 1 FTE consumer assistance outreach 1 .00 29,824 29,824 1 .00 1 79,71 1 1 79,71 1 
coordinator position 

Add 1 FTE high risk pool and health care 0 1 .00 202,791 202 ,791 
reform coord inator 

Transfer administration of the fire and (3.00) (61 0 ,352) (6 1 0 ,352) (3.00) (6 1 0 ,352) (61 0 ,352) 
tornado fund and bonding fund to the 

insurance reserve fund 

Contract with the insurance reserve fund 660,804 660,804 0 
for fund administration 

Transfer the boiler inspection program to 0 (4.00) (753,365) (753,365) 
DEQ 

Reduce funding for operating expenses , (636,621 ) (636,62 1 )  (637,255) (637,255) 
including travel ,  information technology, 

and professional services 

Add funding for Microsoft Office 365 24, 1 53 24, 1 53 24, 1 53 24, 1 53 
l icensing expenses 

Provide a continuing appropriation for fire 0 ( 1 5 ,064,086) ( 1 5 ,064,086) 
district and Firefighter's Association 

payments 
Total ongoing funding changes (2.00) $0 ($205,466) ($205,466) (5.00) $0 ($1 6 ,092,280) ($1 6 ,092,280) 

One-time funding items 
No one-time funding items $0 $0 

Total one-time funding changes 0.00 $0 $0 $0 0.00 $0 $0 $0 

Total Changes to Base Level Funding (2.00) $0 ($205,466) ($205 ,466) (5.00) $0 ($ 1 6,092,280) ($ 1 6,092,280) 

201 9-21 Total Funding 44.00 $0 $25,587,964 $25,587,964 41 .00 $0 $9,70 1 , 1 50 $9,701 , 1 50 



Other Sections for Insurance Commissioner, including Insurance Tax Payments to Fire 
Departments - Budget No. 401 

U nsatisfied judgment fund 

Insurance tax d istribution fund 

Boiler inspection program 

Fees 

Insurance Commissioner's salary 

State fire and tornado fund 

Fund administration 

Executive Budget Recommendation 
Section 4 would designate $28 ,390 from the state 
unsatisfied judgment fund to pay unsatisfied judgment 

fund administrative expenses. 

Section 2 would designate $ 1 4 , 1 1 3 ,086 for payments to 

fire departments and $951 ,000 for payments to the North 

Dakota F irefighter's Association. 

Section 9 would amend North Dakota Century Code 
Section 26. 1 -0 1 -07 relating to fees chargeable by the 

Insurance Commissioner to adjust fees charged to 
county mutual insurance companies and benevolent 
societies. 
Section 5 would provide the statutory changes 
necessary to increase the Insurance Commissioner's 
salary to $1 1 0,001 beginning Ju ly 1 ,  201 9,  and $1 1 2 ,201 
beginning Ju ly 1 ,  2020. 

Section 3 would designate $660,804 from the state fire 
and tornado fund to pay state fire and tornado fund 
administrative expenses and $893,509 from the state fire 
and tornado fund to pay boiler inspection program 

expenses. 

Sections 6 ,  7,  and 8 would provide statutory changes 
necessary to allow the Insurance Commissioner to 
contract with the insurance reserve fund for 

administration of the state fire and tornado fund and the 

state bonding fund. 

• 

Senate Version 
Section 2 designates $29,703 from the state unsatisfied 
judgment fund to pay unsatisfied judgment fund 

administrative expenses. 

Sections 3 ,  4 ,  5 ,  and 9 provide statutory changes 

necessary for the Insurance Commissioner to calculate 

the amounts due to fire d istricts and the North Dakota 

F irefighter's Association and provide continuing 

appropriations authority to distribute the amounts due. 

Sections 6 and 1 5  provide statutory changes necessary to 
transfer the boiler inspection program to the Department 
of Environmental Quality. Section 1 6 provides a 

contingent effective date for the transfer. 

Section 7 amends Section 26. 1 -0 1 -07 relating to fees 
chargeable by the Insurance Commissioner to adjust fees 

charged to county mutual insurance companies and 
benevolent societies. 

Section 8 provides the statutory changes necessary to 
increase the Insurance Commissioner's salary to 
$1 07,885 beginning Ju ly 1 ,  201 9,  and $ 1 1 1 , 1 22 beginning 
Ju ly 1 ,  2020. 

Section removed. 

Sections 10 through 14 provide statutory changes 
necessary to al low the Insurance Commissioner to 
contract with the insurance reserve fund for administration 

of the state fire and tornado fund and the state bonding 

fund. The sections also provide continuing appropriation 
authority from the funds to pay contractual fund 
administration expenses. 

• 



Prepared by the Legislative Council staff 

Department 401 - Insurance Commissioner, Including Insurance Tax Payments to Fire 
Departments 

Historical Appropriations I nformation 

Ongoing Other Funds Appropriations Since 2011-13 

Ongoing Other Funds Appropriations (in Mi l l ions) 
$35.00 �----------------, 
$30.00 +---------'-____ $2_8_.0_3 _-----:-=-=--,--------; 

$25.00 +----
$20.00 +----

FTE Positions 

49.50 - 49.50 49.50 - -........ 
�00 

$1 5.00 
$1 0.00 

54.00 
52.00 
50.00 
48.00 
46.00 
44.00 
42.00 
40.00 

-�oo 

$5.00 
$0.00 

-
201 1 -1 3  201 3-1 5 201 5-1 7 201 7-1 9 201 9-21 

Executive 
Budget 

201 1 -1 3  201 3-1 5 201 5-1 7 201 7-1 9 201 9-21 
Executive 

Budget 

Ongoing Other Fund Aooropriations 

201 1 -1 3  201 3-1 5 201 5-1 7 201 7-1 9 
Ongoing other funds appropriations $ 1 7,974,080 $26,377 ,090 $28 ,026,346 $25,793,430 
I ncrease (decrease) from previous biennium N/A 8 ,403,01 0  1 ,649,256 ($2 ,232 ,9 1 6) 

Percentage increase (decrease) from N/A 46.8% 6.3% (8 .0%) 
previous biennium 

Cumulative percentage increase (decrease) N/A 46.8% 55.9% 43.5% 
from 201 1 - 1 3  biennium 

Major I ncreases (Decreases) in  Ongoing Other Fu nds Appropriations 
201 3-1 5 Biennium 

1 .  I ncreased funding from the insurance tax distribution fund for grants to fire districts to provide a total 
of $1 4,536,386 for grants to fire departments and $800,000 to the North Dakota Firefighter's 
Association 

2 .  Reduced funding for operating expenses 

201 5-1 7 Biennium 

1 .  I ncreased funding from the insurance tax distribution fund for grants to fire districts to provide a total 
of $1 5 ,68 1 ,207 for grants to fire departments and $890,000 to the North Dakota Firefighter's 
Association 

2. Adjusted funding for operating expenses relating primarily to actuarial services, travel ,  and office 
rental 

201 7-1 9 Biennium 

1 . Removed 3.5 FTE positions 

2. Reduced funding for operating expenses 

3. Reduced grants to fire departments to provide total ongoing funding of $1 4,235,561  from the 
insurance tax distribution fund 

201 9-21 Biennium (Executive Budget Recommendation) 

1 .  Removes 3 FTE positions relating to the transfer of fund administration duties 

2. Adds funding to contract with the insurance reserve fund for fund administration .  The Senate 
provided continuing appropriation authority to contract with the insurance reserve fund for 
fund administration. 

3.  Adds 1 FTE consumer outreach coord inator position .  The Senate added $1 79,71 1 for the 
consumer assistance outreach position. 

4. Reduces funding for operating expenses, including travel ,  information technology, and professional 
services 

201 9-21 
Executive 

Budget 
$25,587,964 

($205,466) 

(0.8%) 

42.4% 

$8,296,386 

($690,892) 

$1 ,234,821 

($345,966) 

($724,488) 

($357,265) 

($1 ,445,646) 

($6 1 0 ,352) 

$660,804 

$29,824 

($636,62 1 )  

February 28, 201 9 



GOVERNOR'S RECOMMENDATION FOR THE 
I NSURANCE COMMISSIONER AS SUBMITTED 

BY THE OFFICE OF MANAGEMENT AND BUDG ET 

SECTION 1. APPROPRIATION. The funds provided in this section, or so much of the funds as may 
be necessary, are appropriated from special funds derived from federal funds and other income, to the 
insurance commissioner for the purpose of defraying the expenses of that agency, for the biennium 
beginning July 1, 2019, and ending June 30, 2021, as follows: 

Adjustments or 
Base Level Enhancements Ai;mrogriation 

Salaries and wages $8,549,567 ($253,802) $8,295,765 
Operating expenses 2,179,777 48,336 2,228,113 
Total special funds $10,729,344 ($205,466) $10,523,878 

Full-time equivalent positions 46.00 (2.00) 44.00 

SECTION 2 .  A P P  R O  P R  I A T  ION.  There is appropriated out of any moneys in the insurance tax 
distribution fund in the state treasury, not otherwise appropriated, the sum of $15,064,086 or so much of 
the sum as may be necessary, to the insurance commissioner for the purpose of providing payments, in 
accordance with provisions of section 18-04-05, to North Dakota fire departments in the amount of 
$14,113,086 and payments to the North Dakota firefighter's association in the amount of $951,000 for 
the biennium beginning July 1, 2019, and ending June 30, 2021. 

SECTION 3. FIRE AND TORNADO FUND. Section 1 of this Act includes $660,804 from the state 
fire and tornado fund to pay fire and tornado fund administrative expenses, an

. 
d $893,509 to pay boiler

. inspection program expenses for the biennium beginning July 1, 2019, and ending June 30, 2021. 

SECTION 4.  UNSATISFIED JUDGMENT FUND. Section 1 of this Act includes $28,390 from the 
state unsatisfied judgment fund to pay unsatisfied judgment fund administrative expenses for the 
biennium beginning July 1, 2019, and ending June 30, 2021. 

SECTION 5. AMENDMENT. Section 26.1-01-09 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and 
reenacted as follows: 

26.1-01-09. Salary of commissioner. 

The annual salary of the commissioner is one hundred fii.ie thousand se1.ien hundred eighty dollars 
through June 30, 2019 and one hundred ten thousand and one dollar through June 30, 2020 and one 
hundred twelve thousand two hundred and one dollar thereafter. 

SECTION 7. AMENDMENT. Section 26.1-21-03 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and 
reenacted as follows: 

26.1 -21 -03. Commissioner may employ assistants. 

The commissioner may employ assistants or contract for the services of assistants using money from 
the reserve fund of the state bonding fund as may be necessary to operate the fund. 

SECTION 8. AMENDMENT. Section 26.1-22-03 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and 
reenacted as follows: 

26.1 -22-03. Employment of ass istants - Expenditures from fund.  

Governor's recommendation a s  submitted b y  the Office of Management and Budget 



To carry out this chapter, the commissioner may utilize any information on file in the state fire 
marshal's department and any of the employees of the commissioner and the commissioner may employ 
necessary assistants or contract for the services of assistants from the North Dakota insurance reserve 
fund using money from the reserves of the fund and incur necessary expenses that may be paid from the 
reserves of the fund. 

SECTION 9. AMENDMENT. Subsection 2 of section 26.1-01-07 of the North Dakota Century Code 
is amended and reenacted as follows: 

26. 1 -01 -07.  Fees chargeable by comm issioner. 

1. The commissioner shall charge and collect the following fees: 
a. For filing articles of incorporation ,  or copies, or amendments thereof, twenty-five dollars. 
b. For each original certificate of authority issued upon admittance and for each annual 

renewal thereof, one hundred dollars and for amendment to certificate of authority, or 
certified copy thereof, fifty dollars. 

c. For issuing an annual reciprocal exchange license, the same fees as those applicable to the 
issuance of a certificate of authority in subsection 2. 

d. For filing an annual report of a fraternal benefit society, and issuing a license or permit to 
the society, and for each renewal thereof, one hundred dollars. 

e. For filing of articles of merger, or copies thereof, thirty dollars. 
f. For filing an annual statement, twenty-five dollars. 
g. For filing the abstract of the annual statement of an insurance company for publication ,  thirty 

dollars. 
h. For an official examination , the expenses of the examination at the rate adopted by the 

department. The rates must be reasonably related to the direct and indirect costs of the 
examination ,  including actual travel expenses, including hotel and other living expenses, 
compensation of the examiner and other persons making the examination , and necessary 
attendant administrative costs of the department directly related to the examination and 
must be paid by the examined insurer together with compensation upon presentation by the 
department to the insurer of a detailed account of the charges and expenses after a detailed 
statement has been filed by the examiner and approved by the department. 

i. For issuing a certificate to a domestic insurance company showing a compliance with the 
compulsory reserve provisions of this title and the maintenance of proper security deposits 
and for any renewal of the certificate, twenty-five dollars. 

j. For a written licensee's examination not administered by the office of the commissioner 
under a contract with a testing service, the actual cost of the examination , subject to 
approval of the commissioner, which must be paid to the testing service. 

k. For issuing a surplus lines insurance producer's or insurance consultant's license, one 
hundred dollars. For each annual renewal of a surplus lines insurance producer's or 
insurance consultant's license, twenty-five dollars. 

I. For issuing an insurance producer's license, one hundred dollars. 
m. For issuing a duplicate of any license or registration issued under this title, ten dollars. 
n. For each insurance company appointment and renewal of an appointment of an insurance 

producer, ten dollars. 
o. For each company application for admission ,  five hundred dollars, except applications for 

admission for county mutual , fraternal benefit, and surplus lines companies must be one 
hundred dollars. 

p. For issuing a license and each annual renewal of a license to an insurance premium finance 
company, one hundred dollars. 
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q. For examining or investigating an insurance premium finance company, the actual expense 
and per diem incurred; but the per diem charge may not exceed fifty dol lars. 

r. For issuing and each annual renewal of a license to an advisory organization, fifty dol lars. 
s. For filing an individual insurance producer licensing continuation, twenty-five dol lars. 

2. Nonprofit health service corporations and health maintenance organizations are subject to the 
same fees as any other insurance company. County mutual insurance companies and benevolent 
societies are liable on ly for the fees mentioned in subdivisions b, f, g, and � .b. of subsection 1. 

SECTION 6. AMENDMENT. Section 26.1-23.1-01 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended 
and reenacted as fol lows: 

26. 1 -23. 1 -0 1 . Government self-insurance pools - Regu lation - Reinsurance. 

1. Any two or more entities that have united to self-insure against their legal liability under chapter 32-
12.1 or any state agency that unites with another state agency or political subdivision, or both, to self
insure against their legal liabilities are subject to the provisions of this chapter with the exception of a city 
and its park district established pursuant to chapter 40-49. Government self-insurance pools may only 
provide coverage of the fol lowing types for pool members, their officers, employees, and agents: 

a. Casualty insurance, including general, public officials, and professional liability 
coverages. 

b. Automobile insurance, including motor vehicle liability insurance coverage, security for motor 
vehicles owned or operated as required by chapter 26.1-41, and protection against other liability 
and laws associated with the ownership of motor vehicles and automobile physical damage 
coverages. 
c. Property insurance, including in land marine coverage, money and securities coverage, and extra 
expense coverage. However, this subdivision does not authorize government self-insurance pools 
to write those types of insurance coverages offered by the state fire and tornado fund under the 
provisions of chapter 26.1-22 as they existed on December 31, 1988, unless a government self
insurance pool enters into a contract with the commissioner to provide services for the state fire 
and tornado fund under the provisions of 26.1 -22-03. 
d. Other coverages authorized by the commissioner and necessary to a pool's membership. 

2. A government self-insurance pool may not expose itself to loss on any single risk or hazard in an 
amount exceeding ten percent of the amount of its admitted assets un less the pool obtains excess 
insurance or reinsurance with insurance companies approved for such business by the insurance 
commissioner. 
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February 28 ,  20 1 9  

Good morning Mr. Chairman and members of the House Government Operations Appropriations 
Subcommittee. For the record, my name is Jon Godfread, Insurance Commissioner. Before we 
get into the changes we are proposing, changes that were accepted by the Senate, I wanted first 
to give you a very brief summary of our insurance industry here in North Dakota and our 
Insurance Department . 

ND Insurance Industry and Regulation-At a Glance: 

The North Dakota Insurance Department is a special funded agency that primarily serves as a 
consumer protection agency for North Dakota. We receive our funding from the Insurance 
regulatory trust fund, which is funded by all fees and fines paid  for by insurance companies and 
agents operating in thi s  state. 

It i s  the mission of the North Dakota Insurance Department to protect the publ ic good by fairly 
and effectively administering the laws of North Dakota. We are committed to vigorous consumer 
protection efforts, while fostering a strong, competitive marketplace that provides consumers 
with choices and access to high-quality insurance products and services at competitive prices .  In 
pursuit of our mission, we treat al l  our constituencies with the highest ethical standards and 
respect they deserve. 

The North Dakota insurance Department takes pride in helping our citizens by providing 
effective, resourceful and caring services while inspiring the h ighest level of consumer trust. 

We remain committed to vigorous consumer protection while fostering a strong, competitive 
market place that provides consumers with choice and access to high-quality insurance products 
and services at competitive prices. 

The Department contributed $55 . 1 million in premium tax revenue to the state ' s  General Fund 
last fiscal year. Including tum-back, the Department contributed $59 . 6M to the General Fund in 
20 1 8 . 

l l P a g e  



North Dakota Insurance Industry 
2007 2008 2009 2010  20 1 1  2012 ,_ . '. • I· 

Total premium written $3,700,000,000 $4,325,6 13,863 $4,044,836,633 $4, 191 ,934,7 14 $4,94 1 ,246,953 $5,046,323,923 
Net premium tax collected (General Fund 

$27,000,000 $33,590,545 $34,2 1 8,272 $3 1 , 10 1 ,2 1 1  $34,813 , 193 $35,736,397 
dollars) 

Claims, losses and benefits paid to consumers $27,000,000 $3,0 12,236, 18 1  $2,865,404,3 1 1  $3,007,791 ,719 $4,263,096,958 $3, 1 53,594,767 

Consumer relief from complaints and hotline 
$3,300,000 $1 ,400,000 $1 ,400,000 $75 1 , 1 98 $ 1 ,255,655,61 $ 1 , 126,575.76 

contacts 

Enforcement fines from agents and companies $754,000 $25,795 $42,850 $16,0 13 $ 1 ,000 $1 ,257,061 

',;'- - "�-"- �".: .IOI • �-.• •· ..... iii .. ,::i:1t;7.;·.: :-, \, :::-: ;::_,;-/,-,;,.', ::;.· • .:::,,.--, ,. '"'1.3", ·. 
Number of North Dal<otans assisted 9,484 13,502 1 8,259 9,570 12,270 1 1 ,372 
Savinas for North Dal<ota citiuns $2,400,000 $3,400,000 $4,500,000 $ 1 ,900,000 $3 006, 150 $2,739,387 
Centers for Medicare and Medicaid grants $229,0 1 5  $359,6 19  $282,3 17  $243,752 $267,703 $264,733 

Presc:riotion C-1iea ,........,.m 

Number of North Dal<otans assisted 3,878 4,138 2,499 2, 122 393 358 
Savin2s for North Dal<ota citiuns $2 500 000 $2 700 000 $ 1 600 000 $ 1 800 000 $605 062 $450 774 

Benefitin2 North Dakota taxpayers 
Insurance regulatory trust fund; tum back to the 

$3,455, 194 $3,894,82 1 $2,384,455 $3,9 15 ,348 $2,979,660 $3,546,995 
General Fund 

Contributions to the General Fund 

Net premium tax collected (General Fund dollars) $27,000,000 $33,590,545 $34,2 1 8,272 $3 1 , 10 1 ,2 1 1  $34,813, 193 $35,736,397 

Insurance regulatory trust fund; tum back to the 
$3,455, 194 $3,894,82 1 $2,384,455 $3,9 15 ,348 $2,979,660 $3,546,995 

General Fund 
Total Contribution to the General Fund $30,455,194 $37,485,366 $36,602,727 $35,016,559 $37,792,853 $39,283,392 

Contributions to the General Fund 

$70,000,000 
20 17  

20 16  
$60,000,000 

20 1 5  

$50,000,000 20 14  

20 1 3  
$40,000,000 

20 12  

$30,000,000 201 1  

20 1 0  
$20,000,000 

2009 

$10,000,000 2008 

2007 
$0 

2007 2001 2009 2010 2011 2012 201S 2024 2025 ,.,. 2017 

-Net premium tax collected (General Fund dollars) -Insurance repllltorytrust fund; tum back to the General Fund 

-Total Contribution to the General Fund 

2013  20 14 

$5,452, 1 37, 183 $5,72 1 ,428,925 

$46,283,404 $49,264,493 

$3,994,852, 194 $3,975,428,88 1 

$3,3 5 1 , 130 $ 1 ,042,282 

$986,786 $834,802 

� ,c: _,;:r / , :-. 
9,758 

$2,336,943 $2,375,030 
$248, 149 $253,865 1 

301 1 88 
$596 126 $53 1 989 

$3,846,205 $5,445,434 

$46,283,404 $49,264,493 

$3,846,205 $5,445,434 

$50,129,609 $54,709,927 

'6 026 076 %2 
S5 9-t9.890 632 
S5 7-t6 825 005 
S5 72 I -t28 925 
·5 -t52 1 37 1 83 
·5 O-t6 323 923 
S-t 9-t I 2-t6 953 
S-t 1 9 1  93-t 7 1 -t  
S-t 0-t-t 836 633 
S-t 325 6 1 3  863 
SJ 700 000.000 

fH:t:- fl 
s 6  a. 0 1 0  
;;l -o- ¥- 19 

pt �  
2015 2016 .. ·-J,,cc-';. ,, 

$5 746,825,005 $5,949,890,632 

$49,734,23 1 $55,571 ,924 

$3,664,256,3 13 $5,607,737,53' 

$3,0 16,284 $2,756,401 

$595,298 $480,054 

$1 ,433,024 $1 ,531  9 13  
$253,865 $268, 1 86 

177 130 
$712  006 $707 736 

$4, 1 60,58 1 $4,025,635 

$49,734,23 1 $55,57 1 ,924 

$4, 1 60,581 $4,025,635 

$53,894,812 $59,597,559 

• 
2017 

,· ' 
$6,026 076 962 

$55 , 147,062 

$4,487,7 1 6,434 

$ 1 , 1 57,967.53 

$ 184,296 

$2,06 1 ,385.47 
$234,944 

129 
$845 125 .00 

$4,300, 173 

$55 , 147,062 

$4,300 , 173 

$59,447,235 
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20 15  2 0 1 6  20 1 7 20 1 8 

The insurance industry 

Total premium written $5 ,746 ,825 ,005 $8 , 372 ,344,928 $8 ,546,807, 8 1  (Avai l .  In  Apri l )  

I 

Net premium tax col lected $ 49,734,23 1 $ 55 , 57 1 ,924 $55 , 1 47,062 $55 , 1 1 6 ,89 1 
(General Fund dol lars) 

C laims, l osses and benefits paid $3 ,664,256 ,3 1 3  $5 ,607,737 ,53 3  $5 , 877,006, 1 2  (Avai l .  In Apri l )  

t o  consumers 9 

Regulation and consumer protection 

Consumer rel i ef from complaints $3 ,0 1 6 ,284 $2 ,756,40 1 $ 1 , 1 57 ,967 . 53  $3 ,349,440 . 3 3  
and hotl ine contacts 

Enforcement fines from agents $595 ,298 $480,054 $268 ,50 1 $23 , 800 
and companies 

Benefiting North Dakota taxpayers 

surance regulatory trnst fund; $4, 1 60,5 8 1  $4,025,63 5 $4,3 00, 1 73 $4,824,460 
um back to the General Fund 

• 

Department Overview: 

The North Dakota Insurance Department currently  has 46 FTEs working in 7 different divi sions. 

CONSUMER ASSISTANCE DIVISION 

The Consumer Assi stance Division assists North Dakota consumers having i ssues or concerns 
about their insurance by conducting detai l ed investigations. 

STATE HEAL TH INSURANCE COUNSELING (SHIC)  
Provides free, unbiased and confidential health insurance counseling to Medicare beneficiaries, 
their fami l ies or other representatives. The program held eight Medicare Part D enrol lment 
events and co-sponsored numerous events across the state in 20 1 8 . 

PRESCRIPTION CONNECTION PROGRAMS 

Helps low income North Dakotans find low-cost and no-cost prescription drugs by connecting 
them with prescription assi stance programs offered by various pha1maceutical companies .  The 
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program assi sts consumers with the appl ication process and connects over 95  percent of  a1ff � 
appl icants to a program . 

A mix of state doll ars and federal dol lars currently funds our Consumer Assi stance Division. 
Federal funds cmTently fund two FTEs for SHIC, partial ly  funds the director of our Consumer 
Assi stance Division, and 3 0% of another Consumer Assistance Division posit ion .  

Thi s budget proposes bringing those positions in-house and using regulatory trust fund dol l ars to 
fund them whi le sti l l  applying for federal grant dol lars, which would allow us to turn back state 
funds .  As we have seen, these grants are shrinking and getting harder and hard to receive. I am 
uncomfortable relying on the federal govenunent to fund four of the six positions in thi s  division. 
Consumer protection i s  our primary mission i t  i s  why we exist . If the federal funds dried up, we 
essenti al ly would not be abl e  to provide our core purpose. 

PRODUCER L I CENSING DIVIS ION 

The producer l icensing divi sion i s  responsible for the l icensing of more than 7 1 ,000 individual 
insurance producers doing business in or with North Dakota. Insurance producers must comply 
with pre- l icensing exams, background checks and continuing education requirements. 

PRODUCT FILING DIVIS ION 

The Product Fil ing Division reviews policy fonns and rate requests to  ensure policy l anguage 
complies with all the l aws of this state, properly reflects the benefits provided by the pol icy and 
is not deceptive or misleading. For most types of insurance, this division evaluates the premium 
rates companies propose to charge to ensure that the premiums are not excessive, inadequate or 
unfairly di scriminatory. 

E XAMINATIONS AND COMPANY LICENSING 

The primary function of the Examinations and Company Licensing Division i s  to monitor the 
financial strength of insurance companies l icensed to do business in North Dakota .  

In 20 1 7 ,  there were 2 ,293 insurance entities l icensed to do business in North Dakota and among 
them, 30 domiciled companies . 

LEGAL D I V I S ION 

The functions of the Legal Division are to provide l egal counsel to the Department ; investigate 
insurance fraud and related offenses; investigate and enforce al l l aws governing insurance 
producers and insurance companies; l i t igate administrative actions, and research and prepare 
proposed legi slative bi l l s  and administrative rules .  

ADMINISTRATION 

The Admini stration Division of the Insurance Department i s  responsible for oversight of the 
budget , accounting, IT needs and general office support through the Department. In addition,  the 
division oversees day-to-day business operations, publ ic  rel ations, human resource management 
and the internal pol icies and procedures for the Department 



Insurance Department 2009 -2019 
2009-11 2011-13 2013-15 2015-17 

��"fr'7-"' : ,..v,, � ·• �J:�::' ,, "� � « ·  . .  
Salaries $ 4,810,903 $ 5,447,928 $ 5,812,283 $ 6,311,402 
Benefits 1,657,633 1,937,252 2,207,231 2,631,695 
Accrued leave payouts . . 163,182 . 

Total salaries and benefits 6,468,536 7,385,180 8,182,696 8,943,097 

Travel 345,510 385,160 397,024 437,915 
IT - software/supplies 70,200 147,590 89,490 97,360 
Professional supplies 18,400 36,350 16,980 19,365 
Safety 3,600 2,200 1,100 2,700 
Miscellaneous supplies 51,302 35,015 16,080 16,080 
Office supplies 33,399 45,300 28,820 28,820 
Postage 115,436 128,800 99,875 96,250 
Printing 122,925 109,200 58,666 46,335 
IT equipment under $5,000 40,800 67,780 39,050 35,150 
Office equip/furn under $5,000 25,300 92,600 29,185 20,800 
Insurance 41,550 28,980 15,175 5,070 
Rental/leases-equip/other 25,550 30,660 21,840 19,440 
Rental/leases-bldg and land 222,600 355,818 364,449 429,767 
Repairs 1,700 2, 100 2,630 6,556 
IT - data processing 375,000 299,028 376,954 403,950 
IT • communications 85,000 112,979 94,136 74,130 
IT · contract service/repair 15,200 188, 100 68,600 38,348 
Professional development 76,529 77,685 82,608 72,477 
Operating fees and services 225,640 238,435 138,310 130,344 
Professional services 167,624 2,165,120 917,036 531,185 

Total operating expenses 2,063,264 4,548,900 2,858,008 2,512,042 

• Grants, Technology, Equipment 
Equipment > $5,000 170,000 70,000 . 90,000 
Technology carryover 25,000 . . . 

Grants, benefits, claims 6,990,000 7,040,000 15,336,386 16,701,207 

Total appropriation $ 15,716,800 $ 19,044,080 $ 26,377,090 $ 28,246,346 

Insurance Department Appropriations 
2009-11 2011-13 2013-15 2015-17 

Agency Salary and Benefits 6,468,536 7,385,180 8,182,696 8,943,097 
Agency Operations 2,063,264 4,548,900 2,858,008 2,512,042 
Fire Districts 6,990,000 7,040,000 15,336,386 16,701,207 

Total Appropriation $ 15,716,800 $ 19,044,080 $ 26,377,090 $ 28,246,346 

Funding source 
General funds $ . $ . $ $ . 
Special funds 15,080,504 15,780,561 24,996,065 27,636,101 
Federal funds 636,296 3,263,519 1,381,025 610,245 
Total Funds $ 15,716,800 $ 19,044,080 $ 26,377,090 $ 28,246,346 

!ms 45.5 1 45.5 1 49.5 I 49.s 1 

Insurance Replatory Trust Fund Revenues 
2007-09 2009-11 2011-13 2013-15 

Insurance agent fees $ 7,143,047 $ 7,173,314 $ 7,954,756 $ 9,444,535 
Insurance fees 4,426,484 4,961,683 5,090,529 4,919,795 
Continuing education/course fi l ing 190,123 97,152 78,900 81,000 
Fines . . 1,860,714 
Examiner fees 14,493 48,817 378,405 170,380 
Total $ 11,774,146 $ 12,280,966 $ 13,502,589 $ 16,476,424 

Transfers to general fund $ 7,850,015 $ 6,299,803 $ 6,526,655 $ 9,291,639 

2017-19 

$ 5,971,256 
2,578,311 

. 

8,549,567 

317,443 
114,463 
11,993 
2,500 
4,130 

15,800 
77,890 
33,090 
25,575 
20,150 
3,810 

14,190 
441,240 

5,290 
375,080 
62,795 
24,420 
63,720 
89,583 

476,615 

2,179,777 

. 
15,064,086 

$ 25,793,430 

2017-19 
8,549,567 
2,179,777 

15,064,086 

$ 25,793,430 

$ 
25,174,104 

619,326 
$ 25,793,430 

46.o I 

2015-17 

$ 10,032,255 
4,676,242 

71,900 
625,636 
275,400 

$ 15,681,432 

$ 8,186,216 
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Agency Salary and Benefits 

Agency Operations 

Fire Districts 

Total Appropriation $ 

30,000,000 

25,000,000 

20,000,000 

15,000,000 

10,000,000 

5,000,000 

2009-11 

I nsurance Department Overview 
2009-11 2011-13 2013-15 2015-17 2017-19 

6,468,536 7,385,180 8, 182,696 8,943,097 8,549,567 
2,063,264 4,548,900 2,858,008 2,512,042 2, 179,777 
6,990,000 7,040,000 15,336,386 16,701,207 15,064,086 

15,716,800 $ 19,044,080 $ 26,377,090 $ 28,246,346 $ 25,793,430 

I nsurance Department Appropriations 

2011-13 2013-15 2015-17 

-Agency Salary and Benefits -Agency Operations -Fire Districts -Total Appropriation 
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SPEC I A L  F U N D S  D I V I S I O N  

F I R E  A N D  TORNADO FUND 
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Created in 1 9 1 9 , th is fund provides low-cost insurance coverage to North Dakota government 
enti ties and politi cal subdivisions for their buildings and contents . The fund currently serves 
1 , 1 64 policyholders with a combined insured value of $ 1 4  bill ion. 

STATE BONDING FUND 

Created in 1 9 1 9 , this fund provides blanket fidelity bond coverage to North Dakota government 
entities and political subdivisions in the event of employee theft of property and money. This 
fund cmTently  serves 1 , 866 bondholders with a combined insured value of approximately $640 
mil l ion. 

P ETROLEUM TANK RELEASE COMPENSATION FUND 

Created in 1 989, thi s fund provides contamination clean-up coverage and third party l iabil i ty 
coverage to petroleum tank owners . Currently 1 ,7 1 3  registered sites pay an annual registration 
fee for approximately 6,000 tanks .  

BOILER AND PRESSURE VESSEL INSPECTORS 

Created in 1 953 ,  this safety program ensures that all boilers in North Dakota are inspected 
annual ly or biannual ly  depending on the type  and use of the boiler. We inspect all new boi lers 
for proper instal lation. There are approximately 1 1 ,200 active boi lers in North Dakota. The 
department inspects 5 , 1 24 and private insurance carriers inspect the remaining. 

Changes Proposed to 2019-2021 Budget: 

In analyzing our budget proposal for the 20 1 9-2 1 biennium we took a hard look at what the 
Insurance Depaiiment i s  currently  responsible for and what truly fits our mission of consumer 
protection, competitive markets, and access to high quality insurance products .  The resulting 
budget amendment is the product of months of work, tough decisions, and hard conversations. 
We believe the result al lows us to focus our attention on our mission, become more efficient in 
the use of our dollars, and provide better service to our consumers . 

MOVING THE PETROLEUM TANK RELEASE COMPENSATION FUND TO THE 

DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY : 

Created in 1 989,  this fund provides contamination clean-up coverage and third party l iabil i ty 
coverage to petroleum tank owners . The reality i s  this fund i s  in need of a re-work . As it 
currently stands we administer this fund, but much of the expertise l ies in the Department of 
Health ( DEQ) .  We are asking to move this fund to the Department of Environmental Quality. 
This change was mutual ly proposed by both the Department and the No1ih Dakota Petroleum 
Marketers . The DEQ has agreed to this change and has subsequently included it in its budget 
proposal as we! I .  



Fire and Tornado Fund premiums and claims 

Fiscal Year Policyholders Rate Change Premiums Collected 

2007 1 ,084 50% premium credit $2,640,000 
2008 1 ,085 35% premium credit $3,850,000 
2009 1 ,088 No change $6,440,000 
2010  1 ,087 50% premium credit $3 ,220,000 
201 1 1 ,090 50% premium credit $3 ,470,000 

2012  1 , 1 3 1  
Permanent 50% 

$3 .77 million 
premium reduction 

201 3  1 , 140 No reduction $4. 1 1 million 
2014  1 , 1 37  Premium waived n/a 
201 5  1 , 1 45 No reduction $4.28 million 
2016  1 , 1 55 No reduction $4.49 million 
201 7  1 1 64 No reduction $4.82 million 

Special Funds balance report Note: Reserve balance = assets - liabilities 
!As of Feb. 28, 201 7 

Fund Reserve Balance Minimum Variance Fav (Unfav) Requirement 
State Bonding Fund $3,56 1 ,255 $2,000,000 $ 1 ,561 ,255 
Fire and Tornado Fund $22,684,728 $ 12,000,000 $1 0,684,728 
Petroleum Tank Release Comp Fund* $5,249,023 $6,000,000 ($750,977' 
Unsatisfied Judgment $21 9,716 $ 1 50,000 $69,7 16  

/1--tt- fJ 
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# Claims Claim Payments 

202 $ 10, 1 00,000 
- 1 1 1  - $1 ,085,373 
25 1 $2,670,000 

- 38 1  $4,200,000 
272 $4,350,000 

220 $2.87 million 

1 99 $ 1 .30 million 
214  $1 .68 million 
1 82 $1 .70 million 
2 1 5  $1 .52 million 
268 $6.04 million 

Loss Claims Payable 

$1 05,674 
$930,922 

$ 1 ,442,745 
$0 
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Thi s move makes sense as it removes us, basical ly  the middle man, and allows the DEQ and 
Petro leum Marketers to rework this fund into something that works for the industry whi l e  
protecting our primacy from the EPA. 

Thi s change was included in the DEQ ' s  budget b i l l ,  House Bi l l  1 024, and was unanimously 
approved by the House Appropriations committee. 

MOVING THE BOILER AND PRESSURE VESSEL INSPECTORS TO THE 

DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY : 

Created in 1 95 3 ,  this safety program ensures that al l  boi lers in North Dakota are inspected 
annually or biannually, depending on the type and use of the boiler. We currently have four 
boi l er inspectors that service boilers all across the state. These employees work from home as 
their primary function is to be inspecting boi lers . We are seeking to transfer the responsibil ity for 
boiler inspections and the four fil led FTEs to the DEQ. The DEQ is  responsible for safeguarding 
North Dakota ' s  air, l and, and water resources. In cooperation with the general public, industry, 
and government at al l l evels ,  the section implements protective programs and standards to help 
maintain and improve environmental quality. We believe the general safety program of 
inspecting boi lers more closely aligns with the stated purpose of the DEQ, protecting the public 
i s  the mission of the DEQ. 

The four FTEs that are currently preforming these functions are truly self-sufficient and we 
recently made an investment to update their software program, which allows them to administer 
a vast majority of their job duties from home. We are seeking to move this program to an agency 
with a mission that aligns with the goals of this program, we bel ieve that is the DEQ. When you 
think boi ler inspections, I doubt the first agency that comes to mind is the Insurance Department . 

Thi s  move was discussed with the Governor' s  Office, Mr. Glatt from DEQ and was included in 
the House budget for the DEQ. Moving both functions (Petroleum Tank Release Fund and Boi ler 
and Pressure Vessel Inspections) to DEQ seem to make the most sense and Both Governor and 
Mr. Glatt agree to thi s move. 

Ultimately, both the Petroleum Tank Release Compensation Fund and Boi ler Inspections do not 
fit in within our defined mission and purpose and would be better served under the Department 
of Environmental Qual ity. 

This change was also included in the DEQ ' s  budget bill and was unanimously approved by the 
House Appropriations committee. 

M OVING ADMINISTRATION OF THE FIRE AND TORNADO AND S TATE BONDING FUND TO 

THE NORTH DAKOTA INSURANCE RESERVE FUN D :  

FIRE AND TORNADO FUND 

Created in 1 9 1 9 , thi s  fund provides low-cost insurance coverage to No1ih Dakota government 
enti ties and polit ical subdivisions for their bui ldings and contents . The fund cmTently serves 
I ,  1 64 poli cyholders with a combined insured value of $ 1 4  bi l l ion.  
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Created i n  1 9 1 9  thi s  fund provides blanket fidelity bond coverage t o  North Dakota government 
entit ies and polit ical subdivisions in the event of employee theft of property and money. This  
fund current ly serves 3 ,002 bondholders with a combined insured value of approximately $800 
mil l ion . 

Both of these funds serve other governmental divisions. One hundred years ago, I am sure it 
made sense to essential ly provide self-insured governmental property and fidel i ty bond coverage 
for government enti t ies .  I am not sure that logi c  would stand today. We are proposing moving 
the administration of these funds to the North D akota Insurance Reserve Fund (NDIRF) . 
Currently, we are able to take from the fund to cover costs associated with operations of the 
fund, but we are barred from taking salary dollars for the 3 FTEs who work on thi s  fund . We are 
proposing a change that would allow us to contract with NDIRF for administration of thi s fund . 

NDIRF i s  a not-for-profit organization owned by i ts members, all politi cal subdivisions are 
el igible for membership to NDIRF. Brennan Quintus, CEO of NDIRF, and I have been working 
out detai l s  of this proposed change since early 20 1 8 . Currently, NDIRF provides simi lar 
coverage that the Fire and Tornado fund provides to other political subdivisions but due to a state 
l aw, is barred from writing that coverage for state entities .  This coverage is not foreign to NDIRF 
and allows us to uti l ize NDIRFs network of agents to serve our state entities . As i t  stands, three 
people are unable to provide the level of service that our cl ients have come to expect . Without 
contracting with NDIRF, we would l ikely need to add 4-6 FTEs to provide a similar level of 
service NDIRF can provide with i t s  1 8  staff and network of  agents .  

This move also allows the Department to  get out of the business of providing insurance and 
focus on regul ating the insurance industry. It does not make logical sense that the regulator for 
the industry is also in the business of providing insurance. This move rectifies that unhealthy 
relationship and in doing so allows our clients to receive a higher level of service. 

I would like to invite Brenna Quintus to provide some comments about thi s proposed move. 

As mentioned, thi s  move has been vetted over the l ast year; stakeholders have been consulted 
and agree that thi s move makes sense. 

1 00 % FUNDING FOR FIRE DISTRICTS : 

Funding for Fire Departments and Fire D istri cts comes from a couple different sources (property 
taxes, benefits, etc . )  but a significant portion of the funding has come from the Insurance 
premium tax . The Department administers the premium tax and from that, the Legi sl ature 
appropriates an amount up to 1 00% of the fire insurance premium tax revenue collected . 

Thi s i s  essenti al ly  a pass through fund, whereby we collect the tax and pass that collection on to 
the fire di stri cts . Thi s fund was a continuing appropriation from 1 8 87  - 1 985 .  S ince 1 98 5 ,  
funding t o  the fire di stricts has fluctuated between 1 0 1 % of  the funds to a s  low a s  4 8% of the 
funds avai lable . 
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We are asking that the continuing appropriation be restored ; thi s ensures that the dol lars that are 
intended to go to the fi re di stricts are actual ly going to the fire di stricts .  The average consumer 
l ikely knows that a portion of their homeowner' s insurance premiums go to funding fire 
departments .  What they do not know i s  that a portion of those dollars are being put back into the 
general fund .  Our consumers are being double or triple hit, once on my homeowner' s ,  once on 
their property tax and then again by participating in various benefits put on by Fire Departments 
to cover their costs . 

We have al so been working the past year with the F ire Chiefs from across the state and forging a 
stronger pm1nership .  That partnership has opened up some discussions regarding the ISO ratings 
across our state. In No11h Dakota, we have a disproportionately high number of class 9 fire 
departments .  With proper funding and some increased help from the Insurance Department, these 
departments could move to a class 8. The resulting move would decrease homeowner' s 
premiums by up to 3 0%.  

I do not expect our F ire Chiefs to  be experts in insurance and I know they do  not expect me to  be  
an  expert in fire service. What I can tell you i s  we are building a strong partnership that could 
l ead to more transparent funding for our fire departments ,  lower premiums and better fire 
coverage for our consumers . 

At this point, I would l ike to invite the Fire Chiefs up to share some comments . 

Ultimately, we are one tragedy away from the citizens of North Dakota looking at this i ssue. I t  i s  
my belief we can solve this problem with our proposed budget and provide the funding that has 
been designated and paid by our consumers to the fire service as i t  has always been intended to 
be. 

Conclusion: 

This budget proposes a net reduction of five FTEs,  a reduction of 9 . 5% from our appropriation, 
and allows us to repurpose some FTEs to serve our mission. We would be looking to engage 
with North Dakota consumers on insurance education and do a better job of reaching out to them 
so they understand why insurance is vitally important to a financial ly  successful future. By 
engaging in  that conversation with our consumers , we are also hopeful that we can close the 
insurance knowledge gap that exists in our state. In doing so, we cannot only help consumers 
find the products they need, but also continue to foster a competitive marketplace. 

I would be happy to answer any questions you may have. 
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Fire Districts 2007 payment 2008 paymenl 2009 payment 

Total Premiums (all districts) $306,862,744 $328,770,097 S328, 770,097 

Total Pavments (all districts' $3 100 000 S3 100 000 S3 100 000 

$9,000,000 

$8,000,000 

$7,000,000 

$6,000,000 

$5,000,000 

$4,000,000 

$3,000,000 

$2,000,000 

$1,000,000 

$0 

2007 payment 2008 payment 2009 payment 2010 payment 

• 
Fire District Grants 

2010 payment 201 1 payment 2012 payment 2013 paymenl 

$351 ,089,411  $371,993,873 $396,747,255 $456,634,313 

S3 100.000 $3 100.000 $3 100 000 S3 100 000 

ZOU payment 2012 payment 2013 payment 2014 payment 

2014 paymenl 

$466,161,049 

S7 268 193 
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201S paymenl 2016 payment 

$523,403,441 $545,776,424 

$7 840 603 $7.340 603 

2017 paymenl 

S544,267,88� 

S7 117  781 

2015 payment 2016 payment 2017 payment 



Testimony to the 
Government Operations Division of the North Dakota House Appropriations Committee 
February 28 ,  20 1 9  
Prepared by Brennan Quintus, CEO 
North Dakota Insurance Reserve Fund RE: Senate Bill No. 2010 

Mr. Chairman and members of the Government Operations Division of the House 
Appropriations Committee, my name is Brennan Quintus and I am the CEO of the North Dakota 
Insurance Reserve Fund (NDIRF). The NDIRF is a government self-insurance pool that offers 
liability, automobile, and equipment risk coverage to political subdivisions in North Dakota. 
Over 2 ,550 local government entities have joined the NDIRF as members since 1 986. 

The NDIRF supports giving the ND Insurance Department the opportunity to contract with the 
NDIRF to operate the Fire and Tornado and State Bonding Funds (of which, many political 
subdivisions are members of) as provided in SB 20 1 0 .  While the current Fire and Tornado Fund 
and State Bonding Fund operation is certainly not broken, we hear from NDIRF members 
consistently that there is certainly room for improvement. By leveraging the current NDIRF 
operational model, we feel the NDIRF is in a position to maintain the financial health of both 
funds while improving coverage and service . The NDIRF has a proven track record of success 
over the last 3 3  years, including : 

• Membership which includes all 53 counties, 3 3 8  cities, 1 76 school districts, and roughly 
90-95% of the park districts, fire districts, ambulance districts, and other remaining 
political subdivisions in North Dakota. 

• Extraordinary financial health which has allowed the NDIRF to return over $6 1 .5 mil lion 
back to our members 

• Strong relationships with the ND A Co, NDLC, NDSBA, NDRP A, NDTOA, NDF A, and 
other political subdivision associations and groups which allow for continued feedback 
regarding NDIRF products and service. 

• Strong relationships with the ND local insurance agent community which again allows 
for continuous product improvement and pricing feedback. 

• The NDIRF ' s  focus is on providing the best product and service at the lowest possible 
rate for its members. That focus has turned out outstanding financial results for NDIRF 
members while we consistently receive very positive member feedback. As I told the 
Insurance Commissioner, what we do works and our goal is to put the NDIRF stamp on 
the ND Fire and Tornado and State Bonding Funds.  

Thank you for the opportunity to provide this testimony. I would be pleased to respond to 
questions the Committee may have. 
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Feb rua ry 28, 2019 
House Appropria t ions-Gove rnment Operat ions Div is ion 
SB  2010 
Rep. Vigessa, Cha i rman  

Cha i rman  Vigessa a n d  mem bers o f  the  Comm ittee .  Fo r the reco rd, B l ake Crosby, Executive Di recto r of 
the  No rth Dakota League of C it ies and  rep resent ing the 357 i nco rporated cities in North Da kota . A l so, 
fo r sa ke of fu l l  d i sc losu re, I am a member  of the North Da kota I n surance Reserve Fund Boa rd of 
D i recto rs . 

I a m  he re i n  support of SB  2010 a s  presented by Com missione r  Godfread .  He is to be commended fo r 
h i s  fo rwa rd look ing to the  a dm i n istrat ion cha nges to the State F i re and  To rnado Fund and  the cha nges 
to the d istr i but io ns  i n  the F i re I n s u ra n ce P rem ium Tax. 

The cha nges to the State F i re a n d  To rnado Fund  we re b rought up at the NDLC Annua l  Confe rence in 
Septem be r  of 2018 a nd  was met with rous i ng a pp la use .  Customer  service is a strength of N D I R F  a nd my 
cit ies a re looking fo rwa rd to that sam e  customer  service with the State F i re and To rnado Fund .  

The No rth  Dakota F i re Ch iefs Assoc iat ion i s  a n  affi l iate member  of  the  League a nd we a re i n  fu l l  su pport 
of the  cha nges a s  p roposed to d istri b utions  to fi re departments, fi re d i str icts a nd fi re fighte rs . 

Tha nk  you fo r you r  t ime and  cons ide rati on .  I respectfu l ly ask  fo r a DO PASS on  SB 2010. 

I w i l l  t ry to an swe r a ny q uest ions  you may have . 

( 
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Testimony of Dana Schaar Jahner 

North Dakota Recreation and Park Association 
House Appropriations Committee - Government Operations Division 
Support for SB 2010  

Thursday, February 28, 2019  

Chairman Vigesaa and Members o f  the Committee, my name i s  Dana Schaar Jahn er, 

and I am executive director of the North Dakota Recreation and Park Association (NDRPA) . 

NDRPA represents more than 700 members across the state, including park board 

members and park district staff, and works to advance parks, recreation and conservation 

for an enhanced quality of l ife in North Dakota. 

I am here on behalf of NDRPA to support the concept outlined in Senate Bil l 2 0 1 0  as 

it relates to management of the State Fire and Tornado Fund. 

Many park districts utilize services provided by the North Dakota Insurance Reserve 

Fund (NDIF) and appreciate its commitment to high-quality customer service and 

understanding of parks and recreation activities in North Dakota. NDRPA supports the 

transfer of management of the State Fire and Tornado Fund from the Insurance 

Department to NDIRF because it would streamline services for park districts, allowing 

them to work with one entity to be more efficient in managing their insurance needs.  

Thank you for your time. 

/ 
1 6 0 5  E A S T  C A P I TO L  AV E P O  B O X  1 0 9 1  B I S M A R C K , N O R T H  D A KOTA 5 8 5 0 2  7 0 1 . 3 5 5 . 4 4 5 8  w w w . n d r p a . c o m 



SB 2010 

House Appropriations Committee 

By Jason Catrambone 

February 28, 2019 

Mr. Chairman and members of the committee ,  my name is Jason Catrambone,  Fire Chief for the City 

of Williston. I am currently serving as the President of the North Dakota Fire Chief's Association and 

am also representing that organization. 

I support SB 2010 with the proposed amendment to again equate the fire service funding allocation to 

match the full amount collected as a continuing appropriation. 

The distribution from the premium tax to fire departments has historically been a significant 

component of fire protection funding. The Insurance Premium Tax was established in 1887, before 

North Dakota was a state . The law taxes certain types of insurance premiums to provide funds to 

support local fire department operations and pensions. Originally 100% of the premium tax collected 

was distributed to the fire service . Over time the distribution percentage has varied and we are 

requesting that it be re-established to the full collection amount. 

The need for these funds is a reasonable request and matches the original intent. The fire 

departments statewide have great responsibilities and your support of SB 2010 with the Insurance 

Commissioners amendment will be greatly appreciated. 
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House Appropriat ions-Govern ment Appropriat ions  Com mittee 

Senate B i l l  2010 

By Shawn Welt iko l  

Febru a ry 28, 2019 

M r. Cha i rman and members of the House Appropriat ions-Government Operat ions Divis ion,  my 
n a me is Shawn Welti kol, F i re Ch ief of the Devi l s  Lake Rura l  F i re Department .  

I am request ing you r  support of Senate B i l l  2010 as it appears before you today. The Devi l s  Lake 
Rura l  F i re Depa rtment's a n n ua l  operat ing budget is $ 155,000 which incl udes $ 120,000 from the 
m i l l  l evy and $35,000 from the Insurance P remi um  Tax. Duri ng a normal year, after a l l  operat ing 
expenses, such as $9,000 for gap i n su rance for members, $5,000 for tra i n i ng, and $ 10,000 for 
fue l  a n d  ma intenance of apparatus .  The rema in ing  ba l ance i s  approximately $16,000. The 
rema in ing ba lance is what we app ly to equ ipment rep l acement such as  p rotective gear  ( 10 year 
rep lacement at $2,500 per set), hose (20 yea r repl acement at $150 to $600 per rol l ), a nd  truck 
rep lacement (25 year repl acement at $500,000) .  Therefore, it becomes necessary for ou r  
department to  ra ise add it ion a l  funds  through donat ions, charitab le  gam ing a n d  grants. The 
add it iona l  fund i ng  that our  department wou l d  receive th rough th is legis lat ion is approximately 
$9,500. 

As you are wel l  aware, vol unteerism is decl i n i ng a round  the state .  F i re d epartments, ambu l an ce 
services, a n d  cou nt less other organ izat ions struggle to find  enough people wi l l i ng  to fi l l  these 
needed ro les in ou r  commun it ies .  In a fi re department case we ask people to jo in  our  
department and  vol unteer a m in imum of  6 hours per  month to  tra in ,  ma inta in  equ ipment, and  
operate ou r  department. Then  we ask them to vol unteer add itiona l  t ime to ra ise money 
through raffles and  other fun dra isers so they can h ave the  necessary tool s  to safe ly do  the 
vol unteer work that they a re do ing. 

The i nsurance prem i um tax was i n stituted over 100 years ago to he lp fun d  loca l  fi re 
departments. I ask that you return to ou r  loca l  commun it ies ALL of the funds  they a re paying 
for fi re p rotect ion through the i nsurance prem ium tax. 

Thank  you for you r  cons ideration to i ncrease the a l location to fi re departments in Senate B i l l  
2010 and  mak i ng  i t  a conti n u i ng appropriation .  I am ava i l ab le  for any question s  that you may 
have 
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Testimony to the House Appropriations - Government Operations Division, Feb. 28, 2019, Bismarck, ND . 

G iven by: Robert Knuth, Tra in ing D i rector, North Dakota F irefighter's Association .  

Good Morn ing Cha i rman  Vigesaa and  members of the committee .  My name is Robert Knuth and  I am the 

Tra i n i ng Di recto r of the North Dakota Fi refighter's Association .  I stand before you today in support of Senate 

B i l l  2010 as we l l  as the previous test imony heard from the I nsura nce Commissioner and the ND F i re Chiefs 

Associat ion .  

I n  North  Dakota Century Code, Chapter 18-03, The North Da kota Fi refighter's Association is tasked with 

Deve lop ing and  adopting a statewide fi re education and tra in ing p lan; Coord inating fi re service tra in i ng at a l l  

l eve l s; a nd estab l ish ing procedures t o  govern the certification process for fi refighter tra i n i ng. NDFA is 

nat iona l ly acc red ited through the F i re Service Professiona l  Qua l ifications System, common ly refe rred to as 

the Pro Boa rd® . 

NDFA is primari ly funded by the I nsura nce Tax D istribut ion fund .  Currently the NDFA receives 5 .5% of the 

d i sbursement .  As we a re a non-profit, cha rita b le, educationa l  501(c) (3) organization, NDFA re l ies heavily on 

these funds, a s  does every fi re department. Our  m ission is to promote the safety and welfa re of the 

Associat ion members by provid i ng a coord i nated tra i n i ng service a nd sta nda rd ized certification program 

based on  nationa l  sta ndards .  A l l  o rgan ized fi re departments ac ross the state belong to the North Dakota 

Fi refighter's Association .  The Association hosts an annua l  fi re school and offers regiona l  fi re schools giving 

fi refighters an o pportun ity to practice old ski l l s  and lea rn new sk i l l s  that a re required for the ever-changing 

demands p laced on them .  Al l o u r  i nstructors a re contract emp loyees who vo lunteer their t ime to tra in  and 

assist the departments requesting tra in ing .  

Along with the appropriated funds, NDFA co l lects d ues of $ 100.00 annua l ly from each F ire Department. 
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Over the past severa l  yea rs we have seen a dec l ine in ava i lab le grant fund ing which has  caused us to re ly 

heavi ly on our  a ppropriated fund ing. Our  goa l is to m in im ize the cost to departments fo r the vita l tra i n i ng we 

provide .  Without these funds NDFA cou ld  be forced to charge depa rtments for these c lasses which, in tu rn, 

wou ld p lace more of a fi nanc ia l  burden on departments who a re trying to update equ ipment, rep lace 

outdated apparatus, o r  just paying fuel a nd uti l ity b i l ls .  Having NDFA provide th is tra i n i ng at l itt le to no cost 

provides these departments the opportun ity to attend re levant, u p  to date, and essentia l tra i n i ng without 

affect ing the ir  other budgeta ry prio rities. 

In closing I wish to thank  the committee for a l lowing me to present this testimony and  aga i n  vo ice ou r  support 

of Senate B i l l  2010 a s  presented by the I nsura nce Commiss ioner and  wou ld we lcome the cha nce to answer 

a ny questions you may have . Thank  you . 
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I n s u rance Commiss ioner, i nc lud ing  I nsurance Tax Payments to F i re Departments - Budget No.  401 
Senate B i l l  No.  201 0 
Base Level Fund ing  Changes 

Executive Budget Recommendation Senate Version Senate Changes to Executive Budget 
Increase (Decrease) - Executive Budget 

FTE General Other FTE General  Other FTE General 
Positions Fund Funds Total Position Fund Funds Total Positions Fund Other Funds Total 

201 9-21 Biennium Base Level 46.00 $0 $25,793,430 $25,793,430 46.00 $0 $25, 793,430 $25,793,430 0.00 $0 $0 $0 
201 9-21 Ongoing Funding Changes 

Base payrol l  changes ($ 1 27 ,688) ($ 1 27 ,688) $ 1 65,007 $1 65,007 $292 ,695 $292,695 
Salary increase 353, 324 353, 324 2 1 8, 1 70 2 1 8, 1 70 ( 1 35, 1 54) ( 1 35, 1 54) 
Health insurance increase 1 66 ,279 1 66,279 1 82 ,946 1 82 ,946 1 6,667 1 6,667 
Retirement contribution increase 42 ,801 42 ,801 0 (42 ,80 1 )  (42 ,80 1 )  
U nderfund salaries and wages ( 1 07,990) ( 1 07,990) 0 1 07 ,990 1 07, 990 
Add 1 FTE consumer assistance outreach 1 .00 29,824 29, 824 1 . 00 1 79 ,71 1 1 79 ,7 1 1 1 49 ,887 1 49,887 
coord inator position 
Add 1 FTE high risk pool and health care 0 1 .00 202 ,791 202 ,791  1 . 00 202 ,791 202,791 
reform coord inator 
Transfer admin istration of the fire and (3 .00) (6 1 0, 352) (6 1 0 ,352) (3.00) (6 1 0, 352) (6 1 0 , 352) 0 
tornado fund and bonding fund to the 
insurance reserve fund 
Contract with the insurance reserve fund for 660,804 660, 804 0 (660,804) (660,804) 
fund admin istration 
Transfer the boi ler i nspection program to 0 (4. 00) (753, 365) (753, 365) (4 .00) (753, 365) (753, 365) 
DEQ 
Reduce fund ing for operati ng expenses, (636,62 1 )  (636,62 1 )  (637,255) (637,255) (634) (634) 
inc lud ing travel ,  information technology, and 
professional services 
Add fund ing for Microsoft Office 365 24, 1 53 24, 1 53 24, 1 53 24 , 1 53 0 
l icensing expenses 
Provide a conti nu ing appropriation for fire 0 ( 1 5 ,064,086) ( 1 5 ,064,086) ( 1 5 ,064,086) ( 1 5 ,064,086) 
d istrict and F irefighter's Association 
payments 
Total ongoing fund ing changes (2. 00) $0 ($205,466) ($205,466) (5.00) $0 ($ 1 6,092,280) ($ 1 6 ,092, 280) (3.00) $0 ($ 1 5 ,886,8 1 4) ($ 1 5,886, 8 1 4) 

One-time funding items 
No one-time fund ing items $0 $0 $0 
Total one-time fund ing changes 0 .00 $0 $0 $0 0 .00 $0 $0 $0 0.00 $0 $0 $0 
Total Changes to Base Level Funding (2 .00) $0 ($205,466) ($205,466) (5.00) $0 ($ 1 6 ,092,280) ($ 1 6,092,280) (3. 00) $0 ($1 5,886 ,8 14) ($ 1 5 ,886, 8 14) 

201 9-21 Total Funding 44.00 $0 $25,587, 964 $25 ,587, 964 41 . 00 $0 $9,701 , 1 50 $9,701 , 1 50 (3. 00) $0 ($ 1 5 ,886, 8 1 4) ($ 1 5,886,8 14) 



Other Sections for Insurance Commissioner, inc luding Insurance Tax Payments to Fire 
Departments - Budget No. 401 

Unsatisfied judgment fund 

Insurance tax d istribution fund 

Boi ler inspection program 

Fees 

Insurance Commiss ioner's salary 

State fi re and tornado fund 

Fund admin istration 

Executive Budget Recommendation 
Section 4 would des ignate $28,390 from the state 
unsatisfied judgment fund to pay unsatisfied judgment 
fund admin istrative expenses. 
Section 2 would designate $ 1 4, 1 1 3 ,086 for payments to 
fi re departments and $951 ,000 for payments to the North 
Dakota F i refighter's Association .  

Section 9 would amend North Dakota Century Code 
Section 26. 1 -0 1 -07 re lati ng to fees chargeable by the 
Insurance Commissioner to adjust fees charged to 
county mutual insurance companies and benevolent 
societies. 
Section 5 wou ld provide the statutory changes necessary 
to increase the Insurance Commiss ioner's salary to 
$ 1 1 0,001 beg inn ing J u ly 1 ,  201 9, and $1 1 2 ,201 
beg inn ing Ju ly 1 ,  2020. 
Section 3 would designate $660,804 from the state fi re 
and tornado fund to pay state fi re and tornado fund 
admin istrative expenses and $893,509 from the state fi re 
and tornado fund to pay boi ler inspection program 
expenses. 
Sections 6,  7 ,  and 8 would provide statutory changes 
necessary to al low the Insurance Commissioner to 
contract with the insurance reserve fund for 
admin istration of the state fi re and tornado fund and the 
state bonding fund .  

Senate Version 
Section 2 designates $29,703 from the state unsatisfied 
judgment fund to pay unsatisfied judgment fund 
admin istrative expenses. 
Sections 3 ,  4 ,  5 ,  and 9 provide statutory changes 
necessary for the Insurance Commissioner to calculate 
the amounts due to fire d istricts and the North Dakota 
F i refighter's Association and provide continu ing 
appropriations authority to d istribute the amounts due.  
Sections 6 and 15 provide statutory changes necessary to 
transfer the boi ler inspection program to the Department 
of Environmenta l Qual ity. Section 16 provides a 
conti ngent effective date for the transfer. 
Section 7 amends Section 26. 1 -0 1 -07 re lating to fees 
chargeable by the Insurance Commissioner to adjust fees 
charged to county mutual insurance companies and 
benevolent societies .  

Section 8 provides the statutory changes necessary to 
increase the Insurance Commissioner's salary to 
$1 07,885 beg inn ing J u ly 1 ,  2019 ,  and $1 1 1 , 1 22 beginn ing 
Ju ly 1 ,  2020. 
Section removed. 

Sections 10 through 14 provide statutory changes 
necessary to a l low the Insurance Commissioner to 
contract with the insurance reserve fund for admin istration 
of the state fi re and tornado fund and the state bonding 
fund .  The sections also provide continu ing appropriation 
authority from the funds to pay contractual fund 
admin istration expenses. 
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I nsurance Comm issioner, i nc lud ing  I nsurance Tax Payments to F i re Departments - Budget No.  401 
Senate B i l l  No.  201 0 
Base Level Fund ing Changes 

Executive Budget Recommendation Senate Version Senate Changes to Executive Budget 
Increase (Decrease) - Executive Budget 

FTE General Other FTE General Other FTE General 
Positions Fund Funds Total Position Fund Funds Total Positions Fund Other Funds Total 

201 9-21 Biennium Base Level 46.00 $0 $25,793,430 $25,793,430 46 .00 $0 $25,793,430 $25,793,430 0 .00 $0 $0 $0 
201 9-21 Ongoing Funding Changes 

Base payro l l  changes ($ 1 27 ,688) ($1 27,688) $ 1 65,007 $ 1 65,007 $292 ,695 $292,695 
Salary increase 353,324 353,324 2 1 8, 1 70 2 1 8, 1 70 ( 1 35, 1 54) ( 1 35, 1 54) 
Health insurance increase 1 66 ,279 1 66 ,279 1 82 ,946 1 82 ,946 1 6,667 1 6,667 
Reti rement contribution increase 42,801 42, 801  0 (42 ,80 1 )  (42 ,80 1 )  
U nderfund salaries and wages ( 1 07 ,990) ( 1 07,990) 0 1 07 ,990 1 07 ,990 
Add 1 FTE consumer assistance outreach 1 .00 29, 824 29,824 1 .00 1 79,7 1 1 1 79 ,7 1 1 1 49 ,887 1 49,887 
coord inator position 
Add 1 FTE high risk pool and health care 0 1 . 00 202 ,791 202 ,791  1 . 00 202 ,791 202,791 
reform coordinator 
Transfer admin istration of the fi re and (3.00) (6 1 0 ,352) (6 1 0,352) (3. 00) (6 1 0,352) (6 1 0,352) 0 
tornado fund and bonding fund to the 
insurance reserve fund 
Contract with the insurance reserve fund for 660, 804 660,804 0 (660,804) (660,804) 
fund admin istration 
Transfer the boiler inspection program to 0 (4 . 00) (753, 365) (753,365) (4 .00) (753,365) (753, 365) 
DEQ 
Reduce funding for operati ng expenses, (636 ,62 1 )  (636,62 1 )  (637 ,255) (637,255) (634) (634) 
including trave l ,  information technology, and 
professional services 
Add funding for M icrosoft Office 365 24, 1 53 24, 1 53 24, 1 53 24, 1 53 0 
l icensing expenses 
Provide a continu ing appropriation for fire 0 ( 1 5 ,064,086) ( 1 5 ,064,086) ( 1 5 ,064 ,086) ( 1 5 ,064 ,086) 
d istrict and Fi refighter's Association 
payments 
Tota l ongoing funding changes (2 . 00) $0 ($205 ,466) ($205,466) (5.00) $0 ($ 1 6,092,280) ($ 1 6 ,092,280) (3. 00) $0 ($ 1 5,886 ,8 14) ($ 1 5 ,886,8 14) 

One-time funding items 
No one-time funding items $0 $0 $0 
Total one-time funding changes 0 .00 $0 $0 $0 0 .00 $0 $0 $0 0.00 $0 $0 $0 
Total Changes to Base Level Funding (2 .00) $0 ($205,466) ($205,466) (5.00) $0 ($ 1 6 ,092,280) ($ 1 6 ,092,280) (3. 00) $0 ($ 1 5,886, 8 1 4) ($ 1 5, 886, 8 14) 

201 9-21 Total Funding 44.00 $0 $25, 587, 964 $25,587, 964 41 . 00 $0 $9, 701 , 1 50 $9,701 , 1 50 (3. 00) $0 ($ 1 5,886, 8 1 4) ($ 1 5, 886,8 14) 



Other Sections for Insurance Commissioner, inc luding I nsurance Tax Payments to F ire 
Departments - Budget No.  401 

Unsatisfied judgment fund 

Insurance tax d istribution fund 

Boi ler inspection program 

Fees 

Insurance Commissioner's salary 

State fi re and tornado fund 

Fund admin istration 

Executive Budget Recommendation 
Section 4 would designate $28,390 from the state 
unsatisfied judgment fund to pay unsatisfied judgment 
fund admin istrative expenses. 
Section 2 would designate $ 1 4, 1 1 3 ,086 for payments to 
fi re departments and $951 , 000 for payments to the North 
Dakota Firefighter's Association.  

Section 9 would amend North Dakota Century Code 
Section 26. 1 -0 1 -07 re lating to fees chargeable by the 
Insurance Commissioner to adjust fees charged to 
county mutual insurance companies and benevolent 
societies. 
Section 5 would provide the statutory changes necessary 
to increase the Insurance Commissioner's salary to 
$ 1 1 0,001 beginn ing Ju ly 1 ,  201 9, and $1 1 2 ,201 
beginn ing Ju ly 1 ,  2020. 
Section 3 would designate $660,804 from the state fi re 
and tornado fund to pay state fi re and tornado fund 
admin istrative expenses and $893,509 from the state fi re 
and tornado fund to pay boi ler inspection program 
expenses. 
Sections 6 ,  7 ,  and 8 would provide statutory changes 
necessary to al low the Insurance Commissioner to 
contract with the insurance reserve fund for 
admin istration of the state fi re and tornado fund and the 
state bonding fund. 

Senate Vers ion 
Section 2 designates $29,703 from the state unsatisfied 
judgment fund to pay unsatisfied judgment fund 
admin istrative expenses. 
Sections 3 ,  4, 5, and 9 provide statutory changes 
necessary for the Insurance Commissioner to calculate 
the amounts due to fi re d istricts and the North Dakota 
F i refighter's Association and provide continu ing 
appropriations authority to d istribute the amounts due. 
Sections 6 and 15 provide statutory changes necessary to 
transfer the boi ler inspection program to the Department 
of Environmental Qual ity. Section 16 provides a 
contingent effective date for the transfer. 
Section 7 amends Section 26. 1 -0 1 -07 relating to fees 
chargeable by the Insurance Commissioner to adjust fees 
charged to county mutual insurance companies and 
benevolent societies. 

Section 8 provides the statutory changes necessary to 
increase the Insurance Commissioner's salary to 
$ 1 07,885 beginn ing J u ly 1 ,  201 9 ,  and $ 1 1 1 , 1 22 beginn ing 
J u ly 1 ,  2020. 
Section removed. 

Sections 10 through 14 provide statutory changes 
necessary to al low the Insurance Commissioner to 
contract with the insurance reserve fund for admin istration 
of the state fi re and tornado fund and the state bonding 
fund.  The sections also provide continu ing appropriation 
authority from the funds to pay contractua l  fund 
admin istration expenses. 
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$ 6,474.08 $ 5,741.00 $ (733.08) 35 ' 8 . $ 8,892.00 ($8,796.96) ($17,593.92) 

$ 6,137.30 $ 4,824.00 $ ( 1,313 .30) 33 $ 73,647.60 $ 57,888.00 ($15,759.60) ($31,519. 20) 
Venjohn $ 5,715.07 $ 5,741.00 $ 25.93 31 $ 68,580.84 $ 68,892.00 $311 .16 $622.32 
Butz $ 4,045.00 $ 3,464.00 $ (581.00) 21 $ 48,540.00 $ 41,568.00 ($6,972.00) ($13,944.00) 
Voegele $ 4,400.00 $ 4,824.00 $ 424.00 11 $ 52,800.00 $ 57,888.00 $5,088.00 $10,176.00 
Fischer $ 6,497.40 $ 5,741.00 $ (756.40) 11 $ 77,968.80 $ 68,892.00 ($9,076.80) ($18, 153.60) 

Pittman $ 5,838.55 $ 5,741.00 $ (97.55) 10 $ 70,062.60 $ 68,892.00 ($1, 170. 60) ($2,341. 20) 

Aufenthie $ 5,190.82 $ 5,741.00 $ 550.18 9 $ 62,289.84 $ 68,892.00 $6,602.16 $13,204.32 
Ba rtuska $ 6,593.79 $ 6,832.00 $ 238.21 8 $ 79,125 .48 $ 81,984.00 $2,858.52 $5,717.04 
Tibor $ 3,636.00 $ 4,824.00 $ 1,188.00 8 $ 43,632.00 $ 57,888.00 $14,256.00 $28,512.00 
Brockman $ 3,899.58 $ 4,824.00 $ 924.42 8 $ 46,794.96 $ 57,888.00 $11,093.04 $22,186.08 
Ost $ 3,903.00 $ 4,088.00 $ 185.00 8 $ 46,836.00 $ 49,056.00 $2,220.00 $4,440.00 
Feldman $ 2,773.34 $ 3,464.00 $ 690.66 8 $ 33,280.08 $ 41,568.00 $8,287.92 $16,575.84 
Schulz $ 6,036.00 $ 6,832.00 $ 796.00 7 $ 72,432.00 $ 81,984.00 $9,552.00 $19,104.00 
Nelson $ 6,400.00 $ 6,832.00 $ 432.00 7 $ 76,800.00 $ 81,984.00 $5,184.00 $10,368.00 
Seifert $ 5,730.92 $ 5,741.00 $ 10.08 6 $ 68,771.04 $ 68,892.00 $120.96 $241.92 
Kelsch $ 4,738.00 $ 5,741.00 $ 1,003.00 5 $ 56,8S6.00 $ 68,892.00 $12,036.00 $24,072.00 
Offerman $ 3,206.67 $ 3,464.00 $ 257.33 5 $ 38,480.04 $ 41,568.00 $3,087.96 $6,175.92 
Kriege $ 5,292.00 $ 5,741.00 $ 449.00 4 $ 63,504.00 $ 68,892.00 $5,388.00 $10,776.00 
Schneider $ 2,600.00 $ 2,961.00 $ 361.00 1 $ 31,200.00 $ 35,532.00 $4,332.00 $8,664.00 
Midd lestead $ 6,400.00 $ 6,832.00 $ 432.00 1 $ 76,800.00 $ 81,984.00 $5,184.00 $10,368.00 
Volk $ 4,824.00 $ 4,824.00 1 $ 51,000.00 $ 57,888.00 $6,888.00 $13,776.00 
Hend rickson $ 4,850.00 $ 5,741.00 $ 891.00 1 $ 58,200.00 $ 68,892.00 $10,692.00 $21,384.00 
Kopp $ 5,100.00 $ 5,741.00 $ 641.00 1 $ 61,200.00 $ 68,892.00 $7,692.00 $15,384.00 
Hartley $ 4,029.00 $ 4,824.00 $ 795.00 1 $ 48,348.00 $ 57,888.00 $9,540.00 $19,080.00 
Holga rd $ 2,860.00 $ 2,961.00 $ 101.00 1 $ 32,170.32 $ 35,532.00 $3,361.68 $6,723.36 

$ 183,998.88 

I 



More than 3vrs of Service 
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$ 5,715.07 $ 5,741 .00 $ 25.93 31 $ 68,580.84 $ 68,892.00 $ 311.16 $ 622.32 

$ 4,400.00 $ 4,824.00 $ 424.00 11 $ 52,800.00 $ 57,888.00 $ 5,088.00 $ 10,176.00 

e $ 5,190.82 $ 5,741.00 $ 550.18 9 $ 62,289.84 $ 68,892.00 $ 6,602.16 $ 13,204.32 

Bartuska $ 6,593.79 $ 6,832.00 $ 238.21 8 $ 79,125.48 $ 81,984.00 $ 2,858.52 $ 5,717.04 

Tibor $ 3,636.00 $ 4,824.00 $ 1,188.00 8 $ 43,632.00 $ 57,888.00 $ 14,256.00 $ 28,512.00 

Brockman $ 3,899.58 $ 4,824.00 $ 924.42 8 $ 46,794.96 $ 57,888.00 $ 11,093.04 $ 22,186.08 

Ost $ 3,903 .00 $ 4,088.00 $ 185 .00 8 $ 46,836.00 $ 49,056.00 $ 2,220.00 $ 4,440.00 

Feldman $ 2,773.34 $ 3,464.00 $ 690.66 8 $ 33,280.08 $ 41,568.00 $ 8,287.92 $ 16,575.84 

Schulz $ 6,036.00 $ 6,832.00 $ 796.00 7 $ 72,432.00 $ 81,984.00 $ 9,552.00 $ 19,104.00 

Nelson $ 6,400.00 $ 6,832.00 $ 432.00 7 $ 76,800.00 $ 81,984.00 $ 5,184.00 $ 10,368.00 

Seifert $ 5,730.92 $ 5,741 .00 $ 10.08 6 $ 68,771.04 $ 68,892.00 $ 120.96 $ 241.92 

Kelsch $ 4,738.00 $ 5,741.00 $ 1,003.00 5 $ 56,856.00 $ 68,892.00 $ 12,036.00 $ 24,072.00 

Offerman $ 3,206.67 $ 3,464.00 $ 257.33 5 $ 38,480.04 $ 41,568.00 $ 3,087.96 $ 6,175.92 

11 rie e $ 5, 92.00 $ 5,741 .00 $ 449.00 4 $ 63,504.00 $ 68,892.00 $ 5,388.00 $ 10,776.00 

$ 172,171.44 

More than Svrs of Service 
a t Nilrn , H  1t M 1t 11 Ill 11n M ,n :hly lff 11 e 1 111'5 � 11 Ice Current Annual Mid Point Annual Difference Blennleum Impact 

Venjohn $ 5,715.07 $ 5,741 .00 $ 25.93 31 $ 68,580.84 $ 68,892.00 $ 311.16 $ 622.32 

Voegele $ 4,400.00 $ 4,824.00 $ 424.00 11  $ 52,800.00 $ 57,888.00 $ 5,088.00 $ 10,176.00 

Aufenthie $ 5,190.82 $ 5,741.00 $ 550.18 9 $ 62,289.84 $ 68,892.00 $ 6,602.16 $ 13,204.32 

Bartuska $ 6,593.79 $ 6,832.00 $ 238.21 8 $ 79,125.48 $ 81,984.00 $ 2,858.52 $ 5,717.04 

Tibor $ 3,636.00 $ 4,824.00 $ 1,188.00 8 $ 43,632.00 $ 57,888.00 $ 14,256.00 $ 28,512.00 

Brockman $ 3,899.58 $ 4,824.00 $ 924.42 8 $ 46,794.96 $ 57,888.00 $ 11,093.04 $ 22,186.08 

Ost $ 3,903.00 $ 4,088.00 $ 185 .00 8 $ 46,836.00 $ 49,056.00 $ 2,220.00 $ 4,440.00 

Feldman $ 2,773.34 $ 3,464.00 $ 690.66 8 $ 33,280.08 $ 41,568.00 $ 8,287.92 $ 16,575.84 

Schulz $ 6,036.00 $ 6,832.00 $ 796.00 7 $ 72,432.00 $ 81,984.00 $ 9,552.00 $ 19,104.00 

Nelson $ 6,400.00 $ 6,832.00 $ 432.00 7 $ 76,800.00 $ 81,984.00 $ 5,184.00 $ 10,368.00 

Seifert $ 5,730.92 $ 5,741.00 $ 10.08 6 $ 68,771.04 $ 68,892.00 $ 120.96 $ 241.92 

$ , 7. 
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$ 5,715 .07 $ 5,741.00 $ 25.93 31 $ 68,580.84 $ 68,892.00 $ 311.16 $ 622.32 

Voegele $ 4,400.00 $ 4,824.00 $ 424.00 11  $ 52,800.00 $ 57,888.00 $ 5,088.00 $ 10,176.00 

Aufenthie $ 5,190.82 $ 5,741 .00 $ 550.18 9 $ 62,289.84 $ 68,892.00 $ 6,602.16 $ 13,204.32 

Bartuska $ 6,593.79 $ 6,832.00 $ 238.21 8 $ 79,125.48 $ 81,984.00 $ 2,858.52 $ 5,717.04 

Tibor $ 3,636.00 $ 4,824.00 $ 1,188.00 8 $ 43,632.00 $ 57,888.00 $ 14,256.00 $ 28,512.00 

Brockman $ 3,899.58 $ 4,824.00 $ 924.42 8 $ 46,794.96 $ 57,888.00 $ 11,093 .04 $ 22,186.08 

Ost $ 3,903.00 $ 4,088.00 $ 185 .00 8 $ 46,836.00 $ 49,056.00 $ 2,220.00 $ 4,440.00 

Feldman $ 2,773.34 $ 3,464.00 $ 690.66 8 $ 33,280.08 $ 41,568.00 $ 8,287.92 $ 16,575.84 

Schulz $ 6,036.00 $ 6,832.00 $ 796.00 7 $ 72,432.00 $ 81,984.00 $ 9,552.00 $ 19,104.00 

Nelson $ 6,400.00 $ 6,832.00 $ 432.00 7 $ 76,800.00 $ 81,984.00 $ 5,184.00 $ 10,368.00 

Seifert $ 5,730.92 $ 5,741.00 $ 10.08 6 $ 68,771.04 $ 68,892.00 $ 120.96 $ 241.92 

Kelsch $ 4,738.00 $ 5,741 .00 $ 1,003.00 5 $ 56,856.00 $ 68,892.00 $ 12,036.00 $ 24,072.00 

Offerman $ 3,206.67 $ 3,464.00 $ 257.33 5 $ 38,480.04 $ 41,568.00 $ 3,087.96 $ 6,175.92 

Kriege $ 5,292.00 $ 5,741 .00 $ 449.00 4 $ 63,504.00 $ 68,892.00 $ 5,388.00 $ 10,776.00 

Schneider $ 2,600.00 $ 2,961 .00 $ 361.00 1 $ 31,200.00 $ 35,532.00 $ 4,332.00 $ 8,664.00 

Midd lestead $ 6,400.00 $ 6,832.00 $ 432.00 1 $ 76,800.00 $ 81,984.00 $ 5,184.00 $ 10,368.00 

Volk $ 4,824.00 $ 4,824.00 1 $ 51,000.00 $ 57,888.00 $ 6,888.00 $ 13,776.00 

Hendrickson $ 4,850.00 $ 5,741.00 $ 891 .00 1 $ 58,200.00 $ 68,892.00 $ 10,692.00 $ 21,384.00 

Kopp $ 5,100.00 $ 5,741.00 $ 641 .00 1 $ 61,200.00 $ 68,892.00 $ 7,692.00 $ 15,384.00 

Hartley $ 4,029.00 $ 4,824.00 $ 795 .00 1 $ 48,348.00 $ 57,888.00 $ 9,540.00 $ 19,080.00 

Holgard $ 2,860.00 $ 2,961 .00 $ 101 .00 1 $ 32,170.32 $ 35,532.00 $ 3,361.68 $ 6,723.36 

$ 267,550.80 
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Prepared by the North Da kota 
I nsurance Department 

March 1 3 , 20 1 9 

PROPOSED AM E N D M E NTS TO E N G ROSSE D  SE NATE B ILL  NO.  201 0 

Page 1 ,  l i ne 9 ,  after the semico lo n ,  i nsert "to a mend a nd reenact subd iv is ion c of 
subsect ion 8 of sect ion 26 . 1 -04-03 of the N o rth Dakota Century Code ,  re lat ing to 
i nsurance rebates ;  to amend and  reenact subsect ion 2 of sect ion 26 . 1 -04-06 of 
the North Dakota Centu ry Code ,  re lat i ng to i nsu rance rebates ;  and to amend and 
reenact subsect ion 2 of sect ion 26 . 1 -25- 1 6 of the North Dakota Century Code ,  
re lat ing to i nsu rance rebates ; "  

Page 1 3 , after l i ne  2 1 , i nsert :  

S ECTI O N  1 5. AM E N D M E NT. S u bd ivis ion  c o f  subsect ion 8 of sect ion 26 . 1 -04-
03 of the No rth Dakota Centu ry Code is a mended a nd reenacted as fo l lows : 

8 .  Rebates .  

c .  Notwithstand i ng  any other  p rovis ion  i n  th is  subsect io n ,  i f  the cost 
does not exceed an aggregate reta i l  va l ue  of one hund red do l l a rs 
per person per year ,  an  i nsu rance prod ucer  may g ive a g ift ,  p rize ,  
p ro motiona l  a rticl e ,  l ogo  merchand ise ,  mea l ,  o r  enterta i nment 
act ivity d i rectly o r  i nd i rectly to a person i n  connect ion with 
marketi ng ,  p ro moti ng , or advert is ing the bus iness .  As used in th is  
subd iv is io n ,  "person" means the named insured , po l i cy owner ,  o r  
p rospect ive c l ient o r  t he  spouse o f  any  of these ind iv id ua ls ,  bu t  the 
term does not i nc lude a certif icate ho lder, ch i ld ,  o r  employee of the 
named i nsu red , po l i cy owner ,  or p rospect ive c l ient .  S u bject to the 
l im its of th is  subd iv is io n ,  an  i nsu ra nce producer  may g ive a g ift card 
fo r specific mercha nd ise o r  serv ices such as a mea l ,  gaso l i ne ,  o r  
ca r wash  b ut may not g i ve cas h ,  a cash ca rd ,  a ny fo rm o f  cu rrency, 
or any refund or d iscount  in p re m i u m .  An i nsurance prod ucer may 
not cond it ion  the g iv ing of a g ift , p rize , promotion a rt ic le , logo 
merchand ise ,  mea l ,  or enterta i n ment act ivity on  obta i n ing a quote 
or a contract of i nsu ra nce . Notwithstand ing the l im itat ion in th i s  
subd iv is ion ,  a n  i nsu ra nce p rod ucer  may make a donat ion to  a 
nonprofit o rgan izat io n that i s  exempt from federa l  taxat ion u nde r  
I nterna l  Revenue  Code sect ion 50 1 (c)(3 )  [26 U . S . C .  50 1 (c)(3 )] i n  
any amount as  l ong  as  t he  d onat ion i s  not g iven as an  i nd ucement 
to obta i n  a quote or 3 contract of i n su rance . 

S ECTION 1 6 . AM E N D M E NT. S ubsect ion 2 of sect ion 26 . 1 -04-06 of the North Dakota 
Centu ry Code is  amended and  reenacted as fo l lows : 

1 
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2 .  Notwithstand ing any other  provis ion i n  th is  sect ion ,  if the cost does not exceed 
an aggregate reta i l  va lue of one hund red do l l a rs per person per yea r, a n  
i nsura nce p roducer may g ive a g ift , p rize , p romot iona l  a rt ic le , logo merchand ise ,  
mea l ,  o r  enterta i nment act ivity d i rect ly  o r  i nd i rect ly to a person i n  connect ion with 
market ing , p romoti ng , o r  adve rt is i ng  the bus iness .  As used in th i s  subsection ,  
"person "  means the named insured , po l i cy owner, o r  p rospect ive c l ient o r  the 
spouse of any of these ind ividua ls ,  b ut the term does not i nc l ude  a certif icate 
ho lder, ch i l d , or emp loyee of the named i nsu red , po l icy owner, or p rospect ive 
c l ient .  S u bject to the l im its of th is  subsect ion , a n  i nsu rance p rod ucer may g ive a 
g ift ca rd for specific merchand ise o r  services such as  a mea l ,  gaso l i ne ,  o r  ca r 
wash but  may not g ive cash ,  a cash  ca rd ,  any  fo rm of cu rrency ,  o r  any refund o r  
d iscou nt i n  p rem i um .  An i nsurance p rod ucer may no t  cond it io n  t he  g iv i ng  o f  a 
g ift , p rize , p romotiona l  a rt ic le , logo merchand ise ,  mea l ,  o r  enterta i nment act ivity 
on obta i n i ng  a quote or a contract of i nsu rance . Notwithstand i ng  the l im itat i on  i n  
th is  subsect ion ,  an  i nsurance p roducer  may  make a donat ion t o  a nonp rofit 
o rgan izat ion that is  exempt from fed e ra l  taxat ion under  I nterna l  Revenue Code 
sect ion 50 1 (c)(3) [26 U .S .C .  50 1 (c)(3 )] i n  any amount as  long as  the donat ion is  
not  g iven as  an  i nducement to obta i n  a quote or 3 contract of  i nsu rance . 

SECTION 1 7 . AM ENDMENT. Subsect ion 2 of sect ion 26 . 1 -25- 1 6 of the North Dakota 
Century Code is amended and reenacted as fo l lows : 

2 .  Notwithstand i ng a n y  other  p rovision i n  th i s  sect io n ,  if t h e  cost does not exceed 
an aggregate reta i l  va lue  of one hund red do l l a rs per person per  yea r, a n  
i nsurance p roducer may g ive a g ift , p rize , p romot iona l  a rt ic le , logo merchand ise ,  
mea l ,  o r  enterta i nment act ivity d i rect ly  o r  i nd i rect ly  to a person i n  con nect ion with 
ma rketin g ,  p romoti ng , o r  advert is ing the bus iness .  As used in th i s  subsection ,  
"person "  means the named i nsured , po l icy owner ,  o r  p rospect ive c l i ent o r  the 
spouse of any of these ind ivi dua ls ,  but the term does not i nc l ude  a certif icate 
ho lder, ch i l d , or emp loyee of the named i nsured , po l icy owne r, or p rospect ive 
c l ient .  S u bject to the l im its of th is  subsect ion ,  a n  i nsu rance p rod ucer may g ive a 
g ift ca rd for specific merchand ise o r  services such as  a mea l ,  gaso l i ne ,  o r  ca r 
wash but  may not g ive cash ,  a cash ca rd ,  any  fo rm of cu rrency ,  o r  any refund o r  
d i scou nt i n  p rem ium .  An i nsurance p rod ucer  may no t  cond it io n  the g iv ing o f  a 
g ift , p rize , p romotiona l  a rt ic le ,  logo merchand ise , mea l ,  o r  enterta i nment act ivity 
on obta i n i ng  a quote or a contract of i nsu rance . Notwithstand i ng the l im itat ion i n  
t h i s  subsect ion ,  an  i nsurance p roducer may  make a donat ion t o  a nonp rofit 
o rgan izat ion that is  exempt from fede ra l  taxatio n  under  I nterna l  Revenue Code 
sect ion 50 1 (c)(3) [26 U .S .C .  50 1 (c) (3)] i n  any amount as  long as  the donat io n is  
not  g iven as  an inducement to obta i n  a quote or 3 contract of  i nsu ra nce . 

Page 1 3 , l i ne 22 ,  rep lace " 1 5" with " 1 8" 

Page 1 3 , l ine 23,  rep lace " 1 6" with " 1 9" 
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• Ren u m ber  accord i ng ly  

3 



• Prepared by the North Dakota 
I nsurance Department 

March 1 3 , 20 1 9 

PROPOSE D  AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSE D  SENATE B ILL NO.  201 0 

Page 1 ,  l i ne 1 0 , remove "and" 

Page 1 ,  l i ne 1 1 ,  after "date" ,  i nsert " ;  and to declare an emergency" 

Page 1 3 , after l i ne 28 ,  i nsert :  

S ECTION 1 7 . EMERGENCY. Sections 1 0 , 1 1 ,  1 2 , 1 3 , and 14 of th is Act are 
dec lared to be an emergency measure .  

Ren umber accord i ng ly 

1 
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Prepared by the North Dakota 
I nsurance Department 

February 28 ,  20 1 9  

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSE D  SENATE BILL NO.  201 0 

Page 9 ,  l i ne 1 4 ,  rep lace "state fi re and tornado" with "genera l "  

Renumber accord i ng ly 



Prepared by the North Dakota 
I nsu rance Depa rtment 

Febru a ry 2 8 ,  20 1 9 

PROPOS ED AM E N D M E NTS TO E N G ROSS E D  SENATE B I L L  N O .  201 0 

Page 9 ,  l i ne  1 4 , replace "state fi re and to rnado" with "general" 

Ren u m ber accord ingly 

Moving the Boiler Inspection program to DEQ, this would clarify that all funds collected 
by the Boiler Inspectors and the funds required to operate the program would go into 
and out of the general fund. 

I 



• Prepared by the North Da kota 
Insurance Department 

March 1 3 , 20 1 9 

PROPOS ED AM E N D M E NTS TO E N G ROSS E D  SE NATE B ILL  NO.  201 0 

Page 1 ,  l ine 1 0 , remove "and"  

Page 1 ,  l ine 1 1 ,  after "date " ,  insert " ;  and  to  decla re a n  emergency" 

Page 1 3 , afte r line 28 ,  insert :  

SECTION 1 7 . E M E RG E N CY. Sections  1 0 , 1 1 ,  1 2 , 1 3 , and 1 4  of this Act a re 
decla red to be a n  emergency measure .  

Ren u m ber accordingly 

This would place an emergency clause on the sections that would allow the Insurance 
Department to contract with ND/RF, allowing ND/RF to be involved prior to the July 1 
effective date (which is also the major renewal date for the policies of the F& T fund. 
Also protect the Insurance Department from a potential staff departure issue and 
leaving no one to operate the fund until this budget becomes effective. 

1 



• Prepared by the North Da kota 
I nsurance Depa rtment 

March 1 3 , 20 1 9 

PROPOSED AM E N D M E NTS TO E N G ROSSED SE NATE B ILL NO.  201 0 

Page 1 ,  l i ne 2 1 , rep lace " (6 1 3 ,  1 02 )" with " (601 , 1 02 )" 
Page 1 ,  l i ne 2 1 , rep lace " 1 , 566 ,675"  with " 1 , 578 , 675" 
Page 1 ,  l i ne 22 , rep lace " ($ 1 , 028 , 1 94) wi th ( $ 1 , 0 1 6 , 1 94 )  
Page  1 ,  l i ne  22 , rep lace "9 , 70 1 , 1 50"  with "9 , 7 1 3 , 1 50"  

Ren u m ber  accord i ng ly  

Increase of $ 12, 000 for state audit only. 

The Auditor approached us in February and informed us that the cost of doing his 
biennial audits will be increasing. This increase was not accounted for in our original 
budget, this amendment would reflect that  increase in cost. 

( _  



This corrects and issue that  was brought to our attention by our agent community, as 
the law stands right now, our agents can make donations to a 50 1 (c )3 entity for any 
dollar amount. A donation cannot be an inducement to get a quote or a contract of 
insurance. This amendment allows for our agents to market based on getting quotes, 
"Come in this month and for every quote we give we will donate $ 1 0  to a X Charity" Our 
agents and companies agree to the amendment and The Department also agrees as it 
still protects the inducement on the contract, but allows for a marketing on quotes which 
in the end should benefit agents, consumers and non-profits. 

Prepared by the North Dakota 
I nsurance Department 

March 1 3 , 20 1 9 

PROPOSED AM E N D M E NTS TO ENGROSSE D  SENATE BILL NO.  201 0 

Page 1 ,  l i ne 9 ,  after the sem i co l on ,  i nsert "to amend and  reenact subd ivis ion c of 
subsect ion 8 of sect ion 26 . 1 -04-03 of the North Dakota Centu ry Code ,  re lat ing to 
i nsu rance rebates ; to amend and  reenact subsect ion 2 of sect ion 26 . 1 -04-06 of 
the North Dakota Centu ry Code ,  re lat i ng  to i nsurance rebates ;  and to amend and 
reenact subsect ion 2 of sect ion 26 . 1 -25- 1 6 of the North Dakota Centu ry Code ,  
re lat i ng t o  i nsu rance rebates ; " 

Page 1 3 , after l i ne  2 1 , i nsert :  

SECTION 1 5 . AM E N D M E NT. S u bd ivis ion  c of  subsect ion 8 of  sect ion 26 . 1 -04-
03 of the North Dakota Centu ry Code is a mended and reenacted as fo l lows : 

8 .  Rebates .  

c .  Notwithstand i ng  any  other  p rovis ion i n  th i s  subsect ion ,  i f  t he  cost 
does not exceed a n  aggregate reta i l  va l ue of one hundred do l l a rs 
per  person per  yea r, an  i nsu rance prod ucer may g ive a g ift ,  p rize , 
p romot iona l  artic le ,  logo merchand ise, mea l ,  or  enterta i nment 
act iv ity d i rect ly or i nd i rect ly to a person i n  connection with 
market ing , p romoti ng ,  or advert is ing the bus iness .  As used in th is  
subd iv is ion ,  "person" means the named insured , po l icy owner ,  or  
p rospect ive c l ient o r  the spouse of  any of  these ind iv id ua ls ,  but the 
term does not  i nc lude a cert ifi cate holder, ch i l d , o r  emp loyee of  the 
named i nsu red , po l i cy owner, o r  p rospective c l i ent .  Subject to  the 
l im its of  th is  subd iv is io n ,  an  i nsu rance prod ucer may g ive a g ift ca rd 
fo r specif ic merchand ise o r  services such as a mea l ,  gaso l i ne ,  o r  
ca r wash  but may not  g i ve cash ,  a cash ca rd , any fo rm of cu rrency, 
or a ny refund or d i scount in p rem i um .  An insurance prod ucer may 
not cond i t ion the g iv ing of a g ift , p rize ,  promotion artic le ,  logo 
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mercha nd ise ,  mea l ,  o r  enterta inment activity on  obta i n i ng a quote 
o r  a contract of i nsu ra nce . Notwithstand ing the l im itation in th is  
subd iv is ion ,  a n  i nsu rance prod ucer may make a donatio n to a 
nonprofit o rgan izat ion that i s  exempt from federa l  taxat ion under  
I nte rna l  Revenue  Code sect ion 50 1 (c)(3)  [26 U . S . C .  50 1 (c) (3)] i n  
any  amount as long as the donat ion is not g iven as an  i nducement 
to obta i n  a quote or a contract of i nsurance . 

S E CTION 1 6 . AM E N D M E NT. S ubsect ion  2 of sect ion 26 . 1 -04-06 of the North Da kota 
Centu ry Code is amended and  reenacted as fo l lows : 

2 .  Notwithsta nd i ng a n y  other  p rovis ion  i n  th is  sect ion ,  if the cost does not exceed 
an aggregate reta i l  va l ue  of one  h u nd red do l l a rs per person per year, an  
i nsu rance prod ucer may  g ive a g ift ,  p rize , p romotiona l  a rt icl e ,  logo mercha nd ise,  
mea l ,  or enterta i n ment act iv ity d i rect ly  o r  i nd i rectly to a person in  con nect ion with 
ma rketi ng , p ro moti ng , or advert is ing the bus iness .  As used in th is  subsection ,  
"person "  mea ns  the named i nsu red , po l i cy owner, o r  prospect ive c l ient o r  the 
spouse of a ny of these i nd iv id ua l s ,  b ut the term does not inc lude a cert ificate 
ho lder, ch i l d , or emp loyee of the named i nsured , po l i cy owner, or prospect ive 
c l ient .  S u bject to the l i m its of th i s  subsect i on ,  an insurance prod ucer may g ive a 
g ift ca rd for specific merchand ise o r  services such as a mea l ,  gaso l i ne ,  o r  ca r 
wash but  may not g ive cas h ,  a cash ca rd ,  any  form of cu rrency ,  o r  any refund or  
d isco u nt i n  p rem ium . An i nsu rance p rod ucer may not cond it ion the  g iv ing of  a 
g ift ,  p rize , p romot iona l  a rt ic le ,  logo merchand ise ,  mea l ,  o r  enterta i nment act ivity 
on obta i n i ng a quote or a contract of i nsu ra nce . Notwithstand i ng the l im itat ion i n  
th is  subsect ion ,  an  i nsu rance p roducer may make a donat ion to  a nonprofit 
o rg a n izat ion that is exempt from federa l  taxat ion under  I nterna l  Revenue Code 
sect ion  50 1 (c )(3 )  [26 U . S . C .  50 1 (c ) (3 )] in any amount as long as the donat ion is  
not g iven as a n  ind ucement to o bta i n  a quote or a contract of i nsurance . 

S E CTION 1 7 . AM E N D M E NT. S ubsect ion  2 of sect ion 26 . 1 -25-1 6 of the North Da kota 
Centu ry Code is amended and  reenacted as fo l lows : 

2 .  Notwithstand i ng  a n y  other  p rovis ion  i n  th is  sect ion ,  if the cost does not exceed 
an aggregate reta i l  va l ue  of one  h u nd red do l l a rs per person per year, an  
i nsu ra nce prod ucer may g ive a g ift , p rize , p romotiona l  a rt ic le ,  logo merchand ise ,  
mea l ,  o r  enterta i n ment act ivity d i rectly or i nd i rectly to a person in  connect ion with 
ma rketi n g ,  p ro moti ng , or advert is i ng  the bus iness .  As used in th is  subsect ion ,  
"person "  mea ns  the named i nsu red , po l i cy owner, o r  prospect ive c l ient o r  the 
spouse of a ny of these i nd iv id ua l s ,  but the term does not inc lude a certificate 
ho lder, ch i l d , or emp loyee of the named i nsured , po l icy owner, or prospect ive 
c l ient .  S u bject to the l im its of th is  subsect io n ,  an  insurance prod ucer may g ive a 
g ift ca rd fo r specifi c merchand ise o r  services such as a mea l ,  gaso l i ne ,  o r  ca r 
wash but  may not g ive cas h ,  a cash ca rd ,  any fo rm of cu rrency, or  any refund or 
d iscou nt i n  p rem i um .  An i nsu rance prod ucer may not cond it ion the g iv ing of a 
g ift , p rize , promot iona l  a rtic le ,  logo merchand ise , mea l ,  or  enterta inment act iv ity 
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o n  obta i n i ng a quote o r  a contract of i nsu ra nce . Notwithsta nd ing  the l im itat ion i n  
t h i s  su bsect i on ,  a n  i nsu ra nce p roducer  m a y  make a donat ion to a no nprofit 
o rgan izat ion  that is exempt from federal taxat ion under Internal Revenue Code 
sect io n 50 1 (c )(3 )  [26 U . S . C .  50 1 (c )(3 )] in any amount as long as the donat ion is  
not g iven as a n  i nducement to o bta i n  a quote or a contract of i nsurance . 

Page 1 3 , l i ne  22 , replace " 1 5"  with " 1 8" 

Page 1 3 , l i ne  23 ,  replace " 1 6" with " 1 9 "  

Ren u m ber  accord i ngly 

3 



Prepared by the North Da kota 
I nsurance Depa rtment 

March 1 4 , 20 1 9 

PROPOS E D  AM E N D M E NTS TO E N G ROSS E D  SENATE B ILL  NO.  201 0 

Page 1 ,  l i ne  20 , rep lace " ($4 1 5 , 092 )" with " ($283 , 944 )" 
Page 1 ,  l i ne  20 ,  rep lace "$8 , 1 34 ,475"  with "$8 ,265 , 623" 
Page 1 ,  l i ne 22 , rep lace " ($ 1 , 028 , 1 94 )" wi th " ($897 , 046 )" 
Page 1 ,  l i ne 22 , rep lace "$9 , 70 1 , 1 50"  with "$9 , 832 ,298"  

Ren u m ber  accord i ng ly 

With the adjustment to midpoint for employees with over 5 years of service only 

See attached sheet, this outlines some of the compression we have experienced in the 
Insurance Department over the last number of years. We have struggled to hire new 
people at  salaries that would be equitable with those staff members who have worked in 
our department for a longer period. This amendment would bring our employees who 
have been with the state for more than 5yrs up to the midpoint and allow us some room 
in hiring new employees and still ensure equity with those employees who been with the 
Department for a longer period. 
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More than 3yrs of Service 

-.- Monthly Mid Point Monthly Difference Years of Service Annual Mid Point ,nr u I c,lf e e ce e�nleur n 
$ 5,715.07 $ 5,741 .00 $ 25.93 31 $ 68,580.84 $ 68,892.00 $ 311.16 $ 622.32 
$ 4,400.00 $ 4,824.00 $ 424.00 11 $ 52,800.00 $ 57,888.00 $ 5,088.00 $ 10,176.00 

e $ 5,190.82 $ 5,741 .00 $ 550.18 9 $ 62,289.84 $ 68,892.00 $ 6,602.16 $ 13,204.32 
Bartuska $ 6,593.79 $ 6,832.00 $ 238.21 8 $ 79,125.48 $ 81,984.00 $ 2,858.52 $ 5,717.04 
Tibor $ 3,636.00 $ 4,824.00 $ 1, 188.00 8 $ 43,632.00 $ 57,888.00 $ 14,256.00 $ 28,512.00 
Brockman $ 3,899.58 $ 4,824.00 $ 924.42 8 $ 46,794.96 $ 57,888.00 $ 11,093.04 $ 22, 186.08 
Ost $ 3,903 .00 $ 4,088.00 $ 185.00 8 $ 46,836.00 $ 49,056.00 $ 2,220.00 $ 4,440.00 
Feldman $ 2,773.34 $ 3,464.00 $ 690.66 8 $ 33,280.08 $ 41,568.00 $ 8,287.92 $ 16,575.84 
Schulz $ 6,036.00 $ 6,832.00 $ 796.00 7 $ 72,432.00 $ 81,984.00 $ 9,552.00 $ 19,104.00 
Nelson $ 6,400.00 $ 6,832.00 $ 432.00 7 $ 76,800.00 $ 81,984.00 $ 5,184.00 $ 10,368.00 
Seifert $ 5,730.92 $ 5,741.00 $ 10.08 6 $ 68,771.04 $ 68,892.00 $ 120.96 $ 241.92 
Kelsch $ 4,738.00 $ 5,741 .00 $ 1,003 .00 5 $ 56,856.00 $ 68,892.00 $ 12,036.00 $ 24,072.00 
Offerman $ 3,206.67 $ 3,464.00 $ 257.33 5 $ 38,480.04 $ 41,568.00 $ 3,087.96 $ 6,175.92 
Kriege $ 5,292.00 $ 5,741 .00 $ 449.00 4 $ 63,504.00 $ 68,892.00 $ 5,388.00 $ 10,776.00 

, 
More than Syrs of Service 

,a �a, e !r t Monthly Mid Point Monthly Difference Years of Service Current Annual Mid Point Annual Difference Blennleum Impact 
Venjohn $ 5,715 .07 $ 5,741 .00 $ 25.93 31 $ 68,580.84 $ 68,892.00 $ 311.16 $ 622.32 
Voegele $ 4,400.00 $ 4,824.00 $ 424.00 11 $ 52,800.00 $ 57,888.00 $ 5,088.00 $ 10,176.00 
Aufenthie $ 5, 190.82 $ 5,741.00 $ 550.18 9 $ 62,289.84 $ 68,892.00 $ 6,602.16 $ 13,204.32 
Bartuska $ 6,593.79 $ 6,832.00 $ 238.21 8 $ 79,125.48 $ 81,984.00 $ 2,858.52 $ 5,717.04 
Tibor $ 3,636.00 $ 4,824.00 $ 1, 188.00 8 $ 43,632.00 $ 57,888.00 $ 14,256.00 $ 28,512.00 
Brockman $ 3,899.58 $ 4,824.00 $ 924.42 8 $ 46,794.96 $ 57,888.00 $ 11,093.04 $ 22,186.08 
Ost $ 3,903.00 $ 4,088.00 $ 185.00 8 $ 46,836.00 $ 49,056.00 $ 2,220.00 $ 4,440.00 
Feldman $ 2,773.34 $ 3,464.00 $ 690.66 8 $ 33,280.08 $ 41,568.00 $ 8,287.92 $ 16,575.84 
Schulz $ 6,036.00 $ 6,832.00 $ 796.00 7 $ 72,432.00 $ 81,984.00 $ 9,552.00 $ 19,104.00 
Nelson $ 6,400.00 $ 6,832.00 $ 432.00 7 $ 76,800.00 $ 81,984.00 $ 5, 184.00 $ 10,368.00 
Seifert $ 5,730.92 $ 5,741 .00 $ 10.08 6 $ 68,771 .04 $ 68,892.00 $ 120.96 $ 241.92 

, .5 
All Years of Service 11 ... M ,nthly Mid Point Monthly Difference Years of Service Annual Mid Point Annual Difference Blennleum Impact 

$ 5,715.07 $ 5,741 .00 $ 25.93 31 $ 68,580.84 $ 68,892.00 $ 311.16 $ 622.32 
$ 4,400.00 $ 4,824.00 $ 424.00 11 $ 52,800.00 $ 57,888.00 $ 5,088.00 $ 10,176.00 

e $ 5, 190.82 $ 5,741 .00 $ 550.18 9 $ 62,289.84 $ 68,892.00 $ 6,602.16 $ 13,204.32 
Bartuska $ 6,593.79 $ 6,832.00 $ 238.21 8 $ 79,125.48 $ 81,984.00 $ 2,858.52 $ 5,717.04 
Tibor $ 3,636.00 $ 4,824.00 $ 1,188.00 8 $ 43,632.00 $ 57,888.00 $ 14,256.00 $ 28,512.00 
Brockman $ 3,899.58 $ 4,824.00 $ 924.42 8 $ 46,794.96 $ 57,888.00 $ 11,093.04 $ 22,186.08 
Ost $ 3,903 .00 $ 4,088.00 $ 185.00 8 $ 46,836.00 $ 49,056.00 $ 2,220.00 $ 4,440.00 
Feldman $ 2,773.34 $ 3,464.00 $ 690.66 8 $ 33,280.08 $ 41,568.00 $ 8,287.92 $ 16,575.84 
Schulz $ 6,036.00 $ 6,832.00 $ 796.00 7 $ 72,432.00 $ 81,984.00 $ 9,552.00 $ 19,104.00 
Nelson $ 6,400.00 $ 6,832.00 $ 432.00 7 $ 76,800.00 $ 81,984.00 $ 5,184.00 $ 10,368.00 
Seifert $ 5,730.92 $ 5,741.00 $ 10.08 6 $ 68,771.04 $ 68,892.00 $ 120.96 $ 241.92 
Kelsch $ 4,738.00 $ 5,741.00 $ 1,003.00 5 $ 56,856.00 $ 68,892.00 $ 12,036.00 $ 24,072.00 
Offerman $ 3,206.67 $ 3,464.00 $ 257.33 5 $ 38,480.04 $ 41,568.00 $ 3,087.96 $ 6,175.92 
Kriege $ 5,292.00 $ 5,741.00 $ 449.00 4 $ 63,504.00 $ 68,892.00 $ 5,388.00 $ 10,776.00 
Schneider $ 2,600.00 $ 2,961.00 $ 361.00 1 $ 31,200.00 $ 35,532.00 $ 4,332.00 $ 8,664.00 
Midd lestead $ 6,400.00 $ 6,832.00 $ 432.00 1 $ 76,800.00 $ 81,984.00 $ 5,184.00 $ 10,368.00 
Volk $ 4,824.00 $ 4,824.00 1 $ 51,000.00 $ 57,888.00 $ 6,888.00 $ 13,776.00 
Hendrickson $ 4,850.00 $ 5,741 .00 $ 891.00 1 $ 58,200.00 $ 68,892.00 $ 10,692.00 $ 21,384.00 
Kopp $ 5, 100.00 $ 5,741.00 $ 641 .00 1 $ 61,200.00 $ 68,892.00 $ 7,692.00 $ 15,384.00 
Hartley $ 4,029.00 $ 4,824.00 $ 795.00 1 $ 48,348.00 $ 57,888.00 $ 9,540.00 $ 19,080.00 
Holgard $ 2,860.00 $ 2,961.00 $ 101.00 1 $ 32,170.32 $ 35,532.00 $ 3,361.68 $ 6,723.36 

$ 267,550.80 



Prepared by the North Da kota 
I nsu rance Department 

March 1 4 , 201 9 

P RO POS E D  AM E N D M E NTS TO E N G ROSS E D  SE NATE B I LL NO .  201 0 

Page 1 ,  l i ne  20 , rep lace " ($4 1 5 , 092 )" with " ($242 ,920)" 
Page 1 ,  l i ne 20 ,  rep lace "$8 , 1 34 ,475"  with "$8 , 306 ,647" 
Page 1 ,  l i ne  22 , rep lace " ( $ 1 , 028 , 1 94 )" with " ($856 , 022)" 
Page 1 ,  l i ne  22 ,  rep lace "$9 , 70 1 , 1 50 "  w i th  "$9 ,873 , 322" 

Ren u m ber  accord i ng ly 

With the adjustment to midpoint  for employees with over 3 years of service only 

See attached sheet, this outlines some of the compression we have experienced in the 
Insurance Department over the last number of years. We have struggled to hire new 
people at  salaries that would be equitable with those staff members who have worked in 
our department for a longer period. This amendment would bring our employees who 
have been with the state for more than 3yrs up to the midpoint and allow us some room 
in hiring new employees and still ensure equity with those employees who been with the 
Department for a longer period. 
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Ii" 
Bartuska 
Tibor 
Brockman 
Ost 
Feldman 
Schulz 
Nelson 
Seifert 
Kelsch 
Offerman 
Kriege 

Last Name 
Venjohn 
Voegele 
Aufenthie 
Bartuska 
Tibor 
Brockman 
Ost 
Feldman 
Schulz 
Ne lson 
Seifert 

11··· 
Bartuska 
Tibor 
Brockman 
Ost 
Feldman 
Schulz 
Nelson 
Seifert 
Kelsch 
Offerman 
Kriege 
Schneider 
Midd lestead 
Volk 
Hendrickson 
Kopp 
Hartley 
Holgard 

• 

M nt 

$ 5,715 .07 
$ 4,400.00 
$ 5,190.82 
$ 6,593.79 
$ 3,636.00 
$ 3,899.58 
$ 3,903.00 
$ 2,773.34 
$ 6,036.00 
$ 6,400.00 
$ 5,730.92 
$ 4,738.00 
$ 3,206.67 

5,292. 

Current M " :h y 

$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 

N 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 

$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 

5,715.07 
4,400.00 
5, 190.82 
6,593.79 
3,636.00 
3,899.58 
3,903.00 
2,773.34 
6,036.00 
6,400.00 
5,730.92 

,n :hlv 

5,715.07 
4,400.00 
5,190.82 
6,593.79 
3,636.00 
3,899.58 
3,903.00 
2,773.34 
6,036.00 
6,400.00 
5,730.92 
4,738.00 
3,206.67 
5,292.00 
2,600.00 
6,400.00 

4,850.00 
5,100.00 
4,029.00 
2,860.00 

. - -

� I I� i � " I ere 

$ 5,741.00 $ 25.93 
$ 4,824.00 $ 424.00 
$ 5,741.00 $ 550.18 
$ 6,832.00 $ 238.21 
$ 4,824.00 $ 1, 188.00 
$ 4,824.00 $ 924.42 
$ 4,088.00 $ 185.00 
$ 3,464.00 $ 690.66 
$ 6,832.00 $ 796.00 
$ 6,832.00 $ 432.00 
$ 5,741 .00 $ 10.08 
$ 5,741 .00 $ 1,003 .00 
$ 3,464.00 $ 257.33 
$ , 41. $ 9. 

Mld F i ,t ill ntnl Differ � 

$ 5,741. 25.9 
$ 4,824.00 $ 424.00 
$ 5,741.00 $ 550.18 
$ 6,832.00 $ 238.21 
$ 4,824.00 $ 1,188.00 
$ 4,824.00 $ 924.42 
$ 4,088.00 $ 185 .00 
$ 3,464.00 $ 690.66 
$ 6,832.00 $ 796.00 
$ 6,832.00 $ 432.00 
$ 5,741 .00 $ 10.08 

Mid F nt M �tnlv Dll rerenc 

$ 5,741 .00 $ 25.93 
$ 4,824.00 $ 424.00 
$ 5,741 .00 $ 550.18 
$ 6,832.00 $ 238.21 
$ 4,824.00 $ 1,188.00 
$ 4,824.00 $ 924.42 
$ 4,088.00 $ 185 .00 
$ 3,464.00 $ 690.66 
$ 6,832.00 $ 796.00 
$ 6,832.00 $ 432.00 
$ 5,741 .00 $ 10.08 
$ 5,741 .00 $ 1,003.00 
$ 3,464.00 $ 257.33 
$ 5,741 .00 $ 449.00 
$ 2,961.00 $ 361 .00 
$ 6,832.00 $ 432.00 
$ 4,824.00 $ 4,824.00 
$ 5,741.00 $ 891 .00 
$ 5,741.00 $ 641.00 
$ 4,824.00 $ 795.00 
$ 2,961 .00 $ 101 .00 

More than 3yrs of Service 
Y a VI .. , u I Mid Point Annual Difference Biennieum Impact 

31 $ 68,5 . 4  $ 6 ,  92. $ 11.16 $ 622.32 
11 $ 52,800.00 $ 57,888.00 $ 5,088.00 $ 10,176.00 
9 $ 62,289.84 $ 68,892.00 $ 6,602.16 $ 13,204.32 
8 $ 79,125.48 $ 81,984.00 $ 2,858.52 $ 5,717.04 
8 $ 43,632.00 $ 57,888.00 $ 14,256.00 $ 28,512.00 
8 $ 46,794.96 $ 57,888.00 $ 11,093.04 $ 22,186.08 
8 $ 46,836.00 $ 49,056.00 $ 2,220.00 $ 4,440.00 
8 $ 33,280.08 $ 41,568.00 $ 8,287.92 $ 16,575.84 
7 $ 72,432.00 $ 81,984.00 $ 9,552.00 $ 19,104.00 
7 $ 76,800.00 $ 81,984.00 $ 5, 184.00 $ 10,368.00 
6 $ 68,771.04 $ 68,892.00 $ 120.96 $ 241.92 
5 $ 56,856.00 $ 68,892.00 $ 12,036.00 $ 24,072.00 
5 $ 38,480.04 $ 41,568.00 $ 3,087.96 $ 6,175.92 
4 $ 63,504.00 $ 68,892. $ , $ 10, 

1 -,1 '1.44 
M ,r rrs ,1 trv :e 

·e ,f " TI1n n��al M F ,mt A, n �al lff !I e B nnt �n h :t 

1 6 , 0. 4 $ 6 , 9 . $ 1 . 6 $ 22.32 
11 $ 52,800.00 $ 57,888.00 $ 5,088.00 $ 10,176.00 
9 $ 62,289.84 $ 68,892.00 $ 6,602.16 $ 13,204.32 
8 $ 79,125.48 $ 81,984.00 $ 2,858.52 $ 5,717.04 
8 $ 43,632.00 $ 57,888.00 $ 14,256.00 $ 28,512.00 
8 $ 46,794.96 $ 57,888.00 $ 11,093.04 $ 22,186.08 
8 $ 46,836.00 $ 49,056.00 $ 2,220.00 $ 4,440.00 
8 $ 33,280.08 $ 41,568.00 $ 8,287.92 $ 16,575.84 
7 $ 72,432.00 $ 81,984.00 $ 9,552.00 $ 19,104.00 
7 $ 76,800.00 $ 81,984.00 $ 5, 184.00 $ 10,368.00 
6 $ 68,771 .04 $ 68,892.00 $ 120.96 $ 241.92 

1 11 . ·-
All v ars " Service 

Yea, Uer,11 AJ ,ual MIG F >1111 AJ ,ual Dlflerent11 llle1 ,nieum In a:I 
31 $ 68,580.84 $ 68,892.00 $ 311.16 $ 622.32 
11 $ 52,800.00 $ 57,888.00 $ 5,088.00 $ 10, 176.00 
9 $ 62,289.84 $ 68,892.00 $ 6,602.16 $ 13,204.32 
8 $ 79, 125 .48 $ 81,984.00 $ 2,858.52 $ 5,717.04 
8 $ 43,632.00 $ 57,888.00 $ 14,256.00 $ 28,512.00 
8 $ 46,794.96 $ 57,888.00 $ 11,093.04 $ 22,186.08 
8 $ 46,836.00 $ 49,056.00 $ 2,220.00 $ 4,440.00 
8 $ 33,280.08 $ 41,568.00 $ 8,287.92 $ 16,575 .84 
7 $ 72,432.00 $ 81,984.00 $ 9,552.00 $ 19,104.00 
7 $ 76,800.00 $ 81,984.00 $ 5,184.00 $ 10,368.00 
6 $ 68,771 .04 $ 68,892.00 $ 120.96 $ 241.92 
5 $ 56,856.00 $ 68,892.00 $ 12,036.00 $ 24,072.00 
5 $ 38,480.04 $ 41,568.00 $ 3,087.96 $ 6,175.92 
4 $ 63,504.00 $ 68,892.00 $ 5,388.00 $ 10,776.00 
1 $ 31,200.00 $ 35,532.00 $ 4,332.00 $ 8,664.00 
1 $ 76,800.00 $ 81,984.00 $ 5,184.00 $ 10,368.00 
1 $ 51,000.00 $ 57,888.00 $ 6,888.00 $ 13,776.00 
1 $ 58,200.00 $ 68,892.00 $ 10,692.00 $ 21,384.00 
1 $ 61,200.00 $ 68,892.00 $ 7,692.00 $ 15,384.00 
1 $ 48,348.00 $ 57,888.00 $ 9,540.00 $ 19,080.00 
1 $ 32, 170.32 $ 35,532.00 $ 3,361.68 $ 6,723.36 

$ 267,550.80 
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Sent: 
To: 
Subject: 

Representative Vigesaa, 

J ason Catrambone <jasonc@ci .wi l l i ston .nd .us > 
Wednesday, March 27, 20 1 9  2:39 PM 
Vigesaa, Donald W. 
North Dakota F i re Ch iefs Association Support of Engrossed SB 20 1 0  

This emai l i s  to ask for your support o f  SB20 1 0  as it was passed by the Senate which provides I 00% of the F ire Premium 

Tax and the continuing appropriation of this fund . These funds are vital to the fire departments and fire districts across 

North Dakota. Every day the c itizens of the state cal l upon the services of these departments to save l ives, protect 

property, and mitigate hazards .  These services are provided with minimal budgets that are patched together with bake 

sales, raffles, property tax, grants, and donations. The fire serv ice of North Dakota continues to provide everything it can 

with the uncertainty of how it can buy or replace essential protective gear, apparatus and equipment. I 00% funding 

coming back to the fire departments as a continuing appropriation is essential to provide certainty to the operations and 

planning for fire departments across North Dakota. 

he Insurance Premium Tax has been a source of revenue for fire departments and fire districts for many years . The 

ribution from the premium tax to the departments has historically been a significant component of fire 

protection funding. The Insurance Premium Tax was establ ished in 1 887 ,  before North Dakota was a state. The law 

taxed certain types of insurance premiums to provide funds to support local fire department operations and pensions. For 

the almost I 00 years, few significant changes were made. I 00% of the tax col lected was passed on to fire departments. 

Starting in the early l 980 ' s, economic volati l ity and changes in the insurance industry cause large fluctuation in the 

revenues distributed to the fire service. S ince 1 985 ,  several changes in the law were made to stabi l ize the revenue source. 

The distribution was made a continuing appropriation, then the continuing appropriation was removed. Eventual ly 

b iannual increases were provided that were intended to restore funding to I 00%. However, the result has been mixed at 

best. Though sometimes the changes provided stable funding, much of the time the changes lagged behind the revenue 

generated by the tax. The effect of the changes have been that less funding is provided than is collected. Below is a graph 

of the past ten years of what has and has and has not been distributed back to the fire service. 

Year Premium Tax ND Firefighters 

Collected for the Association 

Fire Service per 

NDCC 18-04-05 

&26. 1-03-17  

Appropriation 

1 

ND Fire 

Departments 

Appropriation 

�L! 9LI'rnm!P..m 
ii� coitection; 

t } • f • � r • I ' "I t f( . 



�o1, d). t1 / '?  .58;;;a/� c:d/# 

2009 $5 ,753 ,476 .70 $3 1 0,000.00 $3 , 1 00,000 .00 �9,.iI'¾ -
2010 $6, 1 44,064.69 $3 1 0,000 .00 $3 , 1 00,000.00 5,S .50% 

201 1  $6,509,892 .78  $33 5 ,000.00 $3 , 1 00,000.00 6:2� 77°!J. 

2012  $6,943 ,076.96 $3 3 5 ,000.00 $3 , 1 00,000.00 ��A-7� 

2013 $7,99 1 ,  l 00 .48 $3 3 5 ,000 .00 $7,268, 1 93 .00 &5 . 15% 

2014 $8, 1 57 ,8 1 8 . 36  $33 5 ,000 .00 7,268, 1 93 .00 �3 .7�Qo/� 

2015 $9, 1 59, 1 60 .22 $5 1 0,000 .00 7,840,603 .50 n.11� 
2016 $9,5 5 1 ,026.74 $5 1 0,000.00 7,840,603 .00 �1AJ-� 

2017 $9,524,687 .99 $4 1 4,263 .00 $7, 1 1 7,78 1 .00 a2.Q�� 

2018 $9,400,7 1 1 . 8 8  $4 1 4,263 .00 $7, 1 1 7,78 1 .00 lQilJi�i 

As you can see over e ighteen mi l l ion dol lars has not been allocated back to the fire service since 2009 . The loss 

of these dollars has placed s ignificant stress on the fire departments across the state . The effects of this not only 

affect purchase and replacement of gear and equipment but the recruitment and retention of personnel .  Every 

dol lar not returned to the local fire department adds hours that members have to work(volunteer) on finding 

alternative revenue sources to make ends meet. Where a majority of the fire departments across the state are 

volunteer this  adds to the time away from fami ly, work and other community involvement. 

I support Engrossed Senate B i l l  20 I O  to again equate the fire service funding allocation to match the full amount 

collected as a continuing appropriation and I ask that you support the F ire Service of North Dakota by 

supporting the Insurance Commissioners request to return it to l 00% and make it a continuing appropriation . 

S incerely, 

Jason L. Catrambone 
President 
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North Dakota Fire Chiefs Association 
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WI LLISTON 
F I R E  D E PARTM E NT 

Jason L. Catra m bone ECO I F i re C h i ef 

C i ty of W i l l i ston I Fi re Depa rtment 

3 1 7  1 1 th Street West ,  W i l l i ston ,  N D  5880 1 

T. 7 0 1 . 57 2 . 3400 I C .  70 1 - 770-4234 
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July l 3 , 2O 1 8  

North Dakota Firefighter 's Association 
1502 Grumman Lane, Suite 2 

Phone: (701) 222-2799 
Fax: (701) 222-2899 

Commissioner Jon Godfread 
North Dakota Insurance Depa11ment 
State Capitol ,  Fifth Floor 
600 E. Boulevard Ave. 
B ismarck, ND 58 505 -03 20 

Re :  Appropriation Request for the  20 1 9-20 1 20 Biennium 

Dear Commissioner Godfread, 

Bismarck, ND 58504 

www.ndfa.net 

This letter is the North D akota Firefighter's Association (NDF A) budget request for the 20 1 9-2020 
B iennium. This appropriation request follows North Dakota Century Code Chapter 1 8 -04-05  that 
the Insurance Commiss ioner shall disburse funds to the N011h Dakota Firefighter's Association. 
We respectfully ask that the amounts outlined be included in the Insurance Depai1ments budget 
request on NDFA's behalf. 

This l etter also fulfills the requirement of No11h Dakota Century Code Section 1 8 -03 -05 that an 
itemized statement of the amount of money necessary . . .  to conduct fire schools to be held during 
the succeeding biennium under the direction of the association be submitted to the Office of 
Management and Budget. In addition, North Dakota Century Code Section 1 8-03 -08 requires the 
NDF A to repo11 annually to the Office of Management and Budget a full and complete report of 
the disposition of all money received . That report is attached to this letter. 

The No11h Dakota Firefighter's Association is requesting that the North Dakota Insurance 
Department include $745 ,672 .00 in your base budget for the 20 1 9-2020 biennium to fund the 
No11h Dakota Firefighter's Association. 

The attached document detai ls actual revenues and expenditures for calendar year 20 1 6  and 20 1 7 ,  
estimated revenues and expenditures for  calendar year 20 1 8 , and requested revenues and 
expendi tures for 20 1 9  and 2020.  

I 
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A s  you can see from prev ious  budgets, the North Dakota F i refighter ' s A ssoc i at ion app l i es for 
several competitive grants throughout the year from both Federal and State sources to fund 
several training and ce11ification programs we offer. If we do not receive these grants we would 
not be able to offer the services we currently do. These funds cannot be used to fund items other 
than what they were awarded for and are only available as reimbursements after funds are 
expended . 

The North Dakota Firefighter's Association s incerely appreciates the past suppo11 of the Governor, 
the Office of Management and Budget, and the Insurance Commissioner. We look forward to your 
continued suppo11 in the future . The No11h Dakota firefighters work dil igently and responsibly to 
protect our valued citizens and their property from fire and chemical related hazards .  

Sincerely, 

Robert Knuth, Training Director 
North Dakota Firefighter's Association 

CC : Jeffrey Ubben, Deputy Commissioner 
Melissa Seifert, Insurance Department 
Larry Martin, 0MB 



Based off of 90% of 2017/2018 Budget 

Jan - Dec 16 Jan - Dec 17 2018 Budget Estimated 2019 Estimated 2020 
Actual Actual Estimate Budget Budget 

Ordinary Income/Expense 

Income 

4000 · Sales 28,703 .84 1 5 ,264.08 20,000.00 20,000.00 20,000.00 

4100 · Dues 1 6, 1 30 .00 14 ,740 .00 1 6,000.00 37,300.00 37,300.00 

4110 · Insurance Claim 6 , 1 68 .20 -

4200 · Grants 8 14,943 .88 902,082.33 40,000.00 40,000.00 40,000.00 

4300 · Registration 3 ,075 .00 10 ,495 .00 1 5 ,000.00 42, 1 00.00 42, 1 00.00 

4600 · Appropriations/ND 445,0 1 1 .00 4 14 ,262.00 f 4 14,262.00
/< 

372,836.00 372,836.00 

4700 · Testing Fees 2,000.00 - 1 ,000.00 1 ,000.00 1 ,000.00 

4800 · Reimbursed Expenses 3 ,007 . 1 8  2,402 . 1 4  3 ,000.00 3 ,000.00 3 ,000.00 

4820 · Donations 30,00 1 . 1 7 605.00 - - -

4900 · Miscellaneous/Income 504.00 66, 1 1 6 . 1 3  500.00 500.00 500.00 

4910 · Library 6,070.00 5 ,525 .00 5 , 1 00.00 - -

Total Income 1 ,355 ,6 14.27 1 ,43 1 ,491 .68 5 14,862.00 5 1 6,736.00 5 1 6,736.00 

Expense 

6000 · NDFA Office 78,343 . 1 3  1 37,922.66 1 38 ,000.00 1 29,039.00 1 34,900.00 

6100 · Annual Convention 1 2, 1 62.59 6,603 .94 9,000.00 7,500.00 7,500.00 

6200 · State School 1 58 ,027.68 1 1 6,582.80 30,000.00 30,000.00 30,000.00 

6300 · Regional School 9,026.27 2,826.2 1 5 ,000.00 5 ,000.00 5,000.00 

6330 · SAFER GRANT - 546,439 . 1 4  - - -

6345 · AFG Grant - 759.96 - - -

6375 · Grant expenses 26 1 ,409.88 1 93 ,643 .23 - - -

6381 · WSI Grant 22,694.73 1 7,752.45 - - -

6400 · Conference 2 1 ,329. 1 5  7,570 .95 8 ,000.00 8 ,000.00 8 ,000.00 

6500 · FF Certification 24,784. 1 1  25 ,729.62 1 5 ,000.00 1 5 ,000.00 10 ,000.00 

6581 · Auto Extrication 49,407. 1 0  1 5 ,056.05 1 5 ,000.00 7 ,500.00 
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6590 · Bank Service Charges - 25 .00 100.00 1 00.00 1 00.00 

6600 · Insurance 7,652.32 9,937.2 1 12 ,000.00 12 ,000.00 12 ,000.00 

6700 · Interest Expense - - 25.00 1 00.00 100.00 

6720 · Forms 202.46 355 .76 400.00 400.00 400 .00 

6775 · Membership/Dues/Subscriptions 1 ,080.00 290.47 1 ,000.00 1 ,500.00 1 ,500.00 

6800 · PayroU Expenses 239, 1 96.25 1 90 , 1 28.84 1 92,000.00 228,000.00 235,980.00 

6830 · Executive Board Expenses 10 ,266.78 1 3 ,561 .84 14 ,000.00 12 ,000.00 12 ,000.00 

6880 · Miscellaneous 500 .00 650 .00 500.00 500.00 -

6881 · Equipment 466 , 124.57 696.02 1 ,000.00 1 ,000.00 1 ,000.00 

6900 · Professional Fees 8 1 ,423 .53 42,309.50 1 5 ,000.00 3 ,000.00 3 ,000.00 

6925 · Repairs 84,443.59 34,974.93 27,000 .00 27,000.00 27,000.00 

6950 · Taxes 1 5 ,990 .79 1 3 ,563 .07 14 ,400.00 16 ,800.00 1 7,388 .00 

6960 · Training Library 2, 1 50 .87 683 . 52 1 ,000.00 1 ,000.00 1 ,000.00 

6970 · Material for resale 3 1 ,225 . 1 6  4,338 .0 1  4,500.00 4,500.00 4,500.00 

6990 · Adminstrative expenses 1 14 .00 - - - -

6995 · Automobile Expense 3 ,450.08 4,245 . 8 1  6,000.00 6,000.00 6,000.00 

6999 · Uncategorized Expenses - 66, 1 1 6 . 1 3  - - -

8000 · Workshops 3 ,072 . 1 1 16 , 1 8 1 .9 1  1 0 ,000.00 5 ,000.00 5 ,000.00 

Total Expense 1 ,584,077. 1 5  1 ,468 ,945 .03 5 1 8 ,925.00 520,939.00 522,368.00 

Net Ordinary Income (228,462 .88)  (37,453 .35)  
(4 063 .00) 

(4,203.00) (5 ,632.00) 
-

Other Income/Expense 

Other Income 

7010 · Interest Income 556.48 893.59 900.00 900.00 900.00 

7030 · Other Income 5,000.00 5 ,000.00 5 ,000.00 5 ,000 .00 5 ,000.00 

7500 · Transfer of Funds 1 50,000.00 275 ,000.00 - - -

Total Other Income 1 55,556.48 280,893 .59 5 ,900.00 5 ,900.00 5 ,900.00 

Net Income (72,906.40) 243,440.24 1,837.00 1,697.00 268.00 
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Insurance Comm iss ioner, inc lud ing Insurance Tax Payments to F i re Departments - Budget No.  401 
Senate B i l l  No.  201 0 
Base Level Fund ing  Changes 

Senate Version House Version 

FTE General Other FTE General 
Position Fund Funds Total Position Fund Other Funds 

201 9-21 Biennium Base Level 46.00 $0 $25,793,430 $25,793,430 46.00 $0 $25,793,430 
201 9-21 Ongoing Funding Changes 

Base payrol l  changes $ 1 65,007 $1 65,007 $ 1 65,007 
Salary increase 2 1 8, 1 70 2 1 8, 1 70 233,693 
Health insurance increase 1 82 ,946 1 82,946 1 82 ,946 
Add 1 FTE consumer assistance outreach 1 .00 1 79 ,7 1 1 1 79 ,71 1 1 .00 1 79, 7 1 1 
coord inator position 
Add 1 FTE high risk pool and health care 1 .00 202 ,791 202 ,791  1 .00 202 ,791 
reform coord inator 
Transfer administration of the fi re and (3.00) (6 1 0,352) (6 1 0,352) (3.00) (6 1 0,352) 
tornado fund and bonding fund to the 
insurance reserve fund 
Transfer the boi ler inspection program to (4.00) (753,365) (753,365) (4 .00) (753,365) 
DEQ 
Reduce funding for operati ng expenses, (637,255) (637,255) (637 ,255) 
including travel ,  information technology, and 
professional services 
Add funding for M icrosoft Office 365 24, 1 53 24, 1 53 24, 1 53 
l icensing expenses 
Provide a continu ing appropriation for fi re ( 1 5 ,064,086) ( 1 5 ,064,086) 0 
district and F irefighter's Association 
payments 
Reduce funding for the North Dakota 0 (82,853) 
F irefighter's Association 
Increase funding for fi re d istricts 0 2,538, 1 89 
Total ongoing funding changes (5.00) $0 ($ 1 6,092 ,280) ($ 1 6,092,280) (5.00) $0 $1 ,442 ,665 

One-time funding items 
No one-time funding items $0 
Total one-time funding changes 0 .00 $0 $0 $0 0 .00 $0 $0 
Total Changes to Base Level Funding (5.00) $0 ($ 1 6,092,280) ($ 1 6,092,280) (5.00) $0 $1 ,442 ,665 

201 9-21 Total Funding 41 .00 $0 $9,701 , 1 50 $9,701 , 1 50 4 1 .00 $0 $27,236,095 

Total 
$25,793,430 

$ 1 65,007 
233,693 
1 82 ,946 
1 79,7 1 1 

202 ,791  

(6 1 0, 352) 

(753,365) 

(637,255) 

24, 1 53 

0 

(82,853) 

2 ,538, 1 89 
$ 1 ,442 ,665 

$0 
$0 

$ 1 ,442,665 
$27,236,095 
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House Changes to Senate Version 
Increase (Decrease) - Senate Version 

FTE General 
Positions Fund Other Funds Total 

0.00 $0 $0 $0 

$0 
$ 1 5 ,523 1 5,523 

0 
0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

1 5,064,086 1 5 ,064,086 

(82 , 853) (82, 853) 

2 ,538, 1 89 2 , 538, 1 89 
0 .00 $0 $ 1 7 , 534,945 $ 1 7 ,534,945 

$0 
0 .00 $0 $0 $0 
0 .00 $0 $ 1 7 , 534, 945 $ 1 7 ,534,945 
0 .00 $0 $ 1 7 ,534, 945 $ 1 7 ,534,945 



Other Sections for Insurance Commissioner, inc luding Insurance Tax Payments to Fire Departments - Budget No. 401 
Senate Version House Version 

Insurance tax distribution fund 

Unsatisfied judgment fund 

Boi ler inspection program 

Fees 

Insurance Commissioner's salary 

Insurance rebates 

Fund administration - Conti nu ing 
appropriation 

Leg is lative intent - F i re department 
payments 

Study - Volunteer firefighter pension 

Sections 3 ,  4 ,  5 ,  and 9 provide statutory changes 
necessary for the Insurance Commissioner to calcu late 
the amounts due to fi re d istricts and the North Dakota 
Firefighter's Association and provide continu ing 
appropriations authority to d istribute the amounts due.  

Section 2 designates $29,703 from the state unsatisfied 
judgment fund to pay unsatisfied judgment fund 
admin istrative expenses. 
Sections 6 and 1 5  provide statutory changes necessary to 
transfer the boi ler inspection program to the Department 
of Environmental Qual ity. Section 1 6  provides a 
contingent effective date for the transfer. 
Section 7 amends Section 26. 1 -0 1 -07 relating to fees 
chargeable by the Insurance Commissioner to adjust fees 
charged to county mutual insurance companies and 
benevolent societies .  
Section 8 provides the statutory changes necessary to 
increase the Insurance Commiss ioner's salary to 
$ 1 07, 885 beg inn ing Ju ly 1 ,  20 1 9, and $ 1 1 1 , 1 22 beg inn ing 
Ju ly 1 ,  2020. 

Sections 10 through 14 provide statutory changes 
necessary to a l low the Insurance Commissioner to 
contract with the insurance reserve fund for admin istration 
of the state fire and tornado fund and the state bonding 
fund.  The sections also provide continu ing appropriation 
authority from the funds to pay contractua l  fund 
admin istration expenses. 

The House removed sections re lating to the continu ing 
appropriation authority for insurance tax distribution fund 
payments . Section 2 appropriates $1 7 ,51 9,422 from the 
insurance tax d istribution fund,  inc luding $1 6 ,773,750 for 
payments to fire departments and $745,672 for payments 
to the North Dakota F i refighters Association .  
Section 3 designates $29,703 from the state unsatisfied 
judgment fund to pay unsatisfied judgment fund 
admin istrative expenses. 
The House removed these sections.  

Section 4 amends Section 26. 1 -0 1 -07 relating to fees 
chargeable by the Insurance Commissioner to adjust fees 
charged to county mutual insurance companies and 
benevolent societies. 
Section 5 provides the statutory changes necessary to 
increase the Insurance Commissioner's salary to 
$ 1 07,885 beg inn ing J u ly 1 ,  20 1 9, and $1 1 0,582 beg inn ing 
Ju ly 1 ,  2020. 
Sections 6,  7, and 1 3  provide statutory changes re lating to 
rebates associated with obta in ing an insurance quote. 
Sections 8 through 1 2  provide statutory changes 
necessary to a l low the Insurance Commissioner to 
contract with the insurance reserve fund for admin istration 
of the state fire and tornado fund and the state bonding 
fund .  The sections also provide continu ing appropriation 
authority from the funds to pay contractual fund 
admin istration expenses. Section 16 declares these 
sections to be an emergency. 
Section 14 provides legis lative intent that fire departments 
uti l ize increased d istributions from the insurance tax 
d istribution fund to improve their Insurance Service Office 
( ISO) ratings.  
Section 15 provides for a legis lative management study of 
the feasib i l ity and desirabi l ity of establ ish ing a pension for 
volunteer firefighters . 
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STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT: 

Senate Bi l l  No. 201 0  - Funding Summary 

Insurance Department 
Salaries and wages 
Operating expenses 
Insurance tax payments 

Total all funds 
Less estimated income 
General fund 

FTE 

Bill total 
Total all funds 
Less estimated income 
General fund 

FTE 

Base 
Budget 

$8,549,567 
2 , 1 79,777 

1 5 ,064,086 

$25,793,430 
25,793,430 

$0 

46.00 

$25,793,430 
25,793,430 

$0 

46.00 

Senate 
Version 

$8, 1 34,475 
1 ,566,675 

$9,70 1 , 1 50 
9,701 , 1 50 

$0 

41 .00 

$9,70 1 , 1 50 
9,70 1 , 1 50 

$0 

41 .00 

House 
Changes 

$1 5,523 

1 7 ,51 9,422 

$ 17 ,534,945 
1 7 ,534,945 

$0 

0.00 

$ 1 7 ,534,945 
1 7 ,534,945 

$0 

0.00 

Senate Bi l l  No. 201 0 - Insurance Department - Senate Action 

Salaries and wages 
Operating expenses 
Insurance tax payments 

Total all funds 
Less estimated income 
General fund 

FTE 

Base 
Budget 
$8,549,567 
2 , 1 79,777 

1 5,064,086 

$25,793,430 
25,793,430 

$0 

46.00 

Senate 
Changes 

($4 1 5,092) 
(61 3, 1 02) 

( 1 5,064,086' 

($16 ,092,280) 
( 16 ,092,280' 

$0 

(5.00) 

Senate 
Version 
$8, 1 34,475 
1 ,566,675 

$9,70 1 , 1 50 
9,701 , 1 50 

$0 

41 .00 

House 
Version 

$8, 1 49,998 
1 ,566,675 

1 7 ,51 9,422 

$27,236,095 
27,236,095 

$0 

41 .00 

$27,236,095 
27,236,095 

$0 

41 .00 

Department 401 - Insurance Department - Detai l  of Senate Changes 

Adjusts Adds Funding 
Funding for for Salary and 
Base Payroll Benefit Adds FTE Transfers Fund 
Changes1 Increases' Positions1 Administration1 

Salaries and wages $1 65,007 $401 , 1 1 6  $382,502 ($61 0,352) 
Operating expenses 
Insurance tax payments 

Total all funds $ 1 65,007 $40 1 , 1 1 6  $382,502 ($61 0 ,352) 
Less estimated income 1 65,007 401 , 1 1 6  382,502 (6 1 0 ,352) 
General fund $0 $0 $0 $0 

FTE 0.00 0.00 2 .00 (3 .00) 

Adds Funding Adjusts 
for Microsoft Funding for 
Office 365 Fire District Total Senate 
Licensing1 Payments1 Changes 

Salaries and wages ($4 1 5,092) 
Operating expenses $24 , 1 53 (6 1 3 , 1 02) 
Insurance tax payments ($15,064,086) ( 15 ,064,086' 

Total al l funds $24 , 1 53 ($15 ,064,086) ($16 ,092,280) 
Less estimated income 24 , 1 53 (15,064,086) 1 16 ,092,280) 
General fund $0 $0 $0 

FTE 0.00 0.00 (5 .00' 

North Dakota Legis lative Counci l  

Transfers the 
Boiler 

Inspection 
Program� 

($753,365) 

($753,365) 
(753,365) 

$0 

(4.00) 

SB ,J O t D  
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Reduces 
Funding for 
Operating 
Expenses' 

($637,255) 

($637,255) 
(637,255) 

$0 

0.00 

SB20 1 0  



1 Funding is adjusted for base payro l l  changes. 

2 The fol lowing fund ing is added for 201 9-2 1 b iennium salary adjustments of 2 percent on July 1 ,  20 1 9 , and 3 percent 
on Ju ly 1 ,  2020 , and increases in  health insurance premiums from $1 ,241  to $1 ,427 per month : 

Salary increase 
Health insurance increase 
Total 

Other Funds 
$21 8 , 1 70 

1 82,946 
$401 , 1 1 6  

3 The fol lowing FTE positions and related funding are added : 

Consumer assistance outreach coord inator 
H igh risk pool and health care reform coord inator 
Total 

FTE 
1 .00 
1 .00 
2.00 

Other Funds 
$1 79 ,7 1 1 
202,79 1 

$382 ,502 

4 Funding is reduced by $61 0 ,352 and 3 FTE positions are removed to transfer admin istration of the state bonding 
fund and the state fire and tornado fund to the North Dakota insurance reserve fund .  This amendment also provides 
continu ing appropriation authority from the state bonding fund and the state fi re and tornado fund to pay 
contract expenses to the North Dakota insurance reserve fund .  

5 Funding is reduced by $753 ,365 and 4 FTE positions are removed to transfer the bo i ler  inspection program to the 
Department of Environmental Qual ity. 

6 Funding for operating expenses, includ ing trave l ,  professional services, and information technology expenses, is 
reduced by $637 ,255. This amount i ncludes operating reductions for the removal of the boi ler inspection program 
and admin istration of the state bonding fund ,  state fi re and tornado fund ,  and petro leum release compensation fund .  

7 Fund ing of  $24, 1 53 is added for M icrosoft Office 365 l icensing expenses. 

8 Funding for payments to fi re d istricts and the North Dakota F irefighter's Association is removed to reflect continu ing 
appropriation authority provided in  th is amendment. The Insurance Commiss ioner estimates $ 1 8 ,8 1 8 ,030 wi l l  be 
deposited i n  the insurance tax d istribution fund pursuant to th is amendment, of which $ 1 7 ,783 ,038 (94 .5 percent) wi l l  
be d istributed to fi re d istricts and $1 ,034,992 (5 .5 percent) wi l l  be d istri buted to the North Dakota F i refighter's 
Association during the 201 9-2 1 bienn ium ,  an increase of $3,753 ,944 from the base leve l .  This resu lts in a genera l  
fund revenue reduction of  $3,753 ,944. 

Senate B i l l  No. 201 0 - Insurance Department - House Action 

Base Senate House 
Budget Version Changes 

Salaries and wages $8,549,567 $8, 1 34,475 $1 5,523 
Operating expenses 2 , 1 79,777 1 ,566,675 
Insurance tax payments 15 ,064,086 17 5 19 422 

Total al l  funds $25,793,430 $9,70 1 , 1 50 $1 7 ,534,945 
Less estimated income 25,793,430 9,701 , 1 50 17 534,945 
General fund $0 $0 $0 

House 
Version 
$8 , 1 49,998 
1 ,566,675 

1 7,51 9,422 

$27,236,095 
27,236,095 

$0 

41 .00 

Department 401 - Insurance Department - Detai l  of House Changes 

FTE 46.00 41 .00 0.00 

Adjusts 
Adds Funding Funding for 

for Salary Fire District Total House 
lncreases1 Payments2 Changes 

Salaries and wages $1 5,523 $1 5,523 
Operating expenses 
Insurance tax payments $1 7 ,519 ,422 1 7 ,51 9,422 

Tota l al l  funds $1 5,523 $1 7,51 9,422 $ 1 7,534,945 
Less estimated income 1 5 ,523 1 7 ,51 9,422 17 534,945 
General fund $0 $0 $0 

FTE 0.00 0.00 0.00 

North Dakota Leg islative Council 2 S820 1 0  
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1 Funding is adjusted to provide employee salary increases of 2 percent on July 1 ,  20 1 9 , with a min imum monthly 
increase of $ 1 20 and a maximum monthly increase of $200, and 2.5 percent on July 1 ,  2020. The Senate provided 
funding for a 2 percent salary increase on Ju ly 1 ,  201 9 , and a 3 percent salary increase on Ju ly 1 ,  2020 . 

2 Funding from the insurance tax d istribution fund for payments to fi re d istricts and the North Dakota Fi refighter's 
Association is restored to reflect the removal of continu ing appropriation authority approved by the Senate . This 
amendment provides $1 6 ,773,750 to be d istributed to fi re districts , an estimated reduction of $ 1 ,009,288 from the 
Senate version but an increase of $2 ,538 , 1 89 from the base level . The amendment a lso provides $745 ,672 to be 
distributed to the North Dakota F i refighter's Association ,  an estimated reduction of $289,320 from the Senate version 
and a reduction of $82,853 from the base leve l .  This resu lts in  a genera l  fund revenue reduction of 
$2,455,336 compared to the base leve l ,  and a general fund revenue increase of $1 ,298 ,608 compared to the Senate 
version. 

Senate Bil l No. 201 0 - Other Changes - Senate Action 

This amendment also: 
Removes the section identifying the appropriation from the insurance tax d istribution fund for payments to fi re 
d istricts and the North Dakota Firefighter's Association .  
Adds sections to  provide continu ing appropriation authority from the insurance tax d istribution fund for 
payments to fi re d istricts and the North Dakota F i refighter's Association . These sections also provide for the 
I nsurance Commissioner to calcu late the amounts to be deposited in  and d istributed from the insurance tax 
d istribution fund for payments to fi re d istricts and the North Dakota F irefighter's Association .  
Removes sections identifying the amounts appropriated from the state bonding fund ,  state fi re and  tornado 
fund ,  and the petro leum release compensation fund .  
Adds sections to a l low the Insurance Commissioner to contract for the admin istration of  the state bonding fund 
and the state fi re and tornado fund .  
Adds sections to  provide continu ing appropriation authority from the state bonding fund and the state fire and 
tornado fund to the Insurance Commissioner to pay the contractual admin istration costs for the funds. 
Adds sections to transfer the boi ler inspection program from the Insurance Commissioner to the Department of 
Environmental Qual ity. 
Adds a section to increase the Insurance Commissioner's salary by 2 percent beg inn ing July 1 ,  201 9 , and 
3 percent beginn ing Ju ly 1 ,  2020. 

Senate Bi l l  No. 201 0 - Other Changes - House Action 

This amendment also: 
Removes sections provid ing continu ing appropriation authority to the I nsurance Commissioner for fi re 
department and North Dakota Fi refighter's Association payments from the insurance tax d istribution fund .  
Removes sections provid ing for the transfer of  the boi ler inspection program to the Department of 
Environmental Qual ity. The transfer of the program is provided for in the Senate version of House Bi l l  No .  1 024 . 
Adjusts the section provid ing statutory changes necessary to increase the salary of the Insurance 
Commissioner. 
Adds sections to provide statutory changes relating to rebates associated with obta in ing an insurance quote . 
Adds a statutory section to provide accident and health insurance pol icies may not take into account any pre
exist ing condit ion of an appl icant .  
Adds a section to provide legis lative intent that fi re departments util ize increased d istributions from the 
insurance tax d istribution fund to improve their Insurance Service Office ( ISO) ratings.  
Adds a section to provide for a Leg islative Management study of the feasib i l ity and desirabi l ity of establ ishing a 
pension for volunteer fi refighters . 
Adds a section to declare the sections provid ing for the transfer of admin istration of the state bonding fund and 
the state fi re and tornado fund to be an emergency. The emergency clause fa i led in  the House . 

North Dakota Legis lative Counci l  3 SB201 0 



19.0223.02005 

Sixty-sixth 
Legislative Assembly 
of North Dakota 

Introduced by 

Appropriations Committee 

FIRST ENGROSSMENT 

ENGROSSED SENATE B ILL NO.  201 0  

1 A BILL for an Act to provide an appropriation for defraying the expenses of the insurance 

2 commissioner;  to create and enact ehapter 23.1  16 and section 26.1-22-03.1 and a new section 

3 to chapter 26.1-36 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to boiler inspeetions and North 

4 Dakota reserve fund use of producers and health insurance; to amend and reenact seetions 

5 18 04 04, 18 04 04.1 , and 18 04 05, subsection 2 of section 26.1-01-07, section 26.1-01-09 , 

6 subseetion 1 of seetion 26.1 03 17, andsubdivision c of subsection 8 of section 26.1-04-03. 

7 subsection 2 of section 26.1-04-06, sections 26.1-21-03, 26.1-21-17, 26.1-22-03, and 

8 26.1-23.1-01. and subsection 2 of section 26.1-25-16 of the North Dakota Century Code, 

9 relating to the state fire and tornado fund, the state bonding fund, fees chargeable by the 

1 0  insurance commissioner, the salary of the insurance commissioner, insurance rebates. and 

1 1  government self-insurance pools; to repeal ehapter 26.1  22 .1 of the North Dalmta Century 

1 2  Gode, relating to boiler inspeetions; to pro¥ide a penalty;to provide for a legislative management 

1 3  study: to provide legislative intent: to provide a continuing appropriation ; and to pro¥ide a 

1 4  contingent effeeti¥e dateand to declare an emergency. 

1 5  BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLAT IVE ASSEMBLY OF NORT H  DAKOTA: 

1 6  SECTION 1. APPROPRIAT ION. The funds provided in this section , or so much of the funds 

1 7  as may be necessary, are appropriated from special funds derived from federal funds and other 

1 8  income, to the insurance commissioner for the purpose of defraying the expenses of the 

1 9  insurance commissioner, for the biennium beginning July 1, 2019 , and ending June 30, 2021, 

20 as fol lows: 

2 1  Adjustments or 

22 

23 Salaries and wages 

24 Operating expenses 

Base Level 

$8 ,649,667 

2.179.777 

Enhancements 

($416,092) 

(613.102) 

Appropriation 

$8,134,475 

1.566.675 
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2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

Total speeial funds $10,729,344 ($1 ,028,194) $9,701 , 160 

Full time equivalent positions 46.00 (6 .00) 41 .00 

Salaries and wages $8,549,567 ($399,569) $8,149,998 

ORerating exRenses 2,179,777 (613,102) 1,566,675 

Total SRecial funds $10,729,344 ($1,012,671) $9,716,673 

Ful l-time eguival�nt ROSitions 46 .00 (5.Q0) 41.00 

7 SECTION 2. APPROPRIATION. There is appropriated out of any moneys in the insurance 

8 tax distribution fund in the state treasury, not otherwise appropriated, the sum of $17 ,519,422,  

9 or so much of the sum as may be necessary, to the insurance commissioner for the purpose of 

1 0  providing payments, in accordance with provisions of section 1 8-04-05 ,  to North Dakota fire 

1 1  epartments in the amount of $16 ,773,750 and payments to the North Dakota firefighter's 

1 2  association in the amount of $745 ,672, for the bienn ium beginning Ju ly 1 ,  20 1 9 , and end ing 

1 3  Uune 30 , 2021. 

1 4  SECTION 3. UNSATISFIED JUDGMENT FUND. Section 1 of this Act includes $29,703 

1 5  from the state unsatisfied j udgment fund to pay unsatisfied judgment fund administrative 

1 6  expenses for the biennium beginning July 1,  2019, and ending June 30 , 2021. 

1 7  SECTION 3. AMENDMENT. Section 18 04 04 of the North Dakota Century Gode is 

1 8  amended and reenacted as :follo•Ns: 

1 9  18 04 04. Insurance companies to report fire, allied lines, homeowner's multiple peril, 

20 farmo•...-ner's multiple peril, erop hail, and eommereial multiple peril insuranee premium 

2 1  collections Form furnished by insurance commissioner. 

22 The insurance commissioner, whenat the time the commissioner :forv,ards to an insurance 

23 company whichttlfil is issuing policies :for fire, allied lines, homeowner's multiple peril , 

24 farmowner's multiple peril, crop hail. and commereial multiple peril insurance in this state the 

25 :form to be used in submitting its the company's annual statement, shall :forward a form 

26 containing the names of all cities and all rural fire protection districts or rural fire departments 

27 entitled to benefits under the provisions of this chapter. E•,ery insurance company issuing 

28 policies :for fire, allied lines, homeo>t·mer's multiple peril, farmowner's multiple peril , crop hail, 

29 and commereial multiple peril insurance within this state shall complete suchit!.,Q :form by 

30 shmving thereon the amount of all premiums received by itthe company upon such policies 

3 1  issued on property within the corporate limits of each eity shown on sucht!J.Q :form and on 
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pro:erty within the boundaries of each rural fire department as certified by the state fire marshal 

during the y�ar ending on the preceding thirty first day of December and shall file the sameform 

as a part of itsthe company's annual statement. 
--

SECTION 4. AMENDMENT. Section 18 04 04 1 of the North D I t G · a (O a entury Gode is 

amended and reenacted as follows: 

18 84 84.1 .  lnslifanee tax distfiblition fond. 

The insurance tax distribution fund is a special fund in the state treasuri<. The portion f 

re11enue p 'd d . ' 

0 

• � ro•,I e in section 26.1  oa 17 must be deposited in the fund for disbursement as 

pro•11ded in this chapter and chapter 23 46, subject to legislative appropriation. 

SECTION §. AMENDMENT. Section 18 04 0§ of the North D I t G . a (O a entury Gode Is 

amended and reenacted as follows: 

18 84 8§. Amolint dlie eities, flifal fife pfoteetion distfiets, Of flifal fife departments 

Tfansfef to fifefightefs death benefit flind D' b 
. . 

is lifsement to North Dakota firefightef's 

a ssoeIatIon Payments by in 
.

Slifanee eomm1ssionef Continliing appfopfiation. 

1 .  The insurance commissione h II d' b 

_

r s  a Is urse funds in the insurance tax distribution fund 

as provided under this section. 

2. The i�sur�nce commissioner shall transfer an amount of up to fifty thousand dollars 

per biennium, as may be necessary, to the firefighters death benefit fund for 

distribution under chapter 18 06_ 1 _ 

a. 

4. 

�he insurance commissioner shall compute and disburse funds to the North Dal(ota 

firefight�r·� association for uses authorized under chapter 18 oa, subject to legislati¥e 

appropriations. 

The
. 
insur�nc� commissioner shall compute and disburse the amounts due to the 

c�rt1�ed cit� fire departments, certified rural fire departments, or certified fire protection 

districts entitled to benefits under this chapter on or before December first of each 

year. Th

_

e i

_

nsurance commissioner shall allocate one half of the biennial legislati¥e 

appropnatIon for distribution under this subsection to each r 'bl . . . 

. . 
' e 191 e 01ty not within a 

cert1f1ed fire protection district, each certified rural fire protection district organized 

under this title, and each rural fire department certified by the state fire marshal d 

p th 

, an 

ay e amount allocated in December of each year. The allocation must be made in 
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prepolliOR to the affiOURt of iRSUr<IRCC CORlp8RY pFCRliUlflS ,eeei,ed �y iRS:�R: 

companies pursuant to section 26 .1 03 17 for policies for fire, allied lines, 

homeowner's multiple peril, farmowner's multiple peril, commercial multiple peril, and 

crop hail insurancethe lines of insurance identified under section 18 04 04 
.. .- . . 

on property 

within the city of a certified city fire department, a certified rural fire protection district 

or area served by thee certified rural fire department to the total of thos . f

, 

e premiums -0r 

those policies in the state. 

6. Annually, the insurance commissioner shall determine the amount of . insurance 

premium taxes collected from the insurance lines identified in section 18 04 04 . Of this 

amount annually the commissioner shall disburse five and one half percent to the 

North Dal<:ota fircfightcr's association and ninety four and one half percent to certified 

city fire departments. certified rural fire departments. and certified fire protection 

districts. Moneys authorized for disbursement under this section are appropriated from 

the 
.
insurance tax distribution fund to the insurance commissioner on a continuing 

basis for the purpose of this section 

SECTION 6. Chapter 23 .1  16 of the North Dalmta Century Gode is created and enacted as 

follO\'IS: 

23.1 16 81 . Definitions. 

As used in this chapter. unless the context otherwise requires: 

1 "B ·1 " : 01 er means a closed vessel in which water is heated. steam is generated. steam is 

superhe�tcd. or any combination thereof. under pressure or vacuum for use externally 

to the boiler by the direct application of heat from the combustion of fuels. or from 

electricity or nuclear energy. The term includes fired units for ·,aporizing liquids other 

th
.
an

_ 
'tVater when these units are separate from processing systems and are complete 

w1th1n themselves. 

2. "Department" means the department of environmental quality. 

23.1 16 82. Chief hoiler inspector. deputy inspectors Appointment Jurisdiction. 

The department shall emplov O chief b ·1 

_

; 01 er inspector and deputy inspectors . The chief boiler 

inspector has jurisdiction over all boilers in this state except as other.vise provided. 

23.1 16 83. Qualifications of chief hoiler inspector Deputy inspectors. 

1 .  An individual is not eligible to the office of chief boiler inspector unless that individual: 
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a 

b. 

c. 

I-las had at the time of the appointment at least five years' experience in the 

construction, inspection, operation, maintenance, or repair of high pressure 

boilers and pressure ·,cssels as a mechanical engineer; boilermaker; steam 

operating engineer. or boiler inspector. An applicant possessing a mechanical 

engineering degree from an accredited school may substitute that degree for two 

years of the five years' experience, at the discretion of the department. 

I-folds a commission issued by the national board of boiler and pressure ·,essel 

inspectors or obtains the commission within one year after the date of 

appointment by the department. 

Is not directly or indirectly interested in the manufacture or sale of boilers or 

steam machinery or articles used in the construction or maintenance of engines 

or boilers . 

2. The department shall establish qualifications for a deputy inspector which arc not 

inconsistent with the requirements of the position. 

23.1 16 04. Powers and duties of ehief boiler inspeetor. 
1. The chief boiler inspector shall: 

Keep a complete record of the type, dimensions, maximum allowable worl(ing 

pressure, age, condition, location, and date of the last recorded internal and 

external inspection of boilers to which this chapter applies. 

b. Cooperate and assist in loss prevention programs sponsored by the department. 

The chief boiler inspector may delegate pm•1ers and duties to any deputy inspector or 

special inspector. 

23.1 16 05. General requirement. 

Every boiler in this state must be constructed, installed, and maintained according to rules 

dopted to implement this chapter. 

23.1 16 06. E>Eempt boilers lnspeetion of eJEempt boilers. 

This chapter docs not apply to: 
1. Any boiler subject to federal inspection or under federal control. 

Any boiler located on a farm and used solely for agricultural purposes. 

Any heating boiler located in a private residence or in an apartment house of less than 

six family units. 

Page No.  5 19.0223.02005 

tJ 5 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

1 0  

1 1  

1 2  

1 3  

1 4  

1 5  

1 6  

1 7  

1 8  

1 9  

20 

2 1  

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

29 

30 

3 1  

Sixty-sixth 
Legislative Assembly 

4. Any hot 'l.'ater supply boiler not e>Eceeding the follo1l.'ing limitations: 

a. Input of t·uo hundred thousand British thermal units per hour. 

b. Pressure of one hundred si>Ety pounds per square inch [1103.16 l(ilopascals] 

gauge. 

c. Temperature of two hundred fifty degrees Fahrenheit [121 .11 degrees Celsius] . 

5. Any portable steam cleaner commonly used in a garage. 

6. Any boiler of a miniature model locomotive, boat, tractor, or stationary engine design 

constructed as a hobby. not for commercial use, having an inside diameter not 

e>Eceeding ten inches [25.4 centimeters] and a grate area not e>Eceeding one and 

one half square feet [1393.54 square centimeters] and which is properly equipped with 

a safety valve, water level indicator. and pressure gauge. 

7. Any electric boiler used as an integral part of an espresso coffee machine, provided 

that the boiler does not e>Eceed one and one half cubic feet [.0566 cubic meter] in 

water capacity. does not c>Ecccd fifty pounds per square inch [344 .74 l(ilopascals] 

pressure, and is constructed, approved, or certified to the American society of 

mechanical engineers code or to other national or international standards. 

23.1 16 07. Inspection of boilers. 

1 .  

2. 

The chief boiler inspector shall inspect each boiler used or proposed to be used 'l.'ithin 

this state. The inspection must be thorough as to the construction, installation, 

condition, and operation as pro·1ided by the rules adopted to implement this chapter. 

An e>Eempt boiler may be inspected by the chief boiler inspector when the owner, the 

ovmer's agent, or the user of the boiler malrns written request for inspection to the 

department. 

Each boiler of one hundred thousand pounds [45359.24 kilograms] per hour or more 

capacity, used or proposed to be used within this state, ·uhich has internal continuous 

water treatment under the direct supervision of a graduate engineer or chemist, or one 

ha·1ing equivalent e>Epcrience in the treatment of boiler water when the water treatment 

is for the purpose of controlling and limiting serious corrosion and other deteriorating 

factors. and with respect to \'t'hich boiler the chief boiler inspector has determined the 

owner or user has complied with the prescribed recordl(ecping requirements, must be 

inspected at least once every thirty si>E months internally while not under pressure, and 
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23.1 

� .  

2. 

3. 

4. 

at least once every twel•1c months externally while under pressure . If a hydrostatic test 

is necessary to determine the safety of a boiler, the test must be conducted by the 

o•.vner or user of the equipment under the supervision of the chief boiler inspector. The 

o'"·ner or f b ·1 ff user o a oI er of one hundred thousand pounds (45359 24 I ·1 ] . <1 ograms pe r 
hour or more capacity desiring to qualify for thirty six month internal inspection 

intervals shall l<eep available for examination by the chief boiler inspector accurate 

records showing the date and actual tiffle the �oiler is out of sefl•ice and the • reason 

reasons therefor, and the results of the chemical and physical analysis of the boiler 

water. whether from laboratory analysis of samples tal<en at regular intervals of not 

or 

FftOFO than forty eight hours or from continuous online analysers, which will adeguate ly 

er show the condition of the •.vater and any other clements or characteristics of the wat 

capable of producing corrosion or other deterioration of the boiler or its parts. If an 

inspection discloses deficiencies in equipment or in operating procedures, inspection s 

may be required once every tv;elve months. 

16 08. Special inspector. 

�pen written request of an employer, the department may appoint as a special 

inspector an inspector in the employ of: 

a. An insurance company authorized to insure boilers in this state against loss from 

explosion: 

b. A company qualified by the national board of boiler and pressure vessel 

inspectors as an accredited owner/user inspection organization: or 

c. A company qualified by the national board of boiler and pressure vessel 

inspectors as an accredited authorized inspection agency. 

An individual ma , t b · . . Y ne e appointed as a special inspector unless that individual has 

�asscd the examination prescribed by the national board of boiler and pressure vessel 

inspectors. 

A� inspection performed by a special inspector must be performed in accordance with 

this chapter and a compl t . . P e report of the inspection must be filed with the department 

in the time, manner. and form as prescribed by the department. 

If _a �omplcte report is not filed by the special inspector's employer with the department 

,.,.,,thin ninety days from the certificate due date, the chief boiler inspector may mal(O 
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6. 

6. 

!Re requir,eO iAspeelieA, uAless aA m<teAsieA of time is graA!eO by !Re eRiel :�e� 
inspector. The special inspector's employer must pay the inspection fees as rcguircd 

by section 23.1  1S 09 for a special inspection. 

The chief boiler inspector may inspect any boiler to which a special inspection applies. 

The department may. for cause. suspend or revoke the appointment of any special 

inspector. 

23.1 16 09. lnspeetion and eertifieate fees. 

1 .  

2. 

3. 

Upon completion of inspection. the owner or user of a boiler shall pay to the 

department fees or a combination of inspection and certificate fees. The department 

shall determine the inspection fees. Certificate fees arc determined by section 

23.1 16 10. The department shall determine and annually may adjust a fee scale for 

th� internal inspections of po•,ver boilers. internal inspections of low pressure heating 

boilers. external inspections of all boilers. and inspection of boilers used exclusively for 

exhibition purposes. 

Not more than tv,•o hundred dollars may be charged or collected for any one inspection 

of a boiler. except for special inspections made upon reguest. All other inspections 

made by the chief boiler inspector. including shop inspections and reviews and special 

inspections when rcguested by the owner or user of a boiler. must be charged at a 

rate not to exceed fi>1e hundred dollars per day or three hundred dollars per half day of 

four hours or less. plus payment for mileage. meals. and hotel expenses as allowed by 

sections 44 08 04 and 64 06 09. except that the mileage rate for a state O'l'med 

vehicle will be the actual amount incurred by the department. 

The annual fee for the issuance of a reciprocal commission card for a special 

inspector is forty dollars and the annual fee for the issuance of a welder gualified card 

is twenty dollars. 

4. The fee for taking an examination for a hobby boiler operating license is twenty five 

dollars and the fee for a hobby boiler operating license is twenty fi>ie dollars. 

fu A hobby boiler operating license issued under this section is valid f-or six years . 

23.1 16 10. Certifieate of inspeetion Certifieate to be posted. 

The department shall issue a certificate of inspection for each boiler inspected upon receipt 

of an inspection report certifying that the boiler is in a safe condition to be operated. The 
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department shall chOFge a fee f t... t . d II 
f-1 

o • .-en y o  ars per year for each year that a certificate is valid, 

or part of a year thereof. for each certificate of inspection issued as the result of inspections 

authorized under sections 23.1  16 07 and 23 1 16 08 Th f . . . · · e �es are the hab1hty of the owner or 

user a�d must be paid in accordance 'lt'ith rules adopted by the department. A certificate may 

not be issued for any boiler not in a safe condition to be operated or for a boiler for which the 

inspection and certificate fees have not been paid in full. A certificate is not valid for a period of 

more than thirty six months for power boilers described in subsection 2 of section 23.1  16 07, 

and no more than t\velve months for other power boilers, t\velve months for steam traction 

engines. and thirty six months for low pressure boilers except that a two month grace period 

rea e. pon written request from a special inspector. the chief may be extended for any eert·fi t Id 

boiler �nspector may issue a short term certificate. Eaeh certificate of inspection must be posted 

conspicuously under glass in the boiler room or adjacent to the boiler inspected. 

23.1 16 11 . GeFtifieate of inspeetion FeguiFeEI Penalty. 

I • . 
� person may not operate a boiler in this state without a valid certificate of inspection. A 

•1olot1on of this section is a class A misdemeanor on the port of the owner. user, or operator of 

he boiler. t 

23-1 16 12. ManufaetuFeF's Elata FepoFt. 

The boiler manufacturer shall provide the deportment 'Nith a manufacturer's data report 
\II .. (h . 

- . 

. en signed by an authorized inspector. this data sheet together with the stamp on the boiler is 

th e record denoting the boiler has been constructed in accordance with the rules adopted to 

mplement this chapter. i 

de 

23,1 16 13. Disposition offunEls. 

Al� fun�s collected and recei·,ed under this chapter must be paid to the state treasurer and 
posited IA the state fire and tornado fund to be used to defray the costs of boiler inspections 

23.1 16 14. Rules Penalty foF ¥iolation HeaFing. 

1... The �apartment shall adopt rules for the safe and proper installation, use, operation, 

and inspection of boilers and pressure vessels subject to this chapter. 

2.... Th� department shall adopt rules for the licensing of operators of hobby boilers used 

during parade h'b'f s, ex I Hons, and threshing shows where the public is invited. 

a,_ A fee must be charged for an operating license, for a license renewal, and for an 

examination conducted to determine minimum competence. Individuals operating 
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2 

3 

4 

5 

hobby boilers within this state as of July 1 .  2007. are considered acceptable for a 

license without additional training or examination. An individual who is not a resident of 

this state and who holds a boiler operator license or credential in another state or 

Canadian province is exempt from lieensure as a hobby boiler operator in this state. 

4. The department may not issue a certificate of inspection to any O'tvner or user of a 

6 boiler who fails or refuses to comply ·with the rules. The department shall revol<e any 

7 certificate presently in force upon evidence that the owner or user of the boiler is 

8 failing or refusing to eomply with the rules. 

9 Q.. Any owner or user of a boiler may request a hearing before the department within 

1 0  fifteen days from service of an order refusing or revol<ing a certificate of inspection. It 

1 1  is the burden of the owner or user to show cause 1Nhy the certificate of inspection 

12 should not be refused or revol<ed . If no hearing is requested within the required period. 

1 3  the order of the department becomes final and is not subject to further proceedings.  

1 4  SECTION 4. AMENDMENT. Subsection 2 of section 26.1-01-07 of the North Dakota 

1 5  Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows : 

1 6  2. Nonprofit health service corporations and health maintenance organizations are 

1 7  subject to the same fees as any other insurance company. County mutual insurance 

1 8  companies and benevolent societies are liable only for the fees mentioned in 

1 9  subdivisions b, f, g ,  and kh of subsection 1. 

20 SECTION 5. AMENDMENT. Section 26.1-01-09 of the North Dakota Century Code is 

2 1  amended and reenacted as follows: 

22 26.1-01-09. Salary of commissioner. 

23 The annual salary of the commissioner is  one hundred t'9vo thousand six hundred 

24 eighty nine dollars through June 30, 2016one hundred seven thousand eight hundred 

25 eighty-five dollars through June 30. 2020, and one hundred five thousand seven hundred 

26 seventyone hundred eleven thousand one hundred twenty twoone hundred ten thousand five 

27 hundred eighty-two dollars thereafter. 

28 SECTION 9. AMENDMENT. Subsection 1 of section 26 .1 03 17 of the North Dal<0ta 

29 Century Gode is amended and reenaeted as follows: 

30 1 .  Before issuing the annual certifieate required by law, the commissioner shall 

3 1  collect from every steel< and mutual insuranee company, nonprofit health service 
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1 corporation, health maintenance organization, and prepaid legal seF¥ice organization, 

2 e>Ecept fraternal benefit and benevolent societies, doing business in this state, a ta>E on 

3 the gross amount of premiums, assessments, membership fees, subscriber fees, 

4 policy fees, seF¥ice fees collected by any third party administrator providing 

5 administrative scF¥ices to a group that is self insured for health care benefits, and 

6 finance and seF¥icc charges received in this state during the preceding calendar year, 

7 at the rate of two percent with respect to life insurance, one and three fourths percent 

8 with respect to accident and health insurance, and one and three fourths percent with 

9 respect to all other lines of insurance. This ta>E does not apply to considerations for 
1 0  annuities. The total ta>E is payable on or before March first following the year for which 

1 1  the ta>E is assessable. If the due date falls on a Saturday or legal holiday, the ta>E is 

1 2  payable on the ne>Et succeeding business day. Collections from this ta>E must be 

1 3  deposited in the insurance ta>E distribution fund under section 18 04 04.1  but not in an 

1 4  amount c>Ecccding the amount computed under section 18 04 06 and one half of the 

1 5  biennial amount appropriated for distribution under section 18 04 06 and chapter 

1 6  23 46 in any fiscal year. Collections from this ta>E c>Ececding the sum of the amount 

1 7  deposited in the insurance ta>E distribution fund must be deposited in the general fund 

1 8  in the state treasury. 

1 9  SECTION 6. AMENDMENT. Subdivision c of subsection 8 of section 26 . 1 -04-03 of the 

20 North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

2 1  

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

29 

30 

3 1  

c .  Notwithstanding any other provision in this subsection, i f  the cost docs not 

exceed an aggregate retail value of one hundred dollars per person per year, an 

insurance producer may g ive a gift, prize, promotional article, logo merchandise, 

meal, or entertainment activity directly or indirectly to a person in connection with 

marketing , promoting , or advertising the business. As used in this subdivision, 

"person" means the named insured, policy owner, or prospective client or the 

spouse of any of these individuals, but the term docs not include a certificate 

holder, child, or employee of the named insured, policy owner, or prospective 

client. Subject to the limits of this subdivision, an insurance producer may give a 

gift card for specific merchandise or services such as a meal, gasoline, or car 

wash but may not g ive cash, a cash card, any form of currency, or any refund or 
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1 discount i n  premium. An i nsurance producer may not condition the g iv ing of a g ift, 

2 prize, promotion article, logo merchandise, meal, or entertainment activity on 

3 obtain ing a quote or a contract of i nsurance. Notwithstand ing the limitation i n  this 

4 subdivision ,  an insurance producer may make a donation to a nonprofit 

5 organ ization that is exempt from federal taxation under I nternal Revenue Code 

6 section 50 1 (c)(3) [26 U .S .C .  501 (c)(3)] i n  any amount as long as the donation is 

7 not g iven as an i nducement to obtain a quote or a contract of i nsurance. 

8 SECTION 7. AMENDMENT. Subsection 2 of section 26. 1 -04-06 of the North Dakota 

9 Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

1 0  2 .  Notwithstanding any other provision i n  this section , if the cost does not exceed an 

1 1  aggregate retail value of one hundred dollars per person per year, an insurance 
1 2  producer may give a gift, prize, promotional article, logo merchand ise, meal , or 

1 3  entertainment activity directly or i ndi rectly to a person i n  connection with marketing , 

1 4  promoting , or advertising the business. As used i n  this subsection ,  "person" means the 

1 5  named i nsured, policy owner, or prospective client or the spouse of any of these 

1 6  i ndividuals , but the term does not i nclude a certificate holder, ch ild, or employee of the 

1 7  named insured , policy owner, or prospective client. Subject to the limits of this 

1 8  subsection ,  an insurance producer may g ive a g ift card for specific merchandise or 

1 9  services such as a meal, gasoline, or car wash but may not g ive cash , a cash card, 

20 any form of currency, or any refund or discount in premium. An i nsurance producer 

2 1  may not condit ion the g iv ing of a g ift, prize, promotional article, logo merchandise, 

22 meal, or entertainment activity on obtain ing a quote or a contract of insurance. 

23 Notwithstanding the l imitation i n  this subsection , an insurance producer may make a 

24 donation to a nonprofit organ ization that is exempt from federal taxation under I nternal 

25 Revenue Code section 501 (c)(3) [26 U.S .C .  50 1 (c)(3)] i n  any amount as long as the 

26 donation is not g iven as an inducement to  obtain a quote or a contract of  insurance. 

27 SECTION 8.  AMENDMENT. Section 26 . 1 -21-03 of the North Dakota Century Code is 

28 amended and reenacted as follows: 
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3 The commissioner may employ assistants or contract for the services of assistants from the 

4 North Dakota insurance reserve fund as may be necessary to operate the state bonding fund . 

5 The salaries of all employees together with all other expenditures for the operation of the fund 

6 must remain 'Nithin the appropriations made by the legislative assembly for these purposes and 

7 must be paid by 'Narrant cheek drawn on the state treasury prepared by the office of 

8 management and budget after the approval of expense vouchers by the office of the 

9 budgetMoneys in the reserve fund of the state bonding fund are appropriated to the 

1 0  commissioner on a continuing basis for the purpose of employing or contracting for services as 

1 1  provided under this section . 

1 2  SECTION 9. AMENDMENT. Section 26.1-21-17 of the North Dakota Century Code is 

1 3  amended and reenacted as fol lows: 

1 4  26.1-21-17. Allowed liability claims payable from fund - Administrative expenses -

1 5  Methods of payment. 

1 6  A claim allowed against the fund must be paid upon warrants drawn upon the state 

1 7  treasurer against the fund . The warrant must be prepared by the office of management and 

1 8  budget pursuant to the directions of the commissioner. Payments for administrative expenses of 

1 9  the state bonding fund must be made from the reserve fund of the state bonding fund or must 

20 be made within the limitations of legislative appropriations upon warrant-checks prepared by the 

2 1  office of management and budget after the approval of vouchers by the commissioner. 

22 SECTION 10. AMENDMENT. Section 26.1-22-03 of the North Dakota Century Code is 

23 amended and reenacted as fol lows: 

24 26.1-22-03. Employment of assistants - Expenditures from fund - Continuing 

25 appropriation. 

26 To carry out this chapter, the commissioner may utilize any information on file in the state 

27 fire marshal's department and any of the employees of the commissioner and the commissioner 

28 may employ necessary assistants or contract for services of assistants from the North Dakota 

29 insurance reserve fund and may incur necessary expenses. Al l  expenditures made for these 

30 purposes, other than services contracted and paid for by moneys from the fund and any 

3 1  necessary expenses paid from moneys from the reserve balance within the fund, must remain 
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1 within the limits of legislative appropriations and must be paid out of the fund upon warrants 

2 prepared by the office of management and budget drawn upon the state treasurer after the 

3 approval of vouchers by the office of the budget. Moneys from the reserve balance within the 

4 fund are appropriated to the commissioner on a continuing basis for the purposes of this 

5 section. 

6 SECTION 11. Section 26.1-22-03.1 of the North Dakota Century Code is created and 

7 enacted as follows : 

8 26.1-22-03.1. North Dakota insurance reserve fund - Producers - Commission. 

9 The North Dakota insurance reserve fund may use the services of producers licensed under 

1 0  this title to assist policyholders . Any commission paid to a producer under this section must be 

1 1  paid out of the premium income of the fund and must be assessed against the policyholders 

1 2  that benefit from the producer. 

1 3  SECTION 12. AMENDMENT. Section 26.1-23.1-01 of the North Dakota Century Code is 

1 4  amended and reenacted as follows: 

1 5  26.1-23.1-01. Government self-insurance pools - Regulation - Reinsurance. 

1 6  1 .  Any two or more entities that have united to self-insure against their legal liability 

1 7  under chapter 32-12.1 or any state agency that unites with another state agency or 

1 8  political subdivision, or both, to self-insure against their legal liabilities are subject to 

1 9  the provisions of this chapter with the exception of a city and its park district 

20 established pursuant to chapter 40-49.  Government self-insurance pools may only 

2 1  provide coverage of the following types for pool members, their officers , employees , 

22 and agents: 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

29 

30 

3 1  

a .  Casualty insurance, including general, public officials , and professional liability 

coverages . 

b .  Automobile insurance, including motor vehicle liability insurance coverage, 

security for motor vehicles owned or operated as required by chapter 26.1-41, 

and protection against other liability and laws associated with the ownership of 

motor vehicles and automobile physical damage coverages . 

c .  Property insurance, including inland marine coverage, money and securities 

coverage, and extra expense coverage. However, this subdivision does not 

authorize government self-insurance pools to write those types of insurance 
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coverages offered by the state fire and tornado fund under the provisions of 

chapter 26.1-22 as they existed on December 31, 1988, unless a government 

self-insurance pool enters a contract with the commissioner to provide services 

for the state fire and tornado fund under section 26.1-22-03. 

d. Other coverages authorized by the commissioner and necessary to a pool's 

membership . 

7 2 .  A government self-insurance pool may not expose itself to loss on any single risk or 

8 hazard in an amount exceeding ten percent of the amount of its admitted assets 

9 unless the pool obtains excess insurance or reinsurance with insurance companies 

1 0  approved for such bus i ness by the i nsurance commiss ioner. 

1 1  SECTION 16. REPEAL. Chapter 26.1 22.1 of the North Dalmta Century Gode is repealed . 

1 2  SECTION 16. CONTINGENT EFFECTl\'E DATE. Sections 6 and 15 of this Act become 

1 3  effecfr,e on July 1 ,  2019, if the legislati¥e council has recei¥ed certification from the chief of the 

1 4  en¥ironmental health section of the state department of health that all authority, powers, and 

1 5  duties from the en¥ironmental health section of the state department of health ha¥e been 

1 6  transferred to the department of en¥ironmental quality. If the certification is not recei¥ed by 

1 7  July 1 ,  2019, sections 6 and 15 of this Act become effecfr,e on the date certification is recei•,ed . 

1 8  SECTION 1 3. AMENDMENT. Subsection 2 of section 26.1-25- 1 6  of the North Dakota 

1 9  Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

20 

2 1  

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

29 

30 

3 1  

2 .  Notwithstanding any other provision in this section, if the cost does not exceed an 

aggregate retail value of one hundred dollars per person per year, an insurance 

producer may give a gift, prize, promotional article, logo merchandise, meal, or 

entertainment activity directly or indirectly to a person in connection with marketing , 

promoting , or advertising the business. As used in this subsection, "person" means the 

named insured, policy owner, or prospective client or the spouse of any of these 

individuals, but the term does not include a certificate holder, child, or employee of the 

named insured, policy owner, or prospective client .  Subject to the limits of this 

subsection, an insurance producer may give a gift card for specific merchandise or 

services such as a meal, gasoline, or car wash but may not give cash, a cash card, 

any form of currency, or any refund or discount in premium. An insurance producer 

may not condition the giving of a gift, prize, promotional article, logo merchandise, 
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2 Notwithstanding the limitation in this subsection, an insurance producer may make a 

3 donation to a nonprofit organization that is exempt from federal taxation under Internal 

4 Revenue Code section 501 (c)(3) [26 U.S .C .  501 (c)(3)] in any amount as long as the 

5 donation is not given as an inducement to obtain a quote or a contract of insurance. 

6 SECTION 14. A new section to chapter 26.1-36 of the North Dakota Century Code is 

7 created and enacted as follows: 

8 Pre-existing conditions. 

9 Notwithstanding any law to the contrary, an accident and health insurance policy issued 

1 0 under this chapter may not take into account any pre-existing condition of an insured or 

1 1  applicant, including waiting periods, refusal of coverage, and ratesetting. 
12 SECTION 1 5. LEGISLATIVE INTENT - INSURANCE TAX DISTRIBUTION FUND 

1 3  PAYMENTS TO FIRE DEPARTMENTS. It is the intent of the sixty-sixth legislative assembly 

1 4  hat , when feasible, fire departments utilize increased payments from the insurance tax 

1 5  aistribution fund to improve their insurance service office rating . 

1 6  SECTION 16. LEGISLATIVE MANAGEMENT STUDY - VOLUNTEER FIREFIGHTER 

1 7  ENSION. During the 2019-20 interim, the legislative management shall consider studying the 

1 8  feasibility and desirability of establishing a pension for volunteer firefighters. The study must 

1 9  nclude a review of firefighter needs of the state and benefits provided to volunteer firefighters in 

20 other states. The legislative management shall report its findings and recommendations, 

2 1  together with any legislation required to implement the recommendations, to the sixty-seventh 

22 i egislative assembly. 

23 SECTION 17. EMERGENCY. Sections 8 ,  9, 10 , 11, and 12 of this Act are declared to be an 

24 mergency measure. -----------------------------
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t.f-}rJ., /9  I nsurance Comm issioner, inc lud ing Insurance Tax Payments to F i re Departments - Budget No.  401 
Senate B i l l  No. 201 0 13/ I 
Base Level Fund ing Changes 

Senate Version House Version House Changes to Senate Version 
Increase (Decrease) - Senate Version 

FTE General Other FTE General FTE General 
Position Fund Funds Total Position Fund Other Funds Total Positions Fund Other Funds Total 

201 9-21 Biennium Base Level 46.00 $0 $25,793,430 $25,793,430 46.00 $0 $25,793,430 $25,793,430 0 .00 $0 $0 $0 
201 9-21 Ongoing Funding Changes 

Base payrol l  changes $ 1 65,007 $ 1 65,007 $ 1 65,007 $1 65,007 $0 
Salary increase 2 1 8, 1 70 2 1 8, 1 70 233,693 233,693 $ 1 5 ,523 1 5, 523 
Health insurance increase 1 82 ,946 1 82 ,946 1 82 ,946 1 82 ,946 0 
Add 1 FTE consumer assistance outreach 1 .00 1 79 ,7 1 1 1 79 ,7 1 1 1 .00 1 79 ,71 1 1 79,7 1 1 0 
coordinator position 
Add 1 FTE high risk pool and health care 1 .00 202 ,791  202 ,791 1 . 00 202 ,791  202 ,791  0 
reform coordinator 
Transfer administration of the fi re and (3.00) (6 1 0,352) (6 1 0,352) (3.00) (6 1 0,352) (6 1 0,352) 0 
tornado fund and bond ing fund to the 
insurance reserve fund 
Transfer the boi ler inspection program to (4.00) (753, 365) (753, 365) (4.00) (753,365) (753, 365) 0 
DEQ 
Reduce funding for operating expenses, (637,255) (637,255) (637 ,255) (637 ,255) 0 
including travel , information technology, and 
professional services 
Add funding for M icrosoft Office 365 24, 1 53 24, 1 53 24, 1 53 24, 1 53 0 
l icensing expenses 
Provide a continu ing appropriation for fire ( 1 5 ,064,086) ( 1 5 ,064,086) 0 0 1 5 ,064,086 1 5 , 064,086 
district and Firefighter's Association 
payments 
Reduce funding for the North Dakota 0 (82,853) (82 , 853) (82,853) (82, 853) 
Firefighter's Association 
I ncrease funding for fire d istricts 0 2 ,538, 1 89 2 ,538, 1 89 2 ,538, 1 89 2 ,538, 1 89 
Total ongoing funding changes (5 .00) $0 ($ 1 6,092,280) ($1 6,092,280) (5.00) $0 $ 1 ,442,665 $1 ,442,665 0.00 $0 $ 1 7 , 534,945 $ 1 7 , 534,945 

One-time funding items 
No one-time funding items $0 $0 $0 
Total one-time funding changes 0.00 $0 $0 $0 0 .00 $0 $0 $0 0.00 $0 $0 $0 
Total Changes to Base Level Funding (5.00) $0 ($1 6, 092 ,280) ($ 1 6,092,280) (5.00) $0 $ 1 ,442 ,665 $1 ,442,665 0 .00 $0 $ 1 7 , 534, 945 $ 1 7 ,534,945 

201 9-21 Total Funding 4 1 .00 $0 $9,70 1 , 1 50 $9,701 , 1 50 4 1 . 00 $0 $27,236,095 $27 ,236,095 0 .00 $0 $ 1 7 , 534, 945 $ 1 7 , 534,945 



Other Sections for Insurance Commissioner, including Insurance Tax Payments to Fire Departments - Budget No. 401 
Senate Version House Version 

Insurance tax d istribution fund 

Unsatisfied judgment fund 

Boiler inspection program 

Fees 

Insurance Commissioner's salary 

Insurance rebates 

Fund admin istration - Continu ing 
appropriation 

Pre-existing cond it ions 

Leg is lative intent - F ire department 
payments 

Study - Volunteer fi refighter pension 

Sections 3,  4, 5 ,  and 9 provide statutory changes 
necessary for the Insurance Commissioner to calculate 
the amounts due to fi re d istricts and the North Dakota 
F i refighter's Association  and provide continu ing 
appropriations authority to d istribute the amounts due. 

Section 2 designates $29,703 from the state unsatisfied 
judgment fund to pay unsatisfied judgment fund 
admin istrative expenses. 
Sections 6 and 15 provide statutory changes necessary to 
transfer the boi ler inspection program to the Department 
of Environmental Qual ity. Section 16 provides a 
contingent effective date for the transfer. 
Section 7 amends Section 26. 1 -0 1 -07 relating to fees 
chargeable by the Insurance Commissioner to adjust fees 
charged to county mutual i nsurance companies and 
benevolent societies. 
Section 8 provides the statutory changes necessary to 
i ncrease the Insurance Commissioner's salary to 
$ 1 07,885 beg inn ing Ju ly 1 ,  20 1 9, and $ 1 1 1 , 1 22 beg inn ing 
Ju ly 1 ,  2020. 

Sections 1 0  through 14 provide statutory changes 
necessary to a l low the Insurance Commissioner to 
contract with the insurance reserve fund for admin istration 
of the state fi re and tornado fund and the state bond ing 
fund .  The sections also provide continu ing appropriation 
authority from the funds to pay contractual fund 
admin istration expenses. 

• 

The House removed sections relating to the conti nu ing 
appropriation authority for insurance tax d istribution fund 
payments. Section 2 appropriates $ 1 7 ,51 9 ,422 from the 
insurance tax d istribution fund ,  inc luding $ 1 6 ,773,750 for 
payments to fire departments and $745,672 for payments 
to the North Dakota F i refighters Association .  
Section 3 designates $29,703 from the state unsatisfied 
judgment fund to pay unsatisfied judgment fund 
admin istrative expenses. 
The House removed these sections. 

Section 4 amends Section 26. 1 -01 -07 relating to fees 
chargeable by the Insurance Commissioner to adjust fees 
charged to county mutual insurance companies and 
benevolent societies .  
Section 5 provides the statutory changes necessary to 
increase the Insurance Commissioner's salary to 
$ 1 07,885 beg inn ing Ju ly 1 ,  201 9, and $1 1 0 ,582 beg inn ing 
Ju ly 1 ,  2020. 
Sections 6,  7 ,  and 13 provide statutory changes relating to 
rebates associated with obta in ing an insurance quote. 
Sections 8 through 1 2  provide statutory changes 
necessary to a l low the Insurance Commissioner to 
contract with the insurance reserve fund for admin istration 
of the state fi re and tornado fund and the state bonding 
fund.  The sections also provide continu ing appropriation 
authority from the funds to pay contractual fund 
admin istration expenses. 
Section 14 provides accident and health insurance 
pol icies may not take into account any pre-existing 
condition of an appl icant. 
Section 1 5  provides legislative intent that fi re departments 
uti l ize increased d istributions from the insurance tax 
d istribution fund to improve their Insurance Service Office 
( ISO) ratings.  
Section 16 provides for a leg is lative management study of 
the feas ib i l ity and desirabi l ity of establ ish ing a pension for 
volunteer firefighters . 
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19.0223.02006 
Title. 

Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for 
Representative J. Nelson 

Apri l  16, 2019 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENG ROSSED SENATE BILL NO. 2010 

That the House recede from its amendments as printed on pages 1572-1 575 of the Senate 
Journal and pages 17 40-17 42 of the House Journal and that Engrossed Senate Bi l l  No. 2010 
be amended as fol lows: 

Page 1, line 10, after the first semicolon insert "to provide for a report; "  

Page 1 ,  replace lines 21 and 22 with : 

"Operating expenses 
Total special funds 

Page 13. after line 22 .  insert: 

2.179,777 
$10 ,729, 344 

(413,102) 
($828,194) 

1,766.675 
$9,901,150" 

"SECTION 16. REPORT TO LEGISLATIVE MANAGEMENT - INSURANCE 
DEPARTMENT ANALYSIS OF HEALTH CARE - HOSPITAL REPORTING 
PENALTY. During the 2019-20 interim. the insurance department shal l  assist the 
legislative management with the interim study of health insurance premium trends as 
provided for in House Bil l  No. 1106 of the sixty-sixth legis lative assembly. During the 
interim, the insurance department shal l  conduct a detailed analysis of health care in the 
state and shal l  submit the report to the leg islative management. During the interim, 
upon request of the insurance department. hospitals in cities with a popu lation 
exceeding ten thousand shal l  provide the insurance department requested data 
regarding bil ling and payment information, f inancial information, management 
information ,  and other information the insurance department deems necessary to 
complete a detai led analysis of health care in the state. The department may not 
request data that include personal ly identifiable information and the hospitals may 
provide data in the aggregate. If a hospital fails .  without just cause. to provide the 
insurance department with requested data as required under this section , the 
insurance commissioner may charge the hospital a civil penalty of up to one thousand 
dol lars per day the hospital is in violation." 

Renumber accordingly 
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PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED SENATE B ILL  NO .  201 0 

Page 1 ,  l i ne 1 0 , after the th i rd sem icolon , i nsert "to provide for a leg is lat ive management 

study; " 

Page 1 3 , after l i ne 28 ,  insert :  

SECTION 1 7 . LEGISLATIVE MANAGEMENT STU DY - H EAL TH INSURANCE.  

During the 20 1 9-2020 interim ,  the leg is lat ive management sha l l  consider studying the 
des i rab i l ity and feasib i l ity of state guaranteed issue provis ions ,  to inc lude protect ions for 
i nd ivid ua ls with preexist ing cond it ions and an ana lys is of restructu ri ng the 
comprehensive hea lth associat ion of North Dakota . 

Renumber accordingly 

f l  
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I nsurance Comm iss ioner, i nc lud ing Insurance Tax Payments to F i re Departments - Budget No. 401 � \ 
Senate B i l l  No.  201 0 
Base Level Fund ing  Changes 

Senate Version House Version Conference Committee Version 

FTE General  Other FTE General FTE General 
Position Fund Funds Total Position Fund Other Funds Total Position Fund Other Funds Total 

201 9-21 Biennium Base Level 46.00 $0 $25,793,430 $25,793,430 46.00 $0 $25,793,430 $25,793,430 46.00 $0 $25,793,430 $25,793,430 
201 9-21 Ongoing Funding Changes 

Base payrol l  changes $ 1 65,007 $ 1 65,007 $ 1 65,007 $ 1 65,007 $ 1 65,007 $ 1 65,007 
Salary increase 2 1 8, 1 70 2 1 8, 1 70 233,693 233,693 233,693 233,693 
Hea lth insurance i ncrease 1 82, 946 1 82,946 1 82 ,946 1 82 ,946 1 82 ,946 1 82 ,946 
Add 1 FTE consumer assistance outreach 1 .00 1 79 ,7 1 1 1 79,7 1 1 1 .00 1 79,7 1 1 1 79 ,71 1 1 .00 1 79 ,7 1 1 1 79, 7 1 1 
coordinator position 
Add 1 FTE high risk pool and health care 1 .00 202 ,791  202,791 1 .00 202 ,791  202 ,791  1 .00 202,791 202 ,791 
reform coord inator 
Transfer admin istration of the fi re and (3. 00) (6 1 0, 352) (6 1 0,352) (3.00) (6 1 0,352) (6 1 0,352) (3.00) (6 1 0,352) (6 1 0, 352) 
tornado fund and bonding fund to the 
insurance reserve fund 
Transfer the boi ler  inspection program to (4. 00) (753, 365) (753,365) (4 . 00) (753, 365) (753,365) (4.00) (753 , 365) (753,365) 
DEQ 
Reduce funding for operating expenses, (637 ,255) (637 ,255) (637 ,255) (637 ,2_55) (637 ,255) (637,255) 
inc luding travel ,  information technology, and 
professional services 
Add funding for M icrosoft Office 365 24, 1 53 24, 1 53 24, 1 53 24, 1 53 24, 1 53 24, 1 53 
l icensing expenses 
Provide a continu ing appropriation for fi re ( 1 5 ,064,086) ( 1 5 ,064,086) 0 0 0 0 
d istrict and Firefighter's Association 
payments 
Reduce funding for the North Dakota 0 (82,853) (82,853) 0 
F i refighter's Association 
Increase funding for fi re d istricts 0 2 ,538, 1 89 2 , 538, 1 89 3 ,753,944 3 ,753 ,944 
Total ongoing fund ing changes (5.00) $0 ($ 1 6, 092,280) ($ 1 6,092,280) (5.00) $0 $ 1 ,442,665 $ 1 ,442,665 (5.00) $0 $2 ,74 1 ,273 $2 ,74 1 ,273 

One-time funding items 
Add funding for an ana lys is of health 0 0 $200,000 $200,000 
insurance premium trends 

Total one-time fund ing changes 0 .00 $0 $0 $0 0 .00 $0 $0 $0 0 .00 $0 $200,000 $200,000 
Total Changes to Base Level Funding (5.00) $0 ($ 1 6,092,280) ($1 6,092,280) (5. 00) $0 $ 1 ,442 ,665 $ 1 ,442 ,665 (5.00) $0 $2,94 1 ,273 $2 ,94 1 ,273 

201 9-21 Total Funding 4 1 . 00 $0 $9,70 1 , 1 50 $9,701 , 1 50 4 1 .00 $0 $27,236,095 $27 ,236,095 41 .00 $0 $28,734,703 $28,734,703 
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Other Sections for Insurance Commissioner, including Insurance Tax Payments to Fire Departments - Budget No. 401 
Senate Version House Version 

Insurance tax d istribution fund 

Unsatisfied judgment fund 

Boi ler inspection program 

Fees 

Insurance Commiss ioner's salary 

Insurance rebates 

Fund admin istration - Continu ing 
appropriation 

Health care analys is 

Leg is lative intent - F ire department 
payments 

Sections 3, 4, 5, and 9 provide statutory changes 
necessary for the Insurance Commissioner to calculate the 
amounts due to fi re d istricts and the North Dakota 
F irefighter's Association and provide continu ing 
appropriations authority to d istribute the amounts due.  

Section 2 designates $29,703 from the state unsatisfied 
judgment fund to pay unsatisfied judgment fund 
admin istrative expenses. 
Sections 6 and 1 5  provide statutory changes necessary to 
transfer the boi ler inspection program to the Department of 
Environmenta l Qual ity. Section 1 6  provides a contingent 
effective date for the transfer. 
Section 7 amends Section 26. 1 -0 1 -07 relating to fees 
chargeable by the Insurance Commissioner to adjust fees 
charged to county mutual insurance companies and 
benevolent societies .  
Section 8 provides the statutory changes necessary to 
increase the Insurance Commissioner's salary to $ 1 07,885 
beginn ing Ju ly 1 ,  20 1 9 , and $ 1 1 1 , 1 22 beg inn ing J u ly 1 ,  
2020. 

Sections 1 0  through 14 provide statutory changes 
necessary to a l low the Insurance Commissioner to 
contract with the insurance reserve fund for admin istration 
of the state fi re and tornado fund and the state bonding 
fund. The sections a lso provide continu ing appropriation 
authority from the funds to pay contractua l  fund 
admin istration expenses. 

The House removed sections relating to the continuing 
appropriation authority for insurance tax d istribution fund 
payments . Section 2 appropriates $ 1 7 ,51 9 ,422 from the 
insurance tax d istribut ion fund, inc luding $ 1 6, 773,750 for 
payments to fi re departments and $745,672 for payments 
to the North Dakota F i refighter's Association.  

Section 3 designates $29,703 from the state unsatisfied 
judgment fund to pay unsatisfied judgment fund 
admin istrative expenses. 
The House removed these sections. 

Section 4 amends Section 26. 1 -0 1 -07 relating to fees 
chargeable by the Insurance Commissioner to adjust fees 
charged to county mutual insurance companies and 
benevolent societies .  
Section 5 provides the statutory changes necessary to 
increase the Insurance Commissioner's salary to $ 1 07,885 
beginn ing J u ly 1 ,  20 1 9, and $ 1 1 0, 582 beg inn ing Ju ly 1 ,  
2020. 
Sections 6 ,  7 ,  and 1 3  provide statutory changes re lating to 
rebates associated with obta in ing an insurance quote . 
Sections 8 th rough 1 2  provide statutory changes 
necessary to a l low the Insurance Commissioner to 
contract with the insurance reserve fund for admin istration 
of the state fire and tornado fund and the state bonding 
fund. The sections a lso provide continu ing appropriation 
authority from the funds to pay contractual fund 
admin istration expenses. 

Section 1 5  provides legis lative intent that fi re departments 
uti l ize increased d istributions from the insurance tax 
d istribution fund to improve their Insurance Service Office 
( ISO) ratings .  

• 

Conference Committee Version 
The Conference Committee removed sections relating to 
the continu ing appropriation  authority for insurance tax 
d istribution fund payments . Section 3 appropriates 
$ 1 8 ,81 8 ,030 from the insurance tax d istribut ion fund ,  
incl ud ing $ 1 7 ,989 ,505 for payments to  fire departments 
and $828,525 for payments to the North Dakota 
F i refighter's Association .  
Section 4 designates $29,703 from the state unsatisfied 
judgment fund to pay unsatisfied judgment fund 
admin istrative expenses.  
The Conference Committee removed these sections .  

Section 5 amends Section 26. 1 -0 1 -07 relat ing to fees 
chargeable by the Insurance Commiss ioner to adjust fees 
charged to county m utual  i nsurance compan ies and 
benevolent societies .  
Section 6 provides the statutory changes necessary to 
increase the Insurance Commissioner's  sa lary to $ 1 07,885 
beg inn ing Ju ly 1 ,  20 1 9, and $ 1 1 0 , 582 beg inn ing J u ly 1 ,  
2020. 
Sections 7,  8 ,  and 1 4  provide statutory changes relating  to 
rebates associated with obta in ing  an insurance quote. 
Sections 9 through 1 3  provide  statutory changes 
necessary to a l low the Insurance Commiss ioner to 
contract with the insurance reserve fund for admin istration  
of  the state fi re and tornado fund and the state bond ing 
fund.  The sections a lso provide continu ing appropriat ion 
authority from the funds to pay contractua l  fund 
admin istration expenses.  Section 19  declares these 
sections to be an  emergency. 
Section 15 provides for the Insurance Department to 
conduct a deta i led ana lys is of health care in  the state to 
assist the Legis lative Management with its interim study of 
health insurance prem ium trends pursuant to House B i l l  
No .  1 1 06. 
Section 16 provides leg is lative i ntent that fi re departments 
uti l ize increased d istribut ions from the insurance tax 
d istribution fund to improve the i r  I nsurance Service Office 
( ISO) ratings . 

1 9 . 0223 .02007 
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Other Sections for Insurance Commissioner, including Insurance Tax Payments to Fire Departments - Budget No. 401 

Senate Version House Version 
Pre-existing cond itions 

Study - Volunteer fi refighter pension 

Section 14 provides accident and health insurance pol icies 
may not take i nto account any pre-existing condition of an 
appl icant. 
Section 1 6  provides for a legislative management study of 
the feasib i l ity and desirab i l ity of establ ish ing a pension for 
volunteer fi refighters . 

Conference Committee Version 
Section 17 provides for a Leg is lative Management study of 
health insurance coverage for pre-existing condit ions. 

Section 1 8  provides for a legis lative management study of 
the feas ib i l ity and desirabi l ity of estab l ish ing a pension for 
volunteer fi refighters . 

1 9 .0223 .02007 
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Title. 

Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for 
Representative Beadle 

Fiscal No. 1 April 23, 2019 f I 
PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED SENATE BILL NO. 2010 

That the House recede from its amendments as printed on pages 1572-1576 of the Senate 
Journal and pages 17 40-17 44 of the House Journal and that Engrossed Senate Bill No. 2010 
be amended as follows: 

Page 1, line 2, remove "chapter 23.1-16 and" 

Page 1, line 3 ,  remove "boiler inspections and" 

Page 1, line 4, remove "sections 18-04-04, 18-04-04 .1 ,  and 18-04-05 , "  

Page 1 ,  line 5 ,  replace "subsection 1 of section 26.1-03-17, and" with "subdivision c of 
subsection 8 of section 26.1-04-03 , subsection 2 of section 26.1-04-06, " 

Page 1, line 6, after "26.1-23.1-01" insert " ,  and subsection 2 of section 26.1-25-16" 

Page 1, line 8, after the second comma insert "insurance rebates, "  

Page 1 ,  line 9 ,  remove "to repeal chapter 26.1-22.1 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating 
to" 

Page 1, line 10, replace "boiler inspections; to provide a penalty ; "  with "to provide for legislative 
management studies; to provide legislative intent; to provide for reports; "  

Page 1 ,  line 10, remove "and to provide a" 

Page 1, line 11, replace "contingent effective date" with "to provide for a penalty ; and to declare 
an emergency" 

Page 1, replace lines 20 through 23 with: 

"Salaries and wages 
Operating expenses 
Total special funds 
Full-time equivalent positions 

$8, 549 , 567 
2,179,777 

$10,729 ,344 
46.00 

($399, 569) 
(413,102) 

($812,671) 
(5.00) 

$8,149, 998 
1.766,675 

$9 ,916,673 
41.00 

SECTION 2. ONE-TIME FUNDING - EFFECT ON BASE B U DGET - REPORT 
TO THE SIXTY-SEVENTH LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY. The following amounts reflect 
one-time funding items approved by the sixty-fifth legislative assembly for the 2017-19 
biennium and the one-time funding items included in the appropriation in section 1 of 
this Act: 

One-Time Funding Description 
Health care analysis 
Total special funds 

2017-19 
iQ 
$0 

2019-21 
$200,000 
$200,000 

The 2019-21 biennium one-time funding amounts are not a part of the entity's 
base budget for the 2021-23 biennium. The insurance commissioner shall report to the 
appropriations committees of the sixty-seventh legislative assembly on the use of this 
one-time funding for the biennium beginning July 1 ,  2019 , and ending June 30, 2021 . 

SECTION 3. APPROPRIATION .  There is appropriated out of any moneys in the 
insurance tax distribution fund in the state treasury, not otherwise appropriated, the 
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sum of $18,818,030, or so much of the sum as may be necessary, to the insurance 
commissioner for the purpose of provid ing payments , in accordance with provisions of 
section 18-04-05, to North Dakota fire departments in the amount of $17,989,505 and 
payments to the North Dakota firefighter's association in the amount of $828,525, for 
the biennium beginning July 1, 2019, and end ing June 30, 2021. " 

Page 2, remove lines 4 through 30 

Page 3, remove lines 1 through 31 

Page 4 ,  remove lines 1 through 31 

Page 5, remove lines 1 through 30 

Page 6, remove lines 1 through 31 

Page 7, remove lines 1 through 31 

Page 8, remove lines 1 through 30 

Page 9, remove lines 1 through 31 

Page 10, remove lines 1 through 3 

Page 10, l ine 16, replace "one hundred eleven thousand one hundred twenty-two" with "one 
hundred ten thousand five hundred e ighty-two" 

Page 10, remove lines 17 through 31 

Page 11, replace lines 1 through 7 with: 

• 

"SECTION 7. AMENDMENT. Subd ivision c of subsection 8 of section 
• 26.1-04-03 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

c. Notwithstanding any other provision in this subsection, if the cost does 
not exceed an aggregate reta i l  value of one hundred dollars per 
person per year, an insurance producer may give a g ift ,  prize , 
promotional article , logo merchand ise , meal ,  or entertainment activity 
directly or ind irectly to a person in connection with marketing , 
promoting , or advert ising the business. As used in this subdivision, 
"person" means the named insured ,  pol icy owner, or prospective client 
or the spouse of any of these ind ividuals, but the term does not 
include a certif icate holder, child , or employee of the named insured ,  
policy owner, or prospective client . Subject to  the limits of this 
subdivision, an insurance producer may give a gift card for specific 
merchandise or services such as a meal , gasol ine , or car wash but 
may not give cash, a cash card , any form of currency, or any refund or 
discount in premium. An insurance producer may not cond ition the 
giving of a gift , prize , promotion article , logo merchandise , meal ,  or 
entertainment act ivity on obtaining a quote or a contract of insurance. 
Notwithstand ing the l imitation in this subdivision, an insurance 
producer may make a donation to a nonprofit organization that is 
exempt from federal taxat ion under Internal Revenue Code section 
501 (c) (3) [26 U .S .C .  501 (c) (3) ]  in any amount as long as the donation 
is not g iven as an inducement to obtain a quote or a contract of 
insurance. 
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SECTION 8. AMENDMENT. Subsection 2 of section 26.1-04-06 of the North 
Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

2. Notwithstanding any other provision in th is section , if the cost does not 
exceed an aggregate retail value of one hundred dollars per person per 
year, an insurance producer may give a gift , prize , promotional article, logo 
merchandise, meal, or entertainment activ ity directly or indirectly to a 
person in connection with marketing, promoting, or advertising the 
business. As used in th is subsection, "person" means the named insured, 
policy owner, or prospective client or the spouse of any of these 
individuals, but the term does not include a certificate holder, ch ild, or 
employee of the named insured, policy owner, or prospective client. 
Subject to the limits of this subsection, an insurance producer may give a 
gift card for specific merchandise or services such as a meal , gasoline, or 
car wash but may not give cash, a cash card, any form of currency, or any 
refund or discount in premium. An insurance producer may not condition 
the giving of a gift , prize, promotional article , logo merchandise ,  meal , or 
entertainment activity on obtaining a quote or a contract of insurance. 
Notwithstanding the limitation in th is subsection, an insurance producer 
may make a donation to a nonprofit organizat ion that is exempt from 
federal taxation under Internal Revenue Code section 501 (c) (3) [26 U. S.C. 
501 (c) (3)] in any amount as long as the donation is not given as an 
inducement to obtain a quote or a contract of insurance. "  

Page 13, replace lines 2 2  through 28 with :  

"SECTION 1 4. AMENDMENT. Subsection 2 of section 26.1-25-16 of the North 
Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

2. Notwithstanding any other provision in th is section, if the cost does not 
exceed an aggregate retail value of one hundred dollars per person per 
year, an insurance producer may give a gift , prize , promotional article, logo 
merchandise, meal, or entertainment activity directly or indirectly to a 
person in connection with marketing, promoting , or advertising the 
business. As used in th is subsection, "person" means the named insured, 
policy owner, or prospective client or the spouse of any of these 
individuals, but the term does not include a certificate holder, ch ild, or 
employee of the named insured, policy owner, or prospective client. 
Subject to the limits of this subsection, an insurance producer may give a 
gift card for specific merchandise or services such as a meal, gasoline, or 
car wash but may not give cash, a cash card, any form of currency, or any 
refund or discount in premium . An insurance producer may not condition 
the giving of a gift , prize, promotional article , logo merchandise, meal, or 
entertainment activ ity on obtaining a quote or a contract of insurance. 
Notwithstanding the limitation in th is subsection, an insurance producer 
may make a donation to a nonprofit organizat ion that is exempt from 
federal taxation under Internal Revenue Code section 501 (c) (3) [26 U. S.C. 
501 (c) (3)] in any amount as long as the donation is not given as an 
inducement to obtain a quote or a contract of insurance. 

SECTION 1 5. REPORT TO THE LEGISLATIVE MANAGEMENT -
INSURANCE DEPARTMENT ANALYSIS OF HEALTH CARE - HOSPITAL 
REPORTING - PENALTY. During the 2019-20 interim, the insurance department shall 
assist the legislative management with the interim study of health insurance premium 
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trends as approved by the sixty-sixth legislative assembly in House Bill No. 1106. f ;/ During the interim, the insurance department shall conduct a detailed analysis of health 
care in the state and submit the report to the leg islative management. During the 
interim, upon request of the insurance department ,- hospitals in cities with a population 

• exceeding ten thousand shall provide the insurance department requested data 
regarding billing and payment information, financial information, management 
information, and other information the insurance department deems necessary to 
complete a detailed analysis of health care in the state. The department may not 
request data that include personally identifiable information and the hospitals may 
provide data in the aggregate . If a hospital fails, without just cause, to provide the 
insurance department with requested data as required under this section, the 
insurance commissioner may charge the hospital a civi l penalty of up to one thousand 
dollars per day the hospital is in violation. 

SECTION 16. LEGISLATIVE INTENT - INSU RANCE TAX DISTRIBUTION 
FUND PAYMENTS TO FIRE DEPARTMENTS. It is the intent of the sixty-sixth 
legislative assembly that , when feasible, fire departments utilize increased payments 
from the insurance tax distribution fund to improve their insurance service office rating . 

SECTION 17. LEGISLATIVE MANAGEMENT ST UDY - HEALT H  INSURANCE 
- PRE-EXISTING CONDITIONS. During the 2019-20 interim, the legislative 
management shal l  consider study ing the feas ib i l ity and desi rabi l ity of state guaranteed 
issue provisions for health insurance . The study must include consideration of 
protections for individuals with pre-existing cond it ions and consideration of whether to 
restructure the comprehensive health associati on of North Dakota. The legislative 
management shall report its find ings and recommendations, together with any 
legislation required to implement the recommendations, to the sixty-seventh legislative 
assembly. 

SECTION 18. LEGISLATIVE MANAGEMENT ST UDY - VOLUNTEER 
FIREFIGHTER PENSION. During the 2019-20 interim, the legislative management 
shall consider studying the feasibility and desirabil ity of establishing a pension for 
volunteer firefighters. The study must include a review of f irefighter needs of the state 
and benefits provided to volunteer firefighters in other states. The legislative 
management shall report its findings and recommendations, together with any 
legislation required to implement the recommendations, to the sixty-seventh legislative 
assembly. 

SECTION 19. EMERGENCY. Sections 9, 10, 11, 12 , and 13 of this Act are 
declared to be an emergency measure. "  

Renumber accordingly 

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT: 

Senate B i l l  No.  201 0 - Insurance Department - Conference Committee Action 

Conference Conference 
Base Senate Committee Committee House Comparison to 

Budget Vers ion Changes Vers ion Version House 
Salaries and wages $8,549,567 $8 , 1 34,475 $ 1 5 ,523 $8 , 1 49,998 $8 , 1 49,998 
Operating expenses 2 , 1 79,777 1 ,566,675 200,000 1 ,766,675 1 ,566,675 $200,000 
Insurance tax payments 1 5 ,064,086 1 8 ,8 1 8,030 1 8 ,8 1 8,030 1 7 , 5 1 9,422 1 ,298,608 

Total a l l  funds $25,793,430 $9,701 , 1 50 $ 1 9,033,553 $28,734,703 $27,236,095 $1 ,498,608 
Less estimated income 25,793,430 9 ,701 , 1 50 1 9 ,033,553 28,734,703 27,236,095 1 ,498,608 
General fund $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 
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FTE 46.00 41 .00 0.001 41 .00 4 1 .00 0.00 

Department 401 - Insurance Department - Deta i l  of Conference Committee Changes 

Adjusts Add One-Time Total 
Adds Funding Funding for Funding for Conference 

for Salary Fire District Health Care Committee 
lncreases1 Payments1 Analysis1 Changes 

Salaries and wages $ 1 5,523 $ 1 5,523 
Operating expenses $200,000 200,000 
Insurance tax payments $ 1 8 ,8 1 8 ,030 1 8 , 8 1 8 ,030 

Total al l funds $ 1 5,523 $ 1 8 ,81 8,030 $200,000 $ 1 9 ,033,553 
Less estimated income 1 5 ,523 1 8 ,8 1 8,030 200,000 1 9 ,033,553 
General fund $0 $0 $0 $0 

FTE 0 .00 0 .00 0 .00 0.00 

1 Fund ing i s  adjusted to provide  employee salary increases of 2 percent on Ju ly 1 ,  201 9 ,  with a m in imum month ly 
increase of $ 1 20 and a maximum month ly increase of $200, and 2.5 percent on Ju ly 1 ,  2020 , the same as the 
House version . The Senate p rovided fund ing for a 2 percent salary increase on J u ly 1 ,  20 1 9 , and a 3 percent salary 
i ncrease on July 1 ,  2020. 

2 Funding from the insurance tax d istribution fund for payments to fi re d istricts and the N orth Dakota F i refighter's 
Association is restored to reflect the removal of continu ing appropriation authority approved by the Senate. The 
House also removed the cont inu ing appropriation authority. This amendment p rovides $ 1 7 ,989 ,505 to be d istributed 
to fi re departments, an increase of $3,753 ,944 from the base leve l .  The Senate provided an estimated $ 1 7 ,783,038 
and the House provided $ 1 6 , 773 , 750 for fi re department payments. The amendment a lso p rovides $828 ,525 to be 
d istributed to the North Dakota F i refighter's Association ,  the same as the base leve l .  The Senate provided an 
estimated $1 , 034,992 and the House provided $745 ,672 for the North Dakota F i refighter's Association . This results 
in a genera l  fund revenue reduction of $3,753,944 compared to the base level , the same as the Senate version and 
$ 1 ,298,608 more than the House version . 

3 One-t ime fund ing of $200 ,000 i s  appropri ated for an analysis of health care in the state to assist the Legis lative 
Management in its study of health i nsurance p remium trends pursuant to House B i l l  No .  1 1 06 .  Neither the House nor 
the Senate i ncluded fund ing for the health care ana lysis . 

Senate B i l l  No. 201 0 - Other Changes - Conference Committee Action 

This amendment a lso:  
Removes sections added by the Senate to provide continu ing appropriation authority to the I nsurance 
Commissioner for fi re department and North Dakota Fi refighter's Association payments from the insurance tax 
d istribution fund .  The House also removed these sections .  
Removes sections added by the Senate to provide for the transfer  of the bo i ler  i nspection p rogram to the 
Department of Environmental Qua l ity. The transfer of the program is  provided for in  the Senate version of 
House B i l l  No .  1 024. 
Adjusts the section provid ing statutory changes necessary to increase the salary of the Insurance 
Commissioner, the same as the House version . 
Adds sections to provide statutory changes re lati ng to rebates associated with obta in ing an insurance quote , 
the same as the House vers ion .  
Adds a section to p rovide for the Insurance Department to conduct a detai led analysis of health care i n  the 
state to assist the Leg is lative Management with its interim study of health insurance premium trends pursuant 
to House B i l l  No. 1 1 06 .  Neither the House nor the Senate included th is  section .  
Does not inc lude a section added by the  House to  provide accident and  health insurance pol icies may not take 
into account any p re-existing condit ion of an appl icant. The Conference Committee amendment provides for a 
Legis lative Management study of health insurance coverage for pre-existi ng cond it ions .  
Adds a section to  p rovide leg is lative i ntent that fi re departments uti l ize increased d istributions from the 
insurance tax d istri bution fund to improve their Insurance Service Office ( ISO) ratings ,  the same as the House 
version . 
Adds a section to provide for a Leg is lative Management study of the feas ib i l ity and desirab i l ity of establ ish ing a 
pension for vol unteer fi refighters , the same as the House version . 
Adds a section to declare the sect ions provid ing for the transfer of admin istration of the state bonding fund and 
the state fire and tornado fund to be an emergency. 
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